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ALWAYS LEARNING

Pearson is the world’s leading learning
company, with 40,000 employees in more
than 80 countries working to help people
of all ages to make measurable progress
in their lives through learning.

We provide learning materials, technologes, assessments and services
to teachers and students in order to help people everywhere aim
hugher and futfil their true potential

We put the learner at the centre of everything we do
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more

www pearson com/ar2013 htmi

To stay up to date with Pearson
throughout the year, visit our
blog at blog pearson com
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Financial highlights

In financial terms, Pearson’s goal 1s to achieve 2013 saLes

sustainable growth on three key financial goals
— earnings, cash and return on invested capital, n
!

and reliable cash returns to our investors

through healthy and growing dividends. O
In 2013 trading was tough in many of our biggest and most established —I—
markets At the same time we are now in a more intensive phase of O

nvestment, investing much more, both in butlding the technology and
related mfrastructure, and in the next generation of products ang
services We also continue to finance the one-off costs of the biggest
restructuring in Pearson's recent history Headiine earnings and cash were
agamn lower than the previous year and our return on invested capital fell
to 5 4% from 9 1% 1n 2013 We are proposing a 7% dividend increase

2013 2012 HEADLINE CER  UNDERLYING 2813 ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
wm £ GROWTH  GROWTH GROWY TH

Before net restructuring charges
Business performance

Sales 5177 5,059 2% 2% |
Adjusted operaung
profit before net

&

1 estructunng charges 87t 932 (7% {6)% (9%

Adjusted operaung profic 736 932 (26)% 2% {23;%

Adjusted earmings 60/
per share 7Qip 826p (15)% — o
Operatung cash flow 588 788 {254%

Free cash flow 269 657 (59)% .

Free cash flow pershare  333p 81 7p (59)%

Return on invested capital  54% 9% -

Net debt ‘ 379 9! 8 (50)% OUR FIVE-YEAR RECORD

Average annual growthin
Stacutory results headline terms 2008--2013
Sales 5069 4959 2% Adjusted earnings per share
Operaung profit 458 487 {6)% o
Profit befor e tax 382 39 (2)% + 4 /O
Basic earnings per share 666p 387p 72%

Operating cash flow

Cash generated
from opet ations 684 916 (25)% E O/
Dividend per share 480p 450p 7% - O

Note

Ay Growiltrates are seated on 2 constant exchange rate (CFR) Lasts unless othervase siated Dividend
Where quoted undes lying growth rates exclude both cureens s movements and pur toha changes O
Unless atherwise stated sales exclude Panguin wiule operaing profivs inclede both Prnguin and
our share of Penpuin Random House (PREY Conunung operation: erclude borh Penguin and | ; O

IMerge: market but include our shaee of PRI

b} The business performance measures a1e pon GAAP messures and recuncdiauons 1 the eauefent
stututery he sy under [FRS weincduded mpotes & 7 #1d B 1o the inanaidl statuments
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Chairman's introduction

Image removed

Glen Moreno Chanman of Pearson

While the business
environment remains
challenging, the board is
confident that Pearson is
well placed with a clear plan
to deliver future growth
and create value for our
shareholders.

Dear sharcholders,

Pearson has always invested time and energy in
producing a clear and compelling annual report,

but with the new edition of the UK Corporate
Governance Code now in place, we have worked
parucularly hard to ensure that our annual report
and accounts 1s fair;, balanced and understandable

At this important ume in the company’s history we
have focused on providing the information necessary
for shareholders to fully assess the company s business
model, strategy, development, performance, position
and future prospects

2013 was an extremely significant year for Pearson
and the first full year under the leadership of

John Fallon as chief executive Our restruciunng
programme — designed to accelerate our shift
towards fast-growing economues and digital and
services businesses — 1s on track and we began 2014
under a new, integrated cperating model for a single
and global educauon company

As a company we also made a series of unique
commuitments designed to measure and increase the
company’s impact on learming outcomes around the
world, including to commit to report audited learning
outcomes alongside our financial accounts, covering
our whole business by 2018

Strengthening the board and executive team

john Fallon has strengthened his executive team by
promoting our best mternal talent and recruiung some
excepuonal global leaders i their specific fields

We have also focused on the development of the
board, which | address in the Governance section of
this report With recent and planned appomtments,
{ am confident thart the board reflects the right blend
of skilis and experience to gutde Pearson in the best
interests of shareholders
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SHARE PRICE PERFORHMANCE
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A challenging 2013

As CFO Robin Freestone outhines in his report

{page 19}. our 2013 financial performance was
challenging Market conditions contnued 1o be strong
n digital, services and emerging markets, but
remamed more difficult 1n some of our largest
textbook publishing markets

These chaflenges were reflected in our share price
performance, which underperformed our indices
While the business environment remains challenging,
the board is confident that Pearson is well placed with
a clear plan to delver future growth and creare value
for our shareholders Longer term, our share price
and total shareholder retrn have reflected a 10 year
track record of strong business performance We are
now facused on establishing a base for similar business
growth over the next decade

Concinued transformation

As 1 said in last year's annual report, the basic
direction of Pearson’s strategy has not changed but
we are acceleraung the pace to shift capital and talent
more quickly towards our most sigmficant growth
opportumties The restructuring of our global
education business, cantuinued (nvestment n
technology and focus on eperanonal efficiency are
well underway

| am cenfident that the global demand for affordable
and effecuve learning will conunue to grow As the
world's leading learning company we are in an
increasingly strong position 1o take advantage of
this demand and delver products and services that
measurably improve learning outcomes for our
customers and learners | am also confident that
this wilt posiuvely impact shareholder value.

Gien Mareno Chairman
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Qur business models

Pearson is the world’s
leading learning company,
working to support
learners and teachers in
over 80 countries around
the world.

BUSINESS MODEL

Inside services

frnage removed

Where we provide a set of integrated services
to institutions (public and private) that have

an institution-wide iMpact on improved learning
outcames (often at ower cost)

Includes

Sirtrm2 COC provides 2 complete
soluston fiom dgsl and trahinen
lesrning 1@ assassment *ools and
oadagoguat suppo 1 {or pre

K12 emsocdein Praz [ reachung

toll 000 sruderts

Logo removed

Emabnetis the leading provider of onfine

E m b a n e t" le irnng services for the world s premier

schonls, colleres ard universurs

We provide techrology and
management Servies 1o uppert ASU§
onhne studenty ASL s the hirgest publie
winver sicy s the US Dy coroloant

Logo removed

Whetbher 1t s through new digital learning products
in the US, developing qualifications and assessments

"in the UK, training school leaders in the Middle East,

teaching Enghsh in China, or educaung professionals
through content from the Financial Times, we're
helping people make measurable progress in ther
fives through learning

Qur products and services may be provided and used
i a standalone way, but are increasingly integrated
and customised to meet the needs of ndwvidual
education systems, customers and learners We have
idenufied four major market opporturities for our
products and so we create value for our customers

in four different, but related ways, outlined below

BUSINESS MODEL

Direct delivery

Image removed

Where we own and operate the learning instizution
{physical, virtual and/or blended), providing an
integrated learming environment direct to the
learner rather than through other parues

Includes

CThuw 3 private ngher educauon
insttunion m South Afrka offerng full
and part nima studies in Infor magen
Technelogy Pavchology and Cao snselhiog
Crestve Arts ind Graplae Desgn
Commerce imiLaw ON§ aNPUsES
spread chroughout Sautr Africa

Logo removed

Wall Sereer Englhishies 1mong the Lirgest
provider s of Enghsh ingrage instt uction
for dults and corpor ate chencs a1 oung
the waorld eperiung over 450 centres i
28 counties

Logo removed

Connecuons Academy offers 1 variety
wf scerndingd wotwal wchool opucns fo
sudents in prades K-12 mthe US

Logo removed
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Underpinning the effectiveness of each of these

four models, from design through to delivery, is the
Efficacy Framework, a tool we have devised to help
understand how our products or services can achieve
the best possible outcomes or results You can read
more about our commitment to efficacy from page 14,
and online at efficacy pearson com

{.ike any business, we understand that there are
certan risks associated with each model. Read more
about how we are managing and mitgating these

on pages 4| to 45

BUSINESS MODEL

Learn[ng services

Image
removed

The ndwidual elements of our products, including
learning materrals, that are increasingly digital in
nature and operating as part of an mtegrated
learnng ecosystem

Includes

enVinonMATH s designed for swudents
10 pradec K-& and seehs 1o help students
aevelop 3n under standng o maths
cencepts througn probiem based
dictrucuon smali group ritericlon

and wieual lerenny, wath a face on
reascnng and modeihing,

image
removed

tMylab & Mastering is the world's leading
colfecuon of anbne homework tuanal
2nd ASEEEMeNL Graducts ¢ eates
personahsed and convnuously adapuse
learning experences

Mylab &
Mastering

Speakoutis w awrd winming English
Lourse for sdufts used arcund the world
Inpartnersmp with the BBC includes
exeicises small group wark avdio

chips e widles chips from we Il known
TY pn oprammes

speakout

Section | Overview 07

Associates and jomnt ventures

VWe have a 47% stake mn Pengun Random House,
the world's first truly global trade book pubiisher
Penguin Random House was formed on 1 july 2013,
upon the compleuon of an agreement between
Bertelsrmann and Pearson to merge their respective
trade publishing compantes, Random House and
Penguin Other assoctates and Joint ventures
mnclude Vedomost in Russia and a 50% stake in

The Economust Group

BUSINESSMODEL

Assessment

Image
removed

Where we provide services that enable an
mstitution or system to measure and validate
learner progress towards relevant standards
or to cerufy comperency

Includes

Pearson VUE 1S the world 5 leadng
romputcr Dased testing and 3ssestmeni
businese worlang with o gamsarions

of all sice5 10 ¢rpacs fleable cugwom-
Bl 2sse_sment yolunons ang

delnaring them in & secure znd sof able
reSUAE e A OnMment,

PEARSON VUE

BTEC vocavonal quaiicanons sre
LOgO recogmsed inmore than BO counrries
removed worfdwade and i 20E1/232 over 2m
icarnars regiszernd tor BTECS el ding
650 000 school students

We wedte deliver and provess state and
nsuonal wsessmsents mehe US in 2013
we adminicres ed nearly 50m eobine wnd
M aper Wsiy

Graph remaoved
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We have a remarkable opportunity

to make an impact

on some of the biggest and toughest

challenges in education

Image removed

("3



Secuon | Overview 09

Pearson’s strategy: John Fallon, Chief executive

john Fallon, Chief executive of Pearson

By accelerating the
transformation of Pearson
we become more
confident of our ability

to seize that once in a
generation opportunity

— to become directly
accountable for helping
people make progress in
their lives through learning.

Dear shareholders,

Last year, in my first letter to you as Pearson’s
chief executive, | wrote about the establishment
of a clear Pearson education strategy and its
accelerated implermentation That acceleration -
the transformation of the company —1s now well
underway Twelve months on, { am convinced that
we started 1t nota moment too soon, and that the
changes we need to make must go deeper, and
happen faster, than | originally envisaged

The global opportunity

The long-term opportunity in global education is
greater than ever Last year, the OECD reported

that poor math and hteracy skilfs fimit access to
better-paying and more-rewarding jobs People who
are strong in these skills are not just wealthier and live
healthier irves, they are also more actwvely engaged in
public fe. Nelson Mandela was right education really
15 the most powerful weapon with which to thange
the world

As rapid advances in technology continue to disrupt
the world of worl, the economic value of education
and skifls will continue to increase Governments
spend trilions of dollars per year on education and
traiming, and, each year, the stll rapidly growing middle
class invests more of its own increasing wealth in the
educaton of themselves and therr children And yet,
the world fails to meet the learning needs of far too
many of our fellow citzens One in five adults i today's
world still lack the written communication slkalls they
need to progress in iife, 57 milion children remain out
of schoel, and many millions more are in educanon, but
not really learning anything very much at all

Pearson has a unique set of advantages with which to
help meet this global demand for better educaton and
skills, in part by applying technology to help tangibly
improve {earmng outcomes And, by being better able
to meet seme of the biggest challenges in global
education, wa can build a stronger, more profitable
and faster growing company
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Pearson’s strategy- John Fallon, Chief executive

continued

The transformation of our company

To seize this opportunity, we need to accelerate our
shift from mature to developing marikets, from print to
digital products and from education inputs to services
with demonstrable learning outcomes For much of
the last decade, we've been implementing this strategy
by reshaping the company portfolio through
acquisitions and disposals — and we conunued this
work last year We completed the Penguin Random
House merger, securing both Penguin's commercal
and creative future and the opportunity for sigruficant
economies of scale We sold Mergermarket in
February 2014, which has flourished under Pearson's
ownership, but was not part of our sirategy in global
educacon The sale proceeds helped us to finance the
acquisition of Grupo Mult, the leading adult English
fanguage training company 1 Brazil it fits very well
with our strategy of investing more m faster growing
economies and in digical and related services that can
have a greater and more measurable impact on
education around the world

WE ARLC TRAMSFOAMING FASTER

Our revenues m emerging markets
and services

$1,302m

£3,020m
003

$2,253m

£1125in

2007 Image 2007

removed

Qur revenues in digital products

$4,72/m

More urgently, the strategy now demands that we

run the company in a fundamentally different way, roo
Early last year, we started the biggest restructuring

tn the company's recent history, to tilt us towards our
biggest zrowth opportunities, and by measuring
everything we do in terms of impact in impraving
learning outcomes

This 1s what we are doing

Redirecting more of our operating expenses,
1  and our organic investment, more quickly
1O OUr MOSt promising opportunities

We need fewer people, and resources, deployed

i the pubhshing, production and manufacturing of
textbooks and thewr physical distribution, sales and
matketing We need less print-based tesung capacity,
as we consolidate our operations and move more
towards online testing By spending much less on
these actvities as demand falls (for example, US
Higher Education textbook volumes have declined
by more than 20% mn four years), we can invest much
miore it our biggest growth opportunites (for
example, MyLab digital registrations and our sales

11 emerging markets have both doubled over the
same period)

Qur revenues In print vs
digital products and services

; 2013 revenues

Graph removed

image i
removed ! Print

Digital ang
services
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) Running Pearson as one globalfy
connected company

Our operations are now entirely focused an our global
education strategy in which we include the FT Group
We have appointed a new executive team to lead it
We'd outgrown our organisation and, as a collecuon of
relauvely stand-alone comparies, we were duplicaung
investment and proliferating smali-scale injuatves,
liruting our ability to build global scale We are now
orgarusing around a smaller number of global products
and platforms, built around a single, world-class
infrastructure and comimon systems and processes
This will help us to grow more quickly, as it frees up
resources to mvest in our digital transformation, and
the new, more service-onented, products that are wvital
to furure growth

3 Publicly commutung to efficacy and
wmproving learning outcomes

We will judge ourselves — and invite others to judge
us — not by the products that we make but by their
impact on learners Thus changes how we decide
which companies to acquire, where and how we
invest, which products we get betund and wiich

WORKING AS ONE PEARSON

Global funcuons

Partner with geographies and lines of
business operate as integrated giobal
funcoons to adweve scale economies

Lines of Business

Responsible for global sirategy, mvestment
prnortses product strategy and product
portfcho for respectve learner ‘age and stage

Geographtes

Responsibie for customer telationships
sales and markeung, and delivery of
educaton products in therr markerts

Secuon | Overview 11

we reure [t changes how we recrurt, train and reward
each and every person in this company it will change
how we develop new products, unleashing, | beliave,
a new wave of nnovation and creativity across the
company It will be difficult 1o pull off, and it will zake
ume That's why we specifically tatk about the ‘path
to efficacy’ that we are on And itis why we have
commutted to providing audited learning cutcomes
data for all our products and services by 2018 But,

as detaled elsewhere m this report, we are making
some specific, and measurable, efficacy commitments
for this year

4 We are putting the learner at the heart
of everything we do

We are putting the learner at the heart of everything
we do Our commitment to efficacy recognises the
fact that, whilst our customer is often a teacher, an
nstitution, an education authority, a parent, or a
company, the real beneficary of our work - and of
our customers’ work — 1s always the learner

Our purpase as a company — and, ulumartely. the true
measure of our success — is whether we really do belp
to equip more pecple with the educaton and skills
they need to progress i their lives

Graph removed
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Pearson’s strategy" John Fallon, Chief executive

continued

A necessary transtion

This 1s changing the way that every person i the
company works At times, it is proving difficult and
disruptive In the short term, it 1s made more painful,
but ail the more necessary, by the fact that we are
batthng against a number of cyclical, policy-refated,
structural and operational headwinds These {ed to

a sharp decline in earnings and free cash flow last year
and will continue to make life difficult for usin 2014

The creanion of Pengum Random House 1s a major
portfolio change, which creates economuc value for
Pearson but the move to associate accounting
reduces our reported operating profitin 2013

and 2014

Our US college business, our biggest and most
profitable actvity, 15 highly counter-cyclical, as
enrolments grow strongly during a recesston, when
jobs are harder to come by, and then fall back in the
early years of economic recovery

Our two big assessment and qualificaztons businesses,
i the LIS and the UK, are seeing demand fall m the
short term due to changes i government policy,
which will open up new, and bigger, opportunities

as these changes are implemented

UMIQUE MARKET POSITION

The transformatton of our company s fundamental to
get ahead of the significant structural changes taking
place in education — chiefly the digital shift, in which
Pearson is playing a leading role {t means that we are
now in & much mare intenstve phase of investment at
the same ume as we are financing the one-off costs of
the biggest restructuring in Pearson’s recent history
We are investing much more, both in building the
technology and related infrastructure, and i the next
generation of products and services, that are vital to
making the most of that global education opportunity

We make this investment with confidence as we
continue to grow strongly in emerging markets and
with our digital and service-related products In future
years, wnvesting in these new growth areas will be
financed by cuttung back in the print-fed related areas

| outlined earher But, first, we face significant one-off
costs, both in 2013 and again in 2014, to achieve this

Graph removed
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An ever more purposeful, and faster growing, company

We have a lot of work ahead of us, butwhen |

wite again in |2 months we will have completed

our second year of significant restructuring and
reorgamsation We will be reaping the rewards of
significant investment, and we will start to see the
benefits of a more favourable trading environment
as those headwinds, over ume, begin to ease and the
operavonal risks recede

By accelerating the transformation of Pearson,

we are ensuring that we shorten this transitional
pertod —- and that we get the company growing i a
more profitable and sustamnable manner, as quickly
as we can As we do so, we open up, for Pearson,
bigger growth opportumttes, a farger addressable
market and a greater impact on learning outcomes

We become more confident of cur ability to seze that
once-in-a2-generation opportunity —to become
directly accountable for helping people make progress
s theur hves through learming We see the chance for
Pearson to be the stand-out company In education,
which 1s now emerging as one of the new global
growth industries

Secuon [ Overview 13

| thank all my colleagues for all their hard work and
commitment, incfuding all our former colleagues, who
have served the company with such distinction I'm
sorry to see many good colleagues leave the company
as a result of our restructuring and | wish them every
suceess in thewr future careers | also thank all our
shareholders for their support and pauence through
this short, sharp transition

I'm determined to ensure that it is rewarded, as soon
as possible, by building a feaner, more cash generative
and faster growing business — and one ever more
equipped to tackle some of the biggest and most
intractable problems in global educaton

John Falion Chief executive
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Pearson’s commitment to efficacy

In November 2013,
Pearson announced a new
commitment to report

on learning outcomes
across its product portfolio
from 2018. This new and
transparent approach

to efficacy is central to our
purpose to help people
make progress in their
lives through learning.

We want Pearson’s customers to be confident that
worling with us will help them to achieve their long-
term learning goals and enable them to make progress
in thewr lives

In November 2013, Pearson announced a new
comMItMment tO report on learning outcomes across
its procuct portfolio from 2018 We also pubhshed
The Incomplete Guide to Delivering Learning Outcomes,
sharing the actions we have taken over the last two
years to prepare our company to meet this unique
challenge and demonstrate the efficacy of

our products

This new and transparent approach to efficacy 1s
central to our purpose and also makes good business
sense We hope that by demonstrating the ewidence
base that supports our products we will encourage

a deeper engagement with learning outcomes across
the education sector and at the same e clearly
demonstrate the benefits of using those products

We are now defining the practical approach that we
will take to reporung publicly on learning outcomes
in 2018, and how we will demonstrate and report
on our progress along the ‘Path to Efficacy’

Below, we summarise cur work to date and share our
priorities for 2014 Our approach will continue 1o be
refined In the coming years as we wark towards our
goal, and we will consult upon £ wathin and cutside

of Pearson through 2014 and beyond Our vision 15
that by 2018, we will report on learning outcomes
alongside our financial results

We welcome comments, feedback and support
as we take our next steps Please email our
senior vice-president of efficacy, Saad Rizvi

saad rizvi@pearson com with any questions

or comments that you may have

Pearson's Efficacy Framework and Review Process

Pearson has developed an Efficacy Framework to
support our product development and managerent
teams to define measurable tearning outcomes for
Pearson products and services, and progressively

to improve the hicelhood of achieving them

The Frameworik is a tool of systematic discovery that
helps us to ask key quesuons about our solutons,
and evaluate the bikelihood that they will deliver their
intended learner outcames

A standardised Efficacy Review process accompanies
the Framework to ensure its wide and consistent use
across the organisation More detad on the
Framewaork, review process and scoring system can
be found at efficacy pearson com

D
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THE EFFICACY FRAMEWORK

Secuon | Overview 15

Graph removed

How it works

Using thus Framework we assess

the potentral efficacy of a produci o
programme aganst 12 criteria By giving
each critena a rating on the four point
scale (green to red) we gauge the likely
overall effeciiveness of a product

The Framawork serves to idenufy specific
areas which, if improved, will increase our
tikehhood of ntended impact Teans are
able focus ther acuvity on talung these
steps before the product 1s assessed agam

EMBEDDING THFE EFFICACY FRAMEWORK
Our progress

In 2012 we began using the Efficacy Framework to

review all mvestments above $3m in value and in 2014

alt investments above $Im will underzo areview

Products and programmes are repeatedly reviewed over
time to ensure progress and improvements are bemng made

~

Pearson acquisibon opportunities are 1 eviewed using the
Framrwork tc evaluate the opportunity to improve learning
auicomes through Pearson ownership

-

-

We will now focus on securing the consistency with which
the Frameworlk s apphed by clanfying our defimuons and
expectauons of rescarch, efficacy and quality standards

Key staustics at year end 2043

123 337

Reviews completed, Showed progress
including mine potential  In repeat reviews
acquisitions and

14 internal functions

Qur plans in 2014

» Astandaraised Pearson Product Uifecycle will be introduced,
ensuring that the principles which support greater efficacy
are embedded consistently in all new product investments

We will increase the number of repeat Reviews on single
products and iIncrease the percentage of products showing
an improved score between Reviews

-

Pearson s Lines of Business and Geographies will be
reviewed agamnst Key Performance Indicators which address
the implementation of Pearsan’s Efficacy Framework and
Review p1ocesses

~

At least 40 of our top products will have in place the deraled
targets, measures and systems necessary to wadk learner
outcomes over time

~

All new product developmeants will have defined and
measurable learner outcomes

We will have at feast tht ee products which a1 e afready in
a poSIton o Fepol ton learning outcomes, covertng the
range of learner ages and stages

~
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Pearson's commitment to efficacy
continued

Towards reporting on outcomes

The Efficacy Framework and Review process ensures
that all Pearson products and programmes address
the factors that could affect the learning outcomes
that they are ulumately able to produce, in a
consistent way

Scores on the Framework do not in themselves
represent evidence of impact Pearson’s ultimate goal
ts to produce evidence of impact aganst defined
learming outcomes for all of our products

Evidence will take a variety of forms depending on
where a product 1s within its hfecycle Efficacy
evidence tends to be a longitudinal measure requiring
muluple measurements aver the hfecycle of a product
The standard of evidence that is avallable will vary by
product according to the specific learning outcome
targets for that product and its maturity

We anucipate therefore, that the nature of evidence
will vary by product and time We will be transparent
about the standard for each of our products

TOWARDS REPORTING OUTCOMES
Our plans in 2014

» We will investigate and consult on how best to define our
ewvidence standards workimg with an independent partner

We will complete and share efficacy studies that
demonstrate learner outcomes for several
product categores

~

As we move towards 2018

-

We will be able to make avadable increasing detad about
the standard of enidence that exists for each of our
products in support of its stated intended outcome and
the esumated number of learners reached by that product
Cur goal s to conunuzily improve the standard of
endence avalable

Executives will be measured on lear ner ourcome-arianted
KPis includmg the quality of evidence avinlable across thew
aroduct portfolios, along with financal returns

KPis will be updated and refined to include rargets which
capture Pearson's aggregated impact on agreed learming
outcomes Al eas addressed may snclude academtc quahty,
employatniity, learner progression, access o+ affordabilicy

-

Impraving outcomes, in partnership

By using the Efficacy Framework and committing
to high standards of evidence, we wil be better
able to anticipate and mitigate potential challenges
to our products’ efficacy, and to report back clear
evidence as to therr success inimproving defined
learning outcomes

We are acutely aware that our efficacy challenge 1s not
one we can meet alone We rely on guidance, support
and insights of our colleagues and partners across the
education community We see a significant opportunity
to work in collaboraton to debate and address the
broad educational research questions that will mform
and improve our contribution to learning worldwide,
and drive contmuous improvement across education

As part of our commitment to efficacy in November,
we brought together experts from inside and outside
of educatian to share their perspectves on the
opportunity ahead to improve learning outcomes
globally through the paper Asking More" The Path to
Efficacy We also began a series of public engagements
on the topic of efficacy, bringing together experts in
dedicated events at the Nauonal Insutute of Education
i Singapore, and the MIT Mediz Lab in Boston

We also discussed the challenges around efficacy

at important global events such as the Educauon
World Forum in London and the World Economic
Forum in Davos

()



@

PROGRESS IN 2013-14

An Avalanche s Coming

Sir Michael Barber Saad Rizvi Katelyn
Donnelly published vwich think tanic IPPR,
this report explores the challenges and
opportwunites for tugher education in an
age of MOOCs, Welong learning and
students as consumers

Image
removed

www Ipprorg/pubhcation/55/ 10432/
an-avalanche-is-coming-higher-
education-and-the-revolunon-ahead

Lear ning Metrics Task Force

Pearson co-chat ed this Br ookings
Foundaueon initiauve which sought mput
from more than 1,700 individuals in 118
countries 10 male a series of
recommendations on improving learning
opportunittes and outcomes for children

Image
removed

and young people worldwide

www brookings edu/rresearch/
reports/2013/0%/learning- metrics-task-
force-universal-learning

A Rich Seam How New Pedagogies Find
Deep Learnuing

Published i partner stup with ITSE, MaRS
Distovery District and Nesta Professor
Michael Fullan and Mara Langworthy's
report asks how technalogy 1 schools 1s
changing the student-teacher relauonship

lmage
removed

research pearson com

We will continue and extend this programme of
research, dialogue and engagement in 2014 and
2045, worlung with partners to pursue and share
research cutputs around eight key questions which
we believe will shape the effecuveness of education
in the future through our new Global Research
Funcuon Ths includes explaring educator quality
and pedagogy, sysiem reform and the future role
of learning technologies and learning science m
HNproving outcomes

Our research 1s now shared at research pearson com

Secuon | Overview

Alive i the Swamp

Professor Michae! Fullan, Katelyn
Doanelly published with Nesta this
report addresses the impact of digital
innovation n education

www niesta org uk /pubhcatons/alive-
swamp-assessmng digital-innovauons-
educattan

Asking More The Path to Efficacy

This pamphlet shares insights from same
of the won Id's leading education
practitoners and business people to
hughhght the urgent need {or a global
focus on outcomes 1n education

efficacy pearson com

tmage
removed

Image
removed
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Putting the learner

at the heart

of everything we do

Image removed
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Our performance: 2013 financial overview

Image removed

Robin Freestone, Chief financial officer of Pearson

In 2013, Pearson increased
sales by 2% in headline
terms to £5.2bn generating
adjusted operating profit
of £736m after net
restructuring charges.

Penguin Random House was reported post-tax
following completion of the transaction an 1 july 2013
and resulted in a £23m reducuon in the contnbuuon
to operating income with an equal benefit to our tax
charge We expensed £135m of net restructuring
charges during the year Adjusted operating profit
including the negative impact of Penguin Random
House associate accounting but excluding the
restructuring charges was £87[m

The headline growth rates were helped by both
currency movements and acquistuons Currency
movernents increased sales by £{9m (with a £50m
benefit prmarily from a stronger dotlar partly offset
by a £31m reducuon from non-dollar currency
depreciation relative to sterling, primanity in emerging
markets) but reduced operating profits by £4m
(with an £8m benefit from a stronger dolar more
than offset by a £i2m reducuon from non-dallar
currency depreaiation} At constant exchange rates
(1 e stripping out the impact of those currency
movements), our sales and adjusted operating
profit grew 2% and declined 21%, respectively

KEY FINANCIAL GOALS

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Acqusitions contributed £119m to sales and £50m to
operanng profits This includes integration costs and

investments related to our newly-acquired companies,

which we expense Dhisposals and our exit from
Pearson in Practice reduced revenues by £49m but
boosted operating income by £23m Associate
accounting anising from the Penguin Random House
transaction reduced operating mcome by £23m

Stripping out the impact of portfolio changes, the
Penguin Random House transaction, net restructuring
casts and benefit and currency movements, revenues
grew by 1% undertying while adjusted operating profit
declined by 9%

Our tax rate in 2013 was 14 6% compared to 23 1%
in 2012 reflecung the associate accounung impact
from Penguin Random House and movements in
tax settlements in each year

Adjusted earnings per share before the impact of
net restructuring charges were 83 4p (2012 82 6p)
Total adjusted earrings per share after net
restructuring charges were 70 Ip
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Our performance. 2013 financial overview
continued

Cash generation

Headline operating cash flow declined by £200m
reflecting restructuring and increased investment in
new education programmes Free cash flow dechned
by £388m to £269m, addiwonally reflecting higher tax
payments Our average working caprtal to sales ratio
improved by a further 0 4 percentage powts to 13 4%,
helped by lower inventory levels and the absence of
Penguin in the second half of the year

Return an invested capital

Qur rewrn on average invested capital was 5 4%
(2012 9 1%) ROIC was affected by lower underlying
profit, restructuring costs and hgher cash taxes

Statutory results

Our statutory results show a decrease of £2%m in
aperaung profit to £458m, from £487mn 2012,
reflecting the absence in 2013 of the £113m closure-
related costs for Pearson in Practice in 2012, lower
underying profits and restructuring costs Basic
earnings per share increased to 66 6p m 2013, up from
38 7p i 2012, mainty due to the Penguin Randem
House transaction

Balance sheet

Our net debt increased to £1,37%m (£918m 1n 2012)
reflecung hugher cash tax payments from settlements
and deferred paymenis from 2312 due to Hurricane
Sandy, lower cash conversion, costs associated with
disposals, restructuring casts and increased pre-
publication mvestment Since 2000, Pearson's net
debt/EB{TDA ratio has fallen from 3 9x to | 6x and
our interest cover has increased from 3 Ixto [0 2x

Dvidend

The board 15 proposing 2 dvidend ncrease of 7% w0

48 Op. subject to shareholder approval 2013 will be
Pearson's 22nd straight year of increasing our dividend
above the rate of mflation Over the past 1 years we
have increased our dividend at a compound annual rate
of 7%, returning more than £2 9bn to shareholders
We have a progressive dividend pohcy we mntend to
buid our dividend cover to around 2 Ox over the long
term, ncreasmg our dividend more m line with
earrungs growth from then

Graph removed

Qutlook 2014

In 2014, we will continue the major restructuring and
product investment programime, witiated 1n 2013,
designed to accelerate Pearson's shift towards
significant growth opportunities in digital, services and
fast-growing economies We beheve this will provide
Pearson with a significantly larger market apportunity,
a sharper focus on the fastest-growing markets and
stronger financal returns

D

This restructuring comeides with continued structural,
cyclical and policy-related pressures m some of our
fargest markets At this early stage in the year, we
expect to repoirt adjusied earmings per share of
between 62p and 67p in 2014 This gsuidance
sncorporates our expected trading environment,
restructuring activity and product investment

This gutdance also assumes cusrrent sterling exchange
rates against the dollar and key emerging

market currencies

o3
The major factors betund our guidance are as follows { ‘:}

Portfolio changes

The sale of Margermarket to BC Partners was
completed on 4 February 2014 and will reduce 2014
adjusted operating profit before central costs by
£28m This wilt be partly offset by a part-year
corributian from Grupo Muln which will be diluted
by integration cosis and the weakness of the Real
against sterfing

We expect the conunbution to adjusted operating
profit from Penguin Random House to be
approximately £20m lower in 2014 compared to the
£78m contribution i 2013 Thatreflects currency
movements, meegr ation charges (which will be
concentrated in the first half of 2014) and an addimonal
half-year of asseciate accounting




Currency movements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of sts sales in
the US A five cent move i the average £ $ exchange
rate for the full year {wihich in 2013 was £1-$1.57) has
an impact of approximately 1 2p on adjusted earmngs
per share The move from an average £/$ exchange
rate of | 57 1 2013 to the rate at the end of February

of | 67 will reduce operating income by approximately

£30m if it continues for the full year Similarly, when
compared to 2013 average exchange rates, Sterling
has significantly appreciated against a range of non-
dollar currencies, primarily in emer ging markets

f current exchange rates for those markets persist

throughout 2014, that would reduce operating income

on our 2013 base business by a further £20m

Restructuring and investment programme

We will benefit from the absence of £176m of gross
restructuring charges expensed i 2013, which we
expect to generate £60m of incremental cost savings
m 2614

These benefits will be partly offset by an addional
net restructuring charge of appraxmately £50m

in 2014, primarily in North America and weighted
towards the first half of the year. Our goal 510
compiete our restructuring programme by the

end of 2014, returning to more normal annual levels
of restructuring expenditure from 2015

As previously announced, we expect addrtional
product investment of approximately £50mn 2014
in digial, services and emerging markets to
accelerate growth

Frading conditions

We expect trading conditions to remain challenging
in 2014, reflecting

Irn North America, our largest market, we expect
college enrolments to deciine again and some states
to defer assessment programmes as they transition
to the Common Core State Standards Though we
expect the School publishing market to show some
improvement, we expect the benefits to be largely

offset by higher revenue deferrals and pre-publication
amortsation We expect margns to be lowerin 2014
when compared to 2013, reflecting the above arganic

outlool, revenue mix, launch costs for major mult-
year service-based contracts, higher amorusauon
and new product development expenditure

Secuon 2 Cur performance 21

in our Core markets (which include the UK and
Austraha), we see tough trading condttions in the
UK as curriculum change affects school, vocational
publishing and assessments, market stabilisauon in
Australa, and a new adoption year i [taly

In our Growth markets (which nclude Brazil, China,

india and South Africa), we expect continued growth
in China with Brazil benefittng from a better year in

public sistemas and a part-year contribution from

Grupo Multt We expect a slower year in South Africa

after strong gains in 2013

{Looking at our global Lines of Busmess, we expect
School and Higher Education to remam challenging,
especially in our two largest markets, North
Aumnerica and the UK In Professional, we expect
continued good growth in Pearson VUE and English
with the Financial Times continuing to benefit from
s digital transiton

Interest and tax

We expect our niterest charge to be simidarto 2013
reflecting higher floating rates broadiy offset by a
weaker dollar against sterfing We expecta tax rate
of between 19% and 21% con our total profit before
tax (which includes the post-tax contribution from
Penguin Random House)

As Pearson’s structure has changed to better swit
our marketplace and aspirations, $o must our
financial reporting change In this year's annual
report, we discuss the progress made through
the lens of our exssting financial reporung segments
{(North American Education, [nternational
Education, Professional and the Financial Times
Group) We will report our 2014 revenues and
aperating profit aganst new segments that better
reflect the shape of our business, these will be by
Geography (North America, Core and Growth)
and by Line of Business (School, Higher Education
and Professional)

YWe will make available hustorical 2013 half-year
and full-year revenues and operaung profit by
Line of Business and GGeography in the second
quarter of 2014
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Creating personalised products and services

that meetlearners need

and deliver measurable results

image removed
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North American Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

North American
Education is Pearson’s
largest business, with
2013 sales of £2.8bn and

operating profit of £406m.

CASE STUDY

Online learning

We introduced adaptive learning capabdiuies in
over 200 MyLab and Mastening products across

1l subjects Student registranons in North America
grew 9% to almost 1 mifllon Usage continues

1o grow strongly with graded submussions up

15% to almost 370 millon across the globe
Evaluanon studies show that the use of MyLab
programmes, as part of a broader course redesign,

Total number of MylLab registrations

Section 2 Our performance

23

Sales Adjusted operaung profic
2013 £2779m 2013 "~ £406m
012 £2658m 2012 £536m

-l-;;a‘r;f‘l;e growth 5% _He:\dlme growth 24Y%
CER growth T %- —C_ER growth {25)%
Underlying srowth TJ‘_%— Underlymg growth (35‘;;

can significantly improve student test scores and
institutional efficiency (htp /7bit ly/derVym)

We acquired Learning Catalyucs, which allows
faculty to obtain real-ume responses to open-ended
or critical thinking questions, to determine which
areas require further explanation, and enables
earfier intervenoon to help improve retenuon

and outcomes

99m

2012

llm

013

Image removed

lmage removed

MIAIAYIAD

IINVHEOLH3d ¥NO

SSINISNE 318ISNOISTY \

1INYNYIAOD

SINIWILVIE IVIDNYNIA




-

w

24 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2013

North Amertcan Education
continued

In 2013, we generated good growth in our digitaf and
services businesses, where we continue to mvest to
build scale and volume and sohid growth tn our school
curnicufum business, which benefited from Commaon
Core currtculum purchasing Market conditions
rermained tough, with ongoing state budget pressures
and the transivon to the Commaon Core aflfecung our
School assessment business Lower enrolments
affected Higher Education with the career colfege
enrolments, where we have a strong market position,
being parucularly weak In addition to these market
pressures, our North American margns were further
affected by £49m of net restructuring charges, reduced
demand in our assessment business as states prepared
for new Common Core testing and curriculum related
investment and amortisation, the launch costs related
to major multi-year service-based contracts in hugher
education, and increased returns provisions

Higher Education highlights in 2013 include

In Higher Education, total enrolments feli |1 9%, with
career enrolments mn two-year pubhc (community)
and four-year for-profit declining 4 4%, affected by
rising employment rates, state budget pressures
and regulatory change affecting the for-profit and
developmental learning sectors The publishing
mariet was broadly level with 2012 on a gross basis,
according to the Association of American Publishers,
while cur higher education revenues grew 5% with
an underlying decline mare than offset by the
contribution from Embanet

We partnered with West Virginia University
Parkersburg Online to redesign its Developmental
Education curriculum using Competency-Based
Education {CBE) modules. Qur CourseConnect CBE
products will enhance up to 220 existing courses and
will be deliverad through OpenClass where we will
also provide access to eTextbooks, tutoring and media
resources Other CBE partmerships include Texas
AZM University-Commerce, South Texas College,
Kentucky Community & Techimcal Collegs System
and Northern Anzona University

School tughlights in 2013 include

» For our School businesses, state funding pressures,
the Federal sequester and the transition to Common
Core assessments continued to make market
condittons tough Revenues grew modestly n 2013
with dechnes in state assessment contracts and
learnung assessments more than offset by gains in
nauonal assessment contracts for the PARCC
consortium and the federal government’s NAEP
programme, as well as demand for Connections
Education’s virtual charter scheois and Common
Core reading/language arts and math programmes

Actionable data s critical to personalising learning and
boosting achievement Our Schoolnet business aligns
assessment, curriculum and other services to help
individualise nstruction and improve teacher
effectiveness PowerSchool helps teachers auromate
and manage student attendance records, gradebooks
and tmetables

~

~

Scheotnet won significant contracts including two
new Race to the Top State Instructonal Improvement
System contracts in New York and New Jersay, which
takes the rotal number of state system contracts to
seven, and new district contracts for Schoolnet
assessment, educaror development and learning
management solutions i Dallas, Texas, Palm Beach,
Horida, Philadelphua, Pennsylvania, and New York
City PowerSchool won new contracts in Charlotte-
Meclklenberg, North Carolina, Grand Erie DSB,
Ontaro, and San Diego, Califorma [ts mobile app
connecting teachers, students and parents was
downloaded by almost 3 4 millien users PowerSchool
new suppoits almost |3 mithon students (in 70
countries), up more than 5% on 2012 while Schoolnet
supports more than nine mifhon students, up 7%

on 2011

2

('j
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CASE STUDY
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Image removed

Online learning

programmes

Enterprise-wide partnerships with Arizona State
University Online, Ocean Community College,
Indiana Wesleyan University and Rutgers, where
we run fully online learning programmes and earn
revenues based on the success of the students and
the wsutution, gained more than 64,000 student
registrauons up 45% on 2012 In January 2014,

we extended our partnership with the University
of Florida to include both its graduate and under
graduate programmes providing technology.
e-Textbooks, recruitment marketing, enrolment
management, student support and retention services

Pearson Embanet increased new student enrolments
by 8% to almost 12,000 and total student enrolment
by 6 5% 10 more than 27,000, adding 16 new
programmes, launching three new key academic
partners with Adelphi University, Villanova University
and University of Maryland, and expanding
partnerships with exisung customers such as
Maryville and Northeastern More than 200 colleges
are working with Pearson to build online learning
programmes that improve access to high quaiity
undergraduate and graduate degree programmes
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North American Educatton
continued

The Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for
College and Careers (PARCC), a consortium of

18 states, awarded Pearson several contracts to deliver
test irem tryouts, develop field tests and to provide
the online delivery platform using our cloud-based.
mobie-ready TestMNav 8 system for new English and
mathematics assessments. The assessments will be
based on what students need to be ready for college
and careers, and will measure and track their progress
along the way We helped Kentucky and New York
delwver the first Common Core aligned state
assessiments, and we won new online assessment
programmes in Celorado, Minnesota and Mississippt
We continued to produce strong growth in secure
online testing We dehivered almost {2 million secure
online tests, up 33% on 2012 Legislative changes in
Texas and California reduced the scope of assessments
ahead of Common Core implementation

We renewed our contract with the US Department
of Education to admenister the Nauonal Assessment
of Educational Progress (NAEP) for the 20132017
assessment cycles and won a number of state contract
extensions i Georga, Puerto Rico, Tennessee,
Maryland, Artzona. South Dakota and Oklahoma
We were selected by the Nauonal Board of
Professional Teaching Standards (INBPTS) as ther
partner 1o develop their next-generauon
programmes, and deliver and support NBPTS
through 2025

CASE STUDY

Mental health
administration

Pearson Chinical Assessment launched Q-interactve,
a portable digital tool that enables mental health
professionals to automatically manage the
admuustration of clinical assessments, digital sumulr,
response recording through stylus notes and audio

It serves },500 users within hospitals, private
practice, and schools in five countnes (US, UK,
Australia, Canada and Netherlands} Paid test
administrauons have increased ten-fold since launch

» ACT Aspire, a college and career readiness assessment
ahigned to the Common Core State Standards,
successfully launched its first field test on the new
TestMNav B assessment system ACT Aspire is a joint
venture between Pearson and ACT, Inc Alabama is
the first state to adopt the ACT Aspire system for
measuring the Common Core State Standards

Connections Education, which operates K-12 managed
virtual public schools, managed blended public schools,
and a private school, served almosz 51,000 students in
December 2013, up more than 20% from 2612, and
now operates 33 managed public schools in 23 states
and an international private virual school

Connections Education also provides virtual and
blended services to school districts and other schools
seeking to incorporate virtual learning mto their
programmes Connections Academy Schools have
consistently hugh performance ratings, particularly in
states focused on measuring growth i student learning

~
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Learning

Services

In Learming Services we performed well in new
adoptions, taking a market leading 33% of the total
new adopuon market ($390m), with #| posiuons in
maths, science and sociai studies and a #2 position in
Reading/Language Arts We were selected by the
two largest school districts in the US, Los Angeles
Umified School District and New York City, to
mmplement Common Core instructional
programmes New York City adopted our new K-5
Coemmon Core English Language Arts programme,
Ready Gen, and our middle school math offering,
Connected Math In Los Angeles Umified Scheol
Dustrict we partnered with Apple to delwer our

nnovative next generation digital learning Common
Core System of Courses across K-12 Mathematics
and English Language Arts, imivally to 30,000
students In both disiricts, we are providing
professional development to thousands of
teachers Learners using our OnRamp to Algebra
supplemental programme, which targets strugghng
maths students, significantly our-gained peers using
other supplemental maths programmes, achieving
20% increase in their percentile rank while their
peers increased by orly 3% In additron, students of
alt ability levels using OnRamp to Algebra exceeded
the gamns of their peers
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International Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our International Education
business achieved

another strong underlying
performance in emerging
markets, particularly in

South Africa and China.

CASESTUDY

China

In China, student enrolments at Wall Street Enghish
iIncreased 7% to 65,000, boosted by good underlying
demand Our students rapidly acquire high-level
English siills with average grade levels achieved rnsing
by 14% during 2013 Enrolments at Global Education,
our test preparation services for Enghsh language
and vocanonal qualifications, mcreased 24% to more
than { 3 mullion, through 82 cwned and 426

Wall Street English student enrolments e Cluna

Image removed

Sales Adjusted operating profit
0 £539m 00 £140m
2012 £1,568m 2012 £214m
Headhne growtn {2)%  Headlne growth N (35)9:';—
CER growth %— CER grow_r_;\_ {(2N%
Underlying growth 122 Underiymggrowth  (301%

franchised learning centres with investmentin
learning centres and digital learning platforms
enabling us to better meet learner demands and be
a premier brand n test preparatuon Around 70%
of the high-end course students achieve IELTS 70
which demonstrates a high level of proficency in
English and a key grade when studying abroad.

65,000

2013

(D
61,000

2012
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Our International education business achieved another
strong underlying performance in emerging markets,
particularly in South Africa and China Thus growth was
offset by weak textbook sales in developed markets.
currency wealness aganst sterling, the exit from
certan publshing busmesses primarily in Australa,
Japan, Germany, France and the UK, increased
customisation resutting from the Kirtsaeng ruling in

the LS, and policy changes affecting qualifications

and textboaok publishing i the UK Although margins
before restructuring charges were similar to 2012,
reported margns fell due to £69m of net restructuring
charges expensed during the year More than

1 3 mihon swdents registered for our MyLab digital
learning, homework and assessment programmes

an increase of 17%, with good growth in school,

ELT and institutional selling 1in higher education

Key highlights n 2013 include

Our Growth market revenues expanded strongly,
boosted by curnculum change in South Africa strong
enrolment growth at CTI/MGI, and conunued good
growth in China, partly offset by weaker currencies
against sterling, particularly i South Afrtca and
enrolment declines in our public sistemas in Brazil

In Mexico, our fully accredited online university
partnership, UTEL, reached 6,000 acuve students in
20 undergraduate and two graduate programmes and
through Its services arm, Scala, signed its first three
agreements to help campus-based universiues make
the transiton to enhine 5400 students have
completed short duration courses i programmaes
developed to address corporate and government
workforce traiming needs

in the Middie East, we won a five-year contract with
the UAE's Ministry of Educauon to provide leadership
training and professional development for 700 current
and future Emirati school prinaipals, (n partnership
with the UK's Navonal Colfege for Teaching and
Leadership We partnered with Tatbah University in
Saudi Arabia to implement Foundanon Level
MylLabsPlus across four subjects for 16,000 students,
Riyadh's Princess Noura University in Saudi Arabia,
the world's {argest female university, to provide
12,000 new students with IT course content {through
our MyLabs e-learning technology) far tablets, and
Qatar Urniversity to implement MylLabsPlus for

5,000 students

Section 2 Qur performmnce 9

CASE STUDY

Image removed

South |
Africa

In South Africa our market leading school
pubhshing brands Maskew Miller Longman and
Hemnemann, performed strongly in a year of
significant curriculum reform Student enrolments
grew strongly at CTI/MGI, our uruversities, up 15%
to 11,700 across 13 campuses

» Qur Core market revenues declined significantly,
affected by curriculum change in the UK and the exit
from publishing operauons in Austrahia, Japan and
Conunental Europe

in the UK, revenues dechined due to a softer school
curriculum and vocavonal qualifications (BTEC)
market anticipatung curriculum change This was partly
offset by a strong performance in the GCSE and A/AS
level qualifications market In higher educauon, we
partnered with Leeds Metropolitan University to
develop a suite of online learning business education
courses In assessment, we marked almost six million
GCSE A/AS Level and other examinations with more
than 93% using onscreen technology YVe marked

2.7 mithon test scripts for over half a million pupils
taking Nauonal Curriculum Tests at Key Stage Two

in 2013 and were selected to admnsster the test unul
2016 2013 also saw the first delivery of the Next
generatan BTEC qualifications to over 100,000
students, with a further 365,000 students to date
enrolled for 2014715 delvery
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International Education
continued

In ltaly, revenues declined, with market conditions
tough due to a one-year government mandated pause
in new adoptuions

I Japan, GlobalEnglish and the FT partnered with
MNikket Inc on a ‘GlobaiEnghsh Nikker edinon’, an
English language learning service to serve English
students in the Japanese business community We sold
our school textbook publishing business Kinhara
Shoten, to management

In Australia, market conditions were very tough,
particularly in hugher education where we exited the
vocational publishing market We continue to make
good progress developing our digital and services
business including significant sales of Secondary School
Austrahan Curriculum ebooks In higher education,
we partnered with Monash University with an
enterprise implementation of the Myl ab suite of
products for 6,500 students including faculty traming,
and to provide learning services and solutons for
online graduate programimes including course
deveiopiment, marketing, student recruttment and
retention, and faculty training

CASE STUDY

Brazil

In Brazil, we ended 2013 with 497,000 students
{533,000 in 2012) 1 our public and private sistemas
{or learning systems) [n 2013, we added 24,000 net
students in our three private sisternas, COC, Dom
Bosco and Pueri Domus, up 7% on 2012 Tough
market conditions for public sistemas resulred in
lower enrolments n this post-election year but our
NAME sistema includes the #1 performing lower
secondary school in Brazil based on the 2011 IDEB
(nauonal public test) scores of 3,067 muniapalities
930% of our municipal custoimers tested 20% above
the navonal standard and 70% of the mumaipaliies
that adopted NAME showed improvementin thei
IDEB scores On 11 February 2014 we completed
the acquisttion of Grupo Mult, the largest provider
of private language schools n Brazit serving over
800,000 students across more than 2,600
franchused schools

» In Enghsh Language Learning, Wall Street English
(WSE), Pearson's worldwide chain of English language
centres for professionals, opened a new centre in
Ho Chi Minh City in Vietnam (and 1s now present in
28 countries), and has 107 owned and 338 franchised
centres Our students rapidly acquire high-level
English skills with average grade levels achieved rising
by 8% during 2013 Siudent numbers grew shghtly to
192,000 Registered users for ELL digital products
grew 45% to 610,000 with MyEnghishLabs registrations
up 51% to 400,000 and Our Discovery {sland
registratons, an onhne adventure aimed at Primary
education, up almost 77% to 104,000

Image removed
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Professional Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Qur Professional Education
business is focused on
publishing, training,

testing and certification

for professionals.

Our Professianal Education business ts focused on
publishing, training, tesung and certification for
professionals The Professional division performed
well, with good revenue and profit growth in testing
and traimng partly offset by declines it publishing

Key tughlights in 2013 include

Professional publishing revenues and profits declined,
with good profit growth in the US, underpinned by a
strong performance i our direct ecommerce sales and
at Safari Books Onhine, our joint-venture with O'Reilly
Media, offset by exiting some of our professicnal
publishing businesses in Conunental Europe

Professional testing continued to see good revenue
and profit growth test volumes at Pearson VUE up 25%
on 2012 to almost {2 million Key contract renewals
included tests for the American Board of Internal
Medicine, the Association of Social Work Boards and
the Pharmacy Techmicran Cerufication Board We will
conunue to deliver our UK contract to administer the
Drving Theory test for the DVSA untl Seprember
2016 We won a number of new contracts for
computer-based testing including the Charter of
Financiat Analysts, Saudi Commussion of Health
Speciaities and the Korean Productvity Centre

Secuon 2 Our performance

3

Sales Adjusted operating profit
2013 £410m 2013 £57m
2012 £3%0m 2002 £37m
Headhne growth 5%  Headlne growth 54%
CiRgrowth 4% CERgrowth  51%

_l:Jnderlymg growth B% Unds?rlymg gt c.:wth (7%

CASE STUDY

Image removed

Vocational training in

Saudi Arabia

In Professional training, TQ grew strongly and was
awarded a five-year contract by Saudi Arabia’s
Colleges of Excellence to develop and operate
three vocational colleges in Saudi Arabia, providing
high quality vocational skills and qualifications

The three colleges opened in the second half of 2013
with an expected nrual intake of | 100 students,
rising to 8 000 students over tume
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Financial Times Group

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Financial Times Group
achieved profits of £55m,
an underlying increase of
|7% year-on-year.

CASE STUDY

Growth in digital readership

The FT's total arculauon grew 8% year-on-year to
652,000 across print and onhne, the highest payng
readershup inits {25-year history FT com digrtal
subscriptions grew 31% to 415,000, more than
offsetung planned reductions in print ctrculation
Dugiral subscribers now represent almost two-thirds

Financial Times digial subscriptions

Image removed

Sales Adyusted operaung profit
003 449m 2002 £55m
2012 £443m 2012 £47m
Headline g_urc_\a;th o i_%:— i:(.e;r_};ne g—i—o—v_v-t]:__-m?}%—
CER grov;;w 0%  CERgrowth 17%
Underlying growth 0%  Underlying growth 17%

of the FT's total paying audience and corporate
users grew nearty 60% to more than 260,000
We contriue to invest to shift resources from

analogue to digrtal and have further reduced leased
printing capacity globally since 31 December 2012
from 20 to 16 sites

415,000

316,000

2012

2013

Image removed
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The Finanaial Times Group achieved profits of £55m an
underlying increase of 7% year-on-year This was driven
by strong growth in digital and conrent businesses and
improved print arculation margins which more than
offset weal adverusing Dignal and services revenues
accounted for 55% of FT Group revenues (31% in 2008)
Content revenues comprised 63% of revenues {(48% mn
2008), while adverusing accounted for 37% of FT Group
revenues (52% in 2008)

Key hightights in 2013 include

Adverusing continued to be short term and generally
weak, but the FT increased s market share with
luxury and financial sectors showing good growth

1n digital

Mobile 1s an increasingly important channel for the

FT, driving 62% of subscriber consumpuon, 45%

of total traffic and almost a quarter of new digital
subscriptions The FT's flagship web app now has
more than 5 million users and new FT apps on Google
Newsstand and Flipboard have strengthened our
mobile offering Other innovations, including launching
24-hour news service fastFT, redesigns to mobile apps
and improvements to FT com, have helped
significantly increase overall digical engagement

The Ecanomist Group, in which Pearson owns a
50% stale, had a record operatng profit after tax,
up 3% on 2012 Content revenues accounted for
60% of total revenues (44% m 2008) and digital and
services revenues compnsed 39% of total revenues
(29% 1n 2010) Global print and digital circulation at
The Econorst reached a record hugh of | 6 milon

On 4 February 2014, we completed the disposal of
Mergermarket to BC Partners for £382m, payable in
cash In 2013, Mergermarket contributed £108m of
revenue and £28m of adjusted operating profit before
centrai costs.

Secaon 2 Cur performance 33

CASESTUDY
image removed
Executive
education

The FT conuinues to expand its executive
education bustness FT in Education products,
including annotation tool FT Mewshnes, are
now used by almost 300 education institutions,
including 37 of the world's top 50 business
schoals The FT launched s Non-Executive
Director (NED) Diploma in Hong Kong

More than a third of NED enrolments are

now outside the UK
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Penguin Random House

The merger of Penguin and Random

House was completed on | July 2013.
Bertelsmann owns 53% and Pearson owns
47% of Penguin Random House, the first
truly global consumer publishing company.

Penguin Random House traded well in the second
half of the year, with a strong bestseller performance
mn all major territories Penguin Random House was
reported post-tax following completion of the merger
on | July 2013 and resulted in a £23m reduction in the
contribution to our operating income with an equal
benefit to our tax charge Market share normalised,
following the unprecedented success of E L James’

50 Shades of Grey trilogy for Random House in 2012

The integration of the two companies has commenced
in each of its territories Divisional structures are
being combined, systems integration i1s underway,

and the US business has announced a plan to
consolidate distribution operations

Key highhghts in 2013 include

In Australia, where market conditions remain
challenging, we had four out of the top five bestsellers
for the year Jeff Kinney's Hard Luck- Diary of a Wimpy
Kid, faruie Oliver's fanue’s 15 Minute Meals and Save
with jarmie, and Dan Brown'’s Inferno

In Brazil Companhia das Letras (45% stake} posted
strong revenue growth driven by an expanded
publishing program In a challenging market., Penguin
Random House India had more than 40 utles pro
forma on the 2013 Hindustan Times Mielsen top ten in
combined categories in China, our local-publishing
programme continued to grow with notable
bestselters, including My Life by Li Na DK achieved
significant growth through its co-ediuon model with
Chunese publishers In South Africa, Penguin Random
House completed the purchase of the Times Media
Group's majority stake in Random House Struik,
cementing our market leading posttion, but lost a
significant agency contract during the year
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DK performed well, boosted by the exceptional
performance of Brady Games” GTAV Strategy
Guide™, which sold over 800,000 copres, and the
ongoing success of the DK LEGO?® properties, which
sold almost |0 million units in 2013

The pro forma ebook share of Penguin Random House
global revenue 1s 20% Ebook growth for Penguin
continued but at a slower rate, while Random House
ebook sales dechined significantly year-on-year due

to much lower sales for the Fifty Shades tniogy

Dugrtal innovations included the launch of Bookscout,

a dedicared app created for and with Facebook which
enables sharng personalised reading recommendanans
among friends and online communities

Penguin Random House's authors won numerous
major iterary prizes around the world, mcluding the
2013 Nobel Prize for Literature {Alice Munro), The
Nauonal Book Award for Fiction in the US {James
McBride's The Good Loid Bird), and an unprecedented
four US Pulitzer Prizes

In self-publishing, Author Solutions performed well,
growing stgnificantly over 2012, and conunuing to
faunch and plan for seif-publishing imprints in
conuncuon with Penguin in such terrirones as india
and South Africa

For 2014, Penguin Random House has a strong
publishing kst with major new books from authors such
as Isabei Allende, Marun Amus, Lee Child, john
Cleese, Harlan Coben, Steve Coogan, Lena Dunham,
Janet Evanovich Ken Follett, Stephen Fry, Robert
Gares, Ina Garten, John Grisham, Deborah Harlkness,
Carl Hhaasen, jJan Karon, Sue Monk Kidd, Jeff Kinney,
Michael Lewis, David Mitchell, Haruki Murakamu, Jamie
Oiliver, James Patterson, Jodi Picoult, Nora Roberts,
Danvelle Steel, Colm Toibin, Jacqueline Wilson, and
movte tie-in paperbaclks of John Green’s The Fault n
Our Stars, Gillian Flynn's Gene Gnf, and Laura
Helenbrand's Unbroken

(D
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CASE STUDY

Bestsellersin 2013

In the US, on a pro forma basis, Penguin and Random
House published 480 New York Times bestsellers,
including three out of the top five Bookscan adult
ficuon bestsellers for the year Dan Brown's Inferno,
John Grisham's Sycamore Row and Khated Hossenr’s
And The Mountams Echoed Other New York Times
bestsellers included, in adult nonficton Sheryl
Sandberg’s Lean in, Chartes Krauthammer's Things
That Matter, and in chldren's ficuon John Green's

#| bestselling The Fault in Our Stars

Image removed Image removed

image removed Image removed

image removed Image removed
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in the UK, on a pro forma basis, Penguin and Random
House published (02 Bookscan bestsellers including
Dan Brown's Infeing, David Jason’s My Life, Jamie
Oliver's Save with Jorme, Rachel joyce's The Uniikely
Piigrimage of Harold Fry, Helen Fielding's Bridget fones
Mad About the Boy, and a strong ongoing overall
performance from Jeff Kinney's Diary of a Wimpy Kid
sertes, and from its newest volurme MHard Luck

image removed Image 1emoved
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More and more people want

a better education

and new ways of learning
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Other financial information

2013 2002

m tm
Net finance costs ] o
Netwterestpayable  (72)  (65)
;a:a.nce INcome In respect -
of employee_?_gne_i’[t_pl_a_n_s_ o (31 L ,...,,_._(._2_)
O—t.!';;et_ﬁnarE costs L 0] o (39_)
Total net ﬁna;\ce costs — _r76>; . f_{;}

MNetinterest payable in 2013 was £72m, up from £65m
in 2012 Although our fixed rate policy reduces the
impact of changes 1n market interest rates, we were
sull able to benefit from low average US dollar and
sterling interest rates during the year Year-on-year,
average three month LIBOR (weighted for the
Group's net borrowings in US dollars and sterling at
each year end) fell by 0 2% to 0 3% This decrease in
floating market interest rates was offset by an increase
in the Group s average net debt which was the main
driver behind the Group's higher interest charge
These factors combined with lower levels of cash and
deposits and the impact of new notes issued in 2013
created a decrease in the Group's average net interest
payable from 7.0% to 4 8% The Groups average net
debt rose by £56im, largely reflecting acquisiion
actvity, cash costs relating to the formation of Penguin
Random House {(PRH) and cash paid in respect of the
closure of Pearson in Practice in 2012 together with an
mncrease in tax and dividend payments which more
than offset cash generated from operations

Cash generated from operations was lower in 2013
partly as a result of restructuring activity in the year

Net finance costs relating to post-retirement plans
have been restated to reflect the adoption of IAS |9
(revised) and under the new standard was £3m in
2013 compared to £2m 11 2012 Finance costs relating
to retirement benefits have been excluded from our
adjusted earnings as we believe the new presentation
does not reflect the economuc substance of the
underlying assets and habilities

Also included m the statutory definition of net finance
costs are finance costs on put options and deferred
consideranon associated with acquisitions, foreign
exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs
for put options and deferred considerauion are
excluded from adjusied earnmngs as they relate to
future earn outs and stmilar payments on acguisitions
and therefare do not reflect cash expended

Foretgn exchange and other gains and losses are

Section 2 Qur performance 37

excluded from adjusted earmings as they represent
short-term fluctuations in market value and are
subject to significant volathity These other gamns and
losses may not be realised in due course asitis
normally the intention to hold the related instruments
to maturity In 2013, the total of these items exduded
from adjusted earnings was a loss of £lm compared to
a loss of £29m 0 2012 The majority of the loss in 2012
relates to movements in the valuation of put options
associated with acguisitons In 20i3 losses relating to
put options were largely offset by foreign exchange
gains on 2 proporuon of unhedged US dollar assets

Funding position and hquid resources

The Group finances its operations by a mixture of
cash flows from eperauons, short-term borrowings
from banks and commercial paper markets, and
longer-term Joans from banks and caprtal markets
Our objective s to secure conunuity of funding ata
reasonable cost from diverse sources and with varying
maturities The Group does not use off-balance sheet
special purpose entties as a source of hquidity or for
any other financing purposes The net debt position

of the Group 1s set out below

" e
Cash and cash equivalents 729 | 062
—T:'\;;e—taﬂb;e—;ecurl ues - 6 Z .
Net dervative assets -76 78
_éonds (2168}  (2,200)
Bank loans and overdrafis (47) (55)—
_Fmance leases * (1) (\7)
MNet debt — continuing (1 415) {1.026)
iMet cash dassified as held for sale 36 | 08—
Total net debt {1 379 (918)

Acquisition actsvity, cash costs relaung to the
formation of PRH and cash paid in respect of the
closure of Pearson in Practice n 2012 rogether with an
mcrease in tax and dividend payments and lower than
expected cash generaton in 2013 are the largest
contributors to the increase in the Group’s net debt
Reflecung the geographical and currency spht of our
business, alarge proportion of our debt s
denomunated 1n LS doflars (see note [9 for our pohcy)
The strengthenmg of sterling against the US dollar
during 2013 (from $1 63 to $1 66 £l) decreases the
sterfing equivalent value of our reporred net debt
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Other finanaal information
continued

The Group's credit ratings remamed unchanged during
the year The long-term raungs are Baal from Moody's
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term
ratings are P2 and A2 respectively In January 2014,
Moody's changed the outlooi on their short-term and
long-term ratings from *Stable’ to ‘Negative’ ko May
2013, the Group accessed the capital markets, rasing
$500m through the sale of notes maturing in May 2023
and bearing interest at 3 25% The notes were
swapped to floating rate to conform with the policy
described in note 19 The Group has a $1,750m
committed revolving credit faciicy which matures in
November 2015 At 31 December 2013 this facility was
undrawn The facility is used for short-term drawings
and providing refinancing capabilities, ncluding acting
as a back-up for our US commeraal paper programme
This programme 15 peimanly used to finance our US
worlung capteal reguirements, in particular our US
educanonal businesses which have a peak borrowing
requirement i june At 3| December 2013, no
commercial paper was outstanding The Group also
mantains other committed and uncommutted facihoies
to finance short-term working capital requirements in
the ordinary course of business Further details of the
Group's approach to the management of financial risks
are set out In note 19 to the financial statements

Taxatton

The effective tax rate on adjusted earnings in 2013
was {4 6% as compared to an effecuve rate of 23 1%
in 2012 The reduction in the rate is party exptained
by the associate accounting treatment of our
investment i PRH — tax on the profits of PRH are
netted against profits in the presentatton of the
associate interest and is not included in the rax line
Our overseas profits, which arise mainly in the US, are
largely subject 1o tax at hugher rates than that i the
UK (which had an effective statutory rate of 23 25% in
2013 and 24 5% in 2042). These higher tax rates were
fargely offset by amorusauon-related tax deductions
and by adjustments arising from settlements with tax
authonties The reported tax charge on a statutory
bass was £87m (22 8%) compared to a charge of
£138m {35 3%) in 2012 The decrease n the statutory
rate 15 due to the factors affecung the adjusted rate as
described above but 1s also exacerbated by the fack of
tax rehef in 2012 on the loss on closure of Pearson in
Practice Tax pard m 2013 was £246m compared to
£65m in 2012 Tax paid in 2012 was unusually low as

a result of the permutted deferral of US tax payments
following Hurricane Sandy These payments were
subseguently made in 2013 and were accompanied

by additional payments anising from settlements
with tax authorities including £55m relating to prior
year disposals

Discontinued operations

in October 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann
announced an agreement to create a new consumer
publshing business by combining Penguin and Random
House The transaction completed on | July 2013 and
resulted in a gain on the disposal of the Penguin assets
of £202m The gain anises as Pearson ne longer has
control of the Penguin Group of compantes The 47%
interestin the new Penguin Random House (PRH)
venture has been accounted for as an equity
investment from | July 2013

The loss of control resulted in the Penguin business
being classified as held for sale on the Pearson balance
sheet at 31 December 2012 and the results for both
2042 and the first six months of 2013 have been
included in disconunued operatons The share of profit
from associate interest in the PRIH venture anising in the
second half of the year has been included in operatng
profit in continuing operatons net of tax of £23m

Addiionaily on 29 November 2013 we announced

the sale on the Mergermarket Group to BC Partners
The sale was completed on 4 February 2014 and the
Mergermarket business has been classified as held for
sale on the balance sheetat 31 December 2013

The resuits for both 2012 and 201{3 have been included
in disconunued operations

Non-controlling interest

There are non-controlhng interests in the Group's
businesses in the US, South Africa and China although
none of these are materal to the Group numbers
Some of the munorites in South Africa and the
mnorities in [ndia were bought out in the year

Other comprehensive income

Included in other comprehensive ncome are the

net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operauons The net foss on transtauon of £217m

in 2013 compares to alossin 20{2 of £238m and

ts principatly due to movements i the US dollar

A significant proporuon of the Group's operations

ts based i the US and the US dollar weakened shighty
iy 2013 from an opening rate of £1 $1 43 to a dosing
rate at the end of 2013 of £1 $1 66 At the end of 2012
the US dollar had also weakened 1n comparison to the
opering rate moving from £1 $1 55to £1 $1 63




~

Also included in other comprehensive income in 2013 1s
an actuaral gain of £7%m in relation to post retirement
plans This gain arises from changes i the assumptions
used to value the habidities and from returns on plan
assets that are in excess of the discountrate The gain
compares to an actuarial loss for 2012 of £103m

Dividends

The dividend accounted for in our 2013 financial
statements totalling £372m represents the final dividend
in respect of 2012 (30 Op) and the interim dividend for
2013 (16 Op) We are proposing a final dividend for 2013
of 32 Op, bringing the total paid and payable in respect
of 2013 t0 48 Op a 7% increase on 2012 Thus final 2013
diwidend which was approved by the board in February
2014, s subject to approval at the forthcoming AGM
and will be charged against 2014 profits For 2013, the
dividend is covered | 5 umes by adjusted earnings

We seek to maintain a balance between the
requirements of our shareholders for a rising stream
of dividend income and the reinvestment opporwunities
which we identify around the Group and through
acguisiions The board expects to raise the dividend
above inflation, mare i fine with earnings growth,
thereby mantaining drvidend cover at around two
tumes earnings in the long term

Pensions

Pearson operates a variety of pension plans Qur UK
group plan has by far the largest defined benefit section.
We have some smaller defined benefit sections in the
US and Canada but, outside the UK, most of our
companies operate defined contribution plans

The charge to profit in respect of worldwide pensions
and reurement benefits after restatng 2012 figures for
IAS {9 (revised) and including discontinued operations
amounted to £104m 10 2013 (2012 £[14m) of which

a charge of £101m {2012 £112m) was reportedn
adjusted operaung profit and £3m (2012 £2m) was
reported against other net finance costs

The overall deficit on the UK group plan of £19m at the
end of 2012 has become a surplus of £86m at the end
of 2013 The movement has ansen principally due to
favourable asset returns and deficit funding In total, our
worldwide deficit in respect of pensions and other post
retirement benefits fell from a defiat of £172m at the
end of 2012 to a net defiat of £56m at the end of 2013
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Acquisitions and disposals

During the year the Group purchased a 5% interest

in NOOK Media for $89 5m The Nook investment
was made as part of the strategy to accelerate our
move into digital content and personalised learning
and was made at the same ome as entering INto a
commercal arrangement to work together on device-
agnostic platforms

Also in the year we have completed the purchase
of remaiming minortes interests in some of our
South African and Indian businesses

The acquisition of Grupe Mult for £492m announced
in December 2013, completed in February 2014 and
has not been reflected i the financial statements at
31 Decernber 2013

In the first half of the year the FT Group dispesed
of its associate interest in BDFM, the South African
Business Media Group realising a small toss and m
july 2013 the Internatronal business disposed of its
Japanese school and local publishing assets viaa
management buy-out for a nominal sum The sale
of Mergermarket will be accounted for in 20(4

Net cash consideranon for all acquisitions made in
the year ended 31 December 2013 was £198m
including the investment in NOCK and prowisional
goodwill recognised was £19m In total, acquisitions
completed n the year contnibuted an addiional £15m
of sales but did not contribute a matenial amount to
operatng profit

Return on invested capieal {(ROIC)

Our ROIC 15 calculated as total adjusted operating
profit ess cash tax, expressed as a percentage of
average gross tnvested capttat ROIC fell n 2013 to

5 4% from 9 1% 1n 2012 Reduced profit and increased
tax payments are the main reasons for the movement

Related party transactions

Transactions with related paruies are shown in note 37
of the financial statements

Post-balance sheet events

On 4 February 2014 the Group completed the sale

of Mergermarket for £382m On il February 2014, we
acquired 100% of Grupo Mulu, the leading adult English
language traiming corpany in Brazil for approximately
£435m i cash plus the assumption of £57m of debt
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Applying and working with the best

technology, innovation

and expertise

from around the world
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Principal risks and uncertainties

QOur principal risks and uncertamties are outlined
below These are the most significant risks that may
adversely affect our business strategy, financial posttion
or future performance The risk assessment process
evaluates the probability of the risk materialising and
the financial or strategic impact of the risk. Those nisks
which have a higher probability and significant impact
on strategy, reputation or operations or a financial
impact greater than £40 million are identified as
prinoipal risks The risk assessment and reporung
criteria are designed to provide the board with a
consistent Group-wide perspective of the key risks
The reports to the board, which are submitted twice
per year, include an assessment of the probability and
impact of risks matenalising, as well as risk mitigation
imbiatives and their effectiveness

PRINCIPAL RISKS — [MPACT AND PROBARILITY

~

IMPACT

BRAND/
REPUTATION
MANAGEMENT

DATA PRIVACY
BREACH

BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY
RIGHTS

Secuon 2 Our performance 4§

We conduct regular risk reviews to idenufy risk
factors which may affect our business and financial
performance and to assist management in prioritising
their response to those risks Our Group internal audit
and compliance function faciitates risk reviews with
each business, shared service operations and
corporate functons, identifying measures and controtls
to mitigate these risks These reviews are designed

50 that the different businesses are able to tallor and
adapt thewr risk management processes to suit thewr
specific arcumstances Management is responsible

for considering and executing the appropriate action
to mutigate these risks whenever possible Itis not
possible to identfy every risk that could affect our
businesses, and the actions taken to mitigate the nsks
described below cannot provide absolute assurance
that a risk will not materiahise and/or adversely affect
our business or financial performance

EDUCATION
REGULATION
AND FUNDING

TECHNOLOGY
CHANGES

ECONOMIC
UNCERTAINTIES

EMERGING
MARKETS

ACQUISITIONS
AND MERGERS

>

PROSABILITY
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Principal risks and uncertainues

contsinued
Principal risks Mitigating factors
TECHNOLOGY CRANGES
Our businesses will be impacted by the Our global educauon straregy wili drive a faster move
rate of and state of technological change, to digital and services, recogrusing that this is a significant
including the digital revolution and other opportunity for Pearson, as well as a potental risk We
disruptive technologies are transforming our products and services for the digital

environment along with managing our print inventories
Cur content 15 being adapted to new technologies across
our businesses and 1s priced to drive demand We develop
new distribution channels by adapting our product offering
and mnvesting 1 new formats

Ve operate in markets which are dependent
on Informatton Technology (IT) systems and
technological change The transition of our
products and services to digital increases the
potential exposure to cyber threats
We seek to mitigate IT risks by establishing strong {T policies
and operauonal controls, employing project management
rechniques to manage new software developments and/or
systems implementations and have implemented an array
of security measures to protect our IT assets from attacks
or fallures that could impact the confidentiality, avallabiity
or mtegrity of our systems

EDUCATION REGULATION AND FUNDING

Our US and UK educarional solutions In the US we actively monitor changes through parucipaton
and assessment businesses may be i advisory boards and representation on standard settng
affected by changes in government funding commuttees Qur customer relatonship teams have detalled
resulting from erther general econamic knowledge of each state market We are nvesung in new
conditions, changes in government and innovative ways to expand and combine our products
educanonal funding, programmes, policy and services to provide a superiar customer offering when
decisions, legislation and/or chaages in compared ta our competitors, thereby reducing our reliance
the procurement processes on any particular funding stream in the US market. We work

through our own corporate affairs team and our indusory
trade associatons mcluding the Association of American
Publishers We are also monitoring municipal funding and
the impact on our education receivables

{n the UK we maintain relationships with those government
departments and agencies that are responsible for policy and
fundimg We work proactively with them to ensure our
programmes meet exisung and new government objectives
at the right quality

LCONOHMIC UNCERTANRNTIES

Global economic conditions may adversely The Group's approach to funding 1s described on page 37
npact our financial performance and the Group’s approach to the management of financial

risks 15 set out tin note {9 to the financial statements
A significant detertoration in Group

profitabiiity and/or cash flow caused by
profonged economic instability could reduce
our hquidity and/or impair our financal
ratios, and trigger a need to raise addittonal
funds from the capital markets and/or
renegonate our banking covenants

We generate a substantral proportion of

our revenue in foreign currencies, parucularly
the US dollar, and foreign exchange rate
fluctuaton could adversely affect our earnings
and the strength of our balance sheet




f}%

Prncipal risks
BUSINESS TRAHSFORMATION

The pace and scope of our business
transformation ibiatives increase the
execution risk that benefits may notbe
fully realised, costs of these changes may
increase, or that our business as usuat
acuvities do not performin hne

with expectations

If we fail to attract and retatn appropriately
skilled employees, our business may
be harmed

BRAND REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

Qur business depends on a strong brand.
and any failure to maintamn, protect and
enhance our brand would hurt our abiity
to retan or expand out business

Secrion 2 Our pesformance 43

Mitigating factors

A chief transformation officer was appointed in 2013, to
oversee the development and iImplementaton of a sigraficant
change programme Some of the key miugations for potenual
execution risk include change management workshops {or
sentor leaders, additional support for people moving to new
roles, and regular communicauion from the CEQO and hus
ieadership team in person and by online videos To cfanfy
decision-making authority and accountability in the new
global matrix organisation, worked examples of day-to-day
activities have been developed including customer-facing
activities such as developing and delivering online

educanon services

Our trading update in January 2014 noted the importance

of our transformation and our decisions on uming of changes
such as deferring sales-related restructuring to avoid key
sefhng periods

Through the changes during 2013, we have been successful
in promotng our bestinternal talent and recruiting
individuals who are global leaders in their specific field

Further details of how we are managing the risks associated
with transformatonal change are set out under "Responsible
business’ from page 47

We seek to mitigate this risk through the development of
comprehensive processes to enable our business units
to effectively manage relationships with stakeholders,
customers, communities and employees Ve have an
ongoing process to understand and evaluate potental brand
threats and monitor and evaluate informaton zbout our
brand across media sources This process and associated
governance includes the reputation and responsibility
comnuttee The committee met dunng 2013 and has
considered a number of topics including Pearson's
non-financial targets, brand and reputation metrics and
reputattonal risk and mitigations associated with tesung
failures in the US

We take very seriously the health, safety, wellbeing and
proteciton of our employees, learners and customers and
umplement appropriate policies, standards and procedures
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

Principal risks
EMERGING MARKETS

Our investment Into inherently riskier
emerging markets 1s growing and the returns
may be lower than anucipared

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

If we do not adequately protect our
intellectual property and proprietary rights
our competitive position and results may be
adversely affected and limit our abifity

1o grow

ACQUISITIONS AND MERGERS

Falure to generate anticipated revenue
growth, synergies and/or cost savings from
acquisitions, mergers and other business
combinations could lead to goodwill and
intangtble asset impairments

Miugatng factors

We draw on our expertence of developing businesses
meernationally to manage specfic country nsks We have
designed and adopted an operaung model for a glabally-
connected education company and we continue to strengthen
our financial controf and manageral resources in emerging
markets to manage expansion The diversification of our
nternational portfolio. and relative size of emerging markets
in relavon to the Group, further mmumuses the effect any one
territory could have on the overall Group results

We seek to mitugate this type of risk through general
vigitance, co-operaton with other publishers and trade
associations, advances in technology, as well as recourse to
law as necessary Digital nights management standards and
monitoring programimes have been developed We have

a ptracy task force 1o idenufy weaknesses and remediate
breaches Ve menitor acuvities and regulations i each
market for developments in copyright/intellectual property
faw and enforcement and take legal actron where necessary

We perform pre-transaction due diligence and clasely
monitor actual performance to ensure we are meeting
operational and financal targets Any divergence from
these plans will resuft in management action to smprove
performance and munimuse the risk of any tmpairments
Executive management and the board receive regular
reports on the status of acquisitions and mergers




A

Principal risks

DATA PRIVACY BREACH

Faifure to comply with data privacy
regulations and standards or wealness in
information security, mcluding a failure to
prevent or detect a malicious attack on our
systems, could result in a major data privacy
breach causing reputational damage to our
brands and financial loss

TEATING FAILURES

A control breakdown or service failure in
our school assessment and quabficauons
bustnesses could result in finanoal loss
and reputational damage

Our professional services and school
assessment businesses nvolve complex
contractual relationships with both
government agencies and commercaial
custemers for the provision of various
testing services Qur financial results,
growth prospects and/or reputation may
be adversely affected if these contracts
and relattonships are poorty managed

Secuion 2 Our performance 45

Mitigating factors

Through our global enterprise information security and
compliance programime, we have established a governance
model, security and privacy framework and polices, a global
security and privacy organisatronal model, and standard-based
mformation security and privacy controls and practces

We constantly test and re-evaluate our data security
procedures and controls across all our businesses wich the
aim of ensuring personal data 1s secured and we comply with
relevant legistation and contractual requirements We pursue
appropriate privacy accreditations, e g, TRUSTe Privacy and
Safe Harbor Seal We regularly monitor regulaton changes
to assess the wnpact on exisung processes and programmes
We have established a global secunity operations centre that
provides ongoing monitoring of potential malictous attacks on
our infrastructure and systems

We seek to minimise the risk of a breakdown in our student
marking with the use of robust quality assurance procedures
and controls and oversight of contract performance,
combined with our investment in technology, project
management and skills development of our people

in addition to the internal business procedures and controls
inplemented to ensure we successfully deliver on our
contractual commitments, we also seek 1o develop and
maintam good relationshups with our custorners to minimise
assocrared risks

We aiso loolk to diversify our portfolio to mimimise reliance
on any single contract
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Improving

learner outcomes|

atscale, and at lower cost

image removed




Responsible business

Section 3 Responsible business 47

Our purpose as a company is
to help people all over the world
make progress in their lives

through learning.

in 2010, we identified three key issues as the focus

of the responsibility strategy for our company raising
literacy levels, improving learping outcomes and
contributing to competitiveness

Last year, we signalled that 2013 would be a year of
significant change for Pearson as we developed our
global educational strategy and looked forward to the
creation of Penguin Random House We also made a
commitment to look at our responsibility framework
using four questions to guide us

y Are the three key issues sull the right ones for us’

» How should we measure and report the educational
rmpact of our products and services?

» What commitments and targets should we
set ourselves?

» VWhat are the big unmet educational needs that
we can help rackle?

As our work on the global education strategy
progressed, so a clear priority emerged — to
deliver for the learner ts the single most important
contribution that Pearson can make to socal and
economic wellbeing The tools and means by which
we will deliver for the learner has become the
efficacy agenda and this is central to our global
education strategy

To reftect the importance of learning outcomes, we
have introduced a new efficacy section 1n our annual
report {page {4} In that section we describe our
comrmitments and targets on measurement and
reporting as we go down the path towards efficacy
Qur vision 1s that by 2018, we will report on learning
cutcomes alongside our financial resuits

This secrton will now report on our wider respons:ble
business agenda

We welcome feedback on this aspect of the company
as we do on any other Please email our director of
corporate responsibiitty at peter hughes@pearson.com
with any questions or comiments you may have

Together with secuons one and two of this document
this section forms our strategic report, which was
approved for 1ssue by the board of directors on

{0 March 2014 and signed on s behalf by.

/ c
Robin Fregstone Chief financial officer

(and board member responsible for
corporate responsibility)
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Responstble business
continued

Overview

Helping learners to learn and progress is both the
focus of our business strategy and the single most
significant social contribution we can male

The section on efficacy {page (4} describes the
approach we are taking to our responsibilines towards
the learner

In addition, Pearson has adopted a broad defimnon
of responsible business reflecting prioriies we share
with many industry sectors and individual businesses
These include commitments across a broad range of
social, community and human nghts issues relevant to
Pearson to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive,
appropriate in content to the age and location of the
learner and are safe to use and access

Inform, support and equip cofleagues to embrace and
respond to new priortuies and ways of working

Provide a safe, healthy workplace where our employees
and ncreasingly the learners we directly serve are able
to realise ther individual potential and there is respect
for privacy, dignity and life outside work

Extend our principles on labour standards, human
rights and environmental responsibility to include
suppliers and bustness partners

Provide apportunities for Pearson people to be good
aitizens and to get invelved in their focal communities.

Deliver against stakeholder expectations on a
response to cimate change and in making better,
more efficent use of resources

Be open and transparent (n how we share and engage
with those with an mterest and passion for education
and learning

We consider our policies refauing to these matters to
be effective

Transforming our company - supportng our people
through change

Last year, we announced our plans to transform
Pearson mto a single company driven by a focus on
helping learners make measurable progress in their
lives through learning

A priority for 2013 was to design and putin place a
new organisational structure that shifted the company
from being a portfolio of businesses towards a single
operatung model with standard systems, clear
accountability and quicker deasion-making

Ve recogrised that change can be both wspiring and
empowering but ¢can also bring operational risks
To mitigate this, we

> Were clear about the purpose of the change to better
focus on a shared single purpose of delivering for
the learner

> Held change management workshops for semor
leadership teams Lo prepare for the new organisational
structure and operating model supported by videos,
blogs, emails and interactive materials

y Introduced the new ieadership team and therr
priornties for 2014, both virtually and in-persan

» Explained how the new operating model would work,
focusing on better use of information, improved
efficiency and cohasiveness in collaborating on
strategic priorities

» Supported the people that left the arganisation as
a result of the restructure

» Continuaily tracked morale and reacuon to change
to inform and shape how we communicated and
supported our people

At the same time, we conunued to focus on gur
broader responsibilities as an employer During the
year, Pearson

s Launched Milo, a single global platform for ail aur
people to access learning and development resources

» Adopted a new consistent global health and safery
pohicy and mntroduced a new set of common
management and reporeng procedures for our
busmesses globalty

» Reviewed and refreshed our code of conduct including
smphasising our commitment 1o learnars of all ages
and types

» Conunued to focus on how to meet our commitments
to attract recruit and retam the best people We
know that creating and sustaining an inclusive work
environment s critically impartant, offering equal
apportunity from the boardroom down regardless
of race, gender, gender identity or reassignment, age.
disabifity, religion or sexuzl onentation




CASE STUDY

Gender diversity

During 2013, we conunued with the development of
the gender diversity strategy at Pearson Pearson is
a supporter of the 30% Club which brings together
chairs and CEQOs to work to encourage better
gender balance across their companies There was
continued progress in advanong women and people
from diverse backgrounds An example of our work
is the diversity toolkit introduced in the UK 2012,
and launched in the Urnted States and made
avallable globally in 2013 Designed for managers
and business leaders across Pearson, it is made up
of guides, ups, advice and employment law, to
enable our leaders to successfully build manage

and develop their diversity management skills.

We introduced a single global data collection
process based on our new operating structure to
help inform people management This includes our
first global view on the gender balance withw the
company More work remains, in particular to
incorporate gender data from countries with
recent acquisiuons The gender balance based on
the introduction of our new organisational
structure was

MEN WOMEN
Board of directers 7 78% 2 2%
Senior managers
(excluding executive
board directors)* el 69% 28 31%
All employees™™ 17190 43% 12774 57%

* For the purposes of Lhis report senior maniagers ai Pearson sra defined
as the semor feaderstup team namely these up to and including two
repor-ing lnex from the CEQ We beireve vhis i5 the most meamng(ul
way 10 dlustrate e scnierleade rs and dension-makers at Pearsen

“ Datfer over 2 800 employees predonmantdy from China g
Indonesia is aot ircheded i the alt employe es nambers zhove
Empluree mfornisunn can be feund on page 142

» In the United States, Pearson received a perfect score
of 100% i the 2014 Corporate Equality Index (CEl},
a benchmarking survey and report en corporate
policies and practices refated to LGBT workplace
equality, administered by the Human Rights Camparign
(HRC) Foundation We were alsc named as one of
the 100 Best Adopuon Friendly Workplaces by the
Dave Thomas Foundauon for Adepuon

o

~r

~r
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Disability forms a part of our wider comimitment

to equal opportunity We work te ensure that
appropriate policies procedures, training and
support are available for disabled colleagues and
their managers A recent example 1s a guide on how
to develop corporate videos, so that all our people,
including those with disabiliues, can access and
benefit from these films

Partnering and investing to extend access to learning

Extending access to quality educationisabig
challenge, parvcutarly in the poorest countries

in the world Meetng the challenge requires a
sustained commitment to partnership — internatonal
organisations like the UN and the World Bank,
national governments, donor agencies and charities,
businesses such as Pearson, education providers and
suppliers alf working together

We are commutted to playing our part We do this
through being active in helping shape and inform the
global debate around education and learning policy
as well as invesung in projects that explore posstble
solutrons to the most mtractable learning needs

In 2013, we

jomed the board of the Global Partnership for
Education (GPE} representng the private sector

and prvate foundatons GPE brings together
representatives from nearly 60 developing countries,
donor governments, chantable foundations and
private businesses to work together to heip
developing countries strengthen their education
systems www globalpartnership org/

Championed the role of the private sectorin
education and learning in developing countries as a
founding member of the Global Business Coalitton
for Education www gbc-educauon.org/

Made a serfes of commitments during the UN General
Assembly including to invest $30m in mnovative
education sclutions, establish a mulu-year flagship
partnership to help overcome barrers to learning for
marginalised children. work with the GPE to develop

a private sector strategy that meets the goals of its
strategic focus on fragile states. and by 2018, to help
20,000 new graduates from across sub-5aharan Africa
1o transition into employment
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Responsible business
continued

Continued to mvest 1n models that provide access to
affordable education through low-cost private
schools The ${5m Pearson Affordable Learming Fund
has invested n projects in Ghana, Kenya and India.
www affordable-iearning com/

Conunued to support the Education Zone on the
Business Fights Poverty network The zoneisa
platform for debate on the roie of business in global
education www businessfightspoverty org/page/
education-zone

Launched Pearson Catalyst, a new incubator
programmme to identify and back the most promising
educaton start-tip companies Pearson provides
mentors, seedcorn funding and access to resources
and insight

Qur communities

Not-for-profit pariners help us extend our reach
and impact in ways that have a real impacton
learning — especiaily for the most disadvantaged -
and are complementary to our business objectives
We also believe that our stakeholders expect and
value our efforts to wark in partnership with
charitable organisanions

We therefore partner and fund a pumber of charitable
orgarusations with the Pearson Foundation being the
largest of these In 2013, our worldwide charitable
giving was £11 8m or | 5% of pre-tax profits

Highlights this year include.

Booktime gave its ren mithonth book Bookuime sees
every child starung school in England and Wales
receive a book pack contatning two free books o
take home and keep

We wera the largest book donor to Book Aid
Internationdl in 2013 We have given § 2 million
books to the chayity to support the development
of libraries in schooels and communities across sub-
Saharan Africa

The Financial Times seasonal appeal rarsed £] dm for
World Child Cancer, a charity helping treat sick
chidren in some of the poorest countries Since 2006,
T appeals have rassed £14m for chanity partners

For 2014, we will look more broadly at our approach to
community partnerships including the metrics we use

CASE STUDY

Pearson Foundation

The Pearson Foundauon is an independent charity
that aims to make a difference by promotng
Iteracy, learming and great teaching its programmes
in 2013 ncluded

» Helping jumpstart's Read for the Record to seta
new world record for reading the same book on
one day as 2,462,860 adults and children read
Ous, by Loren Long, In classrooms, librares, and
community centres across the United States

Strong Performers and Successfuf Reformers in
Educatron, developed in partnership with the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (QECD) helps inform what works
in education globaily

~

BridgelT has reached over one midlion children
and thewr teachers using mobile technology to
delver professional development matenals and
educational resources to remote and underserved
classrooms in ten countrias around the world

~

In 2011, the Pearson Foundation faced crinasm on

some of its programmes and the New York State

Attorney General announced an investigation into

the Foundation's governance, administration, and

relationship with Pearson. We co-operated fully

with the investigaton A settlement agreement

with the Pearson Foundaton and Pearson, inc .

has been concluded ( 9

Pearson and the Foundauon marntain we have
always acted with the best inteniions and comphed
with the law However, we recogruse there were
times when the governance of the Foundauon could
have been clearer and more transparent Over the
past two years, the Foundation has taken several
steps to strengthen its governance, beginning with
the addivon of independent directors to the board
and the adeption of stronger operational systems
Under the settlement, these efforts will be further
enhanced by the creation of a three-person

audit committee

The Foundation has also agreed to pay $7 5m

into a fund managed by the Attorney General

that will support the work of 100KiniQ, an
organisation committed to plaang 100,000 science
and mathemaucs teachers nto US schools in the
Next ten years
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COMMUNITY

Challenges Access to learning,

ineracy and great teaching

Our commstment

How we measure
progress

To mamtain our toral community invesiment
at 1% or more of operaung profit

One way we extend our reach is through
partherships with literacy and learnming

Secuion 3 Responsible business LY

Raising hteracy levels

Using 2010 as our base to expand our
book giftsng acuvities

Nurnber of books donated to schoals,
kbrartes and literacy charities

chanties We report on our community

invesument spend

Community investment spend

Number of books donated

Graph removed

Graph removed

Environment chmate change and avaiding deforestation

Extrerne weather events continued n 2013, most
notably Typhoon Haryarn in the Philppines which

was one of the worst storms onrecord Pearson

has around 350 people in Mamia with the majority
working for the FT Although our employees are all
safe and our operattons were not directly affected,
many had anxious moments tracking family members

Pearson matches contributions made by Pearson
employees in countries and communities where we
operate Over |,000 Pearson people around the
world contributed to a special fund set up in the wake
of Hatyan which together with matching from Pearson
meant that over $150,000 was raised for charites
working in the Philippines, primardy to help chitdren
get back into school and to rebuild their ives

Typhoon Haiyan was a stark reminder on the
wmportance of minimising environmental impact
Pearson continues to be chimate neuiral, a
commiument we first achieved n 2009 and have
mamtatned ever since

This commitment was designed to encourage the
company to focus on carbon reduction Pearson was
included in the media category as a Decoupling Leader
0 the Natural Capral index developed by Trucost,

a research firm focusing on sustainability metnics
Trucost looked at the environmental impact of 4 600
publicty traded companies and 34 were recognised

as Decoupling Leaders having successfully separated
growth from resource use over a sustained period.

Our second focus area 1s forests As a purchaser of
paper and newsprint for our books, magazines and
newspapers security and sustainabihity of supply
are very important to us Ve have focused on
sustainability sourcing and being more efficient in
how we use paper Also. as our transition towards
being an educational technology and solutions
provider gathers pace, so thts will change our
environmental footprint
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Responsible business
continued

Highlights of our activities include

» Pearson received a 2013 Green Power Leadership
Award from the US Environmental Protecuon Agency
(EPA) for its green power purchase 100% of the
elecrricity purchased by Pearson globally — over
215 MWhin 2013 — comes from green power

> We have mvested i renewable energy generation at
four sites and have 2 3 Megawatts of wind and solar
assets instalied

> Pearson was the second ever organisation to be
cerufred giobally against the Carbon Trust Standard
This recognises leadership in measuring, managing
and reducing year-on-year carbon emissions

> Facihties in the United States also seek to secure
LEED, an internationally-recognised mark of excellence
by the US Green Bulding Councl Over 800,000
square feet across six of our buldings are LEED
certitied Pearson s also certfied against [SO14001,
the environmental management standard in the UK
and Australia

Pearson invests in forest-based carbon offsets for
any part of our chmate footprint that we cannot
reduce or avoid through other means Since 2009,
this programme has seen over 700 hectares of forest
protected n Colembua, Costa Rica, the United States
and the UK.

ENVIRDMMENT

Challenges Chmare change

To maintamn our
commiment to
chmate neutrality

Through carbon reduction,
purchase of renewable
energy, renaewable

energy generation at our
sttes and the purchase

of carbon offsets

Our comrmitment

How we
Feasure progress

GLOBAL GHG EMISSIONS DATA FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2013

Metric tonnes

Errussions from of COqe

Combusuon of (uel and operation

of faciines (GHG Protocol Scope 1)

natural gas company owned/

leased vehicles 1efrigerant gas loss

and fuet od 30170

Electiicity, heat steam and cooling
purchased for own use
{GHG Protocol Scope 2) 115,548

Total 145,718

Intensity mezric {tonnes COze/full time
employee for scape | and 2) 319

We have reported on all of the ermission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2043
These sources fall within our consolidated financial
statement We do not have responsibibity for any
emission sources that are not included in our
consolidated statement

The method we have used to calculate GHG

emisstons 15 the GHG Protacol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard (revised ediuon), together
with the latest emission factors from recogmised public
sources including, but not irmited to, Defra the
Internattonal Energy Agency, the US Energy
Irformauon Administrauen, the US Environmental
Protection Agency and the Intergovernmental panel
on Clirnate Change

We publish a separate report providimg more
mformation on ouwr envirenmental impact and this
includes some corporate value cham emissions data
(GHG Protocol Scope 3)

O



External benchmarks

Sectron 3 Responsible business £}

One way we assess how we are doing as a responsible business is to maintain our positen in key indices and

benchmarks of scaal responsibility

73 2012

Dow jones Silver class
Sustainability

indexes”

Gold class

2018 e

Global sector leader

Platinum

BITC Corporate
Responstbility
Index

Platinum {retained}

Platinum Platinum {retamed)

Incluston in
FTSE4Gocd

Yes

“Gotd dass s within 1% of the sectar leader silver class s within 2% of tha sector leader

Ouwr values, principles and behaviour

Although the structure and culture of the company 15
changing, values are what define us Our values to be
brave, imagmative and decent in everything we do are
the foundation of the company

Qur values are underpinned by our Code of Conduct
that covers, among other things, individual conduct,
learners, employees, community, the envirenment
and society

We make sure everyone 1s aware of and understands
the code and this forms part of our induction for new
employees Chnce a year, everyone working for
Pearson gets a copy erther electronscally or on paper,
and s asked to read it, to confirm 1o the Pearson CEQ
that they have read it and understood it, and in doing
50, to provide a check that the company complies with
it Hf anyone has concerns, these can be raised with a
line manager or through a free confidenual telephone
line/website

Pearson has a zero tolerance policy towards bribery
and corruption Cur palicy introduced in 201 sets out
our standards, we carry out risk assessments and have
a network of designated managers across the business
responsibte for comphance with our policy

We are committed to making sure our people
understand how we are dong as a company, including
how world trends cught affect them and the business
We provide comprehensive, relevant informauon in

a variety of ways, including regular presentauons from
senior executives and consulting where appropriate
so that we can fearn and take account of the views of
our people
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We have a passion

for the life changing impact of learning

! around the world
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Board of directors

Section 4 Governance

Company Number: 53723

Pearson’s board brings a
wide range of experience,
skills and backgrounds.

CHAIRMAN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

55

Image removed

Image removed

image removed

Glen Moreno Chairman
aged 70 appointed { October 2G05

Chait man of the nominanon
compruttee and member of the
remuneration comimitee

Gler has more than four decades of
experience in busimess and finance

and s currently deputy chawman of

The Finanaal Reporung Councl Lemied
in the UK and non-executtve direcror

of Fidelity inter navional Limited  Previcusly
Glen was deputy charrman and senios
indemendent director at Uoyds Banking
SGroup ple sentor imdependent dwecto
of Man Group ple and acursg chan man
Af LK Brmnanciat Investments Lineed

the company setup by HM Treasury o
manage the government s sha eholdings
n U banks

Jotin Falion Chief executive
aged 51, appointed 3 October 2012

Member of the nopynation committes

fohn became Pearsan s ciuef execunve

on 1 January 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsibie for the company 5 educason
businesses ouvtside North America, and

a membe- of the Pearsan management
commtee He joined Pearson i 1997

as dtrector of communicatrons and was
appainied president of Pearson inc a role
he combined with his commumcauors
responsibiines, n 2000, In 2003 he was
apporited CEO of Pearsen s equcanonal
pubhshing businesses for Europe,

Middle East & Africa (EMA) and graduaily
roolk an 2 broacer intet na.onal educaton
bref Prorto joimng Pearson John was
diractor of corporate affars at Powergen
rle where he was also a member of

the company's exécltive comymiteee
Earkern fus career john held senter
public policy and commumications roles

in UK local government

Robin Freestone Cheef finanoial officer
aged 55 appounted 12 June 2006

Reobins experence m management and
accauntng wcludes a previous role as
group financal controller of Amersham plc
{now part of Gener al Elecuric} and senior
financ:al posimons with 1CI pl, Zeneca ad
Henkel UK He joined Pearson in 2004 as
deputy chiefl finanaal officer and became
chief financial officer in June 2006

Robin qualfied as a chartered accountant
wiih Touche Ross (now Deloitte) and s
currently a non-executive director and
fovoder shareholder of eChem Limited
Robun -ns on the Advisory Groug of the
ICAEW s Frangial Reportaing Faculty ang
15 chatyman of The Hundred Group of
Finance Directors He also sits on the
CBI's Feonomie Growth Board
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Board of directors
contimued

HOM-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Image removed

image removed

image removed

Bavid Arculus Mon-execurive director
aged 67, appowted 18 February 2006

Chairman of the remuneration
cemmuttee and member of the audit
and noMINATCN COMMIees

David has expertence in banking
telecommunications and publishing in a fong
careet in business Currently he 1s chairman
of Numis Corporauan ple and the Adwvisory
Board of the British Library and s 3 member
of counad of Cranfield University Dawid s
previous roles Indude the charmanship of
Aldermaore Bank ple O2 plc, Severn Trermt
plc and IPC Group as well as chief operating
cfficer of United Business Media pic group
managmng du ector of EMAP plc and a non-
executive director of Teleforuca S A

Davd served from 2002 to 2006 as
chairrman of the UK government's Better
Regutation Task Force which worked on
reducing burdens on business

Vivienne Cox Senior independent director
aged 54, appointed § fanuary 2042

Member of the audit 1emuneration
and nomtnation commitieas

Vivienne bas wide expericnce in energy
naturzl resources and business innovation
She worked for BP plc for 28 year 5 in Britawn
and Conunental Europe in posts including
executive vice president and chief executive
of BP's Gas, Power & Renewables business
and its Alternative Energy umit She s non-
executive director of mening campany Rio
Twnto ple and energy company BG Group
ple, and chainman of the supervisory board
of Vailour ec, which supphes tubular systems
for the energy industry She is aiso lead
independent director at the LH Department
for Internauonal Development Vivienne s a
commisstoner of the Airports Comimissian,
wiuch was set up by the UK government

to examine any reguil ements for aadibonal
UK asrport capacity

Linda Lorimer Non-executive directar
aged 61, appointed § July 2043

Mamber of the audit and
nomination comimittees

Linda has a deep background in education
so ategy, adnunistration and publc affairs
She 1s vice president for Global & Straregic
Imiviatsves at Yale University in New Haven
Connecucut where her duties include
oversight of Yzle's Office of International
Affairs and Office of Digital Dissemmation
Over a 30-year career in higher educaton
she has been responsible for many of Yale s
administrative services including the
university s public commumications Alumni
relanions and Office of Sustamability
Previously Linda served as president of
Randolph-Macorn Woman's College in
Virgmia and had earlier worked at Yale in
several semor roles including assocrate
provost She is a non-executive director of
Save the Chuidren {US} 2nd was chawr of the
board of the Assotsanon of Amerscan
Colleges and Universsties

Image remaoved

Image removed

Image removed

Ken Hydon Mon-executve director
aged 69 apponted 28 February 2006

Chairman of the audit commutice
and member of the remunerauon
and nomination commitiees

Ken s experience infinance and businass
mcludes working o the electromics retai
corsumer preducts rnd healthcare

secrars He s a non-executive du ector

of Reclatt Benckiser Group plc ane of the
wortd's leadmg branded consumer goods
companies in health, hygiene ang home

He 15 alsa a non-executive do ector of
Merln Entertaimments ple, the world's
second largest vISIIOr aTtraction operatlot
From 2004 to 2013 he was a non-execuuve
director of Tesco plc Previously en was
cluef inancial officer of Vodafone Group pic
the mutunational telecommunications
company and financial duectot of
subnidianes of Raral Electronics

Josh Lews Non-executive director
aged 51 appounted | March 2011

Member of the remune ation and
AOMMNNATOD COMMITIEES

josh s experence spans finance educaton
and the development of digital entorprises
He s the founder of Salonon Rver Capital
L & New York-bised prvite equity/
venture caprial firm focused on technology-
enabled businesses in educaton financal
services and other sectors Overa 25-year
careet i acove prnapal mvestng be hag
beeninvofvedin a broad range of successtu!
companies including sevaral proneering
entel prises in the education seceor

I addition, he has tong been acive in

the non-profit education secior vath
assoctations including New Leaders New
Classrooms, and the 81 & Mehnda Gates
Foundation He is also a non-execunve
director of eVestment and Axtomna, both
financral daza/iechnology companies and
Parchment, an educanon o1 edennals
managesient company

Hansh Manwan Non-execuuve director
aged 60 appomzed | Ocioher 2013

Member of the nominauon commutiee

Harsh hias an extensive background in
emerging markers and semor experence
in a successful global nrganisaueon

He s chief operaung officer o1 consumer
preducts sempany Un lever, and serves

on the comp4ny's executive board

Harish joined Undeveria 1976 as a
marketing management irasnee In lndia and
hias held seawar management roles around
the world including North Amerca Laun
Ameia Europe Africa and Asta Heis
non-executive chairman of Hindusian
Unilever Limirea in India, and serves on the
voard of Whirlpoo! Corporation in the US
He 15 afso on the board of the Indian School
of Business the Econcmuc Davelopment
Board (FDB) of Swgapore and The Human
Canizal Leadetship tnsutute i Singanor £




Secuon 4 Governance 57

Company Number: 53723

Chairman’s letter

Dear shareholders

This year, we are reporting for the first time against the
2012 edivon of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(the Code}.

As has been highlighted elsewhere within this report,
2013 was a pertod of great change in our arganisation,
following the appointment of John Fallon as chief
executive at the start of the year | would like to take
this opportunity to share with you some insights as to
how our board and governance operations have
adapted throughout the year to take account of
Pearson's focus on becaming one global educarion
company

The Pearson board consists of senior executive
management alongside a strong group of non-executive
directors drawn from successful international
businesses and education insututions with expertence
of corporate strategy. education, emergmg markets,
technology and consumer markeung WWe conunually
assess and refresh the board to ensure we mamntam

an appropriate balance and diversity of skills and
experience

2013 saw a number of changes in Pearson’s
boardroom, reflecting both the new strategic direction
of the business and our desire to maximise the valuable
external experience which non-execuuve directors
bring to the table. Executive directors Rona Farhead
and John Makinson stepped down from the board in
April and fuly respecuvely although John remains part
of the Pearson family in hus new role as chauman of
Penguin Random House [n August we said goodbye to
Susan Fuhrman, a non-executive director for nine years
and, at the end of December, Wil Ethndge stepped
down from his execuuve position on the board and
from his role as CEQ of Pearsen North American
Education, although he will remainy a valued adwviser

to the company during 2014

During the year we also welcomed Linda Lornmer
and Harish Manwary to the board, as non-executive
directors Linda and Harish bring a wealth of
expenience In the areas of education, digital inisatives
and emerging markets, which reflect precisely those
areas on which Pearson 1s now focused

With these changes the board now predominanty
comprises independent non-executive directors. We
believe tins re-balancing enables Pearson to benefit
from our board's wide range of perspecuves and
backgrounds, and aliows the board to look at the
bigger micture of the Group's strategy, performance
and value, whiist aflowing the executive management
to focus on what it does best ~ driving our company
forward

May 2013 saw the announcement of the new Pearson
Executive team You will have read elsewhere in this
report about the new Geographies and Lines of Business
along which Pearson 1s now organised The presidents
of these Geographies and Lines of Business now sit on
the Pearson Executive, together with cofleagues leading
the key enabling functions The board and | had the
pleasure of spending two days discussing strategy with
the Pearson Executve in October 2013, of which a

little more later in the governance report

As a board we organise our work around four major
themes where we believe we ¢an add value
governance, strategy, business performance and
peaple Our board calendar and agenda provide ample
ume to focus on these themes and we have set out
some examples of the business considered by the
board, as well as the governance practices to which
we adhere, on the pages that follow

We hope this report clearly sets out how your
company 1s run, and how we ahgn governance

and our board agenda with the strategic direction

of Pearson We always welcome questrons or
comments from shareholders, either via our website
(www pearson com) or in person at our annual
shareholders’ meeting

Glen Moreno Chairman
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Board governance

Corporate governance

Introduction

The board beleves that dunng 2013 the company was
in full comphance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code) A detailed account of the provisions
of the Code can be found on the FRC's website at
www fre org uk and we encourage readers to view
our compliance schedule on the company website at
www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
informaticon/gavernance

Composition of the board

The board currently consists of the chairman,

Glen Moreno, two execunive directors including the
chief executive, John Failon, and six independent
non-executive directors

Chawrman and chief executive

There 1s a defined spht of responsibilites between the
chairman and the chief executive The chatrman 1s
primartly responsible for the leadership of the board
and ensuring its effecuveness, the chief execunve ts
responsible for the operational management of the
business and for the development and implermentation
of the company’s strategy as agreed by the board and
the Pearson Executwve The roles and responsibilities of
the chawman and chief execuuve are clearly defined,
set out i wniing and reviewed and agreed by the
board annually

Chairman
There were no changes to the chairman'’s significant
commitments during the course of 2013

Senior independent director

Vivienne Cox s the company’s senior independent
director, having been appointed to the role on

| January 2013

Vivienne's role includes meeting regularly wath the
chairman and chief execunve to discuss specific issues,
as well as being avadable to shareholders generally
they should have concerns that have not been
addressed through the normal channels

Following Patrick Cescau's departure in December
2012, he was wited back in February 2043 —in hus
former role as senior independent director — to
conduct a session with the other non-executive
direcrors and the chief executive 1o appraise the
performance of the chairman, including in relation ta
the effectveness of the nomination committee as part
of the annual board evaluation process

Vivienne, as incumbent senior independent director,
has responsibility for apprasing the chairman’s
performance during 2013 and beyond

The senior independent director would be expected
to chair the normination commuttee in the event that
it was considering successton to the role of chairman
of the board

Independence of directors

All of the non-executive directors were considered by
the board to be independent for the purposes of the
Code dunng the year ended 3| December 2013

The board reviews the independence of each of

the non-executive directors annually Tlhus includes
reviewing their external appointments and any
potential conflicts of interest as well as assessing ther
indwidual circumstances in order to ensure that there
are no relavonships or crcumstances likely to affect
their character or judgement In addition to this review,
each of the non-executive directors 1s asked annually to
complete an independence questionnaire to satisfy
requirements arising from Pearson's US lisung

Dawid Arculus and Ken Hydon have each now served
on the board for eight years and 1t 1s thewr intention to
retwe from the board at the 2015 AGM As chairmen
of the remuneraaon and audit commttees respectively,
the nominatocn committee 15 actuvely considering
opuons for their successors both in their capacity as
non-executive directors and for their charmanships
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Confhcts of interest

tnder the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), directors
have a statwtory duty to avoid conflicts of interest with
the company The company’s Arucles of Assocation
{Art:cles) allow the duectors to authorise conflicts of
interest The company has established a procedure to
rdentify actual and potenual conflicts of interest,
including all directorships or other appoinuments to, or
relationships with, companies which are not part of the
Pearson group and which could give rise to actual or
potential conflicts of interest Once notfied to the
chawrman or company secretary, such potential
conflicts are considered for authorisation by the board
at s next scheduled meeting The relevant director
cannot vote on an autharisation resolution, or be
counted in the quorum, it refatton to the resolution
relaung to hus/her conflict or potential conflict

The board reviews any authorisations granted on

an annual basis

Board meetings

The board held six scheduted meetings in 201 3, with
some meetings taking place over two or more days

In recent years, we have developed our board meeung
agenda to ensure that board discussion and debate 15
cenired on the key strategic 1ssues facing the company
Over the course of 2013, the board maintained a
watching brief over the transformation project and
recerved regular formal updates from the chief
executive and the wransformaton team, headed by
the director of commurnications Other major items
covered by the board in the year included

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE. FEBRUARY 2073, LONDON

> 2012 report and accounts and dividend
recommendaton

» 2013 operating plan

» Rusk assessment and review of mingating actions

» Annual review of authonsed conflicts

» Raview of divisron of responsibilives between
chairman and chief executve

» Plans for board effectiveness review

» Discussion of accounung exempuon for UK subsidianies

GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
APRIL 2013, LONDON

» Focus on forthcoming AGM and review of
shareholder issues

» Review of investor relations strategy and share price
performance

» Review of corporate social responsibility

» Status update on Penguin Random House transacuion
and ebock settlement proposal

» Rislc assessment and review of mitigatng actions

sy Governance update

STRATEGY JUNE 2013 JOHANNESBURG

» Review of Southern African education business
including site visits, panel sessions and debates — see
case study on page 62 for further information

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE JULY 2012 LtONOON

» Internim results and dividend approval

» Pengun Random House — post-completton update
» Iminial review of proposed Mult acquisition

» Consideration of Mergermarket sale

STRATEGY OCTOBER 203 LONDON

> Launch of efficacy strategy

» Discussion of New York Attorney General's review
of the Pearson Foundation

» Review of standing commitiee terms of reference

» Workshop with Pearson Executive — see case study
on page 6! for further information

STRATEGIC PLAN DECEMBER 2013 NEW YORK

» Prehminary view of 2014

» Overview of changes to the 2013 year end reporting
requirements

» Rusk assessment and review of mitigaung actions

» Approval of schedule of authority limits

in addiwon to the six scheduled meeungs, the board
held cne further full meeting in November 2013 to
approve the Mergermarket sale and Grupo Mult
acquisition and undertoak discussions throughout the
year, both m formal meetings and as otherwise
required, to consider the progress and terms of these
and other corporate transactions
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Board governance continued

The following table sets out the attendance of the
company's directors at scheduled board meetings
dunng 2013

Board

mecungs
—— o _ftﬂﬁd o . Nenas
Chairman
Glen Moreno 6/6
Execunve directors
{ohn Fallon 6/6
Will Ethnidge 5/6 absent for medical 1easons
Rora Fairhead - stood down 26 Apri 2013
Robin Freestone 6/6
John Malkinson 3/3 stood down | July 2013
Non-executive directors
Dawd Arculus 4/6  unable to trave! due to injury
Vivienne Cox &6/6
Susan Fuhrman 374 stood down 7 August 2013
Ken Hydon 6/6
Josh Lewis 6/6
Linda Lormer 3/3 appointed | july 2013
Harsh Manwant __ 2/2 _aopomnied | October 2013

The role and business of the board

The board 1s deeply engaged in developtng and
measuring the company's long-term strategy,
performance and value We believe that it adds

a valuable and diverse set of external perspecuves
and that robust open debate about significant
business issues brings a valuable additional discipline
to major decisions.

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the beard's
decsion and approval is available on our website,

at www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
information/ governance

A standing commuttee of the board has been
established to approve certain ordinary course of
busmess rtems such as banking matters, guarantees,
Intra-group transactions and routine matters relating
ro employee share plans The committee has written
terms of reference, reviewed and approved each year,
which clearly set out its authority and duties These can
be found on the company webstte at

www pearson com/ investors/shareholder-
wformaton/governance

The board recewes timely, regular and necessary
financial, management and other infformaton to fulfil its
dunes Comprehensive hoard papers are arculated 1o
the board and comnuttee members at least one week
in advance of each meeting and the board receives
regular reports {rom the chief executive In addion

to meeting papers, a hbrary of current and histonc
corporate information 1s made available to directors
electrontcally to support the board's decision-tmaking
process Directors can obtamn independent professional
advice, at the company's expense, in the performance
of their duties as directors All directors have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local senior
management every tme board and committee
meetings are held at the locatans of operating
companies, such as during the board's 2013 trip to
South Africa This allows the non-executive directors
to share their experience and expertise with semor
managers as well as allowing them to better
understand the abilities of semior management, which
n turn will help them assess the company’s prospects
and plans for succession

Culture and values of the board

During a tume of widespread organisatonal and
swrategic change at Pearson, the board has had
oversight of the plans to embed efficacy firmly into
the company’s culture

Since 2012, the board has been kept abreast of the
company’s tntenuons through a number of sessions
with the chief education advisor At the most recent
such session, in October 2013, the board had the
opportunity to discuss bulding efficacy into all aspects
of Pearson’s operations, and noted therr strong
support for Pearson’s involvernent in the global public
dialogue on efficacy and education

&
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Succession planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning -
not only at board and execuuve management level but
for alt key posmions throughout the business — as one
of s prime responsibilities

2013 has seen a large scale reorgamisation of both the
company and the structure of its senicr management
team Throughour the year, the board recewved regular
updates from the chief executive and the
transformation team on the organisational redesign
project This mcluded oversight of the key
appointments made te the Pearson Executive and that
team’s direct reports, the senior leadership group

CASESTUDY

Board and Pearson Executive

As part of the board’s regular programme

of updates on the education strategy and
arganisational design iuatives, a section of the
October 2013 beard meeting was dedicated to

a workshop mnvolving members of the Pearson
Executive Each member of the Pearson Executive
discussed with the board their new roles, strategic
priorities, and the challenges and opportunities
facing therr particular business area as they
moved towards the new operating structure

on | January 2014

The session had benefits for all parues involved —
the board was able ro learn more about the
recently appointed executive team, and to
explore with them key 1ssues relating o the
geographies, lines of business, products and
technologies, whilst demonstrating to the
executive its involvement and support during

a perrod of great change

During the year the board also approved formal
conungency plans for temporary absence of the chief
executive for health or other reasons

Board evaluation

The board’s review of its effectveness in 2012 took
place during early 2013. A primary focus for the board
n 2012 was chief executive succession On review,
the board concluded that the process was structured,
detailed and effecave

For 2013, the board identified two key priorues

» To restructure and strengthen the board through

[

~

~

w

o

a higher proportion of independent directors with
experience and slalls relevant to Pearson’s strategy,
particularly in education and emerging markets The
appowintments of Linda Lorimer and Hanish Manwant
were 1 line with this objective,

To keep the board closely informed and involved in
Pearson's strategic transformation during the year,
ncluding regular detailed briefings on strategy, planned
organisational changes and key leadership
appomtments The board reviewed plans and acuons n
considerable detall on six different occasions in 2013,
including at the strategy workshop held in October
with the Pearson Executive

The board has alse given consideration to the
informaunion it recetves and how this is reported As a
result, an improved board information systemt is bemng
designed which will enable the board to more
effecuvely track performance and developments in the
business model As part of this review, 1n January 2014,
we instituted a revised monthly chief executive s letter
to the board

The board also wished to give consideration as to ways
in which to maximise the effectiveness of its overseas
meetings In june 2013, the board held 2 meetng
South Africa, more information on which 15 set out in
the case study on page 62 Following the trip, a short
questionnaire was distnbuted to board members
Parucular learning pownts ansing from the board’s input
relased 1o

Continuing to ensure site vIsIts are representative
of Pearson’s operattons in the region,

The high value placed on meeting the end user s

of Pearson’s products — students and teachers,
Logistical arrangements both before and during the
trip, and

Ensunng that board presentations are pitched to
impart a sufficient level of knowledge for directors
1o perform their roles
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Board governance continued

It 1s intended that these learning points will be used to
shape future overseas agendas, including potental visits
by the board to the US and an emerging market
territory during 2014

During the course of the year the executve directors
were also evaluated on their performance agamnst
personal objectives Up to 20% of the executives’ total
annual incentive opportunity for 2013 was based on
functional, operational, strategic and non-financial
objecuives relevant to thew speafic area of
responsibiity The chairman leads the assessment of
the chief executive, and the non-executive directors,
ied by the seruor independent director, conduct a
review of the chairman’s performance

in accordance with the Code, the board anucipates
undertalang an external evaluation during 2014 The
board i1s currently discussing focus and uming for the
process to gain the maximum benefit from the review

In addwon to the review of the board and mdividual
directors, the audit and remuneration commuttees each
undergo an annual evaluation process to review their
performance and effectiveness. The process covers
areas such as roles and responsibihines, quality and
umeliness of meeting matenals, opportunity for
discussion and debate, dialogue with nranagement

and access to independent advice.

LCASESTUDY

South Africa

In june 2013, the board visited South Africa for a
three-day meeting to understand the economic
and pohucal environment, the educanon landscape
and Pearson's South African business, one of the
Group's most consistently successfut businesses
over the last decade

The board met wiih a number of Pearson's senior
leaders in the region and also took the opportunity
to meet with the leader of Pearson's Nigera
business as it learned more about scope for growth
in that country and more widely across Africa
A
The board spent time visiting local schools as well C
as reviewing higher education initiatives on the
main campus of CT1, Pearson's higher education
business in South Africa

The board also met with Cynl Ramaphosa, the
recently elected deputy president of the ANC,

at a sessron invalving a range of business leaders,
journakhsts, authors and key opinion leaders in
educanon, exploring how Pearsen could do more
to tackle problems in education and tratmung in
the region

Finally outside of the core educational focus of the
trip, the board received an update on Penguinin
Sauth Africa to learn more about how the merger
with Random House 1s enhancing publishing
opportumtes
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Directors’ traning and induction

Directors recewe a significant bespoke induction
programme and a range of informanon about Pearson
when they jon the board  This includes background
inforrnation on Pearson and detarls of board procedures,
directors’ responsibiities and various govermance-related
1ssues, including procedures for dealing in Pearson shares
and their legal obligations as directors The inducuen also
includes a seres of meetngs with members of the board,
presentatons regarding the busmess from senior
executives and a bnefing on Pearson’s mvestor

relations programme The inducton programme for
tinda Lonmer and Harish Manwaru s ongoing and 1s
being talored to best introduce them to Pearsonina
penod of orgamsatonal change

The directors’ tratrung s supplementad with
presentations about the company's operations, by
holding board meeungs at the locations of operating
compantes and by encouragng the directors to visit
operating compantes and local management as and when
their schedule aliows The company secretary and general
counsel, m conjunction with the Group's adwisers,
montor legal and governance developments and update
the board on such matters as agreed with the charman
Directors can also malke use of external courses

Dhrectors’ indemmues

In accordance with secuon 232 of the Act, the company
grants an indemruty to all of its directars The indermmity
relates to costs ncurred by them in defending any awd
or cnmunal proceedings and in connection with an
application for relief under sections 661 (3) and {4} or
sectons 157(1)-(3) of the Act, so long as monies are
repaid not later than when the outcome becomes final if
{1) they are convicted i the proceedings. () judgment is
given against them, or (i) the court refuses to grant the
rehef sought

The company has purchased and maintans directors’
and officers’ msurance cover agamnst certan legal liabilives
and costs for claims in connection with any act or
omission by such directors and officers in the execution
of thew dunes

Sharehoider engagement

Pearson has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders - farge and small msututional
and private

In 201 3, we continued with our shareholder outreach
programme, seeing approximately 780 insututonal and
private tnvestors at more than 450 different institutions
in Australia, Brazl, Canada China, Cantinental Europe,
India, Japan, Malaysia, Singapore, South Afnca, South
Korea, the UK and the US

There are five trading updates each year and the chief
executive and chief financial officer present our
preliminary and mtenm results updates They also attend
regular meetngs throughout the year with investors
the UK and around the world, tailored to investor
requirernents, 1o discuss the performance of the
company, the company's strategy, our restructunig
programme, structural changes in our markets and nsks
and opportunities for the future

The chawrman meets regularly with signficant
shareholders to understand any issues and concerns they
may have Tius 15 in accordance with both the Code and
the UK Stewardship Code The non-execubve directors
meet informally with shareholders both before and after
the AGM and respond to shareholder queries and
requests as necessary The chairman ensures that the
board 15 kept informed of princpal investors” and
advisers’ views on strategy, and corporate governance

We also have an established programme of educational
sermpnars for our instunonal shareholders focusing

on individual parts of Pearson These semimars are
available to all shareholders via webcast on

WWW Dearson com

Prwvate investors represent over 80% of the shareholders
on our register and we make a concerted effort to
engage with them regularly Sharehclders who cannot
attend the AGM are mvited to email questions o the
chagrrman m advance at glenmoreno-agm@pearson.com

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed mvestors and have provided a wealth

of informauon on our website abour managng Pearson
shareholdings, see

www pearson com/investors/ shareholder-information
for further informanon, or tm to page 210 of this repart,
We also encourage all shareholders, who have not
already done so, to register their email addresses through
our website and with our registrar Thus enables them to
receive email alerts when tading updates and other
1mportant announcements are added to our website
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We post all company announcements on our website,
WwWW DEarson com, as soon as they are released, and
major shareholder presentanons are made accessible
vita webcast or conference call Our website contatns

a dedicated mvestor relations section with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
histonical financial performance, share price data and

a calendar of events It also includes information about
all of our businesses, links to thewr websites and details
of our corporate responsibility policies and activites

We are committed to ensuring that alt our
shareholders receve their dimvidends and encourage the
use of our dividend mandate service which enables UK
and many overseas shareholders to receive dividends
directly into their nominated bank account

Due o its continued popularity we again provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to
use our registrar's low-cost share dealing service, gving
thent the chance to add to or reduce ther stake in
Pearson at significantly reduced deahing rates, or ta
donate shares to charity with ease Thus service proved
very papular with shareholders, and consequently we
intend to offer this service again at a future date

We believe it s mportant that our employees have
a shared interest in the direction and achievements
of Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number
of our employees are shareholders in the company

Qur AGM — which will be held on 25 April this year
~ 15 an opportunity for all shareholders to meet the
board and to hear presentations about Pearson's
businesses and results

Board commuttees

The board has established three formal commuttees
the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the audit commuttee The chairmen
and members of these conunittees are appomted
by the beard on the recommandaton (where
appropriate) of the nomination committee and in
consultation with each relevant commuttee chairman

In addion to these board commuttees. two further
committees operate with board input. the standing
committee and the reputation and responsibiity
committee which primarily focuses on reputational nisk
Mara detail on the work of this commuttee can be
found withun the principal nsks and uncertainoes
section on pages 4[ to 45

During 2013, the balance of work considered by the
board and as formal commntees has shifted, so that
more time 1s spent by the committees discussing themr
areas of expertise, enabling the board meetings to
focus on strategy and performance Reports to the
board by each of the committee chairmen continue to
form a standing item on each board agenda, ensuring a
good communication flow between the bodies

The followtng table shows attendance by directors at
committee meetings throughout 2013

Audit  Remuneration Notmunatian
committea COoMmIttee committee

e fTeeUngs | MoRUNEs | MeaHngs
Glen Moreno - 5/5 5/5
John Fallen - - 5/5
David Arcufus’ 4/5 5/5 3/5
Vivienne Cox 4/5 3/5 5/5
Susan Fuhrman~* 373 - 3/4
Ken Hydon 5/5 5/5 545
josh Lewig™ 5/5 474 5/5
Linda Lormer - - /2
Harish Manwar - - 1/1

* Unabte 1o travel due to injury
* Stood down on 7 August 2612
’* Joined remuneration committee on 23 Aprd 2013

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Charman Glen Moreno

Members Dawid Aieulus, Vivienne Cox, John Faflon, Ken Hydon
losh Lewis Linda Lormer, Harish Manwam and Glen Moreno

The nomination committee meets at least once a year
and at other umes as and when required The
committee primarily momtors the composition and
balance of the board and s committees, and identifies
and recommends to the board the appointment of
new directors and/or committee members
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During 2013, the committee met five tmes with its
primary focus being to consider suitable candidates
for non-executive positions, culminating in the
appointment of Linda Lornmer and Hansh Manwan
to the board An external search consultancy, Egon
Zehnder, was used during the recruitment process
Egon Zehnder does not have any other connection to
Pearson apart from as a search consultancy Pearson
uses a number of leading firms i 1ts board and
executive search activities

During the year, the committee also discussed and
approved the appomntments of Josh Lewis to the
remuneration committee and of Linda Lonmer to the
audit committee, in place of Josh Lewis who stepped
down at the end of 2013 Linda Lormer and Harish
Manwan also joined the nomination committee
following their appomtments to the board during

the year

Although the chairman of the board chaws the
nomination committee, he s not permutted to chair
meetings when the appointment of his successor 1s
being considered or during a discussion regarding hts
performance At such umes, the senitor independent
director witl chair the meetings

The commuttee has written terms of reference
which dlearly set out its authority and dunes
These can be found on the company website
at www pearson com/investars/shareholder-
information/ governance

Daversity

The board embraces the Code's underlying principles
with regard to board balance and diversity, nctuding
gender diversity The nomination committee, led by
the chairman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demonstrate a broad balance of slalls, expenence and
nationality, to support Pearson’s strategic development
and reflect the global nature of the Group’s business

The committee and the board always take account of
diversity In its broadest sense when considering board
appointments whilst ensuring that appomtments are
made based on ment and relevant experignce

tord Davies’ review pubhshed in 201 | called for
companies to target 25% fermale representauon on
boards of FTSE 100 compantes by 2015 Pearson s
commutted to having at least 30% female directors
within Lord Davies’ 2015 timeframe and currently has
two ferale directors on 1ts board of nine {representng
22%) With the retirement of three female directors
over the fast year, the commuttee 1s actively seeking to
recruit at feast one addinonal female board member

immediately below board level, the Pearson Executive,
not ncluding the chief executive and chief financial
officer who are main board directors, has four female
members out of a total of {3 (represenung 31%)

Pearson considers diversity as an important issue
across the Group, not just at board level One of the
key aims of Pearson's diversity policy is to increase the
numnber of leaders coming from a diverse background,
including advancing more women into leadership
positons The Respensible business secuon of this
report on pages 47 to 53 contains further information
and stanstics on diversity throughout the Group

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chairman David Arculus

Members David Arcufus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon, Josh Lews
and Glen Moreno

The remuneration committee reports to the iull board
and the directors’ remuneraton report, which has
been considered and adopted by the board, 15 set out
on pages 78 to |14

The committee met five umes duning the year, and has
a written charter and terms of reference which clearly
set out its authonty and duves These can be found

on the company website at www pearson com/
investors/shareholder-nformation/governance
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman Kenr Hydan

Members Bavid Arculus. Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon and
Linda Lormer

As a committee we welcome the new governance
requirements for the financial statements, enshrined
i the changes to the Code introduced n 2013, and
in particular that the report and accounts rneed to be
fair, balanced and understandable The production,
co-ordination and review of the annual report and
accounts is a substantial exercise which needs to be
undertaken within a refatively short timeframe,
runming alongside the formal audit process
undertaken by our external auditors in order to
arrive at a position where the audit commitiee and
the board are sausfied with the overall fairness,
balance and clanty of the document we discussed the
new requirements and agreed with management a
robust process of review and approval

The comnuttee 1s aware of the recommendations of
the Competition Commussion and the U on audit
tender and rotauon, and currently expects that the
tender process will begin no tater than 2017 for the
2018 financiat year end. The committee reviews the
auditor’s independence on an annual basis and also
monitars on a quarterly basis the nature and level of
non-audit fees payable to them. As described later in
this report, during 2013 Pearson spent a considerable
amount of non-audit fees with PwC In the main, this
expenditure related to spectfic assurance and tax
adwvisory services assocated with the planned
creauon of the venture between Penguin and
Random House, and both management and the audrt
committee believe that using PwC for these services
was the most pracucal and econormucal soluuon for
the company We anticipate that. this level of
non-audit fee is unusual, and that the balance of audi
1o non-audit fee pad to PwC will t eturn to more
normal levels i 2014

As | have said in previous years, a key part of the

role of the committee 1s in providing oversight and
reassurance to the board with regard to the integrity
of the company’s financial reporting, internal control
pohcies, and procedures for the idenufication,
assessment and reporting of nsik The latter two

have been a particular focus for the Pearson audit
committee throughout 2013 as thé company (-3
embarlked on such a wide ranging and significant
transformational and orgamisationat change through
the launch of its global education strategy Agan,
commuttee meetings are always attended by the chief
financal officer and SVYP internal audit and comphance
and our external auditors, and others often attend by
inwvitation, including the ¢hief execuuve and chairman

During the year the audit commuttee continued

to interact with local and business management,

and 2 parucular spent tme with local management

during their visit to South Afiica, discussing the

implernentation of the company's anti-bribery and

corruption pohcoy. data protection, disaster recovery

planming, risk registers and the Pearson code of

conduct. The committee also added an addiuonal

fifth meeting to its annual calendar, both tw allow an

appropriate amount of ume be set aside for ;/3
consideration of all relevant marters, as well as to ( )
allow us to focus on a number of nisk deep-dives, in

particular on data security and privacy, treasury risk

and anu-bribery and corruption

In August 2013, Susan Fuhrman stood down from the
board and audit committee, and at the end of 2013,
losh Lewis stood down from the commuttee and has
been repiaced by Linda Lonmer We thank Susan and
Josh for their wise counsel over the last few years and
welcome Linda

Ken Hydon
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Members

All of the audit comtmuttee members are independent
non-executive directors and have financial and/or
related business experience due to the senior positions
they hold or have held in other listed or publicly traded
compantes and/or similar public orgarisations

Ken Hydon, chairman of the committee, 1s the
company’s designated financial expert He 1s a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Association of Corporate
Treasurers He also serves as audit comimuttee
charrman for Reclkutt Benckiser Group plc and Merlin
Entertainments ple, and unul 2042 for Tesco plc and
Royal Berkshire NHS Foundatton Trust.

The qualifications and relevant experience of the other
committee members are detalled on page 56

Role and responsibilities

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out 1ts authonty and dutes These are
reviewed annually and can be found on the company
website at www pearson com/investors/ shareholder-
information/governance

The commuttee has been established by the

board pnmandy for the purpose of overseeing the
accounung, financial reporung, internal control and nsk
management processes of the company and the audit
of the financial statemerits of the company

The commuttee 1s responstble for assisting the board's
oversight of the quality and mtegnity of the company’s
external financial reportung and statements and the
company’s accounting policies and practices

The group’s internal auditor has a dual reporting line
ta the chief financial officer and chair of the commuttee
and external auditors have direct access to the
committee to rarse any matter of concern and to
report on the results of work directed by the
committee The commitiee reports to the full board
at every board meeting immediately following a
committee meeting It also reviews the imdependence
of the external auditors, ncluding the provision of
non-audit services {further detals of which can be
found on page 73 and note 4 to the financial
statements), and ensures that there 1s an appropriate
audie refationship and that auditor objectivity and
independence 15 upheld

External audit

Based on management s recommendations, the
committee reviews the proposal on the appointment
of the external auditors The committee reviewed the
effectiveness and independence of the external
auditors during 2013 and remains sawsfied that the
auditors provide effective independent challenge

to management

The review was conducted by distnibuting a
questonndire to key audit stakeholders includmg
members of the audit committee, the chief executive,
chief financial officer SVP company secretanal, SVP
internal audit and compliance, operating company
CFGs and heads of corporate functions In relation to
specfic comments received, the lead audit partner
explained to the committee how PwC were
rromitoning and reviewing each highlighted area and
confirmed that they would consider how to adapt their
approach in light of feedhack

In addition, in accordance with our external auditor
pohcy, Group internal audit performs an annual
assessment of audit fees, services and independence
This review takes into account internal and external
information and benchmarks and forms the basis for
a recommendaton by the committee to the board in
respect of the appomtment and compensaton of our
external auditor

Recognising the importance of mantaming auditor
independence and objectivity, the committee paid
partcular attention to this matter durng 2013 PwC
were appointed to provide assurance procedures over
the compleuon balance sheet and tax adwice on the
Penguin Random House transacuon This decision was
made only after careful consideration of the
alternatves, as well as ensuring that appropriate
safeguards were put in place to mamtain independence
As a result of this deaision, non-auds fees paid ta PwC
exceeded Pearson’s 1arget proportion of audit fees
during the year
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The committee will contunue to review the
performance of the external auditors on an annual
basts and will consider thewr independence and
objectivity, taking account of all appropriate gudelines
There are no contractual obligatons restnicung the
commuttee’s choice of external auditors In any event,
the external auditors are required to rotate the audit
partner responsible for the Group audit every five
years The current lead audit partner rotated onto the
Group's audit in 2043

Pearson's last audit tender was in respect of the 1996
year end resuiung n the appointment of Price
Waterhouse as audstors Given the recent rotation of
lead audit partner ahead of the 2013 reporung period
and giving careful considerauon to the uming and other
pracucabues of undertalung a formal audit tendering
process, the committee agreed that a tender process
waould commence ne later than 2017 to ensure
auditors have been appointed in ume for the 2018 year
end audit, following the end of the current lead

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

Penguin Random House transaction

A number of complex accounting and business
madel changes including disposal accounung,
valuation of the new business and intangibles
associate accounnting including harmontsauon of

partner's term The committee 15 alse monitoring
developments from the Competwon Commussion on
audit tendering and at EU level regarding mandatory
audut rotauon for isted companies, and will factor
any legislanve requirements mto its future plans for
audtt tender

Significant i1ssues

During the year, the committee discussed the planning,
conduct and cenclusions of the external audit as

it proceeded.

At the july 2013 audit committee meeting, the
committee discussed and approved the auditors’
Group audit plan and reviewed the key risks of
misstatement of the Group's financial statements,
which were updated at the December 2013
committee meeting The table below sets out the
significant issues considered by the audit commuttee
together with dertals of how these items have been
addressed

HOW ISSUES WERE ADDRESSEDR

The commuttee discussed this ssue at a number of meetings, including
reviewing management's discussion of the significant accounting judgernents
and esumates and monitorning the views of the external audwors The
committee and management have wisibility of Penguin Random House s
accounung to ensure that alf accounting policies, valuations and adjustments

accountng policies, changes to exising operating 2re considered m Pearson s accounts The committee monitors and, where

model of shared services, infrastructure and
corporate costs such as penstons

appropnate challenges mitigaung acuons by management These actions
include key Sarbanes-Oxley contrals over acquisition and disposal accountng

including 1eview by the technical accounting team, use of external valuation
experts and use of local management to ensure that pohces and operatng
model are communicated and adjusted as required

Revenue recognition

This 15 considered significant i ight of a number
of products and services sold by Pearson where
revenue recognion pracuces are complex and
Mmariagement assurmnpuons and estimates are
necessary

The commutee recewes a regular presentatron from management on revenue
recogni:on and routinely monitors the views of the external auditors on dhs
1issue The comrmuitee has visibility to internal audit findings refaung to revenue
recognition conitrols and processes, the related management acuon plans

and umely dosuie of open issues The committee momtors and where
appropriate challenges mitiganng acttons by management. These actions

include key Sarbznes-Oxley controls and identfication of significant contracs
through the ‘large and unusual process, such that accounting treatment can
be agreed by specialists

0
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SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

US cax acuvity
Changes to processes, structure and strategy in
2012 and 2013, and [RS audst actvity

Imparment of goodwill and intangibles

The Group carries signiicant goadwill and
acquired intangible asset balances Thereis
judgement in the identfication and aggregation
of cash generating urits (CGUs) and m the
assumpuions used in the annuat goodwill
IMPalFment review

The committee discussed these issues with the
auditars at the tme of their review of the half year
intenim financial statements it july 2013 and agan at
the condusion of their audn of the financial statements
for the year in February 2014 Al the signdicant issues
were areas of focus for the auditors, as detaled iy ther

report on pages 116 to 122

In December 2013, the commuttee discussed with the
auditors the status of their work, focusing i particular
on internal controls and covering the significant 1ssues

outlined above

As the auditors concluded therr audit. they explained

to the committee

The work they had conducted over revenue, which
included targeted procedures and testng of products
and services which were considered to have more
complex revenue recogmition, such as muluple element
arrangements {e g the provision of supplementary
print or digital matenals or training with textbooks)
and certan long-term contracts n the education

businesses,

Their evaluation of the directors' assessment of the
Pengumn Random House transaction and assessment
of valuations of that business and associate accountng,

Section 4 Governance &9
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HOW ISSUES WERE ADDRESSED

The committee met with the SYP, Tax twice duting 2013 discussed the tax
strategy and held a nsk deep dive into the tax process n October Key tax
accountmg matters micluding judgements and estmates were reported to the
committee by management, and the committee monitared the views of the
external auditors on the company's tax accountng The commitiee monitors
and, where appropriate, challenges miugating actions by management These
acuons include key Sarbanes-Oxley contrals in place n the US, and improved
UK central oversight to ensure crivcal judgerments are appropnately reviewed
and understood

The commitiee considered the results of the Group's annual goodwill
imparrment review and management's judgements and assurnpuons used 0
arniving at a valuation for each of the Group s CGUs The key assumptions are
cash flows denved from strategic plans, long-tenm growth rates and weighted
average cost of caprial The commuttee also considered sensitivities to changes
it assumptions and : elated disclosures as required by 1AS 36 ‘tmparrment of
Assets’ The annual impairment review m 2013 showed that there was
sufficient headroom in each of the Group s CGUs and based on the sensitmity
analysis a reasonably possible change in any of the assumpuons is unlikely to
cause an unpairment In any of the CGls

» Thewr assessment and evaluation of returns provisions
and controls in the shipment and returns processes,
partcularly i light of the ongoing business transition
from print to dhgital,

Their evaluation of the recoverability of pre-publicavon
assets and inventories These are considered to be
material and judgement s required to evaluate thew
valuation. plus esumaung recoverability may be more
complex during the transition to digital,

Their focus on goodwill impairment due to the
Group's signfficant goodwill and intangible asset
balances, and the work they had done to test
management's tmpairment analysis, underiying
assumptions, cafculaton of discount and growth

rates and integnty of the valuason moded,

The results of thew controls testing to date for
Sarbanes-Oxley Act section 404 reporting purposes
and inn support of therr financal statements audr, and
The review of the company s 'going concern’ reports

~

~

-

-

The auditors also reported to the commuttee the
msstatements that they had found in the course
of ther work, which were insignificant, and the
commuttee confirmed that there were no
rmaterial tems remarning unadjusted in these
financaal statements

The work they had done to understand the Group s
1ax strategy and identfy business and legisfative nisks,
1o chailenge key underlying assumptions and assess

the recoverability of deferred tax asserts,
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Traimng

The committee receives regular techmical updates

as well as specific or personal training as appropnate
Durning 2013, the commuttee discussed with PwC atan
audit committee meeting the new Code requirement
for the annual report and accounts to be “fair, halanced
and understandable’, and the disclosure commitiee
undertool a training session on the subject

Commitiee members alse meet with local
management on an ongeoing basis in order to gan
a better understanding of how Group pelicies are
embedded vt operations

Meetings

The committee met five tmes during the year with
the following m attendance the chief financial officer,
SVP internal audit and compliance, members of the
senor management team, and the external audiors
Addittonally, the chief executive and chairman
periodically attended commuttee meetings The
commuttee also met regularly in private with the
external auditors and the SVP nternal audi and
compliance

At every meeting, the committee considered reports
on the actuvines of the Group internal audit funcuon,
including the results of internal audits, risk reviews,
project assurance reviews and fraud and
whustleblowing reports The commuttee alse montaied
the company’s financat reporung, internal controls

and rsk management procedures, reviewed the
non-audit services provided by Pw(C and considered
any significant legal claims and regulatory 1ssues in the
context of their impact on financeal reporting

Specifically. the committee considered the following
matters dunng the course of the year

The 2012 annual report and accounts preliminary
announcement, finanaal statements and income
statement,

The Group accounting policies,

Compliance with the Code,

Form 20-F and related disclosures including the annual
Sarbanes-Oxley Act secuon 404 atzestauon of financal
reporung internal controls,

Receipt of the external auditors’ report on the Form
20-F and on the year end audit

Penguin Random House transacoon - accounting
maiters,

» Assessment of the effecuveness of the Group’s internal
control environment,

» Reappointment, remuneration and engagement letter
of the external auditors,

> Provision of non-audit services by PwC,

> Review of the intenm financiat statements and
announcement

s Review of key findings of over 100 Group nternal
audits and special projects,

» Annual reapproval of the Group internal audit
mandate,

y Comphiance with SEC and NYSE requirements
mduding Sarbanes-Oxiey Act,

» Reviews of the effectivenass of the audit comimittee,
the external auditors and the Group internal audit
functon,

y External auditor benchmarking,

> Review of the commuttee’s terms of reference,

» Annual meernal audie plan,

> Review of company rmsk maps and mitigating actions for
top rsks,

» Risk deep dives — anu-brbery and corruption, data
secunity and privacy, and treasury risk,

* Implementation of new health and safety strategy,
poticy and reporung of any sigrificant ncidents,

» Fraud, whistleblowing and code of conduct matters,

> Review of Group tax strategy, tax risks and tax
departmental structure, and

> Annual review of treasury policy and strategy

"

At its December meetng, the committee considered
the Group's business continuity plannimng, the [atest
internal report on which indicated that readiness to
withstand significant business interruption does not
currently meet Pearson’s own stringent standards

It was noted that workable plans generally existed but
that, in ight of the scale of business wansformanon
these plans had not been updared or tested within
the pastyear The committee reported this risk to the
board at its December meeting where it was noted
tnat management had i principle accepted the level
of risk on the basis that the reswructured organtsauon
wauld change the focus of business conunuity plans
which would consequently require updating

(’/:9

lrv February 2014, the commuttee alse considered
the 2013 annual report and accounts, including the
preliminary announcement, financral statements,
strategic report, directors’ report and corporate
governance complance statement
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Internal control and risk management

The directors confirm they have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk
management and internal controls, tcluding strategic,
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systems, it accordance with the Code
and Turnbull guidance These systerns have been
operatng throughout the year and to the date

of this report

During 2013, the sermi-annual reporting of top risks
was reviewed by execunve management as well as the
board and audit committee The principal risks are set
out on pages 41 to 45, together with mibgaung factors
During the year, the audit commuttee constdered the
oversight of specific selected principal risks, through a
series of risk ‘deep dives’ This is covered in more
detai in the separate report on the audit committee

The key elements and procedures that have been
establshed to provide effective risk management
and internal control systems are described below We
recognise that during 2014, we will need to align these
existing procedures to the new organisation structure.

Control environment

The board of directors has overall responsibihity for
Pearson’s system of internal control. which 15 designed
to manage, and where posstble miugate, the nsks facing
the Group, safeguard assets and prowide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against matenal financeal
misstatement or foss

Responstbility for monitoring financial management and
reporting and risk management and mtermal controt
systems has been delegated ta the audit commuttee

by the board At each meeting, the audit commitree
considers reports from management, Group internal
audit and the external auditors, with the aim of
reviewmng the effectiveness of the internal financial

and operating control environment of the Group

The dentfication and mitigation of significant business
risks 1s the responsibility of Group semor management
and Lthe management team for each business area —
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geograples
and enabling functions Each business area, including
the corporate centre, maintams internat controls and
procedures appropriate to its structure, busmness
environment and nsk assessment, whilst complying
with Group policies, standards and gwdelines

Financial management and reporting

There is 2 comprehensive strategic planning, budgeting
and forecasting system with an annual aperaung plan
approved by the board of directors Monthly financaal
informaton, including trading results, balance sheets,
cash flow statements, capital expenditures and
indebtedness, 1s reported against the corresponding
figures for the plan and prior years, with correcuve
acuon outhned by the appropriate sentor executive
Group senior management meet pentodically with
business area management to review thesr business
and financial performance aganst plan and forecast
Major risks relevant to each business area as well as
performance against the stated firancial and strategic
objecuves are reviewed n these meetings

We have an ongoing process to monitor the risks and
effectiveness of controls in relation to the financial
reporting and consolidanion process ncluding the
related informaton systems This includes up-to-date
Group financial policies, formal requirements for
finance functions, Group consohidation reviews and
analysis of matenal variances, Group finance technical
reviews, including the use of techmical speciahsts, and
review and sign-off by senior finance managers These
processes are subject to reviews based on Group
internal audit’s risk based audit programme The
Group finance function also monitors and assesscs
these processes, through a finance compliance
funcuon

These controls include those over evternal financial
reporting which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which is relevant to

our US listng One key controf in this area 1s the
disclosure committee, which reports directly to the
audit commuttee This commuttee is chaired by the SVP
mtermnal audit and comphance and members include the
chief financial officer, general counsel, SVF financial
communications, SVP company secretana as well as
semor members of financtal management The primary
responsibility of this comnuttee 1s to review Pearson’s
pubhc reporung and disclosures to ensure that
mformation provided to shareholders 1s complete,
accurate and comphant with all applicable egislation
and lisung regulations

The effecuveness of key imancial controls is subject
to management review and self-certfication and
independent evaluation by Group internal audic
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An enterprise risk management (ERM) framework 1s 1n
place to identify, evaluate and manage risks, including
key financial reporung nsks Business areas undertake
sermi-annual nsk reviews to identify new or potentially
under-managed risks Throughout the year, nsk
discussions are facilizated by the nsk assurance team
with Group and business area management to 1dentfy
the key risks the company faces in achieving its
objectives, to assess the probability and impact of
those nisks and to document the actions being taken to
manage those risks The Pearson Executive reviews the
output of these sessions, focusing on the key risks
facing the business Management has the responsibility
12 consider and execute appropriate action to mutgate
these risks whenever possible The results of these
reviews are reported to the audit commuttee and the
board in detall

Group internal audic

The Group mternal audit funcaion is responsible for
providing independent assurance to management and
the audit committee on the design and effecuveness of
internal controls to mitgate strateg:c, financial,
operauonal and compliance rnisks The nsk-based
annual internal audr plan i1s approved by the audir
commurtee Management acuon plans to unprove
wternal controls and to mitigate nisks, or both, are
agreed with each bustness area after each audit. Formal
{ollow-up procedures aftow Group internaf audit to
monitor business areas’ prograss in smiplementing s
recomnmendations and to resolve any control
deficiencies Group internal audit has a formal
collaboration process in place with the external
auditors to ensure efficient coverage of internal
controls Regular reports on the worl of Group
internal audit are provided to executive managemenit
and, via the audit committee, to the board

The SVP internal audit and complance oversees
comphance with our code of conduct and works with
semior fegal and human resources personnel to
investigate any reported inadents including ethical,
corruption and fraud alieganons The Pearson anu-
bribery and corruption programime provides the
framework to support our compliance with various
anu-bribery and corruption regutations such as the
UK Bribery Act 2010 and rhe US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the beard and s procedures are
reviewed regularly by the audit commuttee Major
transacuons are authonsed cutside the department
at the requisite level, and there 15 an appropriate
segregatton of duties Frequent reports are made
to the chief financial officer and regular reports are
prepared for the audit committee and the board

Insurance

Pearson purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this ts avallable cn a cost-effective basis
Pearson’s insurance substdiary, Spear Insurance
Company Limited, ts used to leverage the risk
retention capabilicy of the Group and to achieve a
balance between retaining insurance rgk and
transferning 1t to external insurers

Going concern

Having reviewed the Group's liquid resources and
borrowing facdities and the Group's 2014 and 2015
cash flow forecasts, the directors believe that the
Group has adequate resources to contnue as a going
concern For this reason, the financial statements have,
as usual, been prepared on that basis Information
regarding the Group's borrowing kabilites and financial
nsk management can be found in notes 18 and 19 on
pages |64 w0 172

Share capital

Derails of share issues are given In note 27 1o the
accounts on page |85 The company has a single class
of shares whichi ts divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each The ordinary shares are in registered form

As at 31 December 2013, 818,580,447 ordinary shares
were inssue At the AGM held on 26 Apnit 2013, the
cormpany was authorsed, subject to certan conditions,
to acquire up to 81,746,807 ordinary shares by market
purchase Shareholders wilt be ashed to renew this
authority at the AGM on 25 April 2014

information provided 1o the comparyy pursuant to

the Financal Conduct Authanty's Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR) s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company’s website
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As at 4 March 2014, being the latest pracucable date
before the publication of this report, the company had
been noufied under DTR5 of the following significant
voting rights 1 its shares

Percantage

Number of as at date of

vorng nghts neuficauon

Harbor Internatonal Fund 24,598,034  301%
Libyan Investment Authority 24,431,000 301%

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at |2 noon
on Friday, 25 April 2014 at 8 Northumberland Avenue,
London WC2N 5BY, s contamned n a cireular to
shareholders to be dated 24 March 2014

Registered auditors

In accordance with secuon 48% of the Act,

a resolution proposing the reappotntment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as auditors to
the compary will be proposed at the AGM, at a level
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors

Auditors’ independence

{n line with best practice, our relatonstup with PwC

is governed by our external auditors policy, which is
reviewed and approved annually by the audic
committee The peolicy establishes procedures to
ensure the auditors’ independence s not
compronused, as well as defining those non-audit
services that PwC may or may not provide to Pearson
These allowable services are in accordance with
relevant UK and US legislation

The audit cornmittee approves all audit and non-audit
services provided by PwC Certain categories

of aliowable non-audit services have been pre-
appraved by the audit committee subject to the
authorttes below

Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chief financial officer up to £/ 00,000 per project,
subject to a cumulative bt of £500,000 per annum
Acquisition or disposal transacuons and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, 1 ight of the need for confidentiahity
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess of
£100.000 must be specifically approved by the audit
commitiee,

~

e

~

e

» Tax compliance and related activites up 1o the greater

of £1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audnt
fee, and

For forward-loolung tax advisory services we use the
most appropriate adwiser, usually after a tender
process Where we decide to use our independent
auditors, authority, up to £100,000 per project subject
to a cumulatve imit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit commuittee to management

Services provided by PwC above these hmits and all
other allowable non-audit services, irrespective of
value, must be approved by the audit commuttee
VWhere appropriate, services will be tendered prior to
a deaision being made as to whether to award work to
the auditors

The audit comimittee receves regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2013, Pearson spent a considerable amount of
non-audit fees with PwC In the mamn, this expenditure
related to specific assurance and tax adwisory services
associated with the planned creation of the venture
between Penguin and Random House Pw( were
selected only after consideration that «t was most
practical and economical ro utiise PwC for these
services We anticiparte thar this level of non-audit fee
15 unusual, and that the balance of audit to non-audit
fee paid to PwC will returt to more normal levels in
2014 Other significant non-audit work performed by
PwC dunng 2013 was-

Tax complance services related to a routine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service:

Assurance services on a corporate bond issued tn
May 2013, and

Other assurance services which were mdividually less
than £100,000 per project

In each case, PwC was selected as they were best able

to provide the services we reguired at a reasonable fee
and within the terms of our external auditors policy

To assist i ensuring that independence and objectwity

15 maintaned for forward-looleng tax advisory and due
diligence work PwC assign a different partner from the

one leading the external audit

A full statement of the fees for audit and services s
provided 1n note 4 to the accounts on page 41
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Fam; balanced and understandable reporting of the company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements and the report on
directors’ remuneration comply wath the Act and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Arucle 4 of

the LAS Regulanon They are also responstble for
safeguarding the assets of the company and the Group
and frence for taking reasonable steps for the preventon
and detection of fraud and other irregulanies

Pearson 1s mundful of the Code's revised principle C | |
relating o fawr, balanced and understandable reporting
and has accordingly bult in addinonal steps to its
annual report tmetable to ensure that the directors
are given suffictent opportunity to review, constder and
comment on the report

The disclosure commuttee and the board each held an
addivonal meeung as part of theiwr review process, and
members of the disclosure committee also attended a
training session provided by PwC to better understand
the requirements In additton the audit commutiee

15 available to advise the board on certain aspects of
the report, to enable the directors to fulfil thew Each of the directors, whose names and functions are
responsibility in this regard listed on pages 55 and 56, confirm that to the best of
thewr knowledge

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and
mtegrity of the company’s website Legistation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination

of financial statements may differ from legislabon

in other junsdictions.

Statement of directors' responsibilities
The Group financial statements, which have been
prepared mn accordance with |[FRSs as adopted by the
European Unton, gve a true and fair view of the assets,
habilities, financial positton and profit of the Group and
comparty, and

The directors’ report contarned n the annual report

~r

The directors are responsible for preparnng the annual
report, the report on directors’ remuneration and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

W

Company law requires the directors to prepare

financial statements for each financial year Under that includes 2 fair review of the development and

law the directors have prepared the Group and parent performance of the business and the positon of the
company financal statements in accardance veith company and Group, together with a description
International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) of the prinaipal risks and uncertainues that they face
as adopted by the European Union Under company The directors also confirm that, for all directors
faw the directors must not approve the financal in office at the date of this report.

statements unless they are satsfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affaws of the company
and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that pernod

a} so far as the directors are aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the company’s
auditors are unaware, and

b} they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit informanon and to establish that
Select suitable accounung policies and then apply the company's auditors are aware of that mformation
them consistently

Make judgements and accounung estimates that
are reasonable and prudent,

State whether apphcable IFRSs as adopted by the
Furopean Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the

in prepanng these financial statements, the directors
are requred to

In addrtion, the directars as at the date of this report
consider that the anhual report, taken as a whole, s
fawr, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
company’s performance, business model and strategy

financral statements, and Sections one to four of this document contain the
Prepare the financial statements on a going concern informaton required 10 be disclosed in the directors’
basts, unless it 1s napproprate to presume that the report and were approved by the board on {0 March
company and/or the Group will continue in business 2014 and signed on s behalf by

The dwectors are responsible for keeping adequate =
accounting records that are sufficent to show and - ﬁ? }7; y
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with <~ —

reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial posiion Philip Hoffman ry
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Addmonal information for shareholders

Set out below 1s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearson 1s required to disclose
in 1ts directors’ report

Amendment to Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Articles of Association of the
company (the Articles) may be made m accordance
with the prowisions of the Compames Act 2006

(the Act) by way of a special resclution

Rights attaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
in the Artucles A shareholder whose name appears
on the company's register of members can choose
whether his/her shares are evidenced by share
certficates {1 @ in ceruficated formy) or held
electronically (i e unceruficated form) in CREST

{the electronic settlement system in the LK)

Subject to any restrictions below, shareholders may
atzend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder {or tus/her
representatve) who is present at a general meetng has
one vote on each resclution for every ordinary share
of which they are the registered holder A resolution
put to the vote at a general meeting is decided on

a show of hands unless before, or on the declaration
of the result of, a vote on a show of hands, a pall 1s
demanded A poll can be demanded by the chairman
of the meeung, or by at least three shareholders

(or their representatives) present in person and having
the right to vote, or by any shareholders {or their
representanves) present in person having at least 10%
of the total voung nghts of all shareholders, or by any
shareholders {or their representanves) presentn
person holding ordinary shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up of atleast 10% of the tozal sum
paid up on all ordmary shares At this year's AGM
voung will again be conducted on a poll consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare 2 final dividend by passing
an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the
board The board can pay wnterim dividends on any
class of shares of the amounts and on the dates and
for the periods they decide [n all cases the
distributable profits of the company must be sufficient
to jusufy the payment of the relevant dividend.

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders, offer any shareholder the night to
elect 1o receive new ordinary shares, which will be
credited as fully paid, nstead of thew cash dividend

Any dividend which has not been claimed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forfeited and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

If the company 1s wound up, the liqudator can, with
the sancuon of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, dvide among the shareholders all or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the diision shall be
carrted out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The liguidator can also, with
the same sancuon, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit
of the shareholders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the sharehclders o the
company in relation to any general meeting must be
delivered to the company (via its registrars), whether
n written or electronic form, not less than 48 hours
before the time apponted for holding the meeting

or adjcurned meenng at wiich the person named

in the appointment proposes to vote

Mo shareholder s, unless the board decides otherwise,
entitled to atend or vote ether personally or by proxy
at a general meeting or to exercise any other nght
conferred by being a sharehclder if he/she or any
person with an interest in shares has been sent 3 notice
under section 793 of the Act (which confers upon
public companies the power 1o reguire informaton
with respect to interests i thewr voung shares) and
he/she or any interested person fatled to supply the
company with the informanon requested within

14 days after delivery of that notice The board may
also decide, where the relevant shareholding comprises
at teast 0 25% of the nominail value of the issued shares
of that class. that na dividend \s payable in respect of
those default shares and that no transfer of any default
shares shall be registered

Pearson operates two employee benefit trusts to
hold shares, pending employees becoming entitled
o them under the company's employee share plans
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There were 9,282,365 shares so held as at

31 December 2013 Each trust has an independent
wrustee which has full discretion in refation to the
voting of such shares A dividend wawer operates
on the shares held in these trusts

Pearson also operates a nominee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharestore which holds shares
on behalf of employees There were 4,564,039 shares
so held as at 31 December 2013 The beneficial
owners of shares held through Sharestore are

invited to submuit voting instructions onhine at

www shareview co uk If no instructions are given

by the beneficial owner, the trustees holding these
shares will not exercise the voung rights

TFransfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
ceruficated share which is not fully paid, provided that
the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the
company from taking place on an open and proper
basis The board may also refuse to register a transfer
of a certficated share unless (1} the instrument of
transfer s lodged, duly stamped (if stampabte), at the
registered office of the company or any other place
decided by the board, and 15 accompanied by the
certficate for the share to which « relates and such
other evidence as the board may reasonably require
to show the nght of the transferor to make the
transfer; (i1} 1t 18 1n respect of only one class of
shares, and {m) it 1s n favour of not more than

four transferees

Transfers of uncertficated shares must be carmed out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an uncernficated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Varsation of rights

if ar any tme the capital of the company s divided nto
driferent classes of shares, the special nghts attaching
to any class may be varied or revoked etther

(1} with the written consent of the holders of at feast
75% in nominal value of the issued shares of the
relevant class, or

{11} with the sancuon of a special resolution passed at
a separate general meeung of the holders of the shares
of the relevant class

YWithout prejudice to any special nghts previously
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, any share may be 1ssued with such preferred,
deferred, or other special rights, or such restricuions,
whether in regard to dwvidend, voting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from ume to ume
by ordmary resolution determine

Appontment and replacement of directors

The Articles contain the following provisions in relation
to directers

Directors shall number no less than two Direcrors
may be appointed by the company by ordmary
resolution or by the board A director appointed by
the board shall hold office only untd the next AGM and
shall then be eligible for reappomntment, but shall not
be taken into account in determining the directors or
the number of directors who are to retire by rotation
at that meeting The board may from ume to ume
appoint one or mare directors to hold executive office
with the company for such penod {subject to the
provisions of the Act) and upon such terms as the
board may decide and may revoke or terminate any
appointment 50 Made

The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the
campany, at least one-third of the directors shall retire
by rotauon {or, f their number s not a mutuple of
three, the number nearest to one-third). The first
directors to retire by rotation shall be those who wish
to retire and not offer themselves for re-election Any
further directors so to retire shall be those of the other
directors subject 1o retirement by rotation who have
been longest in office since they were last re-elected
but, as between persons who became or were [ast
re-elected on the same day, those to retire shall
(uniess they otherwise agree among themselves)

be determined by lot ln addmon, any director who
would not otherwise be required 10 retre shall

reure by rotavon at the third AGM after they were
fast re-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, the
board has resclved that all directors shouid offer
themselves for re-elecuon annually, In accordance
with the Cede

The company may by ordinary resolutton remave any
directaor before the expiration of his/her term of office
In addition, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the prowision of
hts/her services 1o the company

e
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Powers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Articles, the Act and any
directions given by special resoluton the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercise all the powers of the company, including
power s relating to the issue and/or buying back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restrictions or restrictions imposed by shareholders
in general meeting)

Significant agreements

The following sigmificant agreements contain provisions
entithing the counterparties to exercse termination

or other nights n the event of a change of control

of the company

Under the $1,750,000,000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated November 2010 which matures

in Novemnber 2015 between, amongst others, the
company, HSBC Bank plc (as facihity agent) and the
banks and financial institutions named therein as
lenders (the Facihity), any such bank may, upon a
change of control of the company. require its
outstanding advances, together with accrued intereast
and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Faaility, and its commitments, to be cancelled, each
within 60 days of notification to the banks by the facility
agent For these purposes, a ‘change of conwrol’ occurs
f the company becomes a subsidiary of any other
company or one or more persons acting erther
indmidually or in concert, obtains control (as defined

n section 1124 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010}

of the company

Shares acquired through the company's employee
share plans rank pan passu with shares in issue and
have no special nghts For legal and pracucal reasons,
the rules of these plans set out the consequences of
a change of control of the company

77
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Report on directors’ remuneration

Dear shareholders

| am pleased 1o present our report on directors’
remuneratton for 2003

The report and related resolutons will be put forward
for your consideration and approval at the annual
general meeting on 25 Apri 2014

| should like to start by summarising the decisions on,
and the changes to, directors remuneration made
during the year and importandy the context in which
those changes occurred and decistons have been taken

Pearson has a unique set of advantages with which to
help meet the global demands for better educauon and
skills And, by being better able to meet some of the
biggest challenges in global education, we canbuild a
stronger, more profitable and faster growing company

To get there Pearson has fundamentally changed the way
the compary is organised From January thus year,
Pearson is being run as one globally-connected education
company, working to an operating model designed
specifically to support a global education strategy, and a
new executive team has been appointed to fead it The
new model ensures that the company will be organised
around a smaller number- of global products and
platforms, built around a single, world-class infrastructure
and common systems and processes

Overtme this will help Pearson to grow more quicidy,
as it will free up resources to Invest in digital
transformaton, and the new, more service oriented,
products that are vital to future growth It should enable
the company to increase the rate of mnovation and
invenuon by focusing on the research and development
of the next generauon of global products that will have
the data te demonstrate their posiove impact on
learmung outcomes

Pearson's executive remuneration arrangements have
been reviewed to align with and better support this
strategy Execuuve remuneration cecisions have been
made after careful consideratton of the needs of the
business, the wransformatton and reorgansation of the
business and the impact on roles and responsibilitias,
the pay markets i1 which Pearson operaies and
changes in pay elsewhere within the company

Thus strategy also informs our remuneration phifosophy
and policy and complements our more tradwonal
financial measures [n financial terms, Pearson’s goal s to
achieve sustanable growth on three key financal goals

(earnings, cash and return on invested capial) and reliable

cash returns to our nvestors through healthy and

~

r

~

~

~

S

growing dividends We believe those are, n concert,
good mdicators that we are bulding the long-term
value of Pearson So those measures {or others that
contnbute to them) form the basis of our annual
budgets and strategic plans and the basis for annual
and long-term incentives

The remuneration committee is continually sensitive
10 the current social and economic environment
surrounding executive compensation

We welcome the UK government’s acuion to improve
the clarity and transparency of remuneration
disclosure We welcome the intraduction of the new
executive remuneration reporting requirements
including 2 new bmding vote on policy

We hope that these changes will continue to
demonstrate the hnk between our remuneration
policy and pracuce and the company's strategy and
performance, as well as our commutment to
shareheolder engagement

Performance in 2013
In 201 3. wrading was tough in many of our biggest
and most established markets Overall, we saw

safes up 2% on 2012 at constant exchange rates

adjusted operating profit 6% lower before net
restructunng charges

our dividend raised 7% which was Pearson’s 22nd
straight year of increasing our dvidend above the
rate of inflation

Over the past ten years we have increased our
dividend at a comipound annual rate of 7%, returning
£2 9bn to shareholders Restructuring is on wrack to
deliver benefits m 2014 and beyond

Principles of remuneration polcy

The rermuneration commuttee beheves that the
purpose of its remuneration policy ts to suppoit the
comrpany's strategy and to help delver sustamed
performance and consistent long-term value creation
in the interests of all stakeholders

Qur reward policy 15 aligned with the interests of all
stalceholders wn providing

compenitive base salaries that reflect the market and
individual rolas and contnbution

a high proporuon of total remuneraucn bemg delivered
in varable forms that are directly inked to the annual
and long-term performance of the company

annual incentives that reward achievement of
surategic goals




» long-term incentives that drive long-term earmngs and
share price growth and encourage participants in these
plans to acquire and hold Pearson shares in line with
shareholders’ interests

-

the opportunuty for many people at Peaison to share

in the comparty's success through cash-based annual
incentives and bonuses and worldwide partcipauon n
share ownership plans, continuing practices first started
tn {998

We continue to keep our remuneration policy under
review in hght of the prevating economic conditions
and the impact of these on the company's objectives
and strategy

What we did in 2013
Looking back 1o some speaific aspects of policy and
pracuce in 2013

we reviewed and established an appropriate starung
remuneration package for john Fallon comprising base
salary, annual and long-term incentives, allowances
and benefits

~

we reviewed and amended the service agreements for
those executive directors including the CEO, who
continued to serve throughout 2013 The consequence
of this review was to remaove any enutlement to annual
incentive from the calculation of any compensation that
mught be payable on termination of employment by the
company without notice or cause

~

~

we undertook a regular perodic review of base salanes
for 2013 taking nto account general economic and
market conditions, the level of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remunerauon of
executives (n similar positions in comparable
companies and individual performance

L)

appointments were made to the new Pearson
Execunve

-

annual incentives paid to executives for 20{3 were
below target, as they were i 2012, reflecung
performance in a tough trading environment

~

there was a nil pay-out on long-term incentives based
on 2013 performance reflecting below threshold
performance agamst the company's three-year targets
for earmngs per share growth, return on invested
capital and relative totad shareholder return

What we've planned for 2014
Looking forward, for 2014

» we have undertaken a full review of the company’s
executive remuneraucn policy and esther confirmed or,
where necessary, established maximum opportunities
{or each of the different elements of remuneratton to

~r

»

~

~

-

~

~
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ensure that this policy fully supports the needs of the
business

we have aligned executve remunerauon policy with
the new global educanon strategy and ‘one Pearson’
organsation

we have listened to, and sought to address,
shareholders’ concerns and wishes regarding simphaity
and ahgnment of interests

we actively consulted with our major shareholders and
their representative bodies on the directors’
remuneration policy set out In this report

Asa consequence

while we have established maximum opportunities for
each of the different elements of remuneranion, in all
cases these represent maximum limits or caps to cover
all likely eventualies for the life of the policy and
should not be deemed to be a target or an enutterment
For example, for 2014 there will be no increase 1n
maximum annial ncentive opportumties and award
levels under the long-term incentive plan will be
consistent with those seen in recent years and below
the policy maximum

starung in 2014 and onwards, the size of the global
annual incentive poot and the funding of all annual
incentives across the company will be linked to overall
Pearson results

for performarnice-refated long-term incentive awards
for 2014 for members of the Pearson Executive, to
emphasise the importance of earmings growth and

to reward the delivery of the desired outcomes from
the strategic effort, the weighting of the performance
metrics within the Pearson long-term incentve plan waill
be changed from one-third on each measure to half on
earnings per share growth, one-third (no change} on
return on invested capital and one-sixth on relative
total shareholder return

for performance-related long-term incentive awards
for 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the
calcutation of refauve total shareholder return will be
moved to the period runiing up to the year end and
the length of the averaging pertod wilt be increased to
three months This 1s understood to be more in line
with mstwuonal investors’ preferences

to promote simphicity, the previous annual bonus share
matching plan has ceased to operate with the last
awards made n 201 3 in respect of annual bonus for
2012 We have not made any compensatory
adjustments to annual or long-term ncentive
opportuniies to taike this iNto account
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for performance-related long-term incentive awards
for members of the Pearson Executve, performance
will continue to be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will conunue to be released at that
pont However, starting with awards for 2014, there
will be a mandarory restnction on parucipants’ abdity
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
to meet personal tax liabilities) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants’ rights to the release of the
25% of the vested shares will be subject to continued
employmaent over the same period

we have affirmed our commitment to share ownership
and increased our mandatory shareholding guidelines
to 300% of salary for the CEO and 200% of salary for
other executive directors {compared to 200% and

| 25% respectively) We will continue to set
performance targets for our annual and long-term
Incentive arrangements that are appropriately
stretching

on mcentive pay-outs, we have clanfied cur
arrangements for adjusting for malus and strengthened
our provisions for clawback

We are confident that these changed remuneration
arrangements wifl better suit the needs of Pearson
going farward

Our pohicy and implementanon s summarised 0 more
deral in the remamnder of this report

| loolk forward to the angoing support of Pearson
shareholders on both the adwisory vote on the
executive rermuneration arrangements as they were
operated In the year as well as the forward-looiung
remuneration policy wiuch s the subject of the
binding vote

! am personally committed to an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders regarding executive remunerat:on and
would therefore welcome any observauons or
quesuons that mdnidual shareholders may wish to put
forward to me | can be contacted at

david arcutus@integral? com

Finally, | would lilke to thank my fellow members of the
comimitree and the people who have assisted us for
ther contribution over the past year

Yours sincet cly,

David Arculus
Chairman, remuneration comimitree

Ineroduction

The rest of this report on directors’ remunet ation
comprises

> the directors’ remuneratton policy report — a forward-
looking staterment on remuneration policy for 2014 and
bevond, and

» the annual remuneraton report — a report on
remuneration practice in 2013

Together, this report was compiled in accordance with
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medwum-sized Companies
and Groups {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 and was approved by the board of
directors on 10 March 2014

&

The committee beheves that the company has
comphed with the provisions regarding remuneration
matters contained within the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Where required under current regulations, the
following tables have been subject to audit.

» single rotal figure of remuneration and prior year
comparison (page 27)

> remuneration paid to the chawrman and non-executive
directors (page 98)

s retrement benefits (page 101)

» detalls of fong-term share interests mcluding awards
made in 2013 (pages [02 to [05)

> payments to former directors {pages {05 and [06)

» payments for loss of office {page [07) (@

» interests of directors and value of shareheldings
(page !08)
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Directors’ remuneration policy report

This report outhnes the company’s policy on directors’
remuneration that applies 1a executive directors, the
charman and non-executive directors Reference is also
made to the remuneration policy for other members of
the Pearson Executve (currently |3 in number} who are
not directors but who fall within the commuittee’s remit

The policy 1s ntended to last three years and will take
effect, subject to shareholder approval, at the AGM on
25 April 2014

The policy report is comprised of the following parts

future policy table
selection of performance measures and target setting

legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

remuneraton policy for other employees
pay and performance scenario analysis

other policies relating to directors such as recruitment,
service contracts and termination provisions, executive
directors' non-executive directorships

consrderations taken into account when determining
remuneration policy for directors
chairman’s and non-executive directors’ remunerauon

The committee considers that a successful
remuneration policy needs to be sufficiently flexible
to tale account of future changes in the company’s
business environment and (n remuneration practice
Owr starting point continues to be thart total
remuneration should reward both short- and long-
term results, delivenng competitive rewards for
target performance but outstanding rewards for
exceptional performance

Secuon 4 Governance 8l

The committee has avoided, where possible, including
general discretions in the policy table However,
excepuional or genunely unforeseen circumstances
may anse in the future and in those circumstances it
may be in shareholders’ interests {or Pearson to put i
place remuneratton arrangements that are outside the
terms of the policy set out in ths report If ths
happens, the committee will be permitred to
impfement remuneration arrangements that it
considers appropriate in the crcumstances In thase
circumnstances, Pearson would consult in advance with
major shareholders before it does so and would
explain the exercise of this discretion in the following
year's directors’ remuneration report.

Given the long-term nature of some of Pearson's
remuneration structures — including obiigations under
service contracts, incendive plans and penston
arrangemenits - a number of pre-existing obligatons
will remain at the time that the new pohcy becomes
effective, including obligattons that are ‘grandfathered'
by virtue of being in force at 27 june 2012 Pearson's
pelicy is to honour all pre-existing obligations,
commitments or other entitlements that were entered
into before the effectve date of this pohcy
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Future policy table for executive directors

Total remuneration is made up of fixed and performance-linked elements, with each element supporting different
strategic objectives Total remuneration s normally reviewed annually and benchmarked against total
remuneration for similar positions in comparable compames

Base salary

PURPQOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY
> Helps to recruit, reward and retain

» Reflects competitive market level, role, skuils,
experience and indvidual contribution

OPERATION

Base salanes are set to provide the appropriate rate
of remuneration for the job, taking into account
relevant recruitment markets, business sectors and
geographic regions Base salaries may be setn
sterling or the local currency of the country m which
the director is based.

Base salaries are normally reviewed annually for the
following year taking into account general economic
and market conditions, the level of increases made
across the company as a whaole, parucular
circumstances such as changes in role, responsibilities
or orgamsatton, the remuneration and {evel of
mcreases for executves in simifar positrons m
comparable companies; and individual performance

For benchmariang purposes, we review
remuneration by reference to different comparator
groups We look at survey data from: FTSE 100
companies with significant international exposure,
excluding financal services, the FTSE 20-50,
excluding financial services, a broad media industry
group of US companites, select UK human capital-
mntensive businesses, and UK and US so-called media
convergence companies with a focus on media,
information services and technology These
companies are of a range of sizes relative to Pearson,
but the method our independent advisers Towers
Watson, use to make comparisofs on remuneration

takes this variation i size into account We also fook
at publicly disclosed and proxy data for global media
convergence comparators with a focus on media and
technology We use these companies because they
reprresent the wider execuuve talent pool from
which we might expect to recruit externally and the
pay market to which we might be vulnerable if our
remuneration was not compeuuve

Base salaries are paid in cash vta the regular employee
payroll (monthly n the UK and every two weeks in
the US) and are subsect to all necessary withholdings

Mo malus or clawback provisions apply to base
salary

QPPORTURITY

Base salary increases for execuuve directors will
not ordinary exceed {0% per annum and will take
account of the base salary increases elsewhere
within the company

The commurtee will retain the discretion to deliver
base salary increases in excess of 10% per annum
in specific individual situauens including internal
promouons and matenal changes to the business
ar the role

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

MNone, although performance of both the company
and the mdividual are taken into account when
determiming an appropriate level of base salary
increase each year

PERFORMANCE PERIOD

Necne




2

Allowances and benefits

PURPOSE AND LIMNK TO STRATEGY

)y Help to recruit and retain

» Reflect local competitive market
OPERATION

Allowances and benefits comprise cash altowances and
non-cash benefits and mter alia include travel-related
benefits {comprising company car, car allowance and
private use of a driver), health-related benefits
{comprising health care, health assessment and gym
subsidy), and risk benefits (comprising addiional lfe
cover and long-term disabiity insurance that are not
covered by the company’'s retirement plans)
Allowances may also include, where appropriate,
location and market premium and housing allowance
although no conunuing director s in receipt of such
allowances Allowances and benefits received in 2013
are set out in the annual remuneration report

Directors are also covered by the company's
directors’ and officers’ habihity insurance and an
indemnity in respect of certain third-party habilities

Other benefits may be offered on the same terms
as to other employees

Allowances and benefits do not form part of
pensionable earmings

No malus or clawback provisions apply to
allowances and benefits

Retirement benefits

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY

» Help to recruit and retain
» Recognise tong-term commutment to the company

QOPERATION

New employees in the UK are eligible to join the
Money Purchase 2003 secuon of the Pearson Group
Pension Plan New employees in the US are eligible
to jomn the 401{k) plan

Under the Money Purchase 2003 secuon of the
Pearson Group Pension Plan in the UK, naormal
reurement age 1s 62, but, subject to company
consent, retirement 1s currently possible from age 55
or earlier n the event of ill-health During service, the
company and the employee make contributions into
a pension fund Account balances are used to provide
benefits at retrement Pensions for amember's
spouse, dependent children and/or nominated
financial dependants are payable on death
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OPFORTUNITY

The proviston and level of cash alowances and non-
cash benefits are compeutive and appropriate in the
context of the local market

The total value of cash allowances and non-cash
benefits for executive directors will not ordinarily
exceed 15% of base salary in any year The
committee will retain the discretion to deliver a total
value of benefits in excess of 15% of base salary in
specific indwidual situations including changes in
individual crcumstances such as health status,
changes in the role such as relocation, increases in
the cost of current benefits that are outside
company controf, and changes in benefits’ providers

Executive directors are also eligible to parucipate in
savings-related share acquisition programmes in the
UK, US and rest of world, which are not subject to
any performance conditons, on the same terms as
other employees

PERFOARMANCE COMNDITIONS
None
PERFOAMANCE PERIOD

None

Under the 401(k) pian in the US, which is a defined
contribution plan, account batances will be used to
provide benefits at reurement In the event of death
before reurement, the account balances will be used
to provide benefits for designated beneficiaries

Depending on when they joined the company,
directors may participate in the Final Pay section of
the Pearson Group Pension Plan in the UK or the
defined benefit Pearson Inc. Pension Plan m the US,
both of which are closed to new members

Under the Final Pay section of the Pearson Group
Pension Plan in the UK, normal reurement age s 62,
but, subject to company consent, retiremant s
currenty possible from age 55 or earlier in the event
of lil-health Duiing service, the employee malkes a
contribution of 5% of pensionable salary and the
penston fund builds up based on final penstonable
salary and penstonable service The accrued pension
s reduced on retirement prior to age 60 Pensions for
2 member’s spouse, dependent children and/or
nomunated financial dependants are payable on death

T
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Retirement benefits continued

in the US, the defined benefit Pearson Inc Pension
Plan provides a lump sum benefit that s convertible
to an annuity on retrement The lump sum benefit
accrued at an age dependent percentage of capped
compensatton until 31 December 2001 when further
benefit accruals ceased for most employees

Employees who sausfied criteria of age and service
as of 30 November 1998 continue to earn benefits
under an alternative formuta that provides for | 5%
of final average earnings, adjusted for US Social
Securtty The benefit paid to these employees s the
maximum of the lump sum benefit converted to an
annuity and the benefit earned under the alternative
final average earnings formula

Executive directors and other executives across the
company may be entitled to additional penston
benefits to take account of the cap on the amount of
benefits that can be provided from the all-employee
pension arrangements in the US and the UK

Members of the Pearson Group Pensiaon Plan who
joined after May 1989 are subject to an upper hmit
of earnings that can be used far pension purposes,
known as the earnings cap Thus hiur, £108,600 as at
& April 2006 was abolished by the Finance Act 2004
However the Pearson Group Pension Plan has
retamned its own ‘cap’, which will Increase annually in
hne with the UK Government's Index of Retail Prices
(Al ltems} The cap was £137,400 as at 6 April 2012
As a result of the UK Government's A-Day changes
effecuve from April 2006, UK executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Group Pension
Plan who are, or become, affected by the lifetime
allowance or new hires who opt out of membership
of the Plan may be provided with a cash supplement
of normally up to 26% of salary as an alternative to
further accrual of pension benefits

MNo malus or clawback prowisions apply to
reurement benefits

Nove Efiecuve from & Apnl 2011 the wnual allowance (¢ the mawimum
smounit of oematnn s piharbenefits non taxrehel rach ear) reauzed
rwnm £259 090 1o £50 000 and will further teduce 1o 40 000 from & Apaat
3014 FHect 20 6 Apri 2012 e bfernme allovances (e the marmum amoong
of pension and/or lump sum thit can benpfir from tax refiwl) redured from
i Benro £0 5 and wall further reduce o £1 25m from 6 Apnl 2014

OPPORTURITY

In the UK, company contributions for eligible
employees to the Money Purchase 2003 secuon of
the Pearson Group Pension Plan amount up to 16%
of pensionable salary {double the amount of the
employee contribution, whtch 1s hmited according
to certain age bands)

In the US, company contributions to the 401{k) plan
amount to [00% of the first 3% of eligible
compensatton contributed by the employee and 50%
of the next 3%, plus a basic annual company
contribution of | 25% of eligible compensation
Pearson ing Pension Plan parucipants who were at
least age 40 at 31 December 2001 can recewve an
additional O 5% to | 5% of pay

John Fallon is a member of the Final Pay section of
the Pearson Group Penston Plan His pension accrual
rate is 1/30th of pensionable salary per annum,
restricted to the plan earmings cap Untul April 2004,
the company also contributed to a Funded
Unapproved Reurement Benefits Scheme (FURBS)
on his behalf Since Aprit 2006 he has received a
taxable and non-pensionabtle cash supplement in
replacement of the FURBS

Robin Freestone 1s 2 member of the Money Purchase
2003 secuon of the Pearson Group Pension Plan
Company contributions are 16% of pensionable
salary per annum, restricted to the plan earnings

cap Untit April 2006, the company also contributed
to a Funded Unapproved Retrement Benefits
Scheme {FURRBS) on lus behalf Since April 2006,

he has received a taxable and non-pensionable

cash supplement in replacement of the FURBS

The company has no ongoing financiaf habilities in
respect of FURBS

Mo contnuing director is currently a member of
the defined benefit Pearson inc Pension Plan

PERFOPHMANCE CONDITIONS
None
PERFORMANCE PERIOD

None

-
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Annual incentives

PUPPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY

» Mouvate the achtevement of annual strategic goals
and personal objectives

> Provide a focus on key financial metrics

» Reward indwvidual contribution to the success of
the company

OQPERATION

Annual incentve 1s delivered entirely in cash and
does not form part of pensionable earnings

Measures and performance targets are set by the
commuttee at the start of the year with payment
made after year end following the committee’s
assessment of performance relatve to targets

The plans are designed to incentivise and reward
underlying performance and actual results are
adjusted for the effect of foreign exchange and for
portfolio changes {acquisittons and disposais} and
other factors that the commuttee considers relevant
in the performance year

Annual incentive plans are discreuonary The
caommittee reserves the nght to adjust payments
up or down before they are made if it believes
exceptional factors warrant doing se The
comimttee may in exceptional arcumstances make
a special award where 1t is satisfied that the normal
operation of the annual incentive does not provide
an appropriate incentive or reward to parucipants

The committee also reserves the right as a form

of malus to adjust payments before they are made
if specral arcumstances exist that warrant this, such
as financial misstatement, individual misconduct

or reputational damage to the company

The committee also reserves, in the same special
carcumstances a night to reclaim or claw back
payments or awards that have already been made.

OPPFORTUMNITY
Annual incentives will not exceed 200% of base salary

Far the chief executive, the indsnduzl maximum
incentive opportunity that will apply for 201415 [80%
of base salary (which is the same as apphed for 2013)

For other executive directors and other members
of the Pearson Execunve individual maximum
incentive opportunities vary by individual but will be
no more than 170% of base salary
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For the chief executive, other executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Executive, there
15 normally no pay-out for performance at threshold

No adjustment has been made to annual incentive
opportumtes for the cessation of the annual bonus
share matching plan under which the last conditional
awards were made tn 2013 in respect of 2042 annual
incentive

PERFOFPMANCE CONDITIONS

The commuttee has the discretion Lo select the
performance measures, targets and relative
weightings from year ta year to ensure continuing
ahgriment with strategy and to ensure targets are
sufficiently stretching

The commuttee establishes a threshold below which
no pay-out is achieved and a maximum at or above
which the annual mcentive pays out in full

For 2014 and onwards, the fundimg of annual
incenuves will normally be related to the
perforrmance agamnst targets for Pearson’s adjusted
earnings per share (or operating prafit), sales, and
operating cash flow For 2014, the weightings will be
60% on adjusted earnings per share, 20% on sales
and 20% on operating cash flow

Individual annual incentive pay-outs will also take
into account individual performance agatnst personal
objectives Personal objectives are agreed wirh the
chuef executive (or in the case of the chief executive,
the chairman} and may be funcuonal, operational,
strategic and non-financial and mclude inter alia
objecuives relating to environmental, social and
governance ssues.

Details of performance measures, wetghtings and
targets will be disclosed in the annual remuneraton
report for the relevant financial year if and to the
extent that the committee deems them to be no
longer commeraally sensitive

FERFOAMANLCE PERIQD

One year
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Long-term incentives

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY
» Help to recrun, reward and retain

> Drive {ong-term earnings, share price growth and
value creation

y Ahgn the interests of executives and shareholders

» Encourage long-term shareholding and
commitment to the company

» Link management's long-term reward and wealth
to carporate performance in a flexible way

CGPERATION

Awards of restricted shares are made on an
annual basis

Awards of restricted shares for executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Executive vest
on a shiding scale based on performarnce against
stretching corporate performance targets measured
at the end of the three-year performance pericd

For performance-related awards for members of
the Pearson Executive performance will conunue
to be tested over three years and 75% of the vested
shares wilf continue to be released at that pomnt
However, starting with awards made 11 2014, there
will be a mandatory restricion on participants’
ability to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares
(other than to meet personal tax habiivies} for

a further two years. Furthermore, parucipants’
nights to the release of the 25% of the vested shares
will be subject to continued employment over the
same period

Where shares vest, participants also recewve
additional shares represenung the gross value of
dividends that would have been paid on these shares
during the performance pencd and reinvested

The plan permuts awards of restricted shares to be
made that are not subject to performance conditions
to satsfy reward and retention objectives However,
other than in exceptional crcumstances on
recruitment, 1t1s the company’'s normal policy not to
award restricted shares 1o executive directors and
other members of the Pearson Executive without
performance conditions

The long-term incenuve plan alsc provides for the
grant of stock options Whilstitis not the
commuttee’s Intention to grant stock options in 2014
or the foreseeable future the committee believes
that it should retain the fiexibility of granung stock
opttons in addition to, or instead of, restricted stock
awards in the right circumstances Any decision by
the committee to grant stock options in the future

would take account of best practice prevaidling at
the ume The commuiitee would consult with
shareholders before granung stock options 1o
executive directors

An opuion granted under the stock option element
may not generally be exercsed until a tme specified
when the option1s granted The date on which
opuons would become exerasable would be set by
the committee Options may not be exerased later
than the tenth anniversary of grant Any options
granted to executive directors would vest only if
stretching performance condittons are achieved over
a three-year msumum vesung period Any options
would vest on a shding scale based on performance
over the periad There will be no re-testing

Pearson's reported financial results for the relevant
periods are used ro measure performance

The committee reserves the right to adjust pay-outs
up or down before they are released taking into
account exceptional factors that distort underlying
business performance or if it believes exceptional
factors warrant domng so In making such
adjustments, the committee is guided by the
principle of ahgning shareholder and management
Inrerests

The committee also reserves the right as a form

of malus to adjust pay-outs before they are released
if excepuonat arcumstances exist that warrant this,
such as financial misstatement, individual misconduct
or reputational damage to the company

The commitiee also reserves, i the same special
crcumstances, a right to reclaim or claw back pay-
outs or awards that have already been released

OPPORIUMITY

We set the level of individual awards by taking into
account

» the face value of individual awards at the ume of grant,
assurming that performance targets are met in fufl,

» market practice for comparable companies and
market assessments of total remuneration from
our independent adwisers,

» individuzl roles and responsibilities, and
» company and individual performance

Restricted share awards to executive directors may
normally be made up to a maximum face value of
400% of base salary Awards in excess of 400%

of base salary may be made 1n excepuonal
arcumstances, for examptle, for retention purposes
or to reflect particufar business situavons




The reasons for any such exceptional awards will be
disclosed i the annual report for the year in which
they are made

The value of awards at pay-out s subject to the
extent to which perfarmance and any other
conditions are met and the share price at the time
of vesting The proporuon of the award that vests
at threshold level of performance may vary by
performance condition

Whilst it 15 not the committee’s intention to grant
stock options in 2014 or the foreseeabie future the
raximum value of stock option awards would be
the equivalent expected value of the maximum
restricted share awards set out above, based onan
independent assessment of their net present value
taking into account all the conditions

For 2014, we will set the level of individual restricted
share awards consistent with those seen in recent
years and within the policy maximum aking into
account the factors set out above

No adjustment has been made to long-term
incentive opportunities for the cessation of the
annual bonus share matching plan under which the
last condional awards were made in 2013 in respect
of 2012 annuzl incentive

PERFORMAMCE CONDITIONS

The committee will determine the performance
measur es, weightings and targets governing an
award of restricted shares prior to grant to ensure
continuing afignment with strategy and to ensure
that targets are sufficiently stretching

The commuttee establishes a threshold below which
no pay-out is achreved and a maxtmum at or above
which the award pays outin full

For 2014 and onwards, awards will nrormally be
stbject to the achievement of targets for growth in
earmings per share, retuin on wnvested capial and
relative total shareholder return For 2014, 10
emphasise the importance of earmings growth and to
reward the delvery of the desired outcomes from
the strategic effort, the weighting of the performance
metrtes within the Pearson long-term incenuve plan
will be changed from one-third on each measure to
half on earnings per share growth one-third on
return on invested capital (no change) and one-sixth
on relative toral shareholder return
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We will set targets for the 2014 awards that are
consistent with the company’s strategic objecuives
over the period to 2016 Full details of the
performance measures, weightings and targets for
2014 and the proporuon of the award payable at
threshold will be set out in the annual remunerauon
report for 2014

As with restricted shares, the committee will
determine the performance conditions that apply
to any awards of stock options prior to grant

The intenuon would be that these conditions would
be the same as apply to restricted shares

Total shareholder return (TSR] ts the return to
shareholders from any growth in Pearson’s share
price and reinvested dividends over the performance
period Forlong-termincentive awards, TSR s
measured relative to the constituents of the FTSE
Wortd Media Index over a three-year period
Companies that drop out of the index are normally
excluded 1 e only compares in the index for the
entire period are counted Share price is averaged
over three months at the start and end of the
performance period Dividends are treated as
reinvested on the ex-dividend date, in line with the
Datastream methodology The vestng of shares
based on relative TSR s subject to the committee
satisfying itself that the recorded TSR is a genuine
reflection of the underlying financial performance
of the business

Return on mvested capital (ROIC) 1s adyusted
operating profit less cash tax expressed as a
percentage of gross nvested capital (net operaung
assets plus gross goodwil)

Adjusted earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by
dividing the adjusted earrings attributable to equity
shareholders of the company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in 1ssve during the
year, excluding any ordinary shares purchased by the
company and held n trust (see note 8 of the financial
statements for a detailed description of adjusted
earnings per share) EPS growth s calcutated using
the point-to-pointmethod This method compares
the adjusted EPS i the company's accounts for the
financial year ended prior to the grant date with the
adjusted EPS for the financal year ending three years
later and calcufates the implicit compound annual
growth rate over the period

PERFORMANCE PERIOD

Three years
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Selection of performance measures and target setting

In the selecuon and wesghung of performance measures
for the annual and long-term incentive awards the
committee takes into account Pearson’s strategic
objectives 2nd short- and long-term business priarities

In the case of annual ncentives the comemttee chose
sales, earnungs per share or operaung profit, and
operating cash flow as being relevant measures of
Pearson's performance agamst its short-term strategic
objectives and business prioriues

In the case of long-term incentives, the comnuttee
chose earnings per share growth in order to reward
the delivery of the desired outcomes from the
strategic effort and because strong bottom-hne
growth is imperative if we are tc improve our total
shareholder return and our return an invested captal
We chose return on invested capital because over the
past few years, the transformanon of Pearson has
significantly increased the caprtal nvested in the
business (mostly in the farm of goodwill associated
with acquisittons) and required substantial cash
tvestment to integrate those acquisittons We chose
total shareholder return relative to the constituents
of the FTSE World Media Index because, in line with
many of our shareholders, we felt that part of
executive directors’ rewards should be hnked to
performance relative to the company’s peers

The performance ranges chosen set a careful balance
hetween upside opportunity and downside nisk and
are normally based on targets in accordance with the
company's operating and strategic plans

Legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

Up to and including 2G13 in respect of annual incentives
for 2012, awards were made under the annual bonus
share matching plan This plan encouraged executive
directors and other semior managers to acquire and
hold Pearson shares and aligned the interests of
executives and shareholders. Senior mmanagers across
the company were invited to nvest up to 50% of therr
after-tax annual Incentive in Pearson shares purchased
n the market and hold these shares for three years,

in retun for the oppartunity to earn additional free
matching shares and dividend shares. depending on
performance agamnst a real growth it earnings per
share performance condimon VWhere matching shares
vest, participants also receive addinional shares
representing the gross value of dividends that would
have been paid or the matching shares during the
performance period and reinvested The maximum
matcheng award is equai to the number of shares that

could have been acquired with the amount of pre-tax
annual bonus mvested in Pearson shares (i e one
matching share for every one mvested share, grossed
up for tax}

Remuneration policy for other employees

The appt oach to remuneration for the broader
employee population varies by level and geography,
but is broadly consistent with that of directors

y The approach to setung base salary increases
elsewhere in the company takes into account
economic factors, compeutive market rates, roles,
skills, experience and mdividual performance

Altowances and benefits for employees reflect the
tocaf labour market in which they are based

~

As part of thewr overall revirernent arrangements,
executive directors participate it the same
underlying pension arrangements that have been
set up for Pearson empioyees it the US and the UK

~

Many employees participate i some form of cash-
based annual incentive, bonus, profit-share or sales
commission plan Annual incentive plans for the
Pearson Executive form the basis of the annual
incentive plans below the level of the principal
operatung compames and establish performance
measures and standards and set the ceiling for
indivigual incentive opporuities

Approximately 5% of the company's employees
below the Pearson Executive — selected on the basis
of therr role, performance and potential — currently
hold time-vesung shares under the long-term
incentive plan

~

~

All employees (incduding executive directors) are
alsc ehgible to participate i savings-related share
acquisition programmes it the UK, US and the
rest of the world, which are not subject to any
performance condiuons

~

Pay and performance scenario analysis

Consisient with its pohcy. the commuttee places
considerable emphasis on the performance-linked
elements 1 ¢ annual and long-term incenuves

The chart overleaf shows what each director
could expect to receive in 2014 under different
performance scenartos, based on the following
definmons of performance

D

‘u




=

ELEHMENTS OF REMUNERATION
AND ASSUMPTIONS

PERFORMANCE
SCENARIO
2014 base salary, alowances
bapefits and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2013, maxsmum individual
annual incentive as per pohcy
maximum value of 2013 long term
incenuve award

Target 2014 base salary allowances
benefits, and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2013, target individual annual
incenuve as per policy, target value
of 2013 long-tet m incentive award
(Towers Wartson's independent
assessment of the expected value of
the award 1 e the net present value
taking into account all the conditrons)

Maximum

Mintmum 2014 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and retrement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
asn 2013 no annual or long-

term Incentuves

Note The value of long tarm mcentives does not take nto actount divedend
awai ds that 1re payable on the relcase of restricied shares nor any changes
inshare pice

On this bass, the relative weighiuing of fixed and
performance-related remuneration and the absolute
size of the remunerauan packages for the chief
executive and the chuef financial officer are as follows

Graph removed

We will continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-hnked remunerauon on an annual basis.
consistent with our overall policy
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Recruitment

The committee expects any new executive directors
to be engaged on terms that are consistent with the
general remuneraton principles outhned in this policy
In particular, the company's policy is that regular
variable remuneration would normally be awarded
within the same parameters and subject to the same
performance conditions as for the current executive
directors outhned in the policy, save that the
committee may provide that in exceptional
arcumstances an annual or long-term incentive award
may be subject to a requirement of continued service
over a spectfied period or some other speafied
requirement, rather than a corporate performance
conditron The terms of any such exceptional award
wiil be disclosed in the relevant subsequent annual
remuneraton report

The committee recognises that 1t cannot always
predict accurately the circumstances in which any
new directors may be recruited The committee may
determine that it s 1n the interests of the company
and shareholders to secure the services of a
parucular individual which may require the commitiee
to take account of the terms of that individual’s existing
employment and/or their personal circumstances.
Examples of circumstances tn which the committee
expects it might need to do this are

» where an exisung employee of the company is
promoted to the board, in which case the company
will honour all existing contractual commitments
including any outstanding share awards, benefit and
pension entitlements,

» where an individual 1s refocatung in order to take up
the role in which case the company may provide
certain benefits such as reasonable relocation
expenses accommodation for a short period
following appommtment and assistance with visa
applications or other iImmigration issues and ongoing
arrangements such as tax equalisatton, annual flights
home, and housing allowance,

~

where an mndvidual would be forferung valuable
vaniable remuneraton in order to jomn the cornpany,
i which case the committee may award approptiate
compensation The committee would require
reasonable evidence of the nature and value of any
forfeited award and would, to the extent practicable,
ensure any compensation was provided on a like-
for-hie basis and was no more valuable than the
forfeited award

In hght of the varous legacy pension arrangements
enjoyed by the incumbent executive directors, in
determining the pension arrangements for any new
recruit, the committee expects to offer a defined
contribution arrangement with company coniributions
not exceeding those set out on page 84 but would
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Report on diectors' remuneration continued

have regard to the recruit’s exusting arrangements, the
market norms in the home country and the existing
pension vehicles avadable within the company

In making any deasicn on any aspect of the
remuneration package for a new recrus, the committee
would balance shareholder expectations, current best
practice and the requirernents of any new recrure and
would strive not to pay more than is necessary to
achieve the recruitment The committee would give full
details of the terms of the package of any new recruitin
the next annual remunerauon report

Pearson expects any new chairman or non-exacutive
director to be engaged on terms that are consistent with
the general remuneration prinaiples outhned in the
relevant sections of this policy However, in the case of
the chairman, the committee may consider it
appropnate to offer a remuneraton package that differs
from that of the existng incumbent if that is necessary to
attract the most capable candidate or to reflect the
ndividual’s expected duties

Service contracts and terminacion provisions

In accordance with long established policy. all
executive directors have service agreements under
which, other than by termmnation in accordance with
the termns of these agreements, employment
conunues indefinitely

There are no specsal provistons for notice or
compensation in the event of a change of control
of Pearson

It1s the company’s palicy that the company may
terminate the chairman'’s and executive directors’ service
agreements by giving no more than 12 months’ nouce

As an alternative, for executive directors the company
may at its discretion pay i lteu of that notice
Payment-in-lieu of notice may be made in equal
monthly instalments from the date of terminauon to
the end of any unexpired nouce penod In the case of
the CEQ. payment-in-leu of notice i instalments may
also be subject to mitgation and reduced taking nto
account earnings from alternative employment

For executive directors, pay in lieu of notice comprises
{00% of the annual salary at the date of termination
and the annual cost to the company of providing
pension and all other benefits For the chairman.

pay in heu of notice comprises 100% of the annual

fees at the date of terminatien in hrmited
circumstances, in addition to making a full payment

it heu of notice, the company may permit an executive
director to stay emplayed after the announcement of
tus or her departure for a kmuted perod to ensure an
effective hand-over and/ar allow tme for a successor
to be appointed

The company may, depending on the circumstances
of the terminattion determine that it will not pay the
director in lieu of nouce and may instead terminate
a director’s contract in breach and make a damages
payment, talung mto account as appropriate the
director's abifity to mistigate his or her loss.

On cessatton of employment, save as otherwise
provided for under the rules of Pearson's discretionary
share plans, executive directors’ entitlements to any
unvested awards lapse automaucally In the case of injury.
disability, dl-health or redundancy (as determined by
the committee), where a parucipant’s employing
company ceases to be part of Pearson, or any other
reason If the committee so decides in 11s absolute
discrenion

> awards that are subject to performance conditions
will stay in force as if the particpant had not ceased
employment and shall vest on the oniginal
vesting date,

» awards that are not subjecs to a performance
condition waill be released as soon as practicable
following cessation of employment,

» the number of shares that are released shall be
prorated for the period of the partictpant’s service in
the restricted period (although the committee may
in its absolute discretion waive or vary the prorating)

in determining whether and how to exercise its
discretion under Pearson’s discretionary share plans
the commuttee will have regard to all relevant
arcumstances disunguishing between different types
of leaver the circumstances at the time the award was
originally made, the director’s performance and the
circumnstances n which the director left employment

On cessauon of employment, executive directors,
baving been noufied of parucipaton n an annual
ncentive plan for the relevant financial year, may, at
the comimittee’s discretion, retan entitlement to a
pro rata annual incentive for their period of service In
the finanaal year prior to thewr leaving date Such pay-
out will normally be calculated i good faith on the
same terms and paid at the same ume as for
Conuinuing executive directors

Ehigibility for alfowances and benefits including
retrement benefits normally ceases on reurement
of on the termnation of employment {for any
other reason

Detalls of each ndmwvtdual’s service agreement are
outhned in the table overleaf Employment agreements
for other employees are determined according to
iocal labour law and market pracuce




=)

individual service agreements

DATE OF AGREEMENT

29 July 2005

POSITION

Chairman

HOTICE PERICDS

{2 months from
the director,

Section 4 Governance 91

COMPENSATION ON TERMINATION
CQF EMPLOYMENT BY THL COMPANY
WITHOUT HOTICE OR CAUSF

Payment-in-iieu of nouce of 1007 of
annual fees at the date of termunatron

{2 months from
the company

31 December 2012
{John Fallon)

17 December 2012
(Robin Freestone)

Execuuve directors

Six months from
the director

12 months from
the company

Payment-in-lieu of notce of 100%
of annual salary at the date of
termination and the annuat cost
of pension and all other benefits

MNote Under pig-n lieu of notice the 1noual costof pensinn for exc cutve directors s noemally calculated 1 the sum where spplicable, of 1 imount equal tor
the company 5 cost of providing the e xecutive s pensionunden the pension plan based on the Futuee Service Company Contributon Rute for the relevint secuon
of the pe 5100 plan as state d i the most recent actuarsdl valuation (15 a1 the date of wormnavon of employment) as nvied by the earmtigs oy, ard any cash

o wance in lien of pension or to rake weount of fact dnt penswon braefits wd hfe sssurance cover are resnicied by the earnings cap

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

The commuttee’s policy 15 that executive directors
may, by agreement with the board, serve as non-
executives of other companies and retain any fees
payable for their services

Employment conditions

In accordance with the committee's charter and terms
of reference, the commuttee’s remit does notinclude
remuneration matters below that of the chief
executive, the other executive directors and other
members of the Pearson Executive However, before
the remuneration packages for the Pearson Executive
are set for the year ahead, the committee considers

a report from the chief executive and chief human
resources officer on general pay trends in the market
and the level of pay increases across the company

as awhole This helps to ensure that executive
remuneration packages are reviewed in the context
of the wider organisation

The company consults with various employee
representative bodies - including trade unions and
works councils in some jurtsdictions — about the
company’s strategy competittveness and performance
of the business and other matters affecting employees
The company also conducts an employee engagement
survey to find out how people feel about workng for
Pearson, what they think about the work they do,

the cpportunities they have and the rewards they get
{including a section on pay and benefits) The company
uses all of this feedback to inform decisions on people-
related actuvities, resources and investment, local
management action plans and wider business unit and
orgarusational strategies

it 1s the company's iIntention to continue to engage
with employees and employee representatives in this
way i the future

The commuitea has not consulted directly with
employees on the satuing of the directors’
remuneration pohcy

Shareholder views

The company consults regutarty with shareholders
on all matiers affecung its strategy and business
operations As part of that process, we also engage
with shareholders on matters relating to executive
remuneration

The committee continues to be aware of and respond
to best practice guidelines of shareholders and thetr
representative bodies

The commuttee acuvely consulted with the company's
major shareholders and their representative bodies
on the directors’ remuneration policy set out in this
report The consultation provided some valuable
feedback relatng to remuneration pohcy, company
performance and business strategy Specifically,
shareholders commented on the operation of the
long-term incenuve plan, the use of flexibility and
discretion, and the policy on recriitment They
supported the committee’s proposals on deferral/
holding periods for vested shares and shareholding
gusdelines And, on incentive pay-outs, they requested
clartfication of our arrangements for adjustments for
malus and the strengtherung of our clawback
provisions

These matters have been addressed in this policy report

1
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Future policy table for chairman’s and non-execuuve directors’ remuneration

The table below summarises policy with respect to the remuneration of the chairman and non-executive directors

PURPOSE AND LINK O STRATEGY

To attract and retain hugh calibre individuals, with
appropriate experience or industry relevant skills,
by offering market competitive fee fevels

DPERATION

The chairman s paid a singte fee for all of tus
responsibilities

The chairman’s fee 1s set at a {evel that 1s competitive
with those of chairmen i stmular positions in
comparable companies The chairman is not entitled
ta any annual or long-term incentive, retirement or
other employee benefits

The non-executive directors are paid a basic fee
The chairmen and members of the main beard
committees and the senior independent director
are paid an addiwonal fee to reflect thewr exura
respansibibiues

The chairman and the non-executive directors are
cavered by the company's normal arrangements for
directors’ and officers’ lability insurance and an
indemmity 1 respect of certain third-party liabihtes

The company reimburses the chairman’s and non-
executve directors’ travel and other business
expenses and any tax incurred thereon, «f applicable

A mimimum of 25% of the basic non-executive
directors' fee 1s paid in Pearson shares that the non-
executive directors have committed to retamn for the
period of their directorships Shares are acquired
guarterly at the prevaiing market price with the
individual after-tax fee payments

Fees for non-execuuve directors are determined

by the full board having regard 1o market pracuce
and within the restrictions contained in the
company’'s Arucles of Association Non-executive
directors receve no other pay or benefits (other
than reimbursement for expenses icurred in
connection with thew directorstup of the company)
and do not participate in the company's equity-based
mncentive plans

MNon-executive directors serve Pearson under
letters of appoimtment which are renewed annually
and do not have service contracts For non-
executive directors, there s no notice period or
entitlernent to compensation on the termination of
their directorships

QPFORTUNITY

The chairman's fees were last reviewed m 2010
and increased with effect from | April 2011 with a
commitment to review again in 20{4 Fees for the
non-executive directors were last increased with
effect from | July 2010

The structure of non-executive directors’ fees with
effect from | May 2014 15 as follows

DIRECTOR FEE
MNon-executive director £70.000
Charrmanship of audit commutree . £27, 500
éhanrmanship of remuneration c_t:.w_r_m:lt_tgeh_m_H 1555666
aalrmansh:p of reputavon and

responsibility committee £10,000
Membership of audit commictee  £15000
Membership of remuneration commictee  £10,000
Membership of reputation and S
responstbifity committes £5 000
Semor independent director £22,000

The maximurm opporturity per director depends
on individual duties or combinaton of duties in
accardance with this structure The total fees
payable to the non-executive directors are subject
to the irmit set out in the Articles of Assoctation of
the company (currently £750,000) and as increased
by ordinary resolution from time to ume

The fees for the chairman rematins unchanged at
£500 000 per year

PERFOLMANCE CONDOITIONS
None
PLRFORMAMNCE FERIDD

Nome




Annual remuneration report

The remuneration commuttee presents the annual
remuneration report which will be put to shareholders
as an adwisory {non-binding} vote at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 25 Apni 2014

This report compnses of a number of sections

» The remuneration committee and Its activities
» Voting outcome at 2013 AGM

» Single figure of total remuneration and pnor
year comparison

» Detaill of executive remuneration for 20| 3

> Detail of long-term share interests including awards
made in 2013

» Payments to former directors

» Payments for lass of office

> Interests of directors and value of shareholdings
» Executive duectors’ non-executive directorships
» Historical performance and remuneration

» Camparauve information

» Information on changes to remuneration for 2014

Secuon 4 Governance

93

MIIAMIAD

:
!

IONYHYO4HId ¥NO

ALIIDOS NO LIVdWI ¥NO |
i

I
}
}

SLNINILVLS TVIONY NI




>

%4  Pearson pic Annual report and accounts 2013

Report on directors’ remunerauon continued

The remuneration commictee and 1ts activities

Composinion

David Arculus chaired the remuneration commuttee for
the year 2013, the other members were Vivienne Cox,
Ken Hydon, Joshua Lews and Glen Moreno Dawid
Arculus, Vivienne Cox. Ken Hydon and Joshua Lewrs
are independent non-executive directors Gien
Moreno, chairman of the board, 1s a member of the
comimittee as permttted under the UK Cotporate
Governance Code

Internal advisers to the committee

John Fallon, chief execuuve, Robin Freestone, chief
financial officer, Rabin Baliszewsk, formerly director
for pecple, Melinda Wolfe, chief human resources
officer from Octrober 2013 Robert Head, director for
executive reward, and Stephen jones, SVP company
secretarial, provided matenal assistance to the
committee during the year They attended meetings of
the commuttee, although none of them was invoived in
any decisions relating to his or her own remuneration

External adwisers to the commuttee

To ensure that the commuttee receives independent
advice, Towers Watson supplies survey data and
advises on market wends, long-term incerinves and
other general remuneration matters Towers Watson
was selected and appointed by the commuttee through
a formal tendering process Towers Watson also
advised the company on health and welfare benefits in
the US and provided consulung advice directly to
certain Pearson operating companies Towers Watson
15 a member of the Rermuneration Consultants’ Group.,
the body which oversees the code of conductin
relation to executive remuneration consulung in the
UK Dunng the year, Towers Watson was paid fees for
advice to the commuttee, which were charged ona
ume spent basts, of £89,129 As part of its annual
review of its performance and effecuveness, the
commuttee remains satsfied that Towers Watson s
advice was objective and independent and that Towers
Watson's provision of other services in no way
comprormises its independence

Responsibility
The commuttee’s principal duties are to

determine and regularly review the remuneration
policy for the executive directors, the presidents of the
prncipal geographic markets and lines of business and
other members of the Pearson Executive who report
directly to the CEO (Executive Management)

-

~r

~

~

~

~

-

This policy includes base salary, annual and long-term
incentives, pension arrangements, any other benefits
and terminatton of employment

regularly review the implementation and operation of
the remuneration policy for Executive Management
and approve the individual remuneraton and benefits
packages of the executive directors

The committee’s duties are also to

approve the design of, and determine targets for,

any performance-related pay plans operatad by the
company and approve the total payments to be made
under such plans

review the design of the company’s long-term incentve
and other share plans for approvat by the board and
shareholders

adwvise and decide on general and specific arrangements
in connection with the rermunation of employment of
executive directors

review and approve corporate goals and objectives
relevant to CEO remuneratron and evaluate the CEO's
performance in Iight of those goals and objectuves

have delegated responsibility for determining the
remuneration and benefits package of the charman

of the board

appoint and set the terms of engagement for any
remuneration consultants who advise the comimittee
and monitor the cost of such advice

The commuttee’s full charter and terms of reference
are avatlable on the company's website

Annually the commitiee reviews Its own performance,
consotution ang charter and terms of reference to
ensure It is operating at maximum effectiveness and
recommends any changes it considers necessary to the
board for approval

The committee participated in a survey to review its
performance and effectveness n July 20H 3 looking at
areas such as the clarity of roles and responsibiivies,
the compostuon of the commuttee, the use of ume,
the quality and tmeliness of meeting materals the
opportunity for discussion and debate, dialogue with
management and access to mdependent advice

The committee concluded that It 15 operating
affecuvely and noted the challenges for the year ahead

("



v,

Meeungs in 2043
The committee met five imes during 2013 The
matters discussed and actions taken were as follows

20 FEBRUARY 2013

Confirmed the leaving arrangements for Rona Fairhead

o

MNoted the actvity of the standing committee of the
board in refation to the operauon of the company's
equity-based reward programmes

MNoted company’s use of equity for employee share
plans

~

~

Noted Towers Watson's overview of the current
remuneration environment

Reviewed and approved 2012 annual incentive plan
pay-outs

w

~

Reviewed and approved provisional 2010 long-term
mcentive plan pay-outs

Approved vesting of 2010 annual bonus share matching
awards and release of shares

~

~

Reviewed and approved increases in base saiaries for
2013 for the Pearson management committee {now
called the Pearson Executive)

Reviewed 2013 Pearson and cperating company annual
mcentive plan targets

Reviewed and approved 2013 individual annual
ncentve opportunittes for the Pearson management
committee

Reviewed 2013 long-term incentive awards and
associated performance condinions for the Pearson
management committee

~

~

s

"

Reviewed and noted total remuneraton for members

of the Pearson management commuttee for 2012

and 2013

Reviewed and approved the 2012 report on directors’

remuneraton

» Reviewed and approved the 2012 annual incenuve
pay-out for Marjorie Scardino

» Reviewed and approved the 2012 annual incentve

pay-out and 2013 remuneracon package for

John Fallon

~

~r

~

~

~

~

-

~

~

~

~

~

~
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4 APRIL 2012

MNoted the acuvity of the standing committee of the
board i refation to the operation of the company’s
equity-based reward programmes

Confirmed 2010 long-term mncentive plan pay-outs
including element relating to relative shareholder
return performance and retease of shares

Confirmed 2013 Pearson and operating company
annual ncentive plan targets

Confirmed 2013 long-term incentive awards and
associated performance conditions for the Pearson
management commuttee

Moted feedback on the 2012 report on drectors’
remuneration
Discussed new executive remuneration reporting
requirements

24 JULY 2013

Reviewed the commutiee's charter and terms of
reference

Discussed 2013 AGM season and shareholder voung

Noted remuneraton packages for a number of internal
appointments and one new hire to the Pearson
Execurive

Noted John Makinson’s remuneration package and
contract on secondment to., and appointment as
chawrman of, Penguin Random House

Noted Will Ethndge's imention to stand down from
the Pearson board and the arrangements for his 2014
employment and retirement

MNoted implicauons of new executive remuneration
reporting requirements and commenced review of
executive remuneration policy
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1 OCTOBER 2043

Noted the activity of the standing cornmittee of the
board in relation to the operation of the company's
equity-based reward programmes

Reviewed the committee’s charter and terms of
reference

Reviewed the committee’s performance and
effectiveness

Rewviewed the status of cutstanding long-term incentive
awards

Ratfied 2013 long-term ncentive awards and
associated performance conditions for new appointees
to the Pearson Execunve

Considered the approach to 2013 annual incentives in
hight of company’s restructuring plans

Noted the company's strategy for 2013 long-term
incentive awards for executives and managers below
the Pearson Executive

Considered the approach to arinual incentives in the
hight of the company's global education strategy and
new organisation

Conunued the review of executive remuneration policy

Moted the remuneration packages for twao new hires
to the Pearson Executive

Voting outcome at 2013 AGM

5 DECEMBER 2013

» Noted the acuvity of the standing commttee of the
board in relavon ta the operation of the company's
equity-based reward programmes

» Reviewed and approved the carmmittee's charter and
terms of reference

» Discussed Towers VWatson's overview of the current
remuneration enviranment and approach to executive
pay benchmarlang for 2013/2014

> Reviewed the status of outstanding long-term incentive
awards

» Considered the approach to annual incentives in the
light of the company’s global education strategy and
new organisation

> Reviewed long-term incenuve plan design and
operation

» Reviewed the programmes and pobicies related o
equity participation of executives

> Noted the draft format for the 2013 direcrors’
remuneration report

The following table summarises the details of votes cast in respect of the resofuton to approve the directors’

remuneration report at the 2013 AGM

2

Yares for _ ~ Yores agamst . Total vowes cast Wotes wathheld (abstentons}
523,204,046 35,545,800 558,749,846 14,082,005
93 64% of votes cast 6 36% of votes cast 68 35% of issued share capual

While the commuttee was pleased with the level of support shown by shareholders in respect. of this resolunon,
consideration was given to those shareholders that did not vote in favour of the directors’ rernuneration report
Through consultation, the commuttee recerved feedback from three mstitutional sharsholders who between them
accounted for one-third of the votes aganst to understand better why these shareholders voted against the
resolution The committee subsequently discussed this at therr July 2013 meeting tn the hight of the feedback, the
comuttee concluded at that time that, nowwithstanding any issues a115ing out of its regular review of executive
remuneration policy there was nothing fundamental or structural within our existing arrangements to cause

particular concern to shareholders

As in previous years and required by law details of the voung on all resolutions at the 2014 AGM will be
announced via the RNS and posted on the Pearson website followmng the AGM

hup //www pearson com/ content/dam/pearson-corporate/files/ press-

releases/2013/20130426_AGM_Poll_Results pdf
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year comparison

Executive directors
The remuneration receved by executive directors in respect of the financial years ending 31 December 2013 and

3| December 2012 was as follows

Execuuve Allowances
director Base and Annual Reurrment Long-cerm
L0005 salary benefits tHcentive benefics incentives Tozal

Current directors

John Eallon 2013 750 43 463 330 141 1,727
2012 146 7 63 6l 221 498
Robin Freestone 2013 545 4 34| |63 I8t 1,244
2012 500 22 252 144 P 121 2,039
Former directors
Will Ethridge 2013 681 7 227 247 177 [.339
2012 658 2 293 300 1,135 2,388
Rona Fairhead 2013 {76 14 - {0 47 347
(stepped down
26 Apri 2013) 2012 529 50 192 242 769 1,782
{ohn Makinson 2013 174 122 301 298 &9 1,064
(stepped down
| july 2013) 2012 549 244 238 - 741 },772
Total 2013 2426 200 1332 [, 148 615 5,721
2012 2,382 325 {,038 747 3987 8,479

Mote | john Fallon was appointed ta the board on 3 October 2012 For the fulf year for 2012, John Fallon's remuneration
reflected mine months m his role as CEO, Pearson International and three months as Pearson CEO designate and was
salary/fees - £506 allowances and benefits £29, annual incenuive — £259 retrement benefits - £249, long-term incenuves
—~ £909, wotal - £1,952 {all figures in £000s)

Note 2 in accordance with the regufatons we show a single total figure of remunerauon, which includes reurement benefits
and long-term incentives i addition to the other elements of remuneration that have been shown in previous reports

Note 3 Where necessary the figures for allowances and benefits, long-term mcentives and retirement benefits for 2012 have
heen restated to reflect the revised requirements and valuanon methodology

Note 4 In 2012, the acerued pension over the penod for John Malanson decreased because of a wransfer made as a result of
a pension sharing order

Note 5 The single figure of remuneracon for 2013 includes alf awards that were subject to a performance conditon where
the performance perod ended, or was substantially (but not fully) completed, at 3| December 2013 and awards where the
performance condition has been sausfied but where the release of shares 1s subject to a further holding period The same
methodology has been applted for earlier peniods and the single figure for earlier reporting penods has heen restated
where necessary

Further explanatory details/notes are ncluded in the tables that follow
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Report on directors’ remunerauon continued

Charrman and non-executive directors

The remuneraucn paid to the chairman and non-executve directors in respect of the firancial years ending

31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 was as follows

Director Salary/ Commuttee
oo —— e e e e e e chamanship
Glen Moreno 2013 500 N
2012 500 -
2013 65 20
David Arculus 2012 oc 20
2013 65 -
Vivienne Cox 2012 e _
2013 65 25
Ken Hydon 2012 65 25
Josh Lews 2013 63 -
2012 65 -
Linda Lorimer 2013 33
(apposnted | July 2013) 2012 - -
Harish Manwary 2043 L& -
{appointed | Ocrober 2013) 2012 - -
Susan Fuhrman 2013 39 -
(stepped down 7 August 2013) 2062 55 -
Total 2013 848 45
2012 825 45

Commuttee |ndep§|$‘:x:
rmembership _Fdll’ecﬂ)ﬁhlp Totai_
- - 500
- - 500
10 - 25
10 - 95
I5 20 100
I5 - 80
5 - 95
5 - 95
{3 78
i0 - 75
- - 33
- - 16
6 - 45
10 - 75
49 20 962
50 920

Total aggregate emoluments for executve and non-executive directors were £5 3m i 2013 These emoluments
are included with total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the financial statements (page 142)
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Detarl of executive remuneration for 2013

In this sub-section, we summarise or provide detads of each element of remuneration set our i the single figure
table as required (page 97)

Base salares

In accordance with policy. the commuttee considered a report from the chief executive and chief human resources
officer on general pay trends m the market and the level of pay increases across the company as a whole For 2013,
the company had reiterated its starting principles that base compensation provides the appropriate rate of
remuneration for the job, takmg into account relevant recruttment markets, business sectors and geographic
regions and that total remuneration should reward both short- and long-term results, delivering compeutive
rewards for target performance, but higher rewards for exceptional company performance For the US and UK,
the budget guideline issued at the end of Septerber 2012 for adjustments to base pay for 2013 was 2% aithough
business units were given the flexibitity to take into account factors such as their own perfarmance, where they are
in the business cycle, and speafic market factors As the year closed and pay budgets for 2013 were confirmed,
most businesses remaimed on an overall 2% salary increase pool Local inflation rates were taken Into account tn

parucufar markets

The increases for the executive directors who served during all or part of 2013 were as follows

Roma Jahn

Farrhead Mafanson

John Robin Will  {stepped down {stepped down

L _ Fatlon Freascone ) Gthndge 26 Aprd 2013) 1 july 2013)

Base salary at 31 December 2012 £600,000 £500,000 $1.045500 £529.100 £548.900

| £150,000  £45000  $20,200 - -
(Al

crease 25% 9% 2% - -

Base salary at | january 2013 £750,000 £545,000 $1,066.400 £529,100 £548,900

Note john Fallon was appoinied 1o the board on 3 October 2012 and his base salary was reviewed on his appaimment to CEO
on | january 2013

Allowances and benefits
During the year the executive directors receved a number of benefits as summarised below

Rona John

Fawhead Makinson

Adlowancefbenefit Jchn Robin vl (stopped down  (stepped down
E___ i L . _ Faflon Freestone‘n Ethridge 26 April 2013) i July 2013}
Location and market premium - - - — 105469
Travel 15,387 12,037 - 5530 6.865
Health 2,405 t.588 5720 663 132
Rusk 24765 253 1,673 8,074 8,605
Total 42557 14278 7393 14267 122071

MNote | Travef benefits compnise company car car alfowance and private use of a dever Health besefits compnise healthcare,
health assessment and gym subsidy Risk berefits comprise addwonal Ife cover and long-term disability msurance

Note 2 Altowance and benefits for Will Echndge include US health benefits Such benefits are self-insured and the value shown
here 1s the fully insured equivalent There 15 no employee tax on this value

MNote 3 In addivon to the above benefits and allowances that 2re included in the single figure, the executive diectors may also
parucipate n company benefit or policy arrangements that have no taxable value

Moate 4 Addwonal life cover and long-term disability insurance not covered by the retresment plans were previously repot ted
as ‘other pension-related benefit costs’ and included in retrement benefits in the 2012 directors remuneration report

|
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Report on directors’ remuneravon continued

Annual incentive
For 2013, annual incentive opportumities were based on the following performance measures and performance
agamst these measures (designated as. — below threshold. < between threshold and targer. > between target

and maximum and + above maxunum) was as follows

Muximiwn Weoghting of
opperiunIty peformnce meaures Pyy-out for
12 of ssfary) (¥ of macowim oppartunny} Padomunce n 2013 013
* of
Pearzon Operating compny satary) ({000}
Undertnng  Undertping  Averagt Average
growth m growthay  workng Weighied worlung We theed
adusted EPS  adwsied EPS qupaal co pay-our Operzung  Operatmg  capeat pRy-ou
{pre- tpozc sakes Operanng {Xof profic (pre-  profic (post o sales Qperamg (% of
Sabs restrutturingd rostrcconng) raue cihflow  macmon)  Saes restructurmg) restrucoenng) cano cuh floe masriuim)
Qperang - - -
Nane Pearson  campsny Pertonal 10°% 5% 5% 10% 0% £ 20% 2% 1% 0.
fohn 180% 9U% - 0% = > < - - 28 1% - - - - - - &i 8% 463
Fallon
Robin 170% B0 - W% < > < - - 26 0% - - - - - - 625% 24i
Freesione
will 175%  30% 60% 10% « > < - - 260% < - -~ - - 1G 5% 334% 227
Ethridge Petrson
North
Amenca
Jolhn 160%  30% 60% 0% « - < - - 260% » > > + %1 4% 109 8% 301
Makuwan Pangisn
Istepped Group
down
L July
03 - —

Note | For afl plans, Pearson's reported financial results foi the relevant period were used to measure performance In order
1o ncenuvise and reward underiying performance, actal results are adiusted for the effect of foreign exchange and for
portfoho changes {acquisitions and disposals) and other factors that the committee considers relevant in the performance year
No discretion has been excraised vo adjust the resulting underying pay-outs

Note 2 Rona Fairhead, who left the company on 30 Apnl 2013, was not eligible for an annual incenuve 1 respect of her service
in 2013

Norte 3 Details of performance targets and performance agamst those targets are not disciosed as the committee deems them
to be commercially sensitive
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Retrement benefies
Detals of the directors’ pension enutlements and pension-related benefits durtng the year are as follows

Valye of  Other pension Orher
Arcrued  defined benefic costs to the allowances Toral
Normal  pension ag peOsIaT OVEr  COmpany over wthev of  annual value
revrement 31 Cec 13 the perod the penod pensan w2013
Direcrors pensions Plans age £000 " £000) £000 £000" £000®

John Fallon Pearson Group Pension Plan 62 740 1348 - 1947 330
Accrual rate of | /30th of
pensionable salary per annum
Taxable and non-pensionable
cash supplement

Robin Freestone Money Purchase 2003 secuon 62 - - 220 14t 4 i63
of the Pearson Group Pension
Plan Taxable and non-
pensionable cash supplement

Wil Ethridge Pearson Inc Pension Plan and 65 2275 2152 316 - 247
the approved 401 (k) plan
Non-qualified Excess Plan

Rona Fairhead  Pearson Group Pension Plan 62 531 65 4 - 44 6 [0
Accrual rate of {/30th of
pensionable salary per annum
Taxable and non-pensionable
cash supplement

lohn Makinsan  Pearson Group Pension Plan 62 2414 298 - - 298
Unfunded Unapproved
Reurement Benefits Scheme

MNote | The accried pension at 31 December 2013 s the deferred pension to which the member would be enutled on ceasing
pensionable service on 31 December 2013 For Will Ethnidge this is hus pension from the US plan and the US SERP For John
Fallon and Rona Farhead it refates to the penston payable from the UK plan Fot john Makinson it refates to the pension from
the UK Plan and tus unapproved arrangements m aggregate Robin Freestone does not accrue defined benefits

Note 2 This column comprises the increase in the directors’ accrued pension over the peniod {net of inflatton} multiphed by 20
and from which the directors’ contnbutions are deducted

Note 3 This column comprises contributons 1o defined contribution arrangerments for UK benefits For US benefits, st includes
company contributons 1o funded defined contnbunon plans

Mote 4 This column represems the cash allowances pad in heu of the previcus FURBS arrangements for john Faffon,

Robin Freestone and Rona Farhead John Malunson’s deferred FURBS enntlement s referred 1o i note | above

Note § Total annual value 15 the sum of the previous three columns

Note 6 Addmional ife cover and lorg-term disability insurance not coverad by the reurement plans were previously reported as
‘other pension-refated benefit casts’ and ncluded in retrement benefits in the 2012 directors remuncration report and are now
mcluded as ‘allowances and benefits’

Note 7 There are no additional benefits or spewal arrangements under the reurement plans for derectors who retire before their
normal retirement date
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Deralls of long-term share interests including awards made in 2013

Long-term incentives
Details of awards made, outstanding, held or released under the annual bonus share matching plan are as foliows

Real compound
Em:eﬂcj awart{ _ ~Sllz.v_'t‘e price on d daf?f'f nwan_:l_ ;Yisirgw___ ___?_“2':'1' FPS growth  Status of amrd-w‘ . A ) L
15/05/13 1,206 Op 15705/16 — Qutstanding subject to 2012 to 2015 performance
15705712 1,152 0p 15/05/15 — Qutstanding subject to 201 | to 2014 performance
20704711 1129 0p 20/04/14 -6 6% Performance condiion not met Matching share
award lapsed
21704710 1,024 1p 21/04/13 4 4% Target met for release of 84 5% of matching share

award as reported tn report on directors’
remuneration for 2012 Shares released on
21 Apnl 2013

The pay-out to performance vesting scale for all awards is as follows

F:irformnnce condiugn e ) Pay-out (% of Match)
< 3% real compound annual EPS growth Nl
3% real compound annuai EPS growth 50%
3% to 5% real compound annual EPS growth 50% to 100% shding scale
5% real compound annual EPS growth 100%
> real 5% compound annual EPS growth o e - . 100%

Note Fot alf awards, Pearson’s reported financal results for the relevant penod were used o measure perfarmance and no
discreton has been exercsed

The following directors invested part of ther after-tax annual incentive in Pearson shares and received conditional
matching awards under the annual bonus share matching plan on |5 May 2013 which will vest, subject to
performance, on 15 May 2016 as follows

MName Matriupg shares awarded Shat e prce on date of award Face value on dhte of sward

john Fallon 6.083 1,2060p _ £73361

D

O
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Details of awards made, outstanding, vested and held or refeased under the long-term incentive plan are
as follows

Performance
Share measures
price on {award spiu % of
Date date of Yesung equally across Performance  Pay-oucac Pay-qut 4t Actual award  Status of
of award  award dae three measures) penod threshold IMAXIMUT performarnce vested  award
01/05/13 1,183 0p0!1/05/16 Relatve TSR 2013 to  30% at median |100% at upper - - Qurstanding
2016 quarule
ROIC 2015 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC - -
of 85% of |05%
EPS growth 2015 30% for EPS  100% for EPS - -
compared growth of growth of 120%
o0 2012 60%
0/05/12 1,161 Op02/05/15 Relatwe TSR 20020 30% at medan 100% atupper - - Qurstanding
2015 quartle
ROIC 2084 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC ~ -
of 85% of 105%
EPS growth 2014 30% forEPS  {0Q% for EPS - -
compared growth of growth of 12 0%
w200 60%
03/05/11 | 149 0p03/05/14 Relatve TSR 20t fte  30% at median 100% atupper 44" Nt Esumated but sull
2014 quartile percentle outstanding
ROIC 2013 25% for ROIC 100% for ROIC 54% Ml Lapsed
of 90% of 105%
EPS growth 2013 30%forEPS 10Q0% for EPS -3 3% Nt
compared growth of growth of 12 0%
0 2010 60%
03/03/109620p 03/03/13 Refauve TSR 20100 30% at median 100% atupper 48" ] 36 7% of shares vested
2013 quartie percentile Three-quarters released
ROIC 2012 % for ROIC 100% for ROIC 9 1% 47 5% on 3 March 2013 if after
of 8 5% of 105% tax number of shares are

retaned for a further
two years, the remaeng
quarter will be released
on 3 March 2015

EPS growth 2012 30% for EPS  100%for EPS  88% 62 5%
compared growth of growth of 12 0%
o 2009 60%

Mote For alf awards, Pearson’s reported financial results for the relevant period were used to measure performance and no
discreton has been exercised

The following directors received condmional restricted share awards under the long-term incentive plan on
i May 2013 which will vest, subject to performance, on | May 2016 as foilows

Face valve on date of award

Restrcted  Share price on * of 2013
Name o e dresawarded dmeofaward L basesubry
john Faflon 250,000 1,1830p £2.957,500  394%
Robin Freestone 150,000 1.1830p £1.774.500  326%
Will Ethridge 150,000 1.1830p £1,774500  260%

Summary of share plan interests

The following tables summarise vested, released, lapsed, held, and outstanding share interests under the share-based
incentive plans for execuiive directors who served throughout 2013 Awards are designated as ABSMP annual bonus
share matching plan, subject to performance condimons LTIP long-term incentive plan, subject to performance
condimans, Dvidends where dividend-equivalent shares are added without performance condimons to vested shares
under the ABSMP and LTIP and released immediately on award
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Plan Award date
ABSMP 21/04/2010
ABSMP 20/04/2041
ABSMP 15/05/2012
ABSMP 1570572013
LTIP 04/03/2008
LTIP 0370372009
LTIP 03/03/2010
LTIP 03/05/2011
LTIP 02/05/2012
LTiP 01/05/2013
Diidends 04/03/2013
(LTIP

Dividends 03/04/2CG13
(LTIP)

Dividends 21/05/72Gt3
(ABSMP)

Tortal

2013 single figure of remuneration _

Vesting date

21/04/2013
20/04/2014

15/05/2015
15/05/72016
04/03/7201)
03/03/2012
03/03/2013

03/05/2014

02/05/2015
01/05/2016
04/03/2013
03/04/2043

21/05/2013

Robin
Soews John Failon  Freestane Wil Echndge
3 Released 6991 26287 6658
Vested g 0 o
Value £000 £0 £0 £0
Lapsed 4,539 29,049 4517
Held 0 0 0
Outstanding 8917 17,833 4,485
Outstanding 6,083 - —
Released 24375 30,468 36,562
Held 29 887 25617 29887
Released 41,257 34,381 41,257
Lapsed 50,000 41,667 50,000
Held 13,752 1,460 13,752
Vested 0 0 0
Value £000 0 £0 £0
Lapsed 150,000 125.000 150.000
Held 0 0 0
Qutstanding i00QG0 100,000 100000
Cutstanding 250,00C  §50.000 150,000
Released (price 1,168 Op) 6,094 7617 2.141
Value £000 £71 £89 £107
Released {price {,143 Op) 5,{99 4,333 5.199
Value £000 £59 £50 £59
Refeased (price 1,262 Op) 895 3,366 853
Value £000 £li £42 £l
Released 84,811 106,452 99,670
Vested 0 0 0
Held 43,639 37.077 43,639
Qutstanding 365,000 267,833 154,485
_Value £000 __£l4l £i81 _ £177.

MNote | Yested means where awards are no longer subject to performance condiwons Released means where shares have peen
transferred to paruopants. Held means where awards have vested but are held pending refease on the relevant anniversary of
the awaird aate Qutstanding means awards that have been granted but are soll subject to the achievement of performance

canditions

Note 2 No vanauons to tetms and condinons of plan interests were made during the year

Note 3 Performance conditions and vesung for awards under the bonus share matching and fong-term incentive plans are
described on pages 102 and 103
MNote 4 The singte figure of remuneraton for 2013 inciudes alt awards that were subject to a performance conditon where

the performance penod ended, o was substanuzily (but not fully) compieted, at 31 December 20132 and awards where the
performance condiuon has been satsfied but where the retease of shares 1s subject to a further holding perod The same

methodology has been applied for earlier penods and the single figure for earfier reporung perods has been « estated
where necessary

Note 5 The value of shares included 1n the single figure of remunerauon s the number of shares mulisphed by the share price
on refease (or, If the shares have not yet been released, the average share price over the final quarter of the year which for
2013 was | 310 45p)

)



Movements in directors' mnterests in share options
John Fallon and Robin Freestone also hold options under the worldwide save for shares plan as follows
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145

Vafue m 2013

Opuons held as Earfiest exercise snglo figure

Name Dare of grant a1 3t Dec 13 Cpuon price date Expury date L0400

John Fallon 7/5/10 1,930 805 6p 1/8/15 1/2/16 0
Robin Freestone 4/5/12 990 909 Op 1/8/15 172716 0

Note | No share option awards were made, vested or exercised in the year

Note 2 All share opuons that become exercisable during a year are included in the single figure of tozal remuneraton for that
year The value included m the single figure of total remuneranon is the number of options muluphed by the difference between
the value on grant and the market value on the earhest exercise date

Note 3 No variations 1o terms and conditions of share options were made duning the year

Note 4 Acquisition of shares under the worldwide save for shares plan 15 not subject to a performance condition

MNote 5 The market price on 3| Decemnber 2013 was 1,341 Op per share and the range during the year was 1,119 0p o | 365 0p

Payments to former dwectors

It is the committee’s intention to disclose any payments to past directors, including the release of share-based
awards post departure

The number of shares retamed from the number of shares oniginally awarded takes into account lapses due to
performance, releases prior to ceasing to be a director and, where applicable, pro-raung for service in the
performance period

Marjorie Scardino
Marjone Scardino stepped down from the Pearson board on 31 December 2012

in accordance with her employment agreement, six months after reurement Marjone Scardine received
the distnibution of the account cash and share balances of her unfunded unapproved defined contnbution
retirement plan

Marjorie also retained certain entitlements on reurement and received the following share releases dunng 2013

MNumber of Mumber of Number of Num::arr;f
Plan Dare of award shares retamed shares lapred shares released Date of release ourstanding
ABSMP 21 Aprit 2G10 63,497 0 63497 4 March 2013 Q
20 Aprit 2011 47,630 47.630 0 - 0
LTIP 4 March 2008 97.500 0 97500 4 March 2013 0
3 March 2009 76.852 0 76852 4 March2013 0
3 March 2010 280,024 subject to 133,333 146 691 3 March 2013 0

2012 performance
3 May 2011 266,666 subject 10 266,666 0 - 0

2013 performance
2 May 2042 83,333 subject o 0 0 - 83,333

2014 performance
Dwidends 4 March 2013 - ~ 6160 4 March 2013 0

(ABSMP)

Dividends 4 March 2013 - - 38593 4 March 2013 0
(LTIP) 3 April 2013 ) = - 18484 3 April 2013 0

Note In the case of the 21 Aprd 2010 annual bonus share matching award the number of shares retamed and released comprises
the total number of shares onginally awarded
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Rona Fairhead
Rona Fairhead stepped down fram the Pearson board on 26 Apnil 2013 and left the company on 30 April 2013

Rona retatned certain enutlements on leaving the company and received the following share refeases during 2013

Number of Nuraber 2043 sngle higure Number of
MNumber of shares of shares of remuneradon  Number of shares
FE'_‘_ o Dace af award L shares ret::-nf_d_ _____lﬂ:"sef o Leieased Date of relefse £00G  shares held ours.:aiu{tzg_
LTiP 4 March 2008 30,468 0 30,468 4 March 2013 - 0 0
3 March 2009 25617 0 25,617 10 May 2013 - 0 0
3 March 2010 87,508 41}.,667 34,381 3 March 2013 - 0 0 !
subject to 2012 11,460 10 May 2013 - 0 0 |
performance
3 May 2011 97,222 97,222 0 - - 40,000 0
subject to 2013
perlformance + (/)
40,000 shares
2 May 2012 44,444 0 0 - - 0 44444
subject to 2014
performance
Dwvidends 4 March 2013 - 0 7.617 4 March 2013 £30 - -
. 3 April 2013 - 0 _4333 3 Apnl 2013 £17 -

Note [ In the case of the 3 May 201! tong-term incentive award the comnuttee agreed in December 2012 that, in recognition
of the crcumstances at the ume the award was made, 40,000 of the 165,000 shares onginally awarded should vest in full at the
narmal vesting date The remaining shates would be retaned on her leaving pro raw for service and be refeased subject o

performance in the normal way |

Note 2 The value of dividends included un the 2013 single figure of remuneranen s caiculated pro rata for serwice n the year |

John Malunson

On stepping down from the board oo | july 2013, john Makinson’s then remuneration paclage (base salary,
annual incenuve, allowances and benefits and retrement benefits) conunued to apply for the remainder of 2013
He did not receive a Pearson long-term incentive award for 2013

o~
John's parnapation i Pezrson share plans continues and he received the following share releases during 2013 ( (J’
Number 2013 singie figure Number of
Number of Mumber of of shares of remuncradon  Number of shares
Plan _ Date of award shares retaned  shares lapsed releax_e.d Da_:t:\_c_af release _ £000  shares held ] imffafm_g_
LTiP i 4 March 2008 30,468 0 30468 4March2013 - 0 0
3 March 2009 25,617 ) - - —~ 25,617 0
3 March 2010 87.508 41,667 34381 3IMacth2013 - 11,460 0
subject to 2012
performance
3 May 2011 125,000 125,000 0 - - 0 0
subject to 2013
performance
2 May 2012 00,000 0 0 - - 0 100,000
subject to 2014
performance
Dividends 4 March 2013 - 0 7.617 4March 2013 £44 - -
3 Apri 2013 om0 4333 3Apni2013 I e

Note The value of dvidends included i the 2013 single figure of remunerauon s caleulated pro 1 ata for service i the year




o~

Payments for loss of office

Rona Fairhead

As announced on 27 November 2012 and set out in
the report on directors’ remunerauocn for 2012, Rona
Fairhead stepped down from the board at the Annual
General Meeting on 26 Apri 2013 and left the
company an 30 Apri 2013 Her service agreement
dated 24 January 2003 provided for nouce periods of
six months from the director and |2 months from the
company and compensation on termination of
employment by the company without notice or cause
of 100% of annual salary at the date of terminaton, the
annual cost of pension and all other benefits and 50%
of potential annual incentive

The committee and the board deterrmined that her
ieaving employment was a consequence of the planned
incorporation of the professional education division
overseen by Rona into other parts of Pearson's
education busmness, coupled with the smaller size

of the Financial Times Group owing to recent

major divestments The company therefore patd
compensation amounting to £1,148,195 comprising
£529,100, an amount equal to her annual salary as of
herleawng date, £195,815, an amount equal to the
annual cost to the company of penston and aother
benefits (but excluding hezlth care to which she
rematned enutled for 12 months from her leaving
date}, and £423,280, an amount equal to half of her
maximum annual incentive oppertunity The company
also made a contribution toward the cost of
outplacement counselling (£50,000) and paid legal
fees in connection with her leaving (£6,150)
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John Makinson

As first announced on 29 October 2012 and confirmed
on | july 2013, John Malsnson stepped down from the
Pearson board to assume his full-ume responsibrinies
as chairman of Penguin Random House on | july 2013
There was no payment for loss of office

lohn's employment continues under service
agreements with Pearson Inc (for the US portion of his
duties) and with Pearson Management Services Limited
{for his duties in the rest of the world outside the US)
These Pearson entities are entering into secondment
agreerments with Pengwn Random House, pursuant to
which John's services as chairrnan are provided to, and
paid for by, Penguin Random House John is paid an
annual base salary, but 15 no longer entttled to a
locatron and market premium or an annual incentive
He will be eligible 1o receive a one-off performance-
related cash jong-term incentive award, the terms

of which are being agreed by the remuneration
committee of Penguin Random House He will no
longer receive awards under the Pearson tong-term
incentive plan Penguin Random House 1s alse meeting
the cost of John's accrual of Pearson pension benefits
while he is seconded to Penguin Random House

Will Ethridge

As announced on 23 May 2013, Will Ethridge stepped
down from the board on 31 December 2013 There
was no payment for loss of office Will's employment
with Pearson Education Inc cononues on the same
terms and conditions as previously pending his
reurement on 3| December 2014 No compensation
for loss of office or severance will be payable on lus
redrement On reurement, he will retain entitlement to
his 2012 long-term incentive award in full and to two-
thirds and one-third respectively of tus 2013 and any
2014 long-term ncentive awards with shares refeased
subject to performance in 2015, 2016 and 2017
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Report on directors’ remuneraton continued

Interests of directors and value of shareholdings

Directors’ interests
The share interests of the conunuing directors and their connected persons are as follows

Torai number of ardinary

Ordinary shares Conditonal shares  and conditional shares at Valua Guidefine
o o _ at 31 Dec 13 ar 3! Dec 13 L 3t Duc 13 (x salary) {x salary) _EE"EITE_TL
Chairman
Glen Moreno 150,000 - - - - -
Executve directors
Jehn Fallon 262,569 43,639 306,208 45 200 v
Robin Freestone 478,507 37.077 515,584 105 i25 v
Wil Ethndge 397017 43,639 440,656 72 125 v
Non-executive directors
Dawvd Arculus 16,301 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 1,351 - - - - -
Ken Hydon 17,818 - - - - -
Josh Lewis 5.681 - - - - -
Linda Lormer (appointed 637 - - - - -
I July 2013)
Hansh Manwan {(appointed 180 - - - - -

I Ocrober 2013)

Note | Condittonal shares means shares which have vested but remam held subject to conunuing employment for a pre-defined
holding penod

Note 2 The current value of the executve directors’ holdings of ordinary and condimonal shares 1s based on the middle marker
value of Pearson shares of | 113 Op on 2! February 2014 aganst base salaries n 2013 Al execunve directors comfortably
exceeded the shareholding guidelines The shareholdng gurdelines do not apply to the charman and non-executive directors

Note 3 Ordinary shares inciude both ordinary shares hsted on the London Stock Exchange and Amercan Deposiiary Recerpts
(ADRs) hsted on the New York Stock Exchange The figures include both shares and ADRs acquired by individuals invesung part
aof thewr own after-tax annual bonus in Pearson shares unger the annual bonus annual bonus share matching plan

Note 4 The register of direclors interests (whrch 15 open 1o inspection during normal office hours) contans full detais of
directors’ shareholdings and options to subscribe for shares The market price on 3| Decernber 2013 was 1,341 Op per share
and the range during the year was 1,119 Op to | 365 Op

Note 5 There wera no movements in ordinary shares between | January 2014 and a month prior to the sign-off of this report

Nate 6 Ordinary shares do not nclude any shares vested but held pending release under a restnicted share plan

Graph removed




Shareholding guidelnes for executive directors
Execuuve directors are expected to build up a
substanual shareholding in the company in ine with the
policy of encouraging widespread employee ownership
and to align further the interests of executives and
shareholders With effect from 2014, target holding s
300% of salary for the chief execuuve and 200% of
salary for the other executive directors

Shares that count towards these guidelines include any
shares held unencumbered by the executive, ther
spouse and/or dependent children plus any shares
vested but held pending release under a restricted
share plan Executive directors have five years from the
date of appointment to reach the guideline

There are currently no mandatory share ownership
gutdelines below executive director level, although
employees are encouraged 1o become shareholders in
the company by retaining shares acquired through the
company’s discretonary and all-employee stock
programmes The shareholding gwdelines do not apply
to the ¢harrman and non-executive directors

Dilution and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the market,
treasury shares or newly-issuied shares to sansfy
awards under the company's various stock plans

For restncted stock awards under the long-term
incentive plan and matching share awards under the
annual bonus share matching plan, we would normally
expect to use existing shares

There are linuts on the amount of new-issue equity we
canuse In any rolling ten-year pertod, no more than
[0% of Pearson equity will be issued, or be ¢apable of
being 1ssued under all Pearson’s share plans, and no
more than 5% of Pearson equity will be 1ssued, or be
capable of being 1ssued under executive or
discretionary plans

Secuon 4 Governance 109

At 31 December 2013, stock awards to be sausfied
by new-issue equity granted in the last ten years
under all Pearson share plans amounted to | 6%

of the company's issued share capital No stock
awards granted in the last ten years under executive
or discretonary share plans will be sausfied by
new-issue equity

In additton, for existing shares no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in trust at any ume
Against this limit, shares held in trust at 31 December
2013 amounted to | 1% of the company’s issued
share capital

The headroom available for alt Pearson plans,
executive or discretionary plans and shares held in
trust 15 as follows

_i_-l_eadmnm 2013 ZP_tl E?i.l_
All Pearson plans 84% 83% 83%
Executive or discretionary plans 50% 50% 50%

Shares held in trust 39% 38% 3%

Executive directors’ nan-executive directorships

In accordance with policy the following executve
direciors served as non-executve directors elsewhere
and retained fees or other benefits for the penod
covered by this report as follows

Mame Company

HSBC Holdings plc

Feesa’benein.s_
£83,333

E;J;a Fairhead

QOrther executive directors served as non-executive
directors elsewhere but erther warved or did not
receive fees

|
|
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Report on directors’ remuneraton continued

Historical performance and remuneration

Total sharcholder return performance

We set out below Pearson’s total shareholder return
{TSR) performance relatve to the FTSE All-Share
index on an annual basis over the five-year period
2008 to 20! 3. This companson has been chosen
because the FTSE All-Share represents the broad
market index within which Pearson shares are traded
TSR s the measure of the returns that a company has
provided for s shareholders, reflecung share price
movements and assuming reinvestment of dividends
(source DataStream)

Graph removed

In accordance with the new regulations, this sectgon
also presents Pearson's TSR performance alongside
the single figure of total remuneration for the CEO

over the last five years and a summary of the vanable
pay outcomes relative to the prevailing maximum at
the orme The table below summarises the total
remuneration for the CEO over the last five years, and
the outcomes of annual and long-term incentive plans
as a proporuon of maximum

Fwnancral sear endirg 2009 00 Wl 2012 2013

Total remuneration — John Fallon

(single figure, 000s) - - - - 1,727
Total remuneration — Manore Scardino

{single figure, 000s) 6370 8466 834C 5330 -

Annual incentive — mcumbent
% of maximum) QU3% 921% 757% 242% 343%

Long-term mcentive — incumbent
(% of maximum) B0O% 975% 6B3% 367% Nil

Note | Marjore Scardino stepped down from the board on 31 December 2012 and John Fallon was appointed CEQ with effect
from | january 2013

Note 2 The annual ncentive 15 the actual annual incentive recewved by the incumbent as a percentage of maximum opportunity

MNote 3 The fong-term ncentive ts the pay-cut of performance-related restncted shares under the long-term ncenuive plan where
the year shown is the final year of the performance penod for the pu poses of calculaung the single wotal figure of remuneraton
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Comparative information

The following nformauon s mtended to provide
additional context regarding the total remuneranon
for executive directors

Relauve percentage change in remuneration for CEQ
The followmng table sets out the change between 2012
and 2013 in three elements of remuneration for the
CEOQ, in companison to the average for all employees

However, while the comnuitee considers the increase
n base pay for the CEQ relauve to the broader
employee population, benefits are driven by local
practices and eligibility is determined by level and
ndividual curcumstances which do not lend self to
comparison Swrularly, annuat incenuves are driven by
different factors throughout the organisation and so are
typically not compared

Allowances
Base and Annual
_ N __ salary__ benefits mcentve Tg‘t_tf;ﬂ
CEO 24% 77% 7%  -22%
Allemployees 5%  I1% 31% 8%

Note | The figures for the CEO are based on the
remuneration of Majorie Scardino for 2012 and of johin Fallon
for 2013

Note 2 The figures for ali employeas reflect average salanes
and average employee numbers each year Annual ncenuves
melude all plans ineluding sales incentives

Refative importance of pay spend

The committee constder directors’ remuneration mn the
context of the company’s allocation and disbursement
of resources to different stakeholders

In particular, we chose operating profit because this is
a measure of our ability to remvest in the company
We include drvidends because these constitute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Year-on-year change

i 2013 02 im %
Operaung profit 736 932 -196 -21%
Dividends 372 346 26 +8%
Total wages and

s_alarles 1,836 I,éIO __2_26_ +14%

MNote Wages and salaries include contiruing operauons only
and include directors 2012 15 restated on the same basis
Average employee numbers for conunuing operations for
2013 were 42,115 (2012 42 135} Further details are set out
in note 5 to the financial staternents on page 142

Secuon 4 Governance 1t

Information on changes to remuneration for 2014

Execurive divectors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salames for 2014 taking into account general economuc
and market condiuons, the level of increases made
across the company as a whole, the remuneration

of executives n similar positions in comparable
companes and individual performance

As a result of this review, the 2014 base salanes for the
CEQ and CFO are as follows

John Robin
Fallon Freestone

Base salary at

31 December 2013 £750,000 £545,000
£15,000 £11,000

!
ncrease 2 0% 2 0%

Base salary at

! Apri 2014 __£765,000 £556,000

Fult details will be set out in the annual remuneratton
report and included in the single figure of total
remuneration for 2014

Annual incentive
The key design principles underlying the company's
approach o annual incentives for 2014 are

s

full aignment of annual incentives with the global
educauon strategy to reinforce a ‘one Pearson’ focus,

-

a clear, transparent coherent, consistent, orgamisation-
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incentive framework for
bines of Business Geographies and Enabling funcuons.

> the size of the overall annual incentive pay-out wilf be
hnked to overall Pearson performance
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

The pnnciples that underhe the ‘one Pearson’
approach to funding are that

there will be a single annual incentive pool for Pearsan
which will vary accordmg to the performance of the
whole company;

for 2014, the overall Pearson performance measures
and weightings will be adjusted earnings per share
(60% weighung), sales (20%) cash flow (20%),

there will be a theoretical ‘on target’ size for the annual
incentive pool which is the sum of all employees’
annual thcentive opportuniues,

there will be scope to flex the size of the pool upwards
if performance exceeds target (up to a cap) and
downwards if performance falls short of target (down
to a threshold below which no annual incentive would
be paid} This flex will be sufficiently sensitive to
demonstrate a clear hnk between overall performance
and the annual incentive pay-out, but not so sensitive
that there 15 significant uncertainty in the total pay-out
The committee will set a range around which the
annual incentive pay-out can flex,

the Pearson financial targets will be set each year as
part of the normal operanng plan process The CEO
and CFO will recommend the overali Pearson incentive
funding metrics (including performance measures,
targets and weightings) to the commuttee for approva
in the normal way,

the Pearson-denved pay-out may be infermed and
modified (up or down) reflecting the circumstances
at the ume consistent with the committee s normal
adjustment powers

In relation to the operation of the annual incentive
framework for the executive directors and the
Pearson Executive

there will be no change i individual annual incentve
opportunities,

for 2014, there would be one mechamsm for
determining annual ncentve for an indvidual, namely
a combmaton of Pearson-wide performance and
mdividual goals,

> the sum of the CEC's and the Pearson Executves' ‘on
target’ annual incentive consttutes the incentive pool
for this group which flexes up or down based on
overall Pearson performance,

indmrdual performance is assessed aganst goals set at
the start of the year;

~

individual pay-outs up to indwidual maximum
opportunities and within the total pool are
recommended by the CEO (or by the chairman in the
case of the CEQ himself} for review and, in the case of
the executive directors, approval by the committee

~

The committee considers the performance targels
for 2014 to be commercally sensitive Details of
performance measures, weighungs and targets will be
disclosed in the annual remuneration report for 2014
if and to the extent that the committee deems them
to be no longer commercially sensitive




-

~

Long-term sncentves

The committee reviewed the design and operation

of the long-term incentives plan with the following
changes for performance-related awards to be granted
to members of the Pearson Executive n 2014

the weighting of the performance metrics will be
50% on earnings per share growth, 33 3% on return
oninvested capital and 16 7% on relanve total
shareholder return

performance will continue to be tested over three
years and 75% of the vested shares will conunue to

be released at that point However, there will be a
mandatory restction on participants’ ability to dispose
of the 75% of the vested shares (other than to meet
personal tax habilities) for a further two years
Furthermore, partcipants nghts to the release of

the 25% of the vested shares will be subject to
continued employment over the same period

We have set targets for the 2014 awards that are
consistent with the company’s strategic objectives
over the period to 2016

Subject to approval of the company's remuneration
policy. the performance measures and targets for the
2014 long-term incenuve awards to the executive
directors and other members of the Pearson Execunve
that will be made as soon as practicable after the AGM
will be as follows

Section 4 Governance 13

Pay-out Pay-out

Performance Performance at Pay-out at
measure Wc!gﬂ.ﬁ\g perwod  threshold progression  maxsmum
100%

30% for EPS

2016 for EPS growth

EPS compared growth Straight- of
growth 50% to 2013 of 60% ine 120%
30% 100%

for 50% for for

ROIC ROIC ROIC

ROIC 333% 2016 of 65% of 70% of 75%
100%

at

Relative 2014 to 30% at Scraight-  upper
TSR~ 167% 2017 median hne quartle

We will set the level of individual awards consistent
with those seen in recent years and below the policy
maximum taking into account

the face value of indmduat awards at the time of grant,
assuming that performance targets are met in full,

-~

W

market practice for comparable companies and market
assessments of total remuneration from our
independent adwisers,

individual rofes and responsibilities; and

~*

company and indvidual performance.

~

At the ume of writing, the commuttee has yer to
approve the 201 4 long-term incentive awards for
the executive directors and other members of
the Pearson Executive
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Report on directors’ remunerauon continued

Fult details of individual awards and of the performance
measures, weightings and rargets for 2014 will be set
out In the annual remuneration report for 2014.

For 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the
calcutauon of refauve total shareholder return will be
moved to the pertod running up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period will be increased to
three months more in line with institutional investors’
preferances

Annual bonus share matching

The previous annual bonus share matching plan will
cease 1o operate with the last awards made in 2013
in respect of annual incentive for 2012 We have
not made any compensatory adjustments to annual
or long-term ncentive opportunities to take this
INto account

Fees for the chairman and non-executive directors
The chairman’s and non-executive directors’ fees were
reviewed for 2014

As a consequence of that review, the basic non-
executive directors’ fee, and the fees for committee
chawrmanship and commuittee membership were
increased Fees for the charmanship and membership
of the reputation and responsibility committee were
also introduced for the first trne The salary for the
chairman remains unchanged

The policy and future arrangements are set out
on page 92 n the directors’ remuneration pohicy
report

Approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

David Arculus Director
10 March 2014
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc

Report on the financial statements

Qur opiriion
In our opiicn

The financial statements defined below, give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and company’s
affairs as at 3| December 2013 and of the Group’s
profit and of the Group’s and company's cash flows

for the year then ended;

The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union,

The company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the consohdated financial
statements, Arucle 4 of the JAS Regulatuon

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we
say in the remainder of this report

Separate opinion in refation to IFRSs as ssued by

the 1ASB

As explained it note | to the financial statements, the
Group, in addion to applying IFRSs as adapted by the
European Union, has also apphed IFRSs as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB)

In our opmion the consolidated finanaal statements
comply with [FRSs as issued by the 1ASB

What we have audited

The consohdated financial statements and company
financral statements {the “financial statements’), which
are prepared by Pearson plc, comprise

the consohdated and company balance sheet 4s at
31 December 2013,

the consolidated income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the year then ended,

the consohdated and company statements of changes
in equity and cash flow statements for the year then
ended, and

» the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant aceounting policies and other
explanatory informauon.

The financial reporung framework that has been
apphad in thewr preparatton comprises applicable law
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as
regards the company, as applied n accordance with the
provisions of the Compames Act 2006

Certain disclosures required by the financial reporting
framework have been presented elsewhere in the
annual report and accounts (the ‘annual report’),
rather than m the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced from the financial
statements and are identified as audited ( ’)
What an audit of financial statements mnvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with

International Standards on Audiing (UK and lreland)

(ISAs (UK & trefand)) An audit involves obtaining

evidence about the amounts and disclosures mn the

financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from

matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or

error. This includes an assessment of

~

whether the accounung poliaes are appropriate to the
Group's and company s arcumstances and have been
consistenty applted and adequately disclosed,

» the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and

the overail presentation of the financial statements

~

a2
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial !

information in the annual report to 1dentify material
inconsistencies with the audited financal statements
and to idenufy any mformanon that s apparently
matertally incorrect based on, or materally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit if we become aware of any
apparent matenal misstatements or meonsistencies

we consider the imphcations for our report




Overview of our audit approach

Matenality

We set certain thresholds for matenaity These helped
us to determune the nature timing and extent of our
audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and on the financral
statements as a2 whole

Using our professional judgement, we determined
materiality for the consolidated financiai statements as
a whole to be £32m This is based on 5% of profit
before tax, after adjusting for non-recurring items such
as gain on disposal of subsidiares, this being an
appropriate measure of the group’s underlying
performance

Wae agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them nusstatements idenufied dunng our
audit above £2m as well as musstatements below that
amount that, in our view, warranted reportung for
qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of our qudit

The Group I1s organised into four business segments,
being North Amenican Education, International
Education, Professional and FT Group, plus the
investment 1n assocrate Pengun Random House Each
segment comprises a nuraber of reparung units, The
consolidated financial statements cornpnise these
reporting units plus the Group's centralised funcuons

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audir,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporung umits by us, as the Group
engagement team, or component auditors within PwC
UK and from other PwC nerwork firms operating
under our instructon. Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the audit worl at
those reportng units to be able to conclude whether
suffictent appropriate audit evidence had been obtained
as a basts for our opinion on the consohidated financial
statements as a whole

Section 5 Finanwial statements 17

Across these segments, we identified two reporung
units in the US and UK that required an audit of their
complete financial informaton due to size alone, plus a
further nine reporung units m the US, UK, Brazid, China
and South Afiica that required specified procedures
on certam transactions and balances We also abtained
an audit opinion cn the financial imformauon of the
associate Penguin Random House Our audi work

at these reporting units and at head office gave us
coverage of approximately 80% of the Group's profit
before tax This, together with procedures at the
consohdated Group level and at the Group's shared
service centres, provided the evidence we needed for
our opinion on the consohdated financral statements
taken as a whole

Areas of particular audit focus

In preparing the financial statements, the directors
made a number of subjective judgements, for example
in respect of significant 2ccounting estimates that
nvolved making assumptions and considering future
events that are inherently uncertain We primarily
focused our work in these areas by assessing the
directors' judgements against available ewidence,
forrming our own judgements, and evaluaning the
disclosures i the financial statements

In our audit, we tested and examined information,
using sampling and other audiuing techriques, to
the extent we considered necessary to provide

a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions

We obtained audit evidence through testung the
effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures
or a combination of both

We considered the following areas to be those that
required particular focus m the current year Thisis not
a complete list of all nsks or areas of focus idenufied by
our audit We discussed these areas of focus with the
audit committee Thesr report on those matters that
they constdered to be significant sssues in relation to
the financial statements 15 set out on pages 68 and 69
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic continued

Asea of locus

How the scope of our audic 1ddressed the area of focus

Risle of fraud tn revenue recogrution

Auditing standards require us to consider the risk of
fraud I1n revenue recogrition

We focused on matenal products and services where
revenue recognition practices are particularly complex
and subject to esumates, betng

» muluple element arrangements, such as the provision
of supplementary (print or digital) matenals or
training with textbooks, where revenue 1s recognised
for each element as if it were an individual
contractual arrangement requiring the estmaton of
its fair value, and

> certain long-term contracts in the Education
segments, where revenue Is recognised using
estimated percentage of completion based on costs

Risle of management overtide of internal controls

Auditing standards require us to consider the risk of
management override of nternal controls

We evaluated the relevant systems and tested the
internal controls over the accurate and complete
recording of revenue

Ve assessed the accounting treatment of new
coniracts at incepuon, including exarminaton of
evidence supportng key assumptions and esumates
We assessed the profitability and percentage of
completion esumates made for material long-term
revenue contracts and assessed muluple-element
arrangements and the related fair value allocavons
We performed substantive tesung of revenue
recorded during the year and evaluated any changes
in estirnates to determine if they were indicators of
management btas

We also tested manual journals posted to revenue to
determine thewr appropriateness and comphance with
Group revenue recognition policies

We assessed the overall control enwvironment of

the Group, mcluding the arrangements for staff to
‘whistleblow’ inappropriate actons, and interviewed
sentor management and the Group's internal audit
function We examined the significant accountng
estimates and judgements relevant to the financial
statements for evidence of bias by the directors that
may represent a nsk of matenal rmisstatement due to
fraud We also tested manual journal entries, including
consohdauon entries, and mcorporated elements of
unpredictability ir the nature, uming and extent of our
audit procedures

Penguin Random House transaction

On | July 2013, management announced the compleaon
of the Penguin Random House combinawon which
resulted in a number of complex accounting and
business model changes as follows

y disposal accounung, including the gain on the sale,

» valuanon of the new business and ntangible
assets, and

» associate accounung, ncluding alkignment of
accounting policies and presentanon of results
in the consohdated financial statements

We focused on thus area because 1t was a complex
transactuon which required the directors to exercise
a significant level of judgement

We evaluated the directors’ assessment of this
transacton as a disposal of a business segment and

an acquisition

We evaluated the valuanion of the bustness and
associated gam on disposal We also assessed the
resulung asscclate accounting including the fair value
acquisition adyustments such as recognition of mtangible
assets and alignment of accounting policies and their
application For the valuation exercises we assessed the
directors’ cash flow forecasts, comparing them to board
approved plans and challenged the underlying
assumprions




Prowision for uncertain tax iabihues

The Group 1s subject to several tax regimes due to the
geographical diversity of 1ts businesses

The directors are required to exercse significant
judgement n deterrmining the appropriate amount to
provide in respect of potential tax exposures and
uncertain tax provisions The most significant of these
relate to US tax

We focused on this area because of the inherent
|Judgements required in estimatng the amount of any
proviston required Changes i assumprions can
matenatly impact the level of prowisions recorded i the
financial staternents

Returmns provistons

We focused on this area because there are material
judgementai provisions for anticipated book returns
within the Education segments partcularly as the
Group transitions from print to digital

Section 5 Financial statements 119

How the scope of our audit addressed che area of focur

We obtained an understanding of the Group's tax
strategy to identify tax risks relating to business and
legsiatve developments Ve recaiculated the directors’
vatuation of tax provisions and determined whether the
calculauons were in hne with the Group's tax policies
and had been apphed consistently

We evaluated key underlying assumptions, particularly
in the US and in termtories with new cross border

tax structures, having due regard to ongoing
correspondence between the Group and local

tax authorues

We tested the calculation of the provisions, assessing
judgements for reasonableness agamst historical
experience and the impact on returns of the

ongoing business transition from print to digital

We also tested controls in the shipment and returns
pravisioning processes

Valuauon of pre-publicavon assets and inventones

We focused on this area because there are material pre-
publicaton assets and mventones within the Education
segments Judgement is required to evaiuate the valuation
of these assets wiich may be more complex during the
transiwon from print to digital.

Goodwill impairment reviews

We focused on this area because the Group carries
significant goodwill and acquired intangible asset balances
There 15 judgement in the identfication and aggregation
of cash generating units (CGUSs) and in the assumptions
used in the annual goodwill impairment review

We evaluated the recoverability of the pre-publication
assets and inventortes held, by assessing actual
expenence against historical estimates and in light

of business transiwon from prnt to digital

We also tested controls i the pre-publication assets
and mnventories processes

We tested management's impairment analysis by
examining their identification and aggregation of

CGUs and by evaluating the underlying assumpuions
through assessment of forecasts. market conditions

and sensiivity analysis and through assessing the
histortcal accuracy of forecasis and budgets

We assessed management s calculauon of discount rates
and perpetuity growth rates and we tested the integrity
of the valuanon model
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independent auditors' report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Going concern

Under the Listng Rules we are required to review the
directors' statement, set out on page 72, in relation to
going concern We have nothing to report having
performed our review

As noted i the directors’ statement, the directors
have concluded that it 15 appropnate o prepare the
consolidated and company financial statements using
the going concern basts of accounting The going
concern basis presumes that the Group and company
have adequate resources 1o remain in operation, and
that the directors intend them to do so, for at least
one year from the date the financial statements were
signed As part of our audit we have concluded that the
directors’ use of the going concern basis 1s appropriate

However, because not all future events or condiuons
can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee
as to the Group's and the company's abiity to
continue as a going concern

Opimions on ather martters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

the information given in the strategic report and the
directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with

the financial statements, and

the part of the directors’ remunerauon report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Compantes Act 2006

w

~

o

Other matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Adequacy of accounting records and informanion and
explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required

1o report to you o, in our opmnton

we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for aur audrt, or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audtt have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

the company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no excepuons to report ansing from this
responsibrhty

Directars’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required

to report to you if, i our optnion, certain disclosures
of directors' remunerauon specified by law have not
been made We have no exceptions to report ansing
from this responsibility

(3




e

[

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are reguired to review the
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the Company’s compliance with mine provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code) We
have nothing to report having performed our review

On page 74 of the annual report, as required by the
Cade Provision C | 1, the directors state that they
consider the annual report taken as a whole to be
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for members to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy
On pages 68 and 69, as required by C 3 8 of the
Code, the audit commitiee has set out the significant
issues that it considered in relation to the finangal
statements, and how they were addressed Under ISAs
(UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, in
our opinion

the statesment given by the directors is matenally
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group
acquired in the course of performing cur audit; or

the section of the annual report describing the work
of the audit committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the audit committee
We have no exceptions to report ansing from this
responsibility.
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Other iformatton in the annual report

Under ISAs (UK & ireland}, we are required to report.
o you if, 1 our opimon, wformation i the annual
report s

» materially inconsistent with the informaton i the
audited finanoial statements, or

» apparently materially ncorrect based on or materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and
company acquired in the course of performing our
audit, or

» 15 otherwise nusleading

We have no excepuons to report ansing from thus
responstbility
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independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Responsibilises for the financal statements and
the audit

Our responsibiliies and those of the directors

As explamed more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibiliues set out on page 74, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the consoldated and
company financal statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view

QOur responsibility is to audit and express an opmion on

the consolidated and company financial statements in

accordance with applicable law and 15As (UK &

Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for

Auditors ( D

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a body

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compantes Act 2006 and for no other purpose

We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responstbility for any other purpose or to any other
person Lo whom this report s shown or into whose
hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by

OUL-PFIOr CONSeNnt in wWiting
4 vt LUPACA,
Stuart Newman {Senror Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

10 March 2014

W

MNotes {

(a} The mamntenance and integrity of the Pearson
plc website is the responsibiiity of the directors,
the worl carried out by the auditors does not
irvolve consideranion of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no responstbility
for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were initiaily
presented on the website

{b) Legislavion i the United iKingdom governing
the preparation and disseminaton of financral
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdicuions
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 December 2013

Ntes 2083 002
All figures in £ millvons e _ _ _ _ Restated
Sales 2 5,069 4959
Costofgoodssold s 2312 (.187)
Gross profit 2,757 2,772
Operating expenses 4 (2.353) (2.1810)
Loss on closure of subsidiary - (H13)
Share of results of jont ventures and associates .l 54 9
Operating profit 2 458 487
Finance costs 6 (1in (115)
Finance income ~ _ o 3 6 35 9
Profit before tax 382 391
Income tax - e 7 (87)  (138)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 295 253
Profit for the year from discontinued operations R 244 6l
Profit for theyear o 539 34
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 538 3k
Non-controlling interest e : ——en b3
Earnings per share for profit from conunuing and discontinued operations
ateributable to equity holders of the company during the year
{expressed in pence per share}
— bastc B 66 6p 387p
— diluted g 66 5p 3B 6p
Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations artributable
ta equity holders of the company during the year
(expressed In pence per share)
— basic e 364p 3t tp
— diluted _ ) 8 363p 31 0p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December 2013

Notes
All figures w £ mibhons

Profit for the year

{tems that may be reclassified to the income statement

Net exchange differences on translation of foreign aperattons — Group

MNet exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - associates

Currency translation adjustment disposed - Group

Attributable tax 7
ltems that are not reclasstfied to the income statement

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligattons — Group 25
Remeasurament of retrement benefit obligavons — associates

Attributable tax 7

Other comprehensive expense for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Aztributable to
Equity holders of the company
Non-controlting interest
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Section 5 Fmancial statements

Consohdated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013

125

ﬂhgures in £ riflons _ o Notes 013 2042
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 342 327
intangible assets i 5.801 6218
Investments in joint ventures and associates 12 1,092 15
Deferred income tax assets 13 250 229
Financial assets - Dervauve financial instruments 1 I i74
Retirement benefit assets 5 86 -
Other financial assets is 94 3!
Trade and other receivables ) ) ) ) S L 2 70 79
o 7846 7,073
Current assets
intangible assets — Pre-publication 20 717 666
Inventones pd 224 26l
Trade and other receivables 2 1,173 1104
Financial assets - Dervauve financaal instruments 16 3 4
Ftnancial assets — Marlcetable securites 14 6 6
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafis) 7 729 1,062
) 2862  3.103
Assets classified as held for sale 32 223 1,i72
Towlassers S X TR TR )
Liabilizies
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilines - Borrowings 18 (1,693} (2,010)
Financial kabiliwes — Dervative financial instruments & {48) -
Deferred income tax habilites i3 {612) (601)
Retirement benefit obligations 25 {142) {172)
Prowisions for other liabiliues and charges 3 (77 (110
Other liabihties 24 {257} (282)
{2.829) (3,175)
Current fabiities
Trade and other habiliues i1 {1,505) {1.556)
Financial hiabliies ~ Borrowings ie (533) (262)
Current income tax liabdiues {164) (291)
Prowisions for other habihuies and charges L _ _ 3 (112) (38)
(2,314) (2147
Liabilittes directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 3 (82) (316)
ﬂgIlabtlltJes_ o ___:__—_ L ) (5.225')“__:(523_85
L5706 5710,

Met assets
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 3| December 2013

All figures i £ mulhens _ i _ Notes 2013 2012
Equicy

Share capital 27 205 204
Share premium 17 2,568 2,555
Treasury shares b (98) (103)
Translation reserve (103) 28
Retained earntngs . o 3.128 2,902
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5,700 5,686
MNon-controlling interest _ & 24
Total equicy L 5706 5710

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 10 March 2014 and signed
on its behalf by ("B

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer

3




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2013

Secton 5 Financal statements

127

Equity attributzble to equigy holders of the company

Share Share  Trcasury Transhcoon  Retained :mm’v::ﬁ:g Toal
.A_f-f_flglirf-s n £ milons capital piemium shures _ _reserve carnings Total nterest equity
At | January 2013 04 2555 (103) 128 2302 5686 24 5710
Profit for the year - - - - 538 538 ! 539
Other comprehensive expense - - - {231) 62 {169) 4 (173
Equnty-settled transactions - - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - - - - -
Issue of ordmary shares under share
opuon schemes ! 13 - - - 4 - 14
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47 - - {47 - (47}
Release of treasury shares -- - 52 - (52) - - -
Put options over non-controlling
interest - - - - - - - -
Changes 1in non cantrolling interest - - - i3 I3 (15) (2)
Dividends _ o = — - ~ (372) {372) - (372)
At 3| December 2013 o 205 1,568 (98) (103) 3,128 5700 & 5706

i e = ..-_:_ Lquy smnburble "q‘i“.’li‘;_'imf of the campany -

Share State Tiewsury  Trvanclatton Rowned com—[;‘;::g 1ol
A_H_{igums in & mddlons . o upiai prenuum shares | yeserve £aMmings Teowd _imeresi  oquiy
At t Jarnary 2012 204 2544 (149) 364 2980 5943 19 5962
Profit for the year — - - - 3 3 3 314
Other comprehensive expense - - - (236) (52) (288) (2) (290)
Equity-settled transacuions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-sertled transacuons - - - - (6) {6} - {6)
Issue of ordinary shares under share
option schemes - H - - - I - It
Purchase of treasury shares - - - - - - - -
Release of treasury shares - - 46 - (46) - - -
Put options over non-controlling
Interest — - - - 39 39 - 39
Changes 10 non-controling interest - - - - (10 (10) 6 {4)
Dwdends . - - - (346 (346 (Z) (348)
At 31 December 2012 204 2,555 (103) 128 2,902 5686 24 5710

The translation reserve includes exchange differences ansing from the translavon of the net investment in foreign
operauons and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 3| Deacember 2013

Al figures in £ miflions . _ Motes 1013 . 2082
Cash flows from operating activities

MNet cash generated from operauons 34 684 216
interest paid {82} {75}
Taxpad L e (246} {€5)
Net cash generated from operating activinies 356 776
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisiion of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 {48) (716)
Acqursition of joint ventures and associates (10) (3%9)
Purchase of investments (64) (10
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {418) {78)
Purchase of intangible assets {64) (73)
Disposal of subsidiarres, net of cash disposed 30 {132) (n
Proceeds from sale of associates 2 -
Proceeds from sale of investments 2 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 34 28 |
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 3
Proceeds from sale of iquid resources I3 23
Investment in hquid resources {14) (I9)
Imterest recewed 9 9
Dividends recewved from joint ventures and associates 64 27
Net cash used In investing activities {3309 (883)
Cash flows from financing acuvittes

Praceeds {rom issue of ordinary shares 7 {4 I
Purchase of treasury shares 8 (47 -
Proceeds from borrowings 319 327
Loans to related parues {(44) -
Loans advanced {5} -
Liquid resources acquired - {1
Repayment of borrowings {225) -
Fiance lease principal payments ) 8
Dividends paid to company's shareholders 9 (372) (346}
Dividends paid to non-controliing interest - {2}
Transactions with non-controlfingnterest .~~~ »3 {74 {4
MNet cash used n financing activities (444} (23)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalenes 2t (24)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents {397) {154)
Cash and cash equivalents at begnning of year .~~~ 1137 1291
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year _ 17 740 137

The consohdated cash flow staternent includes discontinued cperauons (see note 3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information

Pearson plc (the company) its subsidiaries and
assoctates (together the Group) are internanonal
media businesses covering education, business
informauon and consumer publishing

The company 1s a public limited company ncorporated
and domiciled 1n England The address of its registered
office 1s 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has its primary sung on the London
Stock Exchange and is also listed on the New Yark
Stock Exchange

These consolidated financial statements were
approved for issue by the board of directors
on |0 March 2014

I Accounting policies

The prinaipal accounting polictes apphied 0 the
preparaton of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below

a Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the gong concern basts and in accordance
with Internatsonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and IFRS interpretations Committee interpretations as
adopted by the European Union {EU)} and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companias
reporung under IFRS In respect of the accounting
standards applicable to the Group there s no difference
between EU-adopted and 1ASB-adopted IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the histoncal cost convention as
modtfied by the revafuauon of financial assets and
habiliwes {including dervauve financial instruments)
to fair value through profit or loss

{ Interpretotions and amendments to published standaids
effective 2013

The following amendments and inter pretations were
adopted m 2013

Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits (200 1),
effecuve for annual reporung pertods beginning on
or after | January 2013 The amendments include the
elirination of the corndor approach changes to the
calcufauon of the net mierest and service cost
components and changes to disclosure The 2012
results have been restated for 1AS [9 (201 1} with
the results as follows

Operaung profit reduced by £4m
Net finance costs increased by £{5m
Income tax charge reduced by £4m

The remeasurement of retirement benefit obliganons
charge in the statement of other comprehensive
income reduced by £15m

if the results for 2013 had been prepared under IAS 19
(rev 2008) the service cost would have been £4m
lower and the net nterest iIncome would have been
£28m higher

» Amendments to IAS | ‘Presentatton of Financial
Statements’ — Presentation of {tems and Other
Comprehensive lncome, effective for annual
reporung periods beginning on or after | july 2012
The amendments require the grouping of items in
other comprehensive Income into those that may
be reclassified to the income statement in subsequent
periods, and those that will not The statement of
other comprehensive income has been updated to
present this informauon

» The 1ASB issued a ‘package of five' new and amended
standards together {FRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements , IFRS | | ‘Joint Arrangemenss’ and {FRS 12
‘Disclosures of Involvement with Other Enuties’ have
been issued |AS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’
(Revised 201 1} has been amended following the issuance
of IFRS 10 and retains the guidance for separate
financial statements AS 2B 'Investments in Associates
and foint Ventures (Rewvised 201 {) has been amended
following the 1ssuance of tFRS {0 and IFRS 1 1. All three
new standards and two amended standards are not
mandatory for the Group untl | january 2014
However, the Group has early adopted these
standards and amendmenis as of | January 2013.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’, effecuve for annual
reporting perods beginning on or after { January 2013
The standard defines fair value, provides guidance on
its determination, and introduces disclosure
requirements on fair value measurements

w

Amendments to IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments —
Disclosures’ regarding asset and hability offsetung

~

Amendments to |AS 36, ‘fmpawrment of assets', on
the recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets This amendment removed certain disclosures
of the recoverable amount of CGUs which had been
mcluded in 1AS 36 by the ssue of IFRS 13 The
amendment ts not mandatory for the Group unul

} fanuary 2014 However, the Group has early
adepted the amendments as of | January 2013
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounting polictes contunued

a. Basis of preparation continued

With the excepuion of IAS |9 ‘Employee Benefits
(2011)’, the adopucn of these new pronouncements
from | January 2013, does not have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statements Disclosure
requirements have been updated as required

2 Standaids, nterpretations and omendments

to published standatds that are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following new
praoncuncements that are not yet effectuve

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classification, measurement and recognitton of financial
assets and hatwhties The Group s yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9, and will do so once the remaining
sections of the standard are completed

IFRIC 21, "Levies’ details the accounting for an
obligation to pay a levy that s not ncome tax As the
Group 1s not currently subjected to significant tevies
the impact on the Group is not matenal

3 Crtcal accounting assumptians and judgements

The preparation of financial statements n conformity
wath IFRS requires the use of certain crtical accounting
assumpuons It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting polices The areas requiring a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptons
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are discussed i the refevant
accounting policies under the following headings

Intangible assets Goodwill

Intangible assers: Pre-publcation assets
Taxanon

Ermnployee benefits Pension obligations
Revenue recognition

b Consohdation

! Busmess combmations The acquisitton method of
accounting 15 used to account for business combinations
The consideration transferred for the acquisition

of a subsidary s the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabdites incurred and the equity interest issued by
the Group The consideraton transferred includes the
fatr value of any asset or liability resulting from a
conungent consideration arrangement ACquISiion
related costs are expensed as incurred in the operanng
expenses ne of the income statement

identifiable assets and conungent assets acquired and
dentfiable habidives and contingent hiabdities assumed
in a business combination are measured niaally at
thesr fair values at the acquisition date For matenal
acquisitions, the fair value of the acquired intangible
assets 15 determined by an independent valuer The
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest In the acquiree and the
acquisttion date fair value of any previous equity
mterest in the acquiree over the far value of the
identfiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill

See note 1 e(l) for the accounting pohcy on goodwill

It this 15 less than the fair value of the net assets of the

subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase, the ( ")
difference 1s recognised directy in the income statement

On an acquisiton-by-acquisition basts, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or ar the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

2 Subsidiaries Subsidiaries are enutes over which the
Group has conwrol The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, varable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the abihry o affect those returns through its power
over the entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control s transferred to the Group
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases

3. Transactions wrth non-contiolfing mterests Transactions

with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss

of control are accounted for as equity transactions, (
that 1s as transactions with the owners in thewr capacity

as owners. Any surplus or deficit ansing from disposals

to a non-controlimg interest s recorded in equity

For purchases from a non-controlling interest, the

difference between consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of the subsidiary is
tecorded in equity

4 Jomt ventures arid associates joint ventut es are enotes in
which the Group holds an mnterest on a long-tetm basis
and has nights to the net assets through conuractually
agreed sharing of contro! Associates are entiies over
which the Group has significant influence but not the
power 1o control the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting nzhts Investrnents in joint ventures
and assoaates are accounted for by the equity method
and are witially recognised at the faw value of
consideranon transferred




I Accounting policies continued

b Conschdation contmued

The Group's share of its joint ventures' and associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses 1s recognised in the
income statement and 1ts share of post-acquisinon
fNovements in reserves Is recogrised in reserves

The Group’s share of its joint ventures” and associates’
resuits 1s recognised as a component of operatng profic
as these operations form part of the core publishing
business of the Group and are an integral part of
existing wholly-owned businesses The cumulative
post-acquisiion movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses i a joint venture or associate equals or
exceeds its interest i1 the joint venture or associate the
Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture or assocate.

c Foreign currency transhation

{ Functronal and presentation currency Iterns included in
the financial statements of each of the Group's enuues
are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
{the ‘funcuonal currency’} The consolidated financal
statements are presented i sterfing, which is the
company's functional and presentation currency

2 Transactions and bolances Foreign currency
transacuons are translated mte the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailling at the dates of the
transactions Foretgn exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactons and
from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and lrabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
axcept when deferred in equity as qualfying net
nvestment hedges

3 Gioup compames The results and finanaial posiion
of all Group companies that have a funcuonal currency
different from the presentation currency are wanslated
into the presentation currency as follows

t) assets and labilines are translated at the closing rate
at the date of the balance sheet,

u} income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates,

) all resuling exchange differences are recogmnised
as a separate component of equity
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On consolidauon, exchange differences ansing from
the transiation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity The Group treats specific
nter-company loan balances, which are not entended
to be repaid in the foreseeable future, as part of its net
mvestment VWhen a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the mcome
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group s the
US dollar The average rate for the year agamnst sterling
was $1 57 (2012 $! 59) and the year end rate was

$1 66 (2012 %1 63)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at hustorical
cost less depreciaton Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable
to bringing the asset to its working condition for
mtended use Land s not depreciated Deprecianon
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost less their residual vaiues
over ther esaimated useful kves as follows

Buddings (freeho[d)_
Buildings (leasehold)
Plant and equipment

20-50 years
over the period of the lease
3-10years

The assets’ restdual values and vseful ives are
reviewed and adjusted f appropnate, at each balance
sheet date

The carrying value of an asset is wnitten down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
15 greater than 1ts estimated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

I Goodwil! For the acquismion of subsidianes made

on or after | January 2010 goodwill represents the
excess of the consideraton transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and

the acquisition date fawr value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over e fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired For the acquisiuon of
subsidiartes made from the date of transiuon to IFRS
to 3| December 2009 goodwill represents the excess
of the cost of an acquisiton over the far value of the
Group's share of the net idenufiable assets acquired
Goodwill on acquisitans of substdiaries 15 included m
intangible assets Goodwill on acquisiion of associates
and joint ventures represents the excess of the cost of

|
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I Accounting pohcies conunued

e Intangible assets contnued

an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share
of the net Wdenufiable assets acquired Goodwili on
acquisitions of associates and joint ventures is included
m investments in assocates and joint ventures

Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment and

carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

An impatrment loss 1s recognised to the extent

that the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the
hugher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use
These calculations require the use of estmates and
significant management judgement A description of the
key assumptions and sensivities s included in note | 1
Goodwilt 1s allocated to aggregated cash-generaung
urits for the purpose of impairment testung The
allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-generatung
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combinaton in which the goodwill arose

Gams and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relatng to the
entty sold

IFRS 3 'Business Combinatons’ has not been applied
retrospecuvely to business combnations before the
date of transition to IFRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal use 1s capitalised at cost Software acquired in
matenal business combinations 1s capitahsed at its far
value as determined by an mdependent valuer
Acquired software 1s amortised on a straight-ine basis
over its estimated useful Iife of between three and
eight years

3 Intemally developed software Internal and external
casts incurred during the prefiminary stage of
developing computer sofoware for mternal use are
expensed as incurred Internaf and external costs
incurred to develop computer software for internal
use during the application development stage are
capitalised if the Group expects economic benefits
from the development Capitalisation in the applicaton
development stage begins once the Group can rehably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software Internally developed
software 1s amorused on a straight-hine basis over its
estimated useful ife of berween three and eight years

4 Acquired intangible assets Acquired intangible assets
include customer hists and relatonships, trademarks
and brands, publishing rights, content and technology
These assets are capitalised on acquisiaon at cost and
included i intangible assets Intangible assets acquired
in material business combinations are capitahsed at
thewr fair value as determined by an mdependent valuer
Intangible assets are amorused over their esumated
useful lives of between two and 20 years, using an
amortisation methad that reflects the pattern of

their consumption

5 Pre-publicaton assets Pre-pubhication assets
represent direct costs incurred in the development

of educational programmes and tiles pnor to their
publication These costs are recogmised as current
intangible assets where the utle will generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
rehably Pre-publicanion assets are amortised upon
publicauon of the utle over esumated economic hives
of five years or less, being an estimate of the expected
operatng hfe cycle of the ntle, with a higher proporton
of the amorusauon taken in the earher years

The investment in pre-pubhcauon assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operations
tn the cash flow staterment (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-publication
assets and the determination of the amortisanon
profile involve a significant degree of judgement based
on historical trends and management estmation of
future potental sales An incorrect amortisation profite
could result in excess amounts being carned forward as
ntangible assets that would otherwise have been written
off to the mcome statement n an earlier penod

Rewiews are performed regularly to esumate
recoverability of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets 15 set out in note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as available for
sale \nvestments, are non-derwative financial assets
measured at esumated fair value Changes i the
fair value are recorded i equity in the fair value
reserve On the subsequent disposal of the asset,
the net fair value gains or losses are taken to the
INcome statement




I Accounting pohicies continued

g Inventories

Inventories are stated at the fower of cost and met
reahsable value Cost 1s determined using the first 1
first out (FIFO) method. The cost of finshed goods
and worlcin progress comprises raw marenals, direct
labour, ather direct costs and related production
overheads Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling
price in the ardinary course of business, less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale Provisions are made
for slow moving and obsolete stock

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalues to authors are included within
trade and other receivables when the advance 1s paid
less any provision required to adjust the advance to

its net realisable value The reakisable value of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in determming the profitability of individual author
contracts I the esumated realisable value of author
contracts is oversiated, this will have an adverse effect
on operaung profits as these excess amounts will be
written off

The recoverability of royalty advances is based upon
an annual detalded management review of the age of
the advance, the future sales projections for new
authors and prior sales history of repeat authers
The royalty advance s expensed at the contracted
or effectve royalty rate as the related revenues are
earned Royalty advances which will be consumed
within one year are held in current assets Royalty
advances which will be consumed after one year are
held in non-current assets

i Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents i the cash flow statement
include cash i hand deposits hetd on call with banis,
other short-term highly hiquid mvestments with
original mawunties of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are included 1n borrowings
tn current kabilities in the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable secunties with
matunties of greater than three months do not gualtfy
as cash and cash equivalents Movements on these
financial instruments are classified as cash flows

from financing acuivities i the cash flow statement
where these amourts are used to offset the
horrowings of the Group or as cash flows fram
investng activities where these amounts are held

Lo generate an iNvesument rewwm
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j Share capital
Ordinary shares are classrfied as equity

Incremental costs directly atinbutable to the 1ssue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company's
equity share capital (treasury shares) the consideration
patd, including any directly attnbutable incremental
costs, net of income faxes, 15 deducted from equity
attributable to the company's equity holders untl the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration recetved, net of any directly attnbutable
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,

is included in equity attnbutable to the company s
equity holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised imtially at fawr value, which
is proceeds receved net of transaction costs ncurred
Borrowtngs are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds {net of
transactien costs) and the redemption value being
recogrused in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Accrued imnterest 1s included as part of borrowings
Where a debt instrument 1s i a fair value hedging
relationship, an adjustment s made to s carrying value
i the income statermnent 1o reflact the hedged nsk
interest on borrowings 15 expensed in the ncome
statement as incurred

| Dervavoive financial instruments

Derwatives are recognsed at fair value and remeasured
at each balance sheet date The fair value of derivatives
15 determined by using market data and the use of
established estimation techinigues such as discounted
cash flow and option valuatron models The Group
designates certain of the denvative struments within
its portfolio to be hedges of the farr value of 1ts bonds
(farr value hedges) or hedges of net investments in
foreign cperauons (net Investment hedges)
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I Accounting policies continued

| Dervative financial instruments continued

Changes in the fair value of derwvatives that are
designated and qualfy as fair value hedges are recorded
in the income staternent, together with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are
attnbutable to the hedged risk

The effecuve portion of changes in the fair value

of dervatives that are designated and quahfy as net
tnvestment hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive inconme Gamns and fosses accumulated
In equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foregn operation is disposed of
Gains or losses relating to the meflective portion are
recognised immediately in finance mcome or finance
costs in the income statement

Certain denvatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments Such derivatives are classified
at fair value and any movement in ther fair value is
recagnised immediately in finance tncome or finance
costs in the mcome statement

m Taxauon

Current tax 1s recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantwely enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s provided, using the hability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilines and their carrying
amounts Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the batance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset s realised
or the deferred ncome tax hability is serded

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit wilf be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utlised

Deferred income tax ts provided tn respect of the
undistributed earnings of subsidianes other than where
it s intended that those undistributed earmings will not
be remitted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are recogrused in the income
statement, except when the tax relates tc tems
charged or credited directly to equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case the tax 15 also
recognised in equaty or other comprehensive income

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions  Significant judgement (s required in
determuning the esumates i refason to the worldwide
provision for income taxes There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
deternunatton is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business The Group recognises habilives for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether addimonal taxes wili be due Where the final
tax outcame of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period i which such determiation is made

Deferred tax assets and habilities require management (’ .
judgement in determirung the amounts to be

recognised in particular, significant judgement 1s used

when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets

should be recognised with consideration given to the

wming and level of future taxable income tagether with

any future tax planming strategies

n Employee benefits

I Pension obligations The retirement benefit asset and
obligauion recogmised in the balance sheet represents
itve net of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the faw value of plan assets at the
balance sheet date The defined benefit obligation is
calcufated annually by independent actuanes using the
projected umt credit methed The present value of the
defined benefit obhigation is determmed by discounting
estmated futuire cash flows using yields on high quality
corporate bonds which have terms to maturity I
approximating the terms of the related liability

The determination of the pension cost and defined
benefit obligation of the Group’s defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certamn
assumptions, which include the discount rate, inflavion
rate, salary growth and longevity

Actuznial gains and losses ansing from experience
adjustments and changes in actuaral assurmpuons are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
mncome in the period in which they arise

The service cost representing benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included m the income statement as an
operating cost Net interest 1s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation
and 15 presented as finance costs or finance income




1 Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits conunued

Ohbligations for contribuuons to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an operating expense
in the income statement as ncurred

2 Other post-retirernent sbligations The expected costs
of post-retirement healthcare and hfe assurance
benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
using a similar accounting methodology as for defined
benefit pension obiigauons The liabilittes and costs
relaung to significant other post-reurement obligations
are assessed annually by independent qualkfied actuanes

3 Share-based payments The fair value of opuons or
shares granted under the Group’s share and option
plans 1s recognised as an employee expense after taking
into accaunt the Group's best estimate of the number
of awards expected 1o vest Farr value 1s measured at
the date of grant and 1s spread over the vesting pertod
of the option or share The fair value of the options
granted 15 measured using an option model that I1s maost
appropriate to the award The far value of shares
awarded s measured using the share price at the date
of grant unless another method 1s more appropriate
Any proceeds received are credited to share capital
and share premium when the options are exercised

o Provisions

Provisions are recognised f the Group has a present
tegal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it ;s more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obhgation
and the amount can be refiably estimated Prowvisions
are discounted to present value where the effect

1s material

The Group recognises a provision for deferred
consideration at fair value

The Group recognises a proviston for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be derved
from a contract are less than the unavodabte costs
of meeung the obligations under the contract

The provision 1s based on the present value of future
payments for surplus leased properties under non-
cancellable operatng leases, net of esumated sub-
teasing income
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p Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services net of safes taxes, rebates and discounts,

and after ehmmaung sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of bools 1s recognised when
utle passes A prowision for anticipated returns 1s made
based primanly on historical return rates If these
estimates do not reflect actual returns in future periods
then revenues could be understated or overstated for
a particular perniod

Circulation and advertising revenue 1§ recogiused when
the newspaper or ather publicatuon s published
Subscription revenue s recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the subscripuon

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two

or more separate elernents that can be provided

to customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an
opuional extra, such as the prowston of supplermnentary
materrals with textbooks, revenue is recognised for
each element as if 1t were an indsdual contractual
arrangement

Revenue from mult-year contractual arrangements,
such as contracts to process qualifying tests for
imdividual professions and government departments,

ts recognised as performance occurs The assumptions,
risks, and uncertanties inherent in long-terrn contract
accounting can affect the amounts and trung of
revenue and related expenses reported Certain of
these arrangements, either as a result of a single service
spanming more than one reporting period or where the
contract requires the prowision of a number of services
that together constiute a single project, are treated as
long-term contracts with revenue recogised o a
percentage of completion basis Losses on conwracts
are recognised n the period ih which the loss first
becomes foreseeable Coniract losses are determined
to be the amount by which esumated total costs of the
contract exceed the esumated total revenues that will
be generated by the contract

On certan contracts, where the Group acts as agent,
only commissions and fees recervable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third-party
costs incurred on behalf of the principal that are
techargeable under the contractual arrangement

are not included in revenue
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounung policies contnued

p Revenue recogniton continued

Income from recharges of freight and other activiues
which are incidentat to the normal revenue generating
acuviues is included in other income

q Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantally all the risks and rewards

of ownership are classified as finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement

of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the mimumum lease
payments Each lease payment is allocated between the
habsthey and finance charges to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding The corresponding
rentat obligations, net of finance charges, are included
m financiat habilives — borrowings The interest element
of the finance cost ts charged to the incorne statement
over the lease period to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability
for each penod The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asser or the lease term

Leases where a significant poruion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retamned by the [essor are
classified as operaung leases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases {net of any incentives
recewved from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-ine basis over the period of
the lease

r Dmwvdends

Drdends are recorded in the Group's financtal
statements n the period n which they are approved
by the company's shareholders

s Assets and liabilities held for sale

Assets and liabiiiues are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and far value
less costs to sell if 1t1s nrended to recover their
carrying amount principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use No deprecation
15 charged in respect of non-current assets classified
as held for sale Amounts relating to non-curient
assets and habilities held for sale are classified as
discontinued operanons in the income statement
where appropriate

t Trade receivables

Trade recewables are stated at fair value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales
returns {(see alsc note Ip).

2 Segment information

The Group is orgarnised mto the following business
segments

Contnuing operations

North Amenican Education Educational publishing,
assessment and testing for the school and higher
education market within the USA and Canada,

Internatianal Education Educational publishing,
assessment and testing for the school and higher
education market outside of North Amenca,

Prefessional Business and technology publishing,
training, tesung and certificaton for professional
bodies,

FT Group Publisher of the Financial Times, business
magazines and specialist informanon

in addron the Group separately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House (PRH) associate The
results of the Penguin segment to 30 june 2013 and the
Mergermarket business (previously included as part of
the FT Group]} are shown as disconunued i hoth 2012
and 2013

3
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2 Segment information contmued

For more detad on the services and products included i each business segment refer to the strategic report.

201
" Norh o
American  International T Discontinued

Alfgues mEmione ... . lows  FPducwon  FEdummon Prolesporsl G | _FEU Domomee cpenuens  Grow
Continuing operations
Sales (external) 2779 1,539 410 341 - - - 5,069
Sales (inter-segment) 3 L 15 - - = - 19
Adjusted operating profit 406 140 57 29 50 - T
Intangible charges (92) {60) (12) (%) (30) - - {19¢)
Acquisiion costs {2) (% - (1) - - - {12
Other net gains and losses - (e - - = - - (i6)
Operating profit 312 55 45 26 20 - - 458
Finance costs 6 (ith
financeincome S i e e o e 3D
Profit before tax 382
income tax 7 (87)
Profit for the year from o
continuing operations 29
Sepment assets 5544 23t 609 293 - 859 223 9,839
Jomnt ventures (2 - 3 - - - - - 3
Associates 12 [ 9 - g 1070 | - 1,089
Total assets o . 5545 2323 609 361 1,070  BéG 223 | 0.93!:
Other segment items
Share of results of jotnt
ventures znd assoctates 12 H (4 2 26 31 - - 54
Caprtal expenditure (e 11 92 37 23 22 - - 1 175
Pre-publication mvestment 0 288 69 7 - - - - 364
Deprecianon 10 43 21 8 9 - - i 82
Amortisation i1 20 355 f41 22 15 - - 2 535
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2. Segment information continued

2002
Restared
T e B o o
Agnencan Dreconunued
f-_[f_’r'rf,ura n C(mEEEEs__ o '\}m-cs__ Edutation Professianad Group  Corpurate _Opesanons Gruip
Conunuing operatsons
Sales {external) 2,658 390 - - 45959
Sales (inter-segment) . 5 12 - - '8
Adiusted operating profit 536 37 - - 809
intangible charges (66) (37) - - (179
Acquisition costs {7} (N - - (20)
Other net gains and losses - (123) - - (23
Operaung profit 463 {124) - - 487
Finance costs 6 (115}
Fmancewncome & .19
Profit before tax 391
cometax e D e e (38)
Profit for the year from
COontnting cperations ) o ) L 253
Segment assets 5,449 631 {246 1145 11306
Joint ventures iz - - - - 8
Associates L 1 ! - = 27 34
Total assets _ 5450 2401 @ 631 4 {.246 1472 11,348
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates 12 -~ (i) - - 9
Capital expenditure o1 66 16 ~ i 152
Pre-publcation investment 20 250 7 - 31 364
Depreciation Hi 41 8 - 8 80
Amorusation 1120 3t 45 - 42 553

In 2013, sales from the provision of goods were £2,867m (2012 £2.946m) and sales from the provision of
services were £2,202m (2012 £2,013m) Sales from the Group's educavonal publishing, consumer publishing
and newspaper business are classified as being from the provisian of goods and sales fram s assessiment and
testing and other service businesses are classified as being from the provision of services

Included in other net gans and losses in conunuing operatons 1t 2013 s a foss on the disposal of the Japanese

school and local publishing assets and in 2012 15 a loss on dosure of Pearson in Pracuice (£1 13m) and an

impairment loss on a jomt venture (£ 0m)

e
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2 Segment information continued

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including disconunued operations on an appropriate basis
depending on the nature of the cost and therefore the segment result is equal to the Group operating profit
Inter-segment prioing is determined on an arm’s-length basis Segment assets consist of property, plant and
equipment, mtangible assets, nventones, recetvables, deferred taxauon and other financial assets and exclude
cash and cash equivalents and derwvative assets Corporate assets compnse cash and cash equivalents, marketable
secunties and dervative financial instruments  Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and
equipment and software {see notes 10 and | 1)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combination were £202m
(2012 £296m) (see note 30) Capital expenditure, depreciaton and amortisaton include amounts relaung
to discontinued operations

The Group operates in the following mam geographic areas

Sales MNan-current assers
Al frgures in £ eniflions 2013 w2 200 2012
Conunuing operations
UK 649 678 1,068 803
Other European countries 366 377 200 234
LSA 2913 2,756 5.026 4496
Canada 128 144 301 307
Asia Pacfic 624 633 495 524
Other countnes L 389 371 215 275
Total contunuing 5,069 4,959 7305 6,639
Discontinued operations
UK 97 (87 - -
Cther European countnes 49 92 - -
USA 369 647 - -
Canada 24 57 - -
Asia Pacdic 74 i53 - -
Crther countries - 8 17 - -
Towl discontinved . €l W3 - o
Total 5,690 6,112 7.305 6.639

Sales are allocated based on the country in which the customer s located This does not differ matenally from
the location where the order s received The geographical split of non-current assets 1s based on the subsidiary’s
country of domcite, This 1s not matenally different to the location of the assets Non-current assets comprise
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, mvestments i joint ventures and associates and trade and
other recewvables
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Discontinued operacions
Discontinued operanions relate to Penguin and Mergermarket

An analysis of the results and cash flows of discontnued operations is as follows

2043 o 12
All figures i £ nulhons _ B __FEngum Mm‘gcﬁmi:ke: T Towl Pengun Hergerr:adtel. ) Totd
Sales ] 513 108 621 1.053 100 1153
Operating profic 28 24 52 62 24 86
Finance income ! - | — - —
Praofit before tax 29 24 53 62 24 84
Attributable tax expense R ¢ (9) (18) (19) (&) {25)
Profit after tax 20 15 35 43 18 61 Q
Profit on disposal of Penguin before tax 202 - 202 - - -
Attributable tax benefit 15 - i5 - - -
Mergermarket transaction costs = ® B - - -
Profit for the year from discontinued
operations . 237 7 244 43 s 61
Operating cash flows 36 22 58 83 26 09
Investing cash flows (6) (2) (8) (81) (24} {105)
Finanaing cash flows (8) (29) {37) {0 O 4
Toralcashflows = — 2 & .83 12 @4 8
4 Operaung expenses
T T e o T
All figures i £ mullions Resizied
By funcuon
Cost of goods sold 2312 2,187 -
Operating expenses N LE
Distmbution costs 90 32
Selhng. marketing and product development costs 1,027 925
Administratve and other expenses i 162 | 242
Restructuring Costs 176 -
Orther net gains and losses 16 0
Other income (118) (78)
Total net operating expenses e 2353 2,18
Total 4,665 4,368

Included in other income in 2013 1s service fee ncome from Penguin Random House of £28m
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4 Operating expenses contiiued

Saes 2013 012
Aftfguresinfmibons - _ P
By nature.
Royalties expensed 256 245
Oither product costs 793 865
Employee benefit expense 5 2 100 {866
Contract labour 94 137
Employee related expense V77 168
Promotional costs te7 155
Depreciaton of property, plant and equipment 1o 81 72
Amorusation of software 59 49
Amortisation of intangible assets — Other k66 179
Amarusation of intangible assets — Pre-publication 20 308 283
Property and facilitres 229 188
Technology and commurications 104 80
Professional and outsourced services 259 253
Orther general and adiministrative costs 6l 8
Capitalised costs {199) (162)
Acquisition costs 12 20
Other net gains and losses 6 tQ
Other ncome - _— e V1B (78)
Total 4,665 4,368

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group’s auditors

All figures n £ millions 2013 82
The audit of parent company and consoiidated financial statements 4 4
The audit of the company s subsidiaries . i ) ) 2 2
Total audit fees 6 &

Orher assurance services [ |

Toral assurance services |

{
Tax compliance services 2 ]
Taxadwsoryseevices o]
Total tax services -
Total non-audit services e . 5 B
Total 9

Reconcifiation between audit and non-audit service fees is shown below

Afl fgures m £ ewlhons _ L N 01 3012
Ero[:p audit fees mcluding fees for attestation under section 404 of the Satbanes-Oxley Act s s
Non-auditfees - - B
Total o 9

Fees for attestanon under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audits
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts Non-audit fees for 2013 includes £3m for assurance and tax services
related to the Penguin Random House transaction
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

5 Employee information

Al figures i £ milhons

Employee benefit expense

Woages and salaries {including termination benefits and restructuring costs)

Sotial security costs
Share-based payment costs
Retirement benefits — defined contrbution plans
Reurement benefits - defined benefit plans
Other post-retirement benefits

Total

Notes 2013 Wz

L "— N Restated

1,836 1610

136 29

26 35 28

25 66 69

7 27 26

~ _ o s = 4
_2100 1866

The details of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson pic are shown in the report on directors’ remuneration

Average number emplioyed

Employee numbers

North Ametican Education
internavonal Education
Professional

FT Group

Other
Continuing operations

19.670
16,113
3,357
2216

The employee benefit expense relating to disconunued operations was £168m {2012 £265m) and the average

number employed was 3,592 (2012 5,387).
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& Net finance costs

Mute s 2013 042
All ﬁgureslrlf millions o ___._....,..“_.,E?EBEEM
Interest payable (82) {75)
Net finance costs in respect of retirement benefits 25 (3} {2)
Finance cost of put options, deferred considerauon associated with acquisizons
and other interest charges related to transacuons (%) 27)
Net foreign exchange losses - (8)
Other losses on financial instruments in a hedging relationship
— fair value hedges - (h
Other losses on financial tnstruments not in a hedging refationship
- derivatives B L N {2)
Finance costs o grn o (i1s)
Interest recervable 10 0
Net foreign exchange gamns 20 9
Orther gains on financial inscruments in 2 hedging relationship
~ fair value hedges !
Orther gains on financial instruments not n a hedging relavonship
— derivatives o 4 -
Finance mcome - - I A 2
Net finance costs e 78 (98)
Analysed as
Net interest payable reflected in adjusted earmings {72} {65)
Other net finance costs L ) (4) (31)
Total net finance costs {76) (26)

The net gain of £1m on fair value hedges m 2013 (2012 netloss of £]m) comprises a gain of £95m (2012 gain
of £7m) on the underlying bonds, offset by a loss of £94m (2012. toss of £8m) on the related dervauve financial
instruments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7 Income tax

rotes 2013 2012
AifgwesmEmtons - _ Rt
Current tax
Charge mn respect of current year {129} (147}
Adjustments in respect of prior years Y, e
Total current tax charge L - o (136) (129)
Deferred tax
In respect of temporary differences 4 (45)
Other adjustments tn respect of prior years o L 35 36
Total deferred tax credit/(charge) o _ ) N 49 (9
Total tax charge {87) {138)

The adjustments in respect of prior years in 2013 mainly relate to changes in estrmates ansing from uncertain tax

positions following setdlements with tax authonties in the year

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoreucal amount that would anse using the UK tax rate

as follows

2013 2012

r_‘\ll figures i £ millions . L L Restied

Profit before tax 382 391

Tax calculated at UK rate {2013 23.25%, 2012 24 5%) (89) (96}
Effect of overseas tax rates {I3) (5H
jont venture and associate micome reported net of tax 13 2
MNet expense not subject to tax (14} {19
Loss on sale of businesses not subject to tax {6) (28)
Uulisation of previously unrecogmsed tax losses and crediis ! 2
Unutilised tax losses (7) (&)
Adjustments in respect of prioryears 28 54
Towltaxcharge L 67) __ (138)
UK {13) (14)
Overseas L o (74 {124)
Total tax charge &N (i3

Tax rate reflected in camings

28%  353%
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Section § Financiai statements

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 1s calculated as follows

145

2043 2012
fff'_g“"“ wt £ millions . i ____‘*_Restatef‘
Profit before tax 382 391
Adjustments
Other net gains and osses 6 123
Acquisition costs 2 10
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 196 179
Grher net financecosts N 4 3t
Adjusted profit before tax — continuing operations 610 744
Adjusted profit before tax — discontinued operations ~ _ 54 123
Total adjusted profit before tax - 664 867
Totaf tax charge {87) (438)
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gains and losses 32 -
Tax benefit on acquisition costs (2) {5)
Tax benefit on amorusation of acquired ntangibles 5h (54)
Tax benefit on other net finance costs (@3] (1)
Tax amortisation benefit on goodwall and intangibles L ~ 30 36
Adjusted income tax charge ~ continuing operations (79) (162}
Adjusted income tax charge -- disconunued operations (18) (38)
Total adjusted income tax charge L (37) (200}
Tax rate reflected int adjusted earnings e _l46% 231%
The tax (charge)/benefit recognised in other comprehensive income s as follows

2013 w02
All fgures m £ milions . Rrswates
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obhigauons (23} 50
Net exchange differences on translatuon of foreign operauons o 6 1

{17 51

A tax charge of £ml (202 tax benefit £6m) relaung to share-based payments has been recogrised directly

i equity
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements continued

B Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share ts calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company by
the wesghted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by

the company and held as treasury shares

Diuted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusung the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take
account of all dilunve potential ordinary shares and adjusung the profit attributable «f applicable, to account for

any tax consequences that might arise from conversion of those shares

Nones 2013 012
All fizures in £ millions } o Reswated
Profit for the year from continumng operations 295 153
Non-controlling interest . {1 (3)
Earnings from conuinuing operatcns 294 250
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 244 61
Non-controlling interest . - -
Earmings o _ 538 31
Woeighted average number of shares (milions) 8078 804 3
Effect of dilutive share opuons (millions} ! I3
Waeighted average number of shares (millions) for diluted earmings 808 9 805 6
Earnings per share from conunuing and discontinued operations
Basic 66 6p 387p
Diluted 66 5p 38 6p
Earnings per share from conunuing operations
Bastic 364p 3tip
Diluted 36 2p 3t Op
Earnings per share from discontnued operations
Basic 302p 7 6p
Dilyted o o _ o 0m_ &
Adjusted

In order to show results from operating activities on a consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share 15 presented
The company's defimtion of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other simiarly utled measures

reported by other compantes
Adjusted earnings mcludes the results from continuing and discontinued operauons

The following items are excluded from adjusted earnmgs

Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisinon and disposal of subsidianes, jont ventures,
associates and other financial assets that are included within continuing or discontnued operanons but which

distort the performance of the Group

Amorusanon of acquned mtangibles, acquisition costs and movenients i contingent dcquistuon consideration are also

excluded from adjusted earnings as these items are not considered to be fully reflecuve of the underlying

performance of the Group

3
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8 Earnings per share continued

Other net finance income/costs mclude finance costs in respect of retirement benefits finance costs of put opuons
and deferred consideration and foreign exchange and other gans and losses Finance costs relating ta reurement
benefits are excluded as the Group’s interpretavon is that the new presentanon under IAS 19 (revised) does not
reflect the economic substance of the underlying assets and liabiiues Finance costs of put opucns and deferred
consideration are excluded as they relate to future earn outs and similar payments on acquisitions and do not
reflect cash expended Foreign exchange and other gains and losses are exciuded as they represent short-term
fluctuations in market value and are subject to significant volatiity Other gains and losses may not be realised in
due course as it is normally the intention to hold the related instruments to matunty Other net finance costs of
Group companies are included in finance costs or finance mcome as appropriate Other net finance costs of
tomnt ventures and associates are included within the share of results of joint ventures and associates within
operatng profit

Tax on the above items is excluded from adjusted earnings Whaere relevant the Group alsc excludes the benefit
from recogrising previously unrecognised pre-acquisition and capttal losses The Group includes the benefit of tax
armartisation of soodwilt and intangibles as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax charge with the
expected rate of cash tax payments

Non-contrefing mterest for the above tems 1s excluded from adjusted earmings

The following tables reconcile statutory earnings to adjusted earmings

S - _ e e e 221
Other net
Saaturory Other nex finance Tax Adjusied
ncome Dusconunued  gains and Acquisition inangible ncome/ amorusaton ncome
ﬁ Egure: w £ muflions seatement OPETALIONS {osses costs charges [ beneft  statement
Operaung profit 458 54 16 2 {96 - - 736
Net finance costs (76) - — - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 16 Iz [% 4 - 664
income tax __ ey (s, 32 @ Gh M 30 67
Profit for the year from
contnuing operations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567
Profit for the year from
disconunued operanions 244 @8)__09) -2 )= -
Profit for che year 539 - {161} 10 |47 2 30 567
Non-controlling interest oy - - - - - - ()
Earnings 538 - {lel) 10 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shares (miflions) 807 3 807 8
Adpusted earmings per share 6660 o TR
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Earnings per share continued

2012
Resued
T Other net o
Smtytory Other net fin~nce Tax Agjusied
mzome  Disconunued gans and Accuintion intangble income/  Amorusanon come
Adi gurns i £ midiions __Stalement GPLTIRONS husses cusls char,es oy berifit  stazenunt
Operaung profit 487 123 {23 20 i79 - - 932
Netfinancecosts (8 - = - L i )
Profit before tax 391 123 123 20 179 3t - 867
Income tax . (138) {(38) - {5) (54) (N 36 (200}
Profit for the year from
conunuing operatons 253 85 123 [5 125 30 36 667
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 61 (85) 20 } 3 - - -
Profit for the year 314 - 143 16 128 30 36 667
Non-controlingwterest () -~ = -~ —._ .= B
Earnings 311 - 143 16 £28 30 36 664
Weighted average number
of shares {milions) 804 3 8043
Adjusted earnings per share _ 387p e -7 1.
9 Dwvidends
Al figuves 1n € miflions '_:“ L _:___ o _”-______ o :_ o 013 12
Final paid in respect of prior year 30 Op (2012 28 Op) 242 235
Intenm paid 1 respect of current year 16 Op (2012 15 Op) } _ 30 120
372 346

The directors are proposing a final dividend im respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 of 32 Op per
share which will absorb an estmated £259m of shareholders’ funds It wilt be paid on 2 May 2014 to shareholders

who are on the register of members on 4 April 2014 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend

('/D
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0 Property, plant and equipment

Land wnd Plant nd c,:::s[a o

ﬂj’i&!fs”ln £TﬂbffiA e o _ e L builaings ~Qupment  consiniciicn . Tots_l_
Cost

At I January 201{2 363 706 12 1,081

Exchange differences {9 (23) - (32)
Additions 12 51 15 78

Disposals {2) (20) - (22)
Acquisiton through business combination 4 13 - |17
Disposal through business disposal H (4) - (5)
Redassficaons . .. ___._ .8 - ..@ -
Transfer from/(to) software 9 (27) - (18)
Transfer from pre-publication - 3 - 3

Transfer to assets held for sale (32) (102) (H (135)
At 31 December 2012 352 597 I8 967

Exchange differences {5) {14) - {19
Additions 33 58 22 {13

Disposals £13) (78) - 9h
Acquisition through business combination ~ 3 - 3

Disposal through business disposal () (2) - {3
Reclassifications 9 {H (8) -
Transfer from software - 3 - 3

Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 - S
Transferw assesheldforsale . __ -~ N ___ o D
At 31 December 2013 375 568 32 975
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

10 Property, plant and equipment conunued

indad Pooimd comse!
ﬁg"_’i‘ i £ rullions o o _ bulmngs EGUDMENT construcuon . Taral )
Depreciation
At | fanuary 2012 {187} G - {698}
Exchange differences 6 t7 - 23
Charge for the year @n (59) - (80)
Disposals 2 19 - 21
Acquisition through business combination () {6} - )
Dusposal through business disposal - 2 - 2
Reclassificavons .. ... _._._....@®& &8 _ _ = .=
Transfer (from)/to software (3 7 - 4
Transfer to assets held for sale i7 78 - 95
At 31 December 2012 {[95) (445) - {(640)
Exchange differences 3 i3 - 16
Charge for the year {25} (57) - {82)
Disposals 7 64 - 71
Acquisition through business combinatron - (2} ~ (2)
Transfer from assets held for sale - {H - {nH
Transfer to assets held forsale = 3 .o _..3
At 31 December 2013 L (210) 423y - (633)
Carrying amourits
At i January 2012 176 {95 2 383
At3l December2012 _ . 157 ____is2 18 _ 327
At 31 December 2013 165 145 32 342

Depreciation expense of £24m (2012 £23m) has been included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and
£57m {2012 £49m} in operaung expenses In 2013 £im (2012 £Bm) relates to disconunued operations

The Group leases certain equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of
leased plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £{ tm (2012 £17m).

o
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11 Intangible assers
T ) o T T T Acauered -
hs1s T::(r::)r::; Arguieed A cguired Onhver
e wademarks  puchshng  ntangibles

Allfgures i Comdhons ) Goodwil _ Sofrware relwonstups  wdbrands  rghts  arquied Totsl
Cost
At | january 2012 5,199 428 681 253 213 356 7,130
Exchange differences (213) {13) (26) (in %) {18) (290)
Additions — internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Addinons - purchased - 36 - - - - 36
Disposals - {n - - - - {it)
Acquisition through business combination 505 12 182 27 10 56 792
Disposal through business disposal (50) - (89) (2) - - (141)
Transfer from PPE - i8 - - - - I8
Transfer to assets held for sale (Bey  @#H#) (19 > (7 - (441)
At 31 December 2012 5,077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences (122) {6) {25) (8) {(12) {(tn {184
Additions - internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Additions — purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Disposals - (50) - - - - {50}
Acqusition through business combinavon (133) - 190 - 3 7 67
Dusposal through business disposal {6) - - - - (N {7
Reclassificavions - - {10 4))] - 11 -
Transfer to PPE - (3) - - - . (3)
Transfer to assets held for sale _ {50 - 29) _ (12) - (2) (193}
At 31 December 2013 4 666 469 855 237 198 398 6823
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I}, Intangible assets continued

£ caured
sty z:i:?;a‘x Acquued Adquired Cither
and  tndenarks mshiztung wiangbles
f\li figores m ¢ muilkons Goadvall Suofiware  relovonshios and brands_ L nghts aqihred Tenal
Amortisation
At | January 2012 (29¢) {168) (63} {128) {133) (788)
Exchange differences 9 8 3 5 7 32
Charge for the year (54) (90) (27) {20} {46) {237}
Disposals 8 - - - - 8
Acquisition through business combinauon {7 - - - - (7}
Disposal through business disposal - 45 I - - 46
Transfer from PPE (4 - - - - #)
Transfer to assets held forsale L 32 e - L
At 3| December 2012 (312) {204) (86) (139) {172) (913)
Exchange differences 6 H0 4 ) 7 33
Charge for the year (5%) (78} (21 (15) (54) (227)
Disposals 49 - - - - 49
Dnsposal through business disposal - - - - | f
Transfer o assets heldforsale - k3 . -2 3
At 31 December 2013 i Gle) (4993 (148 (i) (1.02)
Carrying amounts
At | january 2012 i32 513 190 85 223 6,342
At 31 December 2012 5 154 525 172 68 222 6218
At 31 December 2013 4,666 153 606 | 44 50 182  580i

Goodwiil

The goodwili carrying value of £4,666m relates to acquisiions completed after | January 1998 Pnor to | January
1998 all goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiuon For acquisiuons completed between

| January 1998 and 3| December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the goodwill
on each acquisttion was amorused over a period of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRS on | january 2003, the
Group chose not to restate the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen (s e amortisation ceased)
If goodwill had been restated then a significant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets, which
would be subject to amortisation, and the carrying value of goodwill would be significantly lower For acquisittons
completed after | January 2003 value has been ascnbed to other mtangible assets which are amorused

Other ntangible assets

Other ntangibles acquired include content, technology and software rights

Intangtble assets are valued separately for each acquisiion and the pnmary method of valuauon used is the
discounted cash flow method The majority of acquired mtangibles are amortised using the unit of production
method which s based on the pattern of benefits embodied in the asset

Amorusation of £15m (2012 £10m) 1s included in the ncome statement 1 cost of goods sold and £210m
(2012 £218m inciuding an imparrment of £21m relating to Pearson in Practice) in operating expenses
In 2013 £2m (2012 £9m) of amorusation relates to discontnued operations

o
(‘ w2
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i1 Intangibie assets continued

The range of useful economic hives for each majer class of intangible asset {excluding goodwill and software)
15 shown below

2013

Class of intangible asset e L L __ Usefui;:on_uim_ar_ e
Acquired customer hsts, contracts and relationships 3-20 years
Acquired trademarles and brands 2-20 years
Acquired publishing nghts 5-20 years
Other ntangibles acquired 220 years

The expected amortisation profile of acquired intangible assets s shown below

2013

Onetafve  Sioten  More than -
Al figures i £ nullions years years Len years Toul
Class of intangible asset
Acquired customer fists, contracts and relationships 357 166 83 606
Acquired trademarks and brands 78 41 25 f44
Acquired publishing rights 46 4 -~ 50
Other intangibles acquired . R 148 33 ! 182

impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Impatrment tests have been carned out where appropnate as descnbed below The recoverable amount for each

unit tested exceeds its cartying value

Goodwill is allocated to, and monitored at the level of, nine aggregated cash-generating units {CGUs) withun the
business segments as follows

Al flg_uieiii_mlllmns e 043 20[2__
US Education Publishuing 2,225 2384
US School Assessment and Informauon 750 773
Canada 173 188
International — Emerging Marlcets 423 463
International — UK 444 450
International — Rest of World 253 267
Professional Publishing 14 {5
Professonal Assessmentand Trawwng . . 334 34
Pearson Education toral 4616 4874
Foancal Twes .50 5L
Continuing operatons 4,666 4925
Mergermarket S -7 %
Disconunued operavons o452
Total 4,666 5077

.
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

It Intangible assets continued
Impairment tests for cash-generating umits containing goodwill continued

The recoverable amount of each CGU 15 based on value in use calculations. Goodwilt is tested for imparrment
annually Other than goodwil there are no mtangible assets with indefinite lives. The goodwaill 1s generally
denominated 1n the currency of the relevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review 1s not matenally
sensitive to exchange rate fluctuatuons

Key assumptions
The value in use calculatons use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period The key assumptions used by management in the value in use calculations were

Discount rates The discount rate 1s based on the nsk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted fur a risk presruum

to reflect the increased msl in investing in equities The risk prenum adjustment 1s assessed for each speafic CGU

The average pre-tax discount rates used are in the range of 10 7% to 3 8% for the Pearson Education businesses

(2012 9 8% to 127%) and || 3% for the Financial Times {2012 11 5%) (/:‘}

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% was used for cash flows subsequent to the approved
budget pertod for all CGUs in 2013 (2012 20%) This perpetuity growth rate 1s a conservative rate and is
considered to be lower than the long-term historic growth rates of the underlying territortes in which the CGU
operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates

Cash flow growth rates The cash flow growth rates are derived from management’s latest forecast of sales talung
into consideration experence of operaung margins achieved in the CGU Hisronically, such forecasts have been
reasonably accurate

Sensitvities
The Group's mparment review 1s sensiove to a change i assumpuions used most notably the discount rates, the

perpetuity growth rates and expected future cash flows Based on the Group's sensitvity analysis a reasonably
passible change in any of these assumptians is unlikely to cause an impawrment ity any of the CGUs.

12. Investments in joint ventures and associates

The amounis recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

;F;l;,ures m £mllllo-n:— L __:___ e _____—::__ o 1013 . 2012 ,_(;"K
Associates 1,089 7 i
jointventwres L 3 8
Total 1,092 {5

The amounts recognised in the ncome statement are as follows

All spures tn £ m llions 03 2092
Assoclates 56 23
Joint ventures R -2 4

Total 54 9
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|2 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Investment in associates
The Group has the following matenal associates

frncipat place o Oannrship MNatre of ™6 aserrment

f bus ness ISy relat arishp method

Penguin Random House Global 47  Note | Equuty’
The Economist Newspaper Ltd UK 50 Note 2 Equity’

“Merther associate has a quoted rarket price

Note | — On | July 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completion of an agreement between
Pearson and Bertelsmann to merge their respecuve trade publishing companies, Penguin and Random House, with
the parent companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respecuvely. The shareholder agreement
includes protection rights for Pearson as the minonty shareholder mcluding rights to divedends

Note 2 — The Group has a 50% interest in The Economust Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world's leading
weeldy business and current affarrs magazines

The summarised financtal information of the material associates is detalled below

1003 2012
!-;:ngum T -
A"ﬁ“"_‘i'_'ff n_-n_ngfn_s i _ o Randorr House Ecanomist Ecanarmse
Assets
Current assets 1,210 103 120
Non-current asserts {36! 163 160
Liabilities
Current habiities {505} {190} (202)
Non-current liabilites {455) (60} {78)
Net assets 1211 16 -
Sales L B 1315 340 348
Profit from conunuing cperations 66 52 46
Other comprehensive (expense)/mcome (34 _ ...«
Total comprehensive income o 32 6l _ 40
Dwidends recerved from associate i 43 21 21

The informanon above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates, adjusted for fair
value and similar adjustments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Investments In jomnt ventures and associates continued

Investment in associates continued
A reconcliation of the summarised financial informavon to the carrying value of the matenal associates s
shown below

2013 2012
o mPengum o -
ﬂl_flgures in £ milhons R - o e Erﬂom House Economist “Eonommt,
Opening net assets - - -
Exchange differences (68) - (i)
Profit for the penod 66 52 46
Other comprehensive income {34) 9 {(6)
Dividends en 41 4hH
Additons 1,338 - -
Distriburion from associate 1n excess of carrying value - - 2
Reversal of distmbution from associate in excess of carrying value o - {4) -
Closing net assets 1,21 16 -
Share of net assets 569 8 -
Goodwill 501 ~ -
Carrying value of associate _ L . 1070 8 -
Information an other mdividually immatenal associates is detaded below
Mg nemtons o mn o
Loss from continuing operations (1) -
Other comprehensive income ==
Total comprehensive expense _ R -

Transactions with material associates
The Group has loans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest is calculated based on market
rates. The amount outstanding at 3| December 2013 was £44m

The Group also has a current asset recewvable of £14m from Penguin Random House ansing from the provision of
sarvices Included in other income (pote 4} 15 £28m of service fees

Investment tn joInt ventures
information on jaint ventures, alf of which are mdidually immatenal 15 detafed below

Al ngures w £ evlhoos 23 2412

L oss from continuing operatuons () (14)

Other comprehensive income - -

(2 (t4)

Total compi ehensive expense - -

-

Ty

-~ 7
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I3 Deferred mcome tax

AR tgures . iens _ o wu wn
Deferred income tax assets 250 229
Deferred income tax habiliies {612) (601)

Net deferred income tax (362} (372

Substantially all of the deferred tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and babities may be offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax habilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authonity Ar 31 December 2013 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of £4m (2012 £13m) in
respect of UK losses, £1tm (2012 £14m) in respect of US losses and approximately £36m (2012 £30m) in
respect of losses in other territories None of the unrecognised UK losses have expiry dates associated with them
The US losses relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry pernods of between 5 and 20 years

The recogmuon of the deferred income tax assets 1s supported by managerment's forecasts of the future
profitability of the relevant business units

The movement on the net deferred income tax account s as follows

081

Altfigures in £ millions ) ) _ Netes 2043 Ressated
At beginming of year (372) (333)
Exchange differences 9 14
Income staternent benefit/ (charge) 7 47 (13)
Acquisition through business combinauon 30 (37) (67)
Disposal through business disposal 3t - b
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity {35) 34
Transfer to current tax 25 -
Transfer to assets held for sale . N - I (18}
At end of year _ {362) {372)

Included n the income statement above for 2013 1s a £2m charge (2012 £4m charge} relatng to discontinued
operations.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

13 Deferred income tax contnued

The movement i deferred income tax assets and habihities duning the year is as follows

few ement

Troding  Guodwil and Reauns benefir Toul
All figures in £ mitlons e Ipsses mntangibles provsions obhgaucis _ Orher Restared
Deferred mcome tax assets
At | fanuary 2012 i4 - 89 9 165 287
Exchange differences - - (3) (H 5) (9}
Acquisition through business combination 19 - - - - )
Income statement charge {13) - (18) (N (33) (63)
Tax benefit/(charge) to other
comprehensive income or equity - - - 39 (6) 33
Transfer to assets held for sale L 2} =25 ) N 2 N -2 (’/D
At 3t December 2012 18 - 45 47 ft9 228
Exchange differences - - H (h (4) (6)
Acquisition through business combination 21 - - - - 21
income statement {charge)/benefit (24) - (5) 25 22 18
Tax charge to other comprehensive
INCOMeE or equity - - - (36) - (36)
Transfer to current tax - - - - 25 25
Transfer from assets held for sale - - - 7 {7 -
Transfer to assets held for sale — - - — N (1)
At 31 December 2013 15 — 39 42 154 150
Other deferred incomre tax assets include temporary differences on share-based payments, mventory and
other provisions

o T ) T _‘:GGGM“ and - N

Al figures m £ millions e e _muﬂll'flﬁbjfi_ - .,.,.Q.(..he_.’:._ﬁ ..__I(fa_j_
Deferred income tax habilities - ’/j
At i January 2012 (464) (156) {(620)
Exchange differences 18 5 13
Acquisition through business combinanon {(65) {2h {86)
Disposal through business disposal i - I
Income statement benefit {5 35 50
Tax bernefir to other comprehensive income or equity - f {
Transfer wo assets held forsale 10 o 20
At 31 December 2012 (475) (126) (601)
Exchange differences i3 2 5
Acquistion through business combination (61) 3 {58}
income statement (charge)/benefit (61) 90 29
Tax benefit to other comprehensive income or equity - i !
Transfer to assets held for sale L - 2 2
At 31 December 2013 (584) (28} (612)

Orher deferred income tax kabiires mclude temporary differences in respect of depreciation and royalty advances
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{4 Classification of financial instruments

The accounting dassification of each class of the Group's financial assets and financial habtlities together with their
fair values, is as follows

) 2012
) Fur value N -—Ar—n—omscd cost o
T 7T Cemaves Do Tew  Tom
Avaifable deemed held n hedging QOther  Loans and Other carrying market
Alfgoresmfrmibons  Mews forsale foruadng jehuonshps iobimes secenables  Wwblwes  valve | vele
Investments in unlisted securities
— CONEINUING Operations 5 94 - - - - - 94 24
Cash and cash equivalents —
ContINUINg Operatons 07 - - - - 729 - 729 729
Cash and cash equivalents
classified within assets held
for sale EY) - - - - 36 - 36 36
Marketable securities 6 - - - - - 6 6
Derwvative financial instruments le - 4 120 - - - 24 {24
Trade recaivables — conttiwing
operanons 1 - - - - 882 - 882 882
Trade recewables classified within
assets held for sale = - i S s - A -3
Total financial assets 100 4 120 - [,672 - 1,896 1,89
Derwative financial instruments i - (16) (32) - - - (481 {48)
Trade payables — continuing
operatiens 24 - - - - - (316) (316) (316)
Trade payables classified within
hiabiittes held for sale - - - - - (b () O
Bank loans and overdrafts ~
continuing operatens 8 - - - - - (47) (47) (47)

(508) (508) (514)

®
|
i
!
|
|

Borrowings due within one year

Borrowings due after more than
one year 18 - = (1.671) {1,671} (1,683}
Total financial habilities - {16} {32) - - (2,543) (2591} (2.609

|
I
}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

14 Classdication of financial nstruments continued

- i w02
- Far valve Anorusedcost
T Denvames— _“Denvmw; o Toul Taal
Avatable deemed held m hedging Other  Loans and Qxher caroyng marl ¢t
’ln_ﬁf';”_g_’_'" 4 emlhc:{ e . Mnres f-o: :l:z__ {ormding  relauonszhips tabdiues  recewvables lizbiluies value valuee
Investrments in unhisted securities —
continumg operations 5 31 - - - - - 31 31
Investments in unlisted secunites
classified within asseis held for sale n } - ~ - - - ! |
Cash and cash eguivalents —
continuing operations 17 - - - - 1062 - 1062 1,062
Cash and cash equivalents classified
within assets held for sale k) - - - - F15 - 5 15
Marketable securities 6 - - - - - ) 6
Derivatve financial instruments 16 - | |77 - - - 178 178
Trade recewvables - continuing
operanons 0 - - - - 883 - 883 ag3
Trade recewvables classified wathun
assets heldforsale ot .o .. T.o___-. M - 248 19
Total financial assets - 38 17 - 2309 - 2525 2525
Trade payables — conunuing
operauons hJ] - - - - - (337 (337 (337
Trade payables classified within
habihties held for sale - - - - - (148) (148) (i48)
Ozher financiat habiliues — put
options over non-controfiing
mnterest 24 - - - (68) - - (68) (68)
Bank loans and overdrafts —
conunuing operations 18 - - - - - {55) (55} (55)
Bank loans and overdrafts classified
within habilines held for sale n - - - - - (7} ) €]
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - ~  (229) (229) (228)
Baorrowings due after more than
oneyear - T - - - (1.988) (1.988) (2.043)
Total financial Iabilties . - - (68 - (764 (283) (2.88)




Secvion 5 Financiat statements 18!

14 Classification of financial instruments continued

Certain of the Group’s dervauve finanaal instruments are classified as held for trading either as they do not meet
the hedge accaunung critera specified m LAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ or the
Group has chosen not to seek hedge accounung for these instruments None of these dervaunves are held for
speculatve trading purposes Transactions in derwvative financial instruments are only undertaken to manage risks
arising from underiying business actvity, in accordance with the Group's treasury pelicy as described in note [9

The Group designates certain guabfying dertvative financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{far value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these dervauve financial instruments are recorded in the income
statement, together with any change in the farr value of the hedged liability attributable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates certamn of s borrowings and dervatve financial mstruments as hedges of its
tnvestments tn foregn operations {net investment hedges) Movements in the fair value of these financial
mstruments (to the extent they are effective) are recogrused in other comprehensive thcome

None of the Group's financial assets or habilities are designated at fair value through the income statement upon
tnitial recognition

More detail on the Group's accounting for financial instruments 1s included in the Group’s accounting policies
The Group's approach to managing risks i relation to financal instruments s described in note 19

15 Other financial assets

Al Bgures in £ millons e o 2043 2012
Acbegnning of year - 3 26
Exchange differences - (2)
Acqusition of investments 63 e
Dusposal of investments - (2)
Transfer to assets held forsale e - (5
94 31

ﬁtﬁgnd of year L . S 1

Orther finanaal assets comprise nen-current unlisted securities
t& Derwative financial instruments

The Group's approach to the management of financial nisks 1s set out i1 note 19. The Group's ocutstanding
dervative financial nstruments are as follows

2013 2012
Gross novonal Gaos roua R

ﬂl—flgm‘es 1£-m_rlllins— o amounts Bsgery _ -iialzﬂ_flf_ UTGUNLL Asstﬂ:: . L-abs?xrm_.u
fnterest rate derwatives —
in a fair value hedge relauonship i 439 8i (32} I 465 (43 -
Interest rate derivatives -
not in a hedge relationship 634 4 (16) 6l i -
Cross-currency rate derivauves -
in a net investment hedge relationship 220 % - 220 34 -
Total o 293 24 48y 1746 178 -
Analysed as expiring
in less than one year 312 I3 - 215 4 -
Later than one year and not {ater
than five years 1,377 1H - 701 &9 -
Later than five years _ . 604 o~ {48 830 105 -
Total 2,293 14 _(48) 1746 178 -

MATAYAND

|
!

AINVIYT4¥34 ¥NC

|

S5IANISNY 3TRISNOJLSTY

JONVYNYIAOD

!
;
i

SAIMNIWIIVES IYIDONVYRI




162 Pearson ple Annual report and accounts 2Gi3

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

{6 Denvative financal instruments continued

The carrying value of the above dervative financial nstruments equals therr fanr value Far values are determined
by using market data and the use of established estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuauon models

At the end of 201 3, the currency spht of the mark-to-market values of rate dervauves, including the exchange of
principal on cross-currency rate derivatves, was US dollar £(151)m, sterting £243m and South African rand £{16)m
(2012 US dollar £(52ym, sterling £257m and South African rand £(20)m)

The fixed interest rates on outstanding rate dervauve contracts at the end of 2013 range from | 10% to 9 28%
(2012 3 65% to 9 28%) and the floating rates are based on LIBOR 1in US dollar and sterling

The Group's portfolio of rate derivatives 1s diversified by matunty, counterparty and type MNatural offsets between
transactions within the pordolio and the designation of certain denvatives as hedges significantly reduce the nsk
of income statement volatiity The sensitivity of the porifohio to changes i1 market rates s set out 1 note 19

Derivative financial assets and habilittes subject to offsetung arrangements are as follows

2013 202

Gross Gross  MNet dervative Grass Gioss  Met dervatize

dey vative dervative assers/ dernative dorvaive assars/

assets libilsties habiiiues TECRTE frabnlimes habuhbes

All figwi es m £ millions m im Lm £ir) £m £m
Counterparties in an asset posiion 122 {12) LY t78 - 178
Counterparties in a liabiity posimon 2 (36}  (34) - - -
Total as presented in the balance sheet 124 (48) 76 178 —~ |78

All of the Group's derivative: financial instruments are subject to enforceable netung arrangements with indoadual
counterparties, allowing net settlement in the event of default of either party Offset arrangements i respect of
cash balances are shown in note 17

Counterparty exposure from all derivatives 1s managed, together with that from deposits and bank account
balances, withsn credit hmits that reflect published credit ratings and by reference to other market measures

(e g mariket prices for credit default swaps) to ensure that there s no significant nisk to any one counterparty

No single dervative transaction had a market value {positive ar negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded
3% of the Group's consclidated total equity

In accordance with [AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognttion and Measurernent’ the Group has reviewed all of its
material contracts for embedded denvatrves that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certan requrements, and has concluded that there are no matena! embedded dervanves

v £
Y
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|7 Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts)

Al figures n £ miflens i i w3 1017
Cash at bank and in hand 521 372
Short-term bank deposits B B 208 690
Continuing operations 729 {.062
Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale 36 P5

765 _L177

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term depostt rates

At the end of 2013 the currency split of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 28% (2012 47%) sterling 18%
(2012 25%), euro 5% (2012 3%) and other 49% (2012 25%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying value due to their short-term nature

Al figures 0 £ millons . L 2003 012
Cash and cash equivalents — conunuing operations 729 1 062
Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale 36 15
Bank overdrafts — continuing operauons {25) (33)
Bank overdrafts classified within liabihues held for sale B - N

740 [.137

The Group has the foltowing cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterling and euro, where both the company
and the bank have a legal nghr of offset

2013 1012

o T e Neeba

f\ll Sigures wn Lrufions o Offset assee _(_DE_(set habilicy asscthabihey O_i_hct. wset Ofise! bbbty rsety l|.|buhj_

US dollars 298 (299) (1) 39 (37) 2

Sterting 1,018 (£.027) (%) 982 (1 057) {75)

Euro 6 (5) | il (I -
Total for contnuing operations as

presented in the balance sheet _ _ (%) 73)

In addmion to the above, the Group had offset US dollar, sterling and euro asset balances of £1m. £1ém and £ni
respectvely in respect of discontnued operanons at the end of 2013 At the end of 2012, the Group had a sterling
offset asset of £74m in respect of discontinued operations

Offset arrangements in respect of derivauves are shown in note 16
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

18 Financial habilities — Borrowings

The Group's current and non-cuirent borrowings are as foilows

All figures in £ milhons _ v 2013 2012

Non-current

5.7% US Dollar Bonds 2014 {nommnal amount $400m) - 264

7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 (nominal amount £250m) - 256

6 0% Sterling Bonds 2015 (nominal amount £300m) 299 298

4 0% US Dollar Notes 2016 {nomnal amount $350m) 221 229

& 25% Global Dollar Bonds 2018 (nomtnal amount $550m) 375 402

4 £25% US Dollar Notes 2018 (norminal amount $300m) 202 247

3 75% UJS Dollar Notes 2022 {nenunal amount $500m) 283 315

3 25% US Dollar Notes 2023 (norminal amount $500m) 286 ~

Bank loans and overdrafts 22 22

nancelease habhues L S
_ ) e 1,693 2010
Current

Due within one year or on-demand

5 5% Global Dollar Bonds 2013 (nominal amount $350m) - 219

5 7% US Dollar Bonds 2014 (nominal amount $400m) 248 -

7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 (hominal amount £250m) 254 -

Bank loans and overdrafts 25 33

Finance lease habiwes - S - O 1
o e _ B 533 262

Total borrowings — cantinuing operations o ] 2226 2272

Bank overdrafts classified within liabthites held for sale - 7

2226 2279

Total borrowings

Included in the non-current borrowings above 1s £9m of accrued interest (2012 £11{m} Included in the current
borrowings above 1s £4m of accrued interest (2012 £2m)

The matunty of the Group s non-current borrowing is as follows

All bgures in £ ridlians L o i ) w03 Fiap)
Betweer one and two years 77T T 303 a4
Between two and five years 821 552
Overfiveyears S £ .1

1,693 2010
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18. Financial liabshties — Borrowings contnued

The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows

M43 2012
e o campeg | Meder  Carnr Marker
Allfgures mfmdbone P e o vee o cae o vile
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 47 47 55 55
5 5% Global Dollar Bonds 2013 576% - - 219 218
5 7% US Dollar Bonds 2014 5 88% 248 246 264 260
7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 720% 254 262 256 274
& 0% Sterhing Bonds 2015 627% 299 325 298 337
4 0% US Dollar Notes 2016 4 26% 221 223 229 233
6 25% Global Dollar Bonds 2018 6 46% 375 376 402 410
4 §25% US Dollar Notes 2018 4 69% 202 195 217 209
3 75% US Dollar Notes 2022 394% 283 286 315 313
3 25% US Dollar Notes 2023 336% 286 273 - -
Finance lease hiabilives . n/a 3] [} 17 17
Continuing operations 2226 2,244 1,272 2326
Bank overdrafts classified within liabilines held
for sale - e _Na_ - _7 7
2,226 2244 2.279 2333

The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available,
on the quoted market prices of comparable debt issued by other compantes The effecuve mteresi rates above
refate to the underlying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

All fgures m € mullons 2043 2012
US dollar [.645 1,684
Steriing 559 573
Other 22 22

2,226 2,279

The Group has the followtng undrawn capacity on its committed borrowmng fachines as at 31 December

Al figures « £ milbons 2013 012

Floating rate
- expiring within one year - -
- expining beyond one year . _ 1.057 1,077

1,057 | 077

In addition ta the above facliues there are a number of short-term faciities that are utilised i the normal course
of business

Afl of the Group s borrowmngs are unsecured In respect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default
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18 Financial habilites — Borrowings conunued

The maturity of the Group's finance lease obligations s as follows

Al figures m £ millians 203 2012
Finance lease liabihttes — minimum lease payments

Not later than one year 6 10
Later than one year and not later than two years 4

Later than two years and not {ater than three years | 3

Later than three years and not later than four years - -
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
t.arer than five years - -
Future finance charges on finance feases - -

Prasent value of finance lease habilhities H i7

The present value of finance lease habilities 15 as follows

Al fgures w £ mdlons 013 i
Not later than one year &6 H0
Later than one year and not later than five years 5 7

Later than five years - -

I 17

The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease obligations approximate their fair value
9. Financial risk management

The Group’s approach to the management of financat risks together with sensiivity analyses of its financral
NSLrUMents 15 set out below

Treasury policy

The Group holds financial instruments for two principal purposes to finance its operatrons and to manage the
interest rate and currency risks arsing from s operatons and its sources of finance. The Group finances its
operations by a mixture of cash flows from operauons, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper
markets, and longer term loans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principally 1 US dollars and
sterling, at both floaung and fixed rates of interest, using denvatve financal instruments ("dervauves'), where
appropriate, to generate the desired effecuve currency profile and interest rate basis The derivatives used for
this purpose are principally rate swaps, rate caps and collars currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange
contracis The main nsks ansing from the Group's financaal instruments are interest rate nsk, iqudity and
refinancing sk, counterparty risk and foregn currency risk These nsks are managed by the chief financial

officer under policies approved by the board, which are summansed overleaf All the treasury pchcies remained
unchanged throughout, except for revisions to the Group s bank counterparty nsk hmits and related approval
processes and a change to pernutted investment mstruments for some operating companies

The audit committee recetves reports on the Group's treasury actvities, pohicies and procedures The treasury
department s not a profit centre and its activities are subject to regular internal audit

L)
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19. Financial risk management contnued

Interest rate risk management

The Group s exposure to interest rate fluctuations on s borrowings 1s managed by botrowing ona fixed rate
basis and by entening into rate swaps, rate caps and forward race agreements The Group's policy objecuve has
conunued to be to set a target proportion of its forecast borrowings (taken at the year end with cash netted
against floaung rate debt and before certain adjustments for IAS 39 ‘Financtal Instruments Recogninon and
Measurement’) to be hedged (1 e fixed or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum
of 65% and a mirimunm that starts at 40% and falls by 10% at each year end At the end of 2013 the fixed to floating
hedging ratio, on the above basis, was approximately 45% 55% A simultaneous % change on | January 2014
the Group's variable interest rates in US dollar and sterling, taking mto account forecast seasonal debt, waould have
a £1 Im effect on profit before tax

Use of interest rate derivatives

The policy described in the section above creates a group of dervauves. under which the Group 15 a payer of {ixed
rates and a receiver of floating rates The Group also aims to avord undue exposure to a single interest rate setting
Reflecting this objective the Group has predonunantly swapped its fixed rate bond issues to floaung rate at their
launch This creates a second group of derivatives, under which the Group 1s a recerver of fixed rates and a payer
of floating rates The Group's accounting objective n 1ts use of interest rate dervatives Is to minimise the impact on
the income statement of changes in the mark-to-market value of its derwvative portfolio as a whole It uses duration
caleutations to estimate the sensivity of the dervatives to movements in market rates The Group also identifies
which dervatives are ehigible for far value hedge accounting (which reduces sharply the income statement impact
of changes In the market value of a dervative) The Group then balances the total portfoho berween hedge-
accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled segment Is mirmmal

Liquidity and refinancing risk management

The Group s objecuve is to secure conunuity of funding at a reasonable cost To do this it seeks to arrange
commutted funding for a vanety of mawrites from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objecuve has been
that the weighted average maturity of its core gross borrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final
matunity of the facthues available to refinance them) should be between three and ten years At the end of 2013
the average matunty of gross borrowings was 4 2 years (2012 3 9 years) of which bonds represented 97%
(2012. 97%) of these borrowings

The Group believes that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce 1ts tiquidity nisle, and that
published credit raungs and published financial policies improve such access All of the Group's credit ratings
remamned unchanged duning the year The long-term raungs are Baal from Moody's and BBB+ from Standard &
Poor's, and the short-term raungs are P2 and A2 respectively In January 2014 Moody’s changed the outlook on
their short-term and long-term ratings from *Stable’ to ‘Negauve' The Group’s policy is to sirve to maintain a
rating of Baal /BBB+ over the long term The Group will also continue 1o use internally a range of ratios to
monitor and manage its finances These include interest cover, net debt to operating profit and cash flow to debt
measures The Group also mamzains undrawn comimutted borrowing facilines. At the end of 2013 the committed
faciiies amaounzed to £1,057n% and ther weighted average maturity was | 9 years
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t9. Financial sk management conunued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of derivauves
The following tables analyse the Group’s sources of funding and the impace of derivatives on the Group's debt

mnstruments

The Group's net debt POSILION is St out below

ﬁ_\ll f;gures n £ miliions o L 2013 2012

Cash and cash equivalents - - 729 {1,062

Marketable securities 6 6

Dervauve financial instruments 76 178

Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (47} {55}
Bonds (2,168) {2,200)
Finance lease liabiliues __ gy 17
Conuinuing operanions {1,415) {1.028)
Cash and cash equivalents classtfied within assers held for sale 36 115

Bank foans, overdrafis and loan notes classified within habilives held for sale ) - {7
Net debt B ) ) 3 B (1,379)  (318)
The splt of net debt between fixed and floatng rate, stated after the e impact of rate dermvatives, 1s as follows

Al mEoons I Y
Fixed rate 612 499
Floating rate e ~ 767 419

Total o _ N 1.379 918

Gross borrowmus. aftar the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives, analysed by currency are as follows

Al ﬂgures (LS m_:_il_|9|1s_____4____# e . L 2043 042
US dollar - T a4 1,883
Sterting 339 353
Other o L L 38 43
Toral B 2.226 2,279

As at 3| December 2013 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to mterest rate changes when the
borrowings re-price s as follows

Less chan Cne to More than
ﬁﬂ figures in £ mithons e . snoysr five years  fve yeart _Iff’_'_
Re-pnicing profile of bof'mwsngs 533 1,124 569 2,126
Eﬁecr of rate derivatives o {_4%2_)__ (604 =

Total L 539 702 (35} 2,226

)
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19 Financial risk management conunued

o
The maturity of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financial habilities are as follows %‘
T B T T T T e b
All tigures m £ millions N o . use GBP  Other Total
Not fater than one year 434 36 B3 863
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,000 106 - 1,108
Later than five years o 648 - - 648
Towal . 2082 422 113 2,617
Analysed as _—
Bonds 1918 604 - 2,522 g
Rate derwatives — inflows (350) (248) - {598) A
Rate derivatives — outflows 359 I 16 376 §
Trade payables L L 155 65 97 317 i
Towl 2082 42 W3 2617 "

- - i . o o 01
Al figores in £ nuflons T o e Oher -—_n—“T;E
Not Jater than one year 489 126 142 757 ";,:"
Later than one year and not fater than five years 726 357 21 t.104 3
Later than five years o o 863 - - 863 g'
Total L _ 2078 483 163 2,724 m
Analysed as %
Bonds 1,837 639 - 2,476 P
Rate dervatives — inflows (326) (264) - (590
Rate dertvauves — outflows 328 3 22 353
Trade payables o N 239 105 141 485
Total _ L _ 2078 483 163 2.724 2

2

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floaung rate are E
calculated using nterest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset. Where this is not possible, floaung rates are %

based on terest rates prevailing at 31 December in the relevant year All derivauve amounts are shown gross.
although the Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facihues and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the rmatunty
date of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable o each calendar year up to and icluding the date of
maturity of the faciity

Financial counterparty risk management

Counterparty credit imits which take published credit rating and other factors into account, are set to cover our
total aggregate exposure to 2 single financial insutution The hmits apphcable to published credit ratings bands are
approved by the chief financial officer within guidelnes approved by the board Exposures and hrmits apphcable to
each financial msttution are reviewed on a regular basis
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19 Fipancial risk management continued

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group 1s based in the Ui, it has its most significant investment in overseas aperations The most
significant currency for the Group s the US dollar The Group’s policy on routne transactional conversions
between currencies (for example, the coilecuon of recevables. and the setlement of payables or interest} remains
that these should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The major ity of the Group's operations are
domestic within thetr country of operation No unreruited profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts,

as the company judges t inappropriate to hedge non-cash flow translatonal exposure with cash flow instruments
However, the Group does seek to create a natural hedge of this exposure through its pohicy of aligming
approxunately the currency composition of its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate
dertvatives) with its forecast operating profit before depreciation and amorusation This policy aims to soften the
impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies
only to currencies that account for more than |5% of Group operating profit before depreciation and amorusation,
which currently 1s only the US dolfar The Group sull borrows small amounts in other currencies, typically for
seasonal working capral needs Our policy does not require existing currency debt 1o be terminated to match
dechines i that currency’s share of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation In addiven
currencies that account for less than 15% of Group operatng profit before depreciation and amorusation can be
included in the above hedging process at the request of the chief financial officer

Included within year end net debt, the net borrowings /{cash) in the hedging currencies above {taking nto account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US dollar £1,63!m. sterling £202m and South African rand £(21)m

Use of currency debt and currency derivatves

The Group uses both currency denomienated debt and dertvative instruments to implement the above policy.

Its intentton ts that gains/losses on the detvatives and debt offser the losses/gans on the foreign currency assets
and income. Each quarter the value of hedging instruments s monitored agamnst the assets i the relevant currency
and, where pracucal, a deasion is made whether to reat the debt or dervative as a net investment hedge
(permitung foreign exchange movements on it to be taken 1o reserves) for the purposes of 1AS 39

Financial instruments — fair value measurement
The following table prowvides an analysis of those financial instruments that are measured subsequent to mital
recognition at far value, grouped into levels | to 3, based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Level | fair value measurements are those denved from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or kabilities,

Level 2 fair value measurements are those dernved from inputs, other than quoted prices included within levet 1,
that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (as prices} or indirectly (derved from prices), and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuanon techmques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)
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{9. Financial nsk management continued

Einancial instruments — fair value measurement contnued

2013 _ w1z
Allfgores mEmilbons e L teet  teety  lewl3 | Toul | beeh) G2 Ledd | Tow
Financial assets at fair value
Derwauve financial assets - [24 - 124 - {178 - {78
Marketable secunties - 6 - 6 - 6 - 6
Awvailable for sale financial assets
Investments in unhsted securities —
conunuing operatons - - 94 94 - - 30 L30

Investments i unhsted secunities classified
within assets held for sale - - - - - - | |

Financial habthries at far value
Derwvauve financial habilities - (48) - (48) - - - _
Other finanaial habilities — put options over

non-controlling nterest - - [ S A {68)  {(68)

Total . - 82 94 176 - i34 (37y 147
The following table analyses the movements in fevel 3 fair value measurements

) B oy wn

Investments in Invesments in

unlsted  Cther financral urdeied  Other financsal

All figures m £ mifitons B securfues lesbihives seaunues habidiwes

At beginning of year 3 (68) 26 (86)

Exchange differences - 9 (2) 5

Addinions 63 - ) -

Fair value movements - {8) - (25)

Transfer to assets classffied as held for sale - - () -

Disposals B _ - &7 (2) 38

Atend ofyear ——e e M= 3! (68)

The fair value of the iInvestrnents m unlisted securines is determined by reference to the financal performance
of the underlying asset and amounts reahsed on the sale of similar assets in 201 2. the fair value of other financial
liabilities represents the present value of the estimated future liability

MITIAYIAD |
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19 Financial risk management contunued

Fnancial instruments — sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2013 the sensitivity of the carrying value of the Group's financial instruments to fluctuations

in interest rates and exchange rates is as follows

fmpactof [%  Impacrof [N {mpace of 10%  [mpact of 10%
increase m decrease i strengchemng n weakemng in

Al figures i £ inllions _ Cairying value  interestrates interest rates steriing sterfing
Investments 1n uniisted secunties — continuing
operatons 94 - - (9) 10
Cash and cash equivalents — continung operations 729 - - {56) 68
Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held
for sale 36 - - {2) 2
Marketable securimes é - - - -
Benvauve financial instruments 76 (54) 59 !5 (18)
Bonds {2 t68) 58 (62) 147 (179)
Other borrowings — continuing operattons (58) - - 5 (5)
Other net finanaial assets — continuing aperations 566 - - (43) 53
Other net finanoial assets classified withun assets and
habiliuies held for sale _ 24 - - (i) !
Total financial instruments (695) 4 3 56 (68)

The table shows the sensiuvities of the fair values of each class of financial instruments to an isolated change in
either interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets’ comprises trade assets less

trade habidites

The sensitivittes of denvatve instruments are calculated using established estmaton techriques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuabon models Where modelling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative interest
rates, these points on the yeld curve were adjusted to 0% A large proporuon of the movements shown above
would impact equity rather than the income staternent, due to the location and functional currency of the enuties
in which they arise and the availabiity of net investment hedge treatment. The changes in valuations are estimates
of the tmpact of changes in market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses




20 intangible assets — Pre-publication

Allfigares 10 £ milons
Cost

At beginning of year

Exchange differences

Addwons

Dispasal through business disposal
Disposals

Acquisition through business combination
Transfer to property, plant and equipment

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale _

At end of year

Amortsation

At beginning of year

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

Disposal through business disposal
Disposals

Acquistuon through business combinaton

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale

At end of year
Carrying amounts
At end of year

Secuon § Financial statemenss

173

. e L 2013 012
1,876 1,965

(46)  (74)

364 364

(29) -

(234) (188)

2 14

- (3)

e = (202)
R 1,933 | 876
(12100 (1,315

46 55

(308) (316)

23 -

234 188

() (®)

- 186

717

(1216 (1.210)

666

Included in the above are pre-publicaton assets amounung to £480m (2012 £431m) which will be realised in more

than one year

Amortsaton is included i the income statement in cost of goods sold In 2013 £nil (2012 £33m) relates to

discontinued operations

21 Inventories

All figures in £ milfions

Raw matenals
Work in progress
Firushed goods

{96

224

The cost of nventories relating to continung operations recognised as an expense and included in the income
statement In cost of goods sold amounted to £472m (2012 £512m) In 2013 £53m (2012 £71m) of nventory
provisions was charged in the incorne statement None of the inventory is pledged as secunty
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22 Trade and other recervables

All figures i £ mithons _;___ L . 2013 29 E
Current
Trade recemvables 863 868
Royalty advances 23 6
Prepayments and accrued income Q1 8l
Other recewvables L o [86 139
_ - B P S P11
Neon-current
Trade receivables 19 {5
Royalty advances 8 i3
Prepayments and accrued income 33 33
Other recevables - - o 18
70 79

Trade recewables are stated at fair value, net of prowsions for bad and doubtful debts and anucipated future sales
returns The movements on the prowvision for bad and doubtful debts are as fallows

All figures in £ rm_[EoE. ) L o . i e 201 Lf_ o 2012
At beginning of year - {55) EIEZ;
Exchange differences 5 4
Income statement movemeants (27} (20
Uulised 8 53
Acaguisition through business combinaton - (1
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale _ 12
At end of year T &) I (Séi

Concentrauons of credit nsk with respect to trade recervables are imited due to the Group’s large number of
customers, who are internationally dispersed

The ageing of the Group's trade receivables 1s as follows

Al figures i £ milians o N 03 i
Within due date 783 774
Up to three months past due date {94 231
Three to six months past due date 36 43
Six 1o nme months past due date 22 4]
Nine to |2 months past due date 9 7
More than 12 months past due date I S
:J'o—tal trade receivables 1,045 i,O%B-
Less provision for sales returns e L o (163} {187)
Net crade receivables _ _ g8z 883

The Group reviews its bad debt provision at least twice a year following a detailed review of receivable balances
and histonc payment profiles Management believe all the remaining recervable balances are fully recoverable

&
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23 Provisions for other habilictes and charges

Pefirreg Dhsposals Legal
Mddguesw€omdbons o conwderawon  Propery  and domures and cther Ted
At 1 January 2013 64 26 15 43 148
Exchange differences (1) - - {n ¢3]
Charged to income statement - 6 67 55 128
Released to income statement - 4 - 0] (5
Deferred consideration on acquisition 2 - - - 2
Uunlised %) (17) (15) (66) (102)
Transfer from habilities held for sale - - ~ 24 24
Transfer o labllwes held forsate & - - . &
At 31 December 2013 N B B 58 i 67 53 189
Analysis of provisions
‘ T ] i 203
Deferred Duspesabs Legal o
Al ﬂ'ggf_sf i‘_"ll_l'i"_‘ i co_rfﬁ_'.defrff o _F:E?Eerty Td closures and other L Igtaj_
Current 5 10 67 30 H2
Non-current . 353 ] - 23 77
58 I &7 53 189
e Y
Current 6 2 5 5 38
Non-curvent 58 14 - 38 o
64 26 5 43 148

Deferred consideratton primarily relates to the formation of a venture i the US Professional business m 2011
Disposais and closures include retirement benefit obligations and other labilines related to the disposal of Penguin
Legal and other includes Iigation in relation to ebooks which was settled n full during 2013, as well as other
provistons in relaton to legal clams, contract disputes and potential contract losses

24 Trade and other habiities

Aifgweswmibocs oo BB o
Trade payables 3lé 337
Socal security and other taxes 23 30
Accruals 478 440
Deferred income 698 714
Interest payable 22 pA
Put oprions aver non-controlling interest - 68
Other habiives s s
1,762 i.838
Less non-current portion
Accruals 25 18
Deferred income {55 {47
Interest payable 21 13
Put options over non-controlling interest - 25
Other habihwes ) O .- S ) 2
257 282

Current portion
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24 Trade and other habilities continued
The carrying value of the Group's trade and other habihities approximates its fair value

The deferred mncome balance comprises pnncipally mult year obligations to deliver workbooks to adoption
custorers in school businesses, advance payments n assessment, tesuing and trainng businesses, subscnption
income in school, college and newspaper businesses, and obligations to deliver digital content in future years

The put options over non-controlling mterest nn 2012 are the fair value of options held by the non-conrrolling
interests in the Group's Southern African and [ndian businesses

15 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contrthutton retirement plans throughout the world

The largest plan 15 the Pearson Group Pension Plan (UK Group plan) in the UK, which 15 secuonalised to provide
both defined benefit and defined contributton pension benefits The defined benefit section was closed to new
mernbers from | November 2006 The defined contribunons section, opened in 2003, i1s open to new and existing
employees Finally, there 1s a separate secuan within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enraiment The defined
benefit section of the UK Group plan 15 a final salary pension plan which prowvides benefits to members in the form
of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The level of benefits depends on the length of service and final
pensionable pay The UK Group plan is funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK
Group plan 1s administered in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficianes by
Pearson Group Pension Trustee Linited

At 3! December 2013 the UK Group plan has approximately 26,500 members, analysed m the following table

':5 e o ) o fcmve . De!en-ed___ Pensionery _Ioc:i
Defined benefit 3 25 32 &0
Defined contribuvon _ R £ 4 23 - .40
Total 20 48 32 100

The other major defined benefit plans are based in the US These are also final salary pension plans which provide
benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed pension payable for ife, with the level of benefits dependent on
length of service and final pensionable pay The majonty of the US plans are funded

The Group also has several post-renrement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), principally in the US PRMBs are
unfunded but are accounted for and valued similarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuanal risks, such as Iife expectancy, inflaton nsks, and
mvestment risk including asset volaulity and changes i bond yields The Group is not exposed to any unusual,
enuty specific or plan specific risks

)
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligattons conunued

Assumpuons
The pnincipal assumpuons used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average
assumpuons have been shown for the other plans, which primarily relate to US pension plans

2013 012
__U;_(’S_roup mm_other - UK Gioup ~_Olher o

% B plan mplinf o PRNB__,, plwn plans L PRi1B
Inflation 34 25 25 30 25 25
Rate used 1o discount plan habikues 44 44 44 44 36 36
Expected rate of increase in salares i9 39 40 35 9 -
Expected rate of increase for pensions in
payment and deferred pensions 231051 - — 23t051 - -
Imuiai rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 75 - - 80
Utumate rate of increase in healthcare rate — — 50 - — 50

The UK discount rate 15 based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duration of abilites The US
discount rate s set by reference w a US bond portfolto matching model

The inftation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 4% reflects the RP{ rate In line with changes to legislation in 2010,
certamn benefits have been calculated with reference to CPI as the inflatonary measure and in these instances a rate
of 2 6% has been used

The expected rate of increase in salaries has been set at 3 9% for 2013 with a short-term assumption of 3 0%
for three years

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumpuons have been derved from the SAPS ‘all pensioners’ tables
for males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensioners' tables for females, adjusted to reflect the observed experence
of the plan, with CMl model improvement factors A | 5% long term rate improvement on the CMI mode! s
applied for males, and | 25% for females

For the US plans, the RP2000 table projected to 2020 1s used, reflecung the mortality assumpuon most prevalent
i the US

Using the above tables. the remaining average hfe expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the
balance sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plans s as follows

L 1K uUs
L __ o 3 013 we w3 e
Male 243 230 22 192
Feinale 244 242 200 201

The remaining average Ife expectancy in years of a pensioner reuring at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet
date, for the UK and US Group plans s as follows

UK Us

L e _____ﬂi____ 2012 L __3’.‘21_3 2012
Male i 259 251 192 192
Female 259 26 1 21 20 |
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Financial statement information

The amounts recognised 1 the Income statement are as follows

2013
Defined
UK Group benefit Defined
Al figures 1n £ mithons - plan athar Sub-rotal comtribunon PRMB Total
Current service cost 22 3 25 72 4 101
Curtallments ) - T - - s ™
Administration expenses 4 = ) 4 - - 4
Total operating expense 26 3 29 72 - 101
Interest on plan assets (95) (6) (1al) - - {ton)
Interest on plan labiities i 94 7 _10l - 3 104
Nert finance (income)/expense i {N } - -3 3
Net income statement charge - 4 » 2 3 104
_ U — - . =
Resiated
Denes o I
UK Gioup henefit Drefured
Al hguras i £ mihons plin olner Suly wowl contnbuiun FR~B o ‘Icf'_
Cutrent service cost 23 3 26 78 4 108
Administration expenses 4 - 4 - - 4
Total operating expense 27 3 30 78 4 112
Interest on plan assets (98) (6) (104) - - (104)
Interest on plan habilmes % 7 103 - E L
Net finance {income)/expense {2) ! () -~ 3 2
Net income statement charge 25 4 29 78 7 14

Included within the 201 3 results are disconunued operations consisting of a £2m charge (2012 £4m charge)
relating to defined benefit schemes and a £6m charge (2012 £9m charge) relaung to defined contribution schemes

The amounts recognised it the balance sheet are as follows

Alf figures in £ miflians

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit
obligation

MNet pension asseaa;abihty)

Other post-retirement
medical benefit gbligaton

Other pension accruals

Net reurement benefit obligations _ __

Analysed as
Reurement benefit assets

Remrement benefit obliganons

L " 2063 e . 2082
Ocher Other Otxr Chher
UK Group funded unfunded L4 Group funded unfunded
plan plany plans _"_—"f_t:n‘_"__ _pin_ . pians _ wore _:c;ui
2,353 156 - 2509 2,162 165 - 2,327
(2267)  (171)  (20) (2458} (2,181}  (i96) (24} {(2.401)
86 (15) {20} 51 {19} (34) {24) (74)
(77} {8%)
—— e 130 R ._(33)
N L N £ 1-L-)
86 -
e ) (198)

3
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations conunued

Included within the 2012 reurement benefit obligauon is a ability of £26m which relates to Penguin and is classified
as held for sale Dunng 2013 this was transferred back from held for sale to penston liabilitres.

The following gains/ (losses} have been recogmised in other comprehensive mcome

2013 2047
Alfresin£milors S e feme
Amounts recogmsed for defined benefit plans 70 (95)
Amounts recognised for post-reurement medical benefitplans 9 O
Total recognised in year N — .7 0y
The fair value of plan assets comprises the following

2013 2012
0:;:r o l::;;;zr -
UK Graup funded UK Group sunded

E(.___ e ._p_li?_ o plans__“ . Toual _ plan . plans____ _ “'EstaL
Equities 28 2 30 32 2 34
Bonds 40 3 43 38 3 41
Property 9 - 9 9 ! 10
Other i7 ! _ 18 14 | 15

The plan assets do notinclude any of the Group’s own financial instruments, or any property occupied by
the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into addimonal categones and those assets which
have a quoted market price in an active mariet and those that do not.

2013 2812
T Quows  Noquored Qurd o quored
% . B __ markerpnce  markecpnce  markerpnce  marked piice
UK equites 6 { 6 !
Non-UK equittes 20 3 25 3
Fixed-interest securities 9 - 24 -
Index-linked securites 24 - 19 -
Property - 9 - 10
Other L - I8 ) | 14
Tow ST 7 S
The hquidity profile of the UK Group plan assets is as follows
" _ L T T we
Liquid — calt < | month 72 73
Less liquid ~ call | -3 months 2 2
Hiqud — call > 3 months _ _ S 26 25
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations contnued

Changes n the values of plan assets and labilities of the reurement benefit plans are as follows

2013 012
Resuted
UK Group Other UK Group hler
Alttgures o € milbons _p[_m—_ﬁ# ‘_Pl;"fi _ ;ﬂﬂ o plan p(.ins ___M'
Fair value of plan assets
Openimng farr value of plan assets 2,162 165 2,327 2,008 149 2,157
Exchange differences - (2) (2) - {5) 5
Interest on plan assets 25 6 10l 98 6 104
Return an plans assets excluding interest 103 6 109 48 9 57
Contributions by employer 77 5 B2 72 2 74
Contributions by employee 2 - 2 2 -~ 2
Benefits paid (86) 24) (H10) (78) (hH (89)
Acquisition through business combination - — - 12 I5 27
Closing far value of plan assets 2353 156 2509 2162 165 2,327
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation {2 181) (220 (2.401) (1,983) {(197) (2,180)
Exchange differences - 4 4 - 7 7
Current service cost (22) (3) (25) (23) (3) (26)
Adiministration expenses {4 - {4} 1) - {4
interest cost (94) (7) (ramy (96) (7 {103)
Actuanal gains/ {losses) — experience 5 I 6 44 2 46
Actuanal gains/{losses) — demograplic - I j K} - (14)
Actuarnal gans/ (losses) — financial (55) 9 {46) (170} (i4) {184)
Contnbutions by employee (2) - {2) (2} - (2)
Benefits paid 86 24 LI0 78 I 89
Acquisinon through business combnaton = - - _({n (19) (30)
Closing defined benefic obligaton __ ___(2267) ___(I191) __(2458) _ (2.18) _ _(220) Q401

The weighted average durauon of the defined benefit obligation 15 15 8 years for the UK and 9 4 years for the US

¢ J
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obhgations conunued

Changes in the value of the US PRMB are as follows

All figures in £ mulions _ . 3 o 2063 2012
Opening defined benefit obligation {89) - (85)
Exchange differences | 4

Current service cost (4) (4)
Curtailments 4 -

Interest cost (3) (3)
Actuartal gains/ (losses) ~ experience - P

Actuanal gans/ (losses) — financial 9 7
Benefits pad o _ - . &
Closing defined benefit obhgation (77) (8%

Funding

The UK Group plan is self-administered with the plan’s assets being held independently of the Group in trust The
trustee of the plan 15 required to act in the best interest of the plan's beneficianes Assets of the plan are divided
into two elements, matching assets, which are assets that produce cashflows that can be expected to match the
cashflows for a proportion of the membership, and include UK and overseas bonds, inflation nked property and
wfrastructure, return seekig assets, which are assets invested with a longer term horzon to generate the returns
needed to provide the remaining expected cashflows for the beneficianes, and include equities, property and
alternative asset classes The benchmark allocation 15 60% matching and 40% rewrn seeking assets

The most recent trennial actuanal valuation for funding purposes was completed as ae | January 2012 and this
valuauon revealed a funding shortfall The Group has agreed that the funding shortfall will be eliminated by June
2017 In 2013 the Group contributed £56m {2012 £48m) towards the funding shortfall Following the completon
of the tnennial funding valuation the Group has agreed to contrbute £41m per annum untl 2047 in excess of
regular contnbutons In addition, a mechamsm has been agreed for the Group to make supplementary payments
up to a maximum of £{5m per annum if certain conditions are met If such payments are made they are expected
o accelerate the end date for exunguwshing the deficit Regutar contribunons to the plan in respect of the defined
benefit secuons are esumated to be £18m for 2014

The Group expects to contnbute $12m in 2014 and $12min 2015 to its US dehned benefit pension plans.
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25. Reurement benefit and other post-reurement obhgavons continued

Sensiuivities
The effect of a one percentage point Increase and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit obligation

and the total pension expense s as follows

2013
All figures n £ rullions. _ i% merease 1% decﬁ_ef_s e
Effect T
{Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligatton — UK Group plan 316 0) 3905
{Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligation — US plan (e 1) 20.0
The effect of members living one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obligauon is as {ollows

2013
o am (D
Effect
Increase/(decrease) m defined benefit obiiganon - UK Group plan 792 (76 2)
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligauon — US plan 47 48)
The effect of a half percentage point increase and decrease in the inflavion rate is as follows
T T T T T e
All figures n £ '"1'!'9':’_ . o L _____0 ;)o_;c';a:{;: 05—'4 de:r:;s:
Effect
lncrease/{decrease) in defined benefit obhgation -- UK Group plan 196 1 (99 5)
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation ~ LS plan 02 {0 3)

The above senstuvity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while hotding alt other assumptions constant,
although tn practice this 1s unhkely to occur and changes in some assumptions may be correlated When calculaung
these sensitivittes the same method has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obliganon as has been applied
when calculaung the liability recognised in the balance sheet. This methodology is the same as prior periods

r

q
(-a/
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26 Share-based payments

The Group recognised the following charges in the Income statement in respect of its equity-settled share-based payment plans

Adl figures in £ mifions 013 R

Pearson plans 35 28

Share-based payment charges mncluded in discontnued operauons amounted to £2m (2012 £4m)
The Group operates the following equity-settled employee option and share plans

Warldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan for UK employees
in 1998 the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a
portion of their monthly salary over pertods of three, five or seven years At the end of this period, the employee
has the option to purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of

the market price prevailing at the ume of the commencement of the employee’s participation in the plan

Opuions that are not exerased within six months of the end of the savings penod lapse uncondimionally

Employee Stock Purchase Plan In 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows all
employees n the US to save a portton of their monthly salary over six-month periods At the end of the period,
the employee has the option to purchase ADRs with thewr accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 85%
of the lower of the market price prevailing at the beginning or end of the period

Long-Termt Incentive Plan This plan was first introduced in 2001, renewed in 2006 and again in 20t The plan
cansists of restricted shares

The vesting of restricted shares 1s normaliy dependent on continuing service over a three to five-year pertod, and
in the case of serior management upon the sansfaction of corporate performance targets over a three-year period
These targets may be based on market and/or non-markert performance critena Restricted shares awarded

to senior managemant in May and October 2013, and May 2012 vest dependent on relative total shareholder
return, retwrn on invested capital and earnings per share growth The award was sphit equally across afl three
measures Other restricted shares awarded in 2013 and 2012 vest depending on continumg service over a three-
year period

Annual Bonus Share Matcling Plan This plan permits executive directors and senior execuuves around the Group o
tvest up 1o 50% of any after tax annual bonus in Pearson shares {f these shares are held and the Group meets an
earmings per share growth target, the company will match them on a gross basis of up to one matching share for
every invested share 1 e the maximum number of matching shares s equal to the number of shares that couid
have been acquired wath the amount of the pre-tax annual bonus taken m mvested shares

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group's plans are as follows

0w o an

Weighted Weaghind

Number of welnge clumtorof 1/erage

share options  exercise price dure optiuny  Ewro e pricy

.o SO S S

Qutstanding at beginning of year 3,373 824 3.203 715
Granted durning the year 763 914 1,321 809
Exercised duning the year {820) 712 (840) 559
Forfeited during the year {516) 875 (294) 784
Expreddunngtheyear @55 (7)) 560
Qutstanding at end of year . L _2,792 873 3,373 824

Opuons exerasable at end of year 35 695 {06 558

!
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26 Share-based payments conunued

Opuons were exercised regularly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was
£1242 (2012 £12 01) Early exercises arising from redundancy retrement or death are treated as an acceleranon
of vesung and the Group therefore recognises in the income sratement the amount that otherwise would have

been recognised for services received over the remainder of the oniginal vesung pertod

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual fives and exercise

prices as follows

2 02
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share cantractual shara oontracteal
Aange of exercise prices opuons Ile apoons life
£ 0005 Years 000 Years
0--5 - - - —
5-10 2,792 231 3.373 256
e ] T - T
e ~ i 2792 0 231 3,373 256
In 2G13 and 2012 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The weighted average
esumated fair value for the opuons granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model
The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Blacl-Scholes maodel are as follows
- 2013 2012
Waighted Weighred
—_————— - _ avemgi_ averace
Farr value £227 £238
Woeighted average share price £11 71 £t 51
Woeighted average exercise price L9 i4 £909
2205%  2362%

Expected volatlty
Expected life

Risk free rate

Expected dividend yield
Forfeiture rate

38years 38years

053% 074%
3 84% 365%
33% 33%

The expected volatility 1s based on the histonc voladlity of the company’s share price over the previous three to

seven years depending on the vesung term of the options

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

2013 1012

Waeghted Werighted

Number of average MNumhes of v age

shares fair value shares far value

000s [4 000s £

Long-Term Incenuve Plan 3,482 52 4503 It 56
99 206 237 {152

Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan

The fair value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest uncondiionally s determined using
the share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest is adjusted, based on historical
experience, to account for potenual forfeitures Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching
Plan are valued using the share price at the date of grant Partcipants undet both plans are entitled to dividends

during the vesung period and therefore the share price 1s not discounted




Secuon 5 Finanaial sratements 185

26 Share-based payments conunued

Restricted shares with a market performance conditon were valued by an independent actuary using 2 Monte
Carlo model Restncted shares with 2 non-market performance condition were far- valued based on the share
prce at the date of grant. Non-market performance conditions are taken into constderation by adjusting the
number of shares expected to vest based on the most hkely outcome of the relevant performance criterna

27 Share capital and share premium

Number Ordinry Share

of shares shares prermum
L . _ . _ 0005 L £in
At | January 2012 815,624 204 2,544
Issue of ordinary shares - share opuonschemes _L.417 - .
At 3| December 20i2 817.043 204 2,555
Issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes B 1,537 (S ]
At 3| December 2013 _ 818,580 205 2,568

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2012 25p per share} All issued shares are fully paid
Al shares have the same nights

The Group manages its capttal to ensure that entites in the Group will be able te conunue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the opumsauon of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt {see note 18}, cash and cash equivalents {see note 17) and
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings

The Group reviews its capital structure on a regular basis and will balance s overall capital structure through
payments of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redempuion of exisung debt
i [ne with the financral risk palicies outlined in note |9

28 Treasury shaves

Pearson ple
Number
cf shares
i R Q00s £m
At i January 2012 14,665 149
Purchase of wreasury shares - -
Release of treasury shares B {4.563) {46)
At 3t December 2012 10,102 103
Purchase of treasury shares 4,001 47
Release of reasyryshares . .. __ &) (2
Az 31 December 2013 9,282 98

The Group holds Pearson plc shares i trust to sausfy 1ts obligatons under vts resinicted share plans (see note 26)
These shares, represenung | 1% (2012 | 2%) of called-up share capital, are treated as treasury shares for
accounting puirposes and have a par value of 25p per share

The nominal value of Pearson pic treasury shares amounts to £2 3m (2012 £2 5my

At 31 December 2013 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £124 4m (2012- £120 Om)
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29 Other comprehensive income

2013
Aunburtable to equity holders of che company T
Non-
Translatien Recatned congroliing
A fgures 1 LIS e — S i Toul  meerest | Teml
ltems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - Group (202) - (202) (4) (208)
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations — associate (i) - (11} - (rn
Currency translation adjustment disposed - subsidiares (18} - (18) - {18)
Attributable tax - 6 6 - 6
ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obliganions — Group - 79 79 - 79
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — associate - - - - -
Attributable tax - {23) (23) - (23)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (231) 62 (169 4 (173)
- ) T e
Restated
Arnputable to equny holders .u:;:c“c;mp-ny S
Pon
Mranslation Retaned copu cling
Al figur + 10 £ milions - - o o _feserve e Towl | et | Toa
items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Met exchange differences on translaton of foreign
operatcns ~ Group (236) - {236) (2) (238)
Artributable tax - | f - !
ftems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obligauons — Group - {100} {100} - (10
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — associate - 3 (3) - {3)
Aurbutable tax L N - 50 50 - 50
Other comprehensive expense for the year (236)  (32) {288) (Z) (290

30 Business cambinattons

There were no sigmficant acquisitons i 2013 Adjustments have been made in respect of ptior year acquisttions in
2013 and nclude the recognition of intangibles of £185m on the EmbanetCompass acquisition The acquisttion was
made wn iate 2012 and was prowisionally accounted for as at 31 December 2012
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Prowvisional values for the assets and Iiabiltttes arising from acquisiions completed 1n the year together with

adjustments to prior year acquisiions are as folfows

o 2013 2012
CCurrens Prior  Tomt  Tud

ﬂgfeﬂﬁl‘“m"’ e . f‘\lges- year year {ar value farr v e
Property, plant and equipment o I - ] V]
Intangible assets 1 7 193 200 280
Intangible assets — Pre-publicaton 0 [ - i 6
inventories -~ | i 1
Trade and other receivables 8 | 9 34
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 2 - 2 34
Net deferred income tax assets/ (rabihties) 13 pi (3% (37) {67)
Retirement benefit obligatuons - - - (2

Provisions for other habidies and charges -
Trade and cother labiites (6)

- - (n
(H @

) _ e S A B 1)

Current income tax labilities ) -

Net assets acquired at fair value I5 155 170 183
Goodwill It 19 (152)  {133) 505
Fair value of previously held interest ansing on stepped acquismon .~~~ (7) - (7) -
Total _ . _ o _ o 27 3 30 688
Satisfied by

Cash (25) (&) (31  (682)
Deferred consideration (2) - {2 (6)

3 3

MNet pnior year adjustments -

Toral consideration (27)

G)__(30) (688)

The goodwill ansing on these acquistiens results from cost and revenue synergies and from benefits that cannot be

separately recognised

A provisional value of £6m of goodwill arsing on 2013 acquisitions 1s expected to be deducoble for tax purposes

(2012 £nil)

Intangible assets acquired i 2012 and recogmised in 2013 have the following useful economic hives
EmbanetCompass customer lists contracts and relauonships 3—17 years, trademarks and brands two years
Intangible assets acquired in 2013 are classified as other intangible assets and have useful bvas of 3—10 years
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30. Business combimnations conunued

All figures i £ mifhons L 2013 2012
Cash flow on acquisitions

Cash — Current year acquisitions {25) {682)
Deferred payments for prior year acquistuons and other items {6) 30
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 2 34

Acquisiion costs and other acquisition habiiues paid (19) (37}
Net cash outflow L (48} {716)

In total, acquisiuons of subsidiartes completed in the year contributed an additional £15m of sales but did ot
contribute 3 material amount to operating profit There would not have been a materiat difference to either sales

or profits had these acquisiions completed on | January 2013

31 Disposals including business closures

2013 012
All figures in € nlnllins L . B . Pengtun Other Toull . » -
Dusposal of subsidiaries T
Property, plant and equipment - (3% (3 (42) (3)
tntangible assets (43} - (43) (45)
Investment in joint ventures and assoclates {22) - 0n -
Orther financial assets (1) - () —
Intangible assets — Pre-publication (20 (6) (26} -
Inventories (21 (3} (94} -
Trade and other receivables (447} (6) (453) -
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) (34) (3) (37} -
Net deferred income tax (assets) /liabihiues (22) - (22) I
Reurement benefit obligations - 4 4 -
Provistons for other habilities and charges 7 - 7 -
Trade and other lhiabilities 224 0 234 -
Non-controlling interest 3 - 3 -
Arttributable goodwill {370) (6} (376) (50)
Cumulauve translatien adjustment ] o I8 - I8 -
Net assets disposed {837) {13) {850 (&7)
Cash received - 3 3 -
Far value of associate acgquired 1,160 - §,160 -
Costs e 2n w039 (28
Gan/(loss)ondsposal 202 (% 178 ___ (113

The gain on disposal of Penguin anses from the measurement at fair value of the associate investment acquired in

Penguin Random House

3
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31 Disposals mcluding business closures continued

Al figures in £ mithans 2013 2011

Cash flow from disposals

Cash - current year disposals 3 -
Cash and cash equwvalents dispased (37 -
Costs and other disposal habvespad 08 _ (D
Net cash outflow (132) (11)

The disposal tn 2012 includes the write down of assets resulung from the closure of Pearson in Practice
32 Held for sale

Assets classified as held for sale in 2012 relate to Penguin and in 2013 to Mergermarket

All figures in £ millions Notas 013 2012

Property, plant and equipment B - o T m; Z_—M—_:}—O
Intangible assets 1 158 404
investments i jomnt ventures and assoctates - 27
Deferred income tax assets 11 I 38
Other financial assets s - !
Trade and other recewables 26 451
Intangible assets — Pre-publicaton pis - 6
lnventories - 80
Cash and cash eguivalents (excluding overdrafts) R _ 7 36 i15
Assets classified as held for sale 223 £.172
Financiat habiliues — Borrowings 18 - (7
Deferred mcome tax habidities 12 (2) (20)
Retrement benefit obligauons i5 - (26)
Prowisions for other fiabilities and charges 3 4 (29)
Trade and other habilites {71) (234)
Current income tax habiities L (5} -
Liabiiities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale ) ~ 82 (3l
Net assets classified as held for safe 4] 856

33 Transactions with non-controlhng interest

in 2013 the Group purchased non-controlling interests n the Southern African business for £65m, and n the Indian
business for £11mt In 2012 the Group increased its investments in tts subsidiaries in China at a cost of £4m
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34 Cash generated from operations

ﬁli_flgures in £ millions e Motes 2012 012
Profit 539 314
Adjustments for

Income wax 20 163
Depreciztion (0 82 80
Intangible charges 1 168 183
Amorusation of other intangible assets H 59 54
Net finance costs 75 86
Share of results of joint ventures and associates (2 (54} (%
(Profit}/loss on disposals (187} H3
Acquisition Costs 12 21
Costs on formaton of Penguin Random House - 32
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transacuons (40} 21
Share-based payment costs 2 37 32
Pre-publicavion 77 (55
Inventories I8 49
Trade and other receivables (50) {o4)
Trade and other fiabilives 72 -
Renrement benefit obhigations {57) (37)
Pravistons for other labiiies and charges L (3) (S)
MNet cash generated from operations 684 916
Dividends from joint ventures and associates 64 27
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (e (78}
Purchase of intangtble assets (64) (73}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 28 I
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 3
Finance lease principal payments (8) (8)
Operaung cash flow 588 788
Operanng tax paid (i9t) (65)
Net operaung finance costs pad L - 73 (66)
Operating free cash flow 324 657
Non-operating tax pad U ) -
Free cash flow 269 657
Dmdends paid (including to non-conwrollinginterestsy (372)  (348)
Net movement of funds from operations (o3 309
Acquisiions and disposals (net of tax) (326) (780)
Loans advanced (including to related parues) {49 -
Purchase of treasury shares “7) -
New equity |4 it
Other movements on financial instruments S o B
MNet mavement of funds {520) {460)
Exchange movememsonnetdebt _ __ _ o o.oeone22 A
Total movement v net debt (461) (419)

)
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14 Cash generated from operauions contnued

Net cash generated from operations 1s translated at an exchange rate approximaung to the rate at the date of
cash flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives nse to a currency
adjustment in the reconcilration between net profit and net cash generated from operatons. This adjustment
reflects the timing difference between recogmuon of profit and the related cash recelpts or payments

Operaung cash flow, operaung free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson’s corporate and operaung measures

in the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise

ﬁil__ilguru in £ edhons _ e o 2013 Wiz
Net book amount 19 i

Profit on sale of property. plant and equipment _ 9 =
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . ~ 28 P

35 Contingencies

There are conungent Group habihities that anse in the normal course of business in respect of indemnities,
warranties and guarantees in relation to former subsidiartes and i respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates In additon there are contingent habilittes of the Group In respect of legal claims,
conrract disputes, royalties, copyright fees, permissions and other rights None of these claims are expected to
result in a matertal gain or loss to the Group

36 Commitments
There were no commitments for capital expendrture contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operaung lease agreements The leases have
varying terms and renewal nghts The Group also leases varous plant and equipment under operating lease
agreements also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged to the income statement was £§83m (2012 £169m)

The future aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of operating leases are as follows

At trgurcs n £ milkons w13 2012
Mot fater than one year tel 186
tater than one year and not later than two years 149 {74
Later than two years and not later than three years 133 58
Larer than three years and not later than four years I8 137
Later than four years and not later than five years {os 124
Later than five years L e 737 89

1403 1678

MIIAYIAD

IDONYWuQ4Yiad ¥NO

SSANISNG F1RISNOASIY

|

JINYHYIAOD

SLNAWIECLS TWIDNYNIS |




192 Pearson pic Annual report and accounts 2613

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

37 Related party transacuons

Jont ventures and associates
Amounts advanced to jomnt ventures and assocates dunng the year and at the balance sheet date are set out
in note |2 Apart from transacuons with the Group's joint ventures and associates, there were no other mater:al

related party transactions

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the board of directors of Pearson ple Itis this
board which had responsibifity for planning, directing and controling the activities of the Group in 2013 Key
management personnel compensatian ts disclosed in the directors’ remuneration report

There were no other matenal related party transactions

Nao guarantees have been provided to related partes

38 Events after the balance sheec date ({:3
{

On 4 February 2014, the Group completed the sale of Mergermarket for £382m On || February 2014, the Group
acquired 100% of Grupo Mult, the leading English Language Training company in Brazil, for approximately £435m
in cash plus the assumpruion of £57m of debt
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The Pearson plc subsidrary comparues fisted below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relatng to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479A

e Company numhci _ _ Compary aundser
;\!dwych Finance Ltd 04720439 Pearson Education Ltd 00872828
ASET Lid 04231636 Pearson Funding Four plc 07970304
ASET Group Ltd 0396455 Pearson Funding One ple 02911143
ASET Management Ltd 03139404 Pearson Funding Two plc 07210654
ASET Sclutnons Ltd 03849880 Pearson Heimnemann {td (3099304
Blue VWharf Ltd (04344573 Pearson in Pracuce ATA Lud 07679091
Burmedia Investments Ltd 03060487 Pearson in Practice Holdings Led 06337129
Edexcef Ltd 04436750 Pearson in Practice Skdls Based Learming Lud 03755464
Educatton Development [nternational plc 03914767 Pearson in Practice Technology Ltd 03786989
Ernbankment Finance Ltd 04460625 Paarson International Finance Lud 02496206
eNVQ Lid 03985%48 Pearson Loan Fnance No 2 Unltd 05632021
EQL Assessment Ltd 05224778 Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Ltd 05052661
Escape Studios Lrd 04399042 Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Ltd 02635107
Financial Times (ASC) Lud 00519261 Pearson Leoan Finance Unlid 05144467
Financial Times Group ttd 00879531 Pearson Management Services Ltd 00096243
Fronter UK Ltd 05737591 Pearson Overseas Holdings Ltd 00145205
FT Business Informaton Lid 00758738 Pearson PRiH Holdings Led 08561316
FT Labs Ltd 04701650 Pearson Professional Holdings Led 00149375
FT Personal Finance Ltd 03855520 Pearson Services Ltd 01341060
Geoal Lid 03566588 Pearson Shared Senaces Ltd 04623186
Green Wharf Ltd 07009228 Peter Honey Publications Ltd 03754757
icadeon Ltd 05068195 Sector Training Ltd (5342448
Joint Examinmg Board Ltd 03278422 St Clements Press (1988) Lid 02174119
Longman Group (Overseas Holdings) Ltd 00690236 Testchange Ltd 02496240
Midlands Educauonal Technology Lid 01448842 The Coaching Space Ltd 05333023
Pearson Affordable Learming Fund Ltd 08038068 The Financial Trimes (Benelux) Led 01613899
Pearson Amsterdam Finance Ltd 03041245 The Financral Times (France) Lid 00867316
Pearson Australia Finance Unltd 055784¢3 The Financial Times (Japan} Ltd 01613900
Pearson Boolks Lid 02512075 The Financial Times {(M-M UK) Lid 01398449
Pearson Canada Finance Unkd 0557849 The Finanoat Times {Spand Ltd 01244414
Pearson College Ltd (07967446 The Financial Times Lid 002275%0
Pearsen Dollar Finance plc 05111013 TQ Catalis Ltd 07307943
Pearson Dollar Finance Two plc (06507766 TQ Clapham Led 07307925
Pearson Education Holdings Led 00210859 TQ Global Led 07802458
Pearson Educaton invesunents Ltd 08444933  TOQ Holdings Ltd 06294307
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39 Accounts and audit exemptions continued

The Pearson pic subsidiary companies listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

to prepare indwidual accounts by virtue of section 394A

Coumpanv munber

Comparry number

Exec-Appointments Lid Q4010964
FDt Inteligence Ltd NI1040129
Financial Times Business Ltd 00202281
financial Times Electronic Publishing Ltd 02749250
Financial Tirnes Investor Lid 04005565
Mandatewire Ltd 03855296

Medley Globai Advisors Ltd

The Financial News Ltd

The Financial Times (Switzerand) Ltd
The Financral Times (Zhongwen) Ltd
Throgmorton Publicatons Ltd

00931507
00607228
01613901
01900030
00905696

{

)
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Company balance sheet
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Al figures in £ mllions 3 L _ 3  Motas 2013 2012
Assets B B - o
MNon-current assets
{nvestments in subsidiaries 2 8537 9.108
Amounts due from subsidiaries 2.009 2,021
Financial assets — Derivauve financal instruments o & e {74
10,657 Il 303
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 380 578
Armounts due from refated parues 44 -
Prepayments - 4
Current income tax assets 24 -
Financial assets - Derwauve finanaal instruments ) i3 4
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) e . 4 394 643
S U )
Total assets . - N 11,512 12,532
Liabifities
Non-current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {3.553) {4,227
Financeal kabiites - Borrowings 5 (202) {473)
Financal habhities — Dervative financial instruments . 6 “8 -
{3.803) (4,700}
Current labilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {1.256) {1,953)
Current income tax iabilities - (13}
Finanaal habibves — Borrowings 5 (766) (618)
Provisions for other iabilites and charges e 7 (42) -
., (2584)
Total liabilicies L {5 867) (7 284)
MNet assets o _ e .. 5645 @ 5248
Equity
Share capital g 205 204
Share premwum 3 2,568 2,555
Treasury shares c (22) 27
Special reserve 447 447
Retained earnings _ B B o 2a47 2,063
Total equrty artributable to equity holders of the company 2645 5248

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 10 March 2014 and signed

on its behalf by

Raobin Freestone Chief financial officer
10 March 2004
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31| December 2013

Equity atumburable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Special Retaned

All figures in £ millions o capueal premuum shares raserve earnings Toral
At | January 2013 204 2555 (27) 47 2069 5248
Profit for the year - - - - 802 802
Issue of ordinary shares under
share opuon schemes” } i3 - - — 14
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47) - - (47)
Release of treasury shares - ~ 52 - (52) -
Dividends - - - - (372) (372)
At 31 December 2013 205 2568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645

o Cquity amibutable 1o equity holders of the company

Share ' Share Tr easury B Special Retained

All figues in £ "_‘ﬂ'l"“" cipial presnium shues raserve earnings Total
AL | January 2012 204 2,544 (54) 447 1,450 4,551
Profit for the year - - - - 011 1.011
Issue of ordinary shares under '
share optton schemes® - It - - - I
Contnbutions from subsidiaries
for treasury shares - - 21 - - 21
Release of treasury shares - - 46 - (46) —
Dividends - - = - (346) (346)
At 31 December 2012 204 2,555 {27) 47 2069 5248

The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellanon of the company's share premium account.

Included within retained earnings 1s an amount of £131m (2012 £i31m} refaung to profit on ntra-group disposals

that 1s not distributable

“Eull detads of the share-based paymient plans are disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financiat statements
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Company cash flow statement
Year ended 3| December 2013

All frgures m £ rulhons Nortas 043 012

Cash flows from operating activities

Nert profit 802 1 Qi
Adjustments for

Income tax {51 39
Net finance costs 167 t03
Amounts due to subsidiaries L o __(1,053) (427)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations (135) 648
Interest paid (82) (93)
Tax receved f4 43
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (203) 598
Cash flows from investing actvites

Disposal of subsidiartes, net of cash disposed 482 -
Interest received ) B 10 b
Net cash received from investing actvities 492 !
Cash flows from financing acuvities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 8 14 b
Net purchase of treasury shares (48) -
Loans to related parties (44) -
Repayment of borrowings - 6
Dwidends paid to company s shareholders @Iy (348)
Net cash used in financing activities (450) (336)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equvalents 18 )
MNet {(decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents (143) 259
Cash and cash equivalents at beginnming of year _ o 25 (234)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 {118) 25
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Notes to the company financial statements

| Accounting policies

The financial statements on pages |95 to 203 comprise the separate financal statements of Pearson plc
As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, only the consohdated income statement and statement
of comprehensive income has been presented

The company has no employees

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these company financial statements are the same as those
set out In note | to the consolidated financial statements with the addition of the following

Investments
lnvestments it subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impatrment, with the exception of certain hedged
investments that are held in a foreign currency and revalued at each balance sheet date

2 Investments v subsidiaries

Allfgures n £ mdhons S i AN
At beginning of year 9.108 9,056
Subscription for share caprtal in subsidiaries 424 R
Disposals/hquidations (985) -
Currency revaluations (10) (58)
At end of year 5 8,537 9.108

3 Financial nisk management

The company’s financial instruments comprise amounts due to/from subsidiary undertalungs, cash and cash
equivalents, dervative financial instruments and current and non-current borrowsngs Denvatve financial
instruments are held at far value, with all other finanoial instruments held at amortised cost The company's
approach to the management of financial nsks 1s consistent with the Group's treasury policy, as discussed
tn note |9 to the consclidated financial statements The company believes the value of its financial assets

to be fully recoverable

The company designates certan of its qualifying derivauve financsal instruments as hedges of the fair value of
its bonds (fair value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these derwative financial nstruments are recorded
in the income statement, together with any change 10 the fair value of the hedged lability attibutable to the
hedged sk

The carrying value of the company's finanaial instruments is exposed to movements in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates {primartly US dollars) The company esumates that a |% increase in mterest rates would
result in a £47m decrease in the carrying value of its financial instruments, with a 1% decrease in tnterest rates
resulting in a £50m ncrease in their carrying value The company also estmates that a 10% strengthening in sterling
would decrease the carrying value of s financial instruments by £126m, while a {0% decrease n the value of
sterling would increase the carrying value by £129m These increases and decreases in carrying value would be
recorded through the income statement Sensitivities are calculated using esumanon techniques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models Yhere modelling an interest rate decrease of | % led to negative interest
rates, these points on the yield curve were adjusted to 0%
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3 Financial risk management continued

The matunity of contracted cash flows on the company s barrowngs and all of its derwvauve financial instruments
are as follows

L 2043
2l fgures i £mibons S so e | ote | e
Not later than one year (20) 233 16 229
Later than one year and not later than five years 287 (212) - 75
Later than five years A PR € 2) N i - 39
Total 228 21 16 265
Analysed as
Bonds 219 268 - 487
Rate dervatives - inflows (350) (248) - (598)
Rate dervatves -outflows 3% 1 ___ le _ 376
Total 228 21 & 265
S e e
Allfgoresm Cmions LH_:-______—:EJ.SD . GBP Oher Tord
i\lorl_a;ér than one year . (i&) 3 3 -EE
Later than one year and not jJater than five years §05 2) 21 147
Later than five years ; 155 - - 155
Towl _ R 134 24 22 _ 280
Analysed as
Bonds 232 285 - 517
Rate denvatives — inflows (326) (264) - 1590)
Rate dervatives - outflows . 328 3 22 353
Total 2134 24 22 280

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floating rate are
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this 1s not possible, floaung rates are
based on mnterest rates prevaihing at 31 December i the relevant year All denvative amaunts are shown gross,
although the company net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facliies and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the matunty
date of the relevant faciity, with interest calcuiated as payable in each calendar year up to and including the date
of maturity of the faciity
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Notes to the company financial statements contnued

4 Cash and cash equivaients (excluding overdrafts)

All ligures n £ mithions 43 042
Cash at bank and in hand 269 i
Short-term bank deposits 125 642

394 643

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2013 the currency split of cash and cash equivalents was US doltar 76% (2012 63%) and sterling 24%
(2012 37%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to therr
short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

All figures wm £ mithions 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 394 643
Bank overdrafts o . L . _ 51y _(618)
S e e A118) 25
5 Financial habilities — Borrowings
Mmoo msma
Non-current - ‘
7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 (nonunal amount £250m) ~ 256
4 625% US Dallar Notes 2018 (nominal amount $300my} o 02 27
202 473
Current
Due within one year or on-demand
7.0% Sterling Bonds 2014 (nominal amount £250m) 254 -
Bank loans and overdrafts - 512618
- L T Tes ks
Tozal borrowings ] - 268 1.osl

Included in non-current borrowings above is £rul of accrued interest (2012 £3m) Included in current borrowings
abave s £3m of accrued interest (2012 £}

<D
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5 Financial habilities — Borrowings continued

The marturity of the company s non-current borrowings is as follaws

201

Al igures wn £ milions o 2003 2012
Between one and two years - 256
Between two and five years 202 -
Over five years _ - 217

202 473

As at 31 December 2013 the exposure to interest rate changes of the borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries

when the borrowings re-pnice 1s as follows

Less than One o More than
:EI} figures 0 £ millions . _ ane year L five years five years . Total
Re-pncing profile of borrowings 766 202 - 568
Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,256 2,731 822 4,809
Effect of rate derivatives 102 422y (609 -
e o m 3,048 2510 218 5,777
The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows
a ) 2013 2017
-E_Hecuve Carrying Market Corpymg o ""*'[:4';;(“{"
All figures n £ millions _ L interest rate amourA v_aluc amount vahe
Barlc loans and overdrafts n/a 512 512 618 618
7 0% Sterhing Bonds 2014 7.20% 254 262 256 274
4 625% US dollar Nates 2018 4 69% 202 195 217 209
968 969 [,091 [0l

The market values are based on dean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available, on the
quoted market prices of comparable debt ssued by other comparnes The effective tnterest rates above relate

10 the underlying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the company s borrowings are denomemnated in the following currencies

Al figures i £ millons I _ 2013 2012
US doltar 202 255
Sterling 762 826
Buro - S - i} e 4 10
968 1091
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Notes to the company financral statements conunued

6 Derwative financial instruments

The company's outstanding derwvauve financial instruments are as follows

2013 012
Gross notional Gross nononal

.ﬂ:l[fgir:es_ln_(_l_ndllons o amounts Assels _inblimcs 4MOULs _ Asspis L-abinic;s_
Interest rate denvatives —
in a fair value hedge relationship 231 22 - 224 35 -
Interest rate dervattves —
not tn a hedge refationship 1.842 63 (48) 1,292 109 -
Cross-currency derivatives oo 39 - 220 34 -
Tozal ] N 2,293 124 (48) [,746 {78 -
Analysed as expiring
in less than one year 312 I3 - 215 4 -
Later than one year and not later
than five years 1,377 (N - 701 69 -
Later than five years . 604 - (48 830 {105 -
Total _ 2,293 124 (48} 1,746 t78 -

The carrying value of the above denvauve financial instruments equals thewr fair value Fair values are determined
by using market data and the use of establhshed estimation techmques such as discounted cash flow and option
vatuaticn modeis

7 Provisions for other liabilittes and charges

Prowisions n the year compnise hizbihwes assurmed on the closure of the business of a group subsidiary
it 1s anucpated that the provision will be utlised in less than one year

8 Share capital and share prermum

MMumber of Oreinary Shate

shares shares premurm

o o 0005 £m £

At | January 2012 B15,626 204 2,544
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes . i417 - &
At 31 December 2012 B17043 204 2,555
lssue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1837 1 13
At 31 December 2013 818,580 205 2568

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2012 25p per share} All 1ssued shares are fully pad
All shares have the same rights

{’ﬁ\
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9 Treasury shares

Nunder of
shares
—— — U .. M.
Al January 2012 14,665 94
Purchase of treasury shares - -
Contnbution from subsidiaries - (2
Release of treasury shares _ i _ _ o (4.563) (48
At 31 December 2012 10,102 27
Purchase of treasury shares 4,111 47
Release of treasury shares L B (4.931) {52)
At 3| December 2013 _ 9,282 22

The company holds its own shares in trust to sausfy 1ts obligations under s restricied share plans These shares
are treated as treasury shares for accounung purposes and have a par value of 25p per share Tiie nominal value
of the company’s treasury shares amounts to £2 3m (2012 £2 5m) At 3! December 2013 the market value of
the company’s treasury shares was £124 4m (2012 £120 Om)

10 Contingencies

There are contingent liabilties that arise in the normal course of business in respect of mdemnities, warranties

and guarantees in relaton to former subsidianies and In respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries In addition
there are conungent labilines in respect of legal claims None of these claims are expected to result in a material
gain or loss to the company

I Audit fees
Staturory audst fees relating 1o the company were £35,000 (2002 £35,000)

12 Related party transactions

Subsidiaries
The company transacts and has cutstanding balances with iis subsidianes Amounts due from subsidiares
and amounts due to subsidiaries are disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet

These loans are generaily unsecured and interest Is calculated based on market rates The company has nterest
payable to subsidiaries for the year of £144m (2012 £171m) and interest recewvable from subsidianes for the
year of £59m (2012 £64m}. Management fees payable to subsidianes in respect of centrally provided services
amounted to £55m (2012 £47m) Dwidends receved from subsidiaries were £1,363m (2012 £1,124m)

Associates
Amounts due from related partes, disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet, relate ta loans to Penguin
Random House, an asscoare of the Group These [cans are unsecured and interest s calculared based on market

rates

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the board of directors of the company

It 15 this board which has responsibihity for planming, direcung and controihng the actvities of the company
Key management personnel compensation is disclosed in the report on directors’ remuneration in the
consoldated financial statements

There were no other materal refated party transactons
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Principal subsidiaries

The principal operaring subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 are listed below They operate mainly in the countries
of incorporation or registration. The investments are in equity share capital and they are all {00% owned

Couniry of IMCOrpGraLon of [Epsirauun

Pearson Educauon

Pearson Education Inc us
Pearson Education Ltd England
NCS Pearson Inc o o . . Us
FT Group

The Financial Times Ltd England

The company has taken advantage of the exempuion under Secuon 410(2} of the Companies Act 2006 by
providing information only i relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financiat positton, in the opinon
of the directors, principally affected the financial statements A complete list of subsidiary and associated
undertalungs will be included n the next Pearson plc annual return filed with the Registrar of Companies
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Five-year summary
) T ’ 2011 2012

fﬂ Tigures i £ imftons ) S 002 2010 Restated Restated 2(12__
Sales
MNorth American Education 2,470 2,640 2584 2.658 2,779
fnternancnal Education §,035 1,234 [.424 }.568 §.539
Professional Y 24 333 382 390 410
Education 3780 4207 4,390 4,616 4,728
FiGrow 288 S 3 34 34l
Conunuing 4,068 4,532 4,728 4,959 5.069
Discontinued L 1,556 1.427 1,134 1,153 _ 621
Totalsales L 5624 5,959 5862 6112 5,690
Adjusted operatung profit
North Amencan Education 403 46% 493 536 406
international Educaton [41 174 194 214 140
Professional I - SURR) BN . 37
Educauon 587 671 753 787 603
FT Group 19 4] 53 22 29
Penguin Random House B . . - ~ - - 50
Continuing 606 732 806 809 682
Discontinued e 252 206 (32 123 54
Total adjusted operating profit 858 938 938 932 736
Operating margin — conunuing 14 9% 16 2% 17 0% 16 3% 13.5%
Adjusted earnings
Total adjusted operating profit 858 938 938 232 736
Net finance costs (57) {85) (55) (65) (72)
income tax (194) {215) {196) (200) (97}
Non-controlling mterest _ i (44) (17) I (3 [0
Adjusted earnings 523 621 688 664 566
Weighted average number of shares (millons) 7993 801 2 800 2 804 3 8078
Adjusted earnings per share _ 654p  773%p  860p 82 é4p 701p

2011 and 2012 have been restated to reflect the adopuon of IAS |9 revised Prior perods have not been restated
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Five-year summary continued

201t

2012

All figures i £ rulhons 1009 ie Restated Restated 2013
Cash flow

Operaung cash flow 213 1.057 983 788 588
Operating cash conversion [06% F13% 105% 85% 80%
Operaung free cash flow 723 904 772 657 324
Operaung free cash flow per share S0 5p i128p 96 5p 81 7p 40 Ip
Total free cash flow 723 904 772 657 269
Total free cash flow per share 90 5p 1128p 96 5p 81 7p 333p
Net assets 4,636 5.605 5.962 5710 5.706
Net debt 1,092 430 499 S8 1,379
Return on invested capital (gross basis)

Total adjusted operanng profit 858 938 938 932 736
Cashwaxpad ey @) (5 (5 (19
Return 755 853 787 867 545
Average mvested capital 8,504 8315 8731 9,578 10,130
Return on mnvested capstal 8 9% 103% 9 0% 1% 54%
Dvidend per share 35 5p 38.7p 42 0p 45 Op 48 Op

D
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Corporate and operating measures

Pearson's corporate and operating measures include the resuits of Mergermarket throughout 2013 as the business
was wholly-owned durning that period

Sales — underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Sales moverment excluding Penguin and excluding the impact of acquisitions and disposals and movements
in exchange rates

A-llﬁ:glees m E_T:IIBHS e . L _— o __122-
Underlying wncrease 29
Portfolio changes 70
Exchange differences _ ) 19
Total sales increase e L {18
Underlying increase 1%
Constant exchange rate increase 2%

Adusted income statement

Reconchauon of the consolidated income statermnent to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAFP measures
in the financial staternents

L e e 2013
Other nat
Statutory Other net finance Tax Adjusced
mcome Duscontinued  gawns and Acquisitien Intangible income! amerasation income
ﬁﬂ_ﬁgc_;gn 4 malbons___ o swatement operatons losses _tess charges coss beneﬁt_ _sement
Operating profit 458 54 t6 12 196 - - 736
Net finance costs __(76) - - - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 16 i2 196 4 - 664
Incomewax . _®) (8 33 & __6GH M 30 @)
Profit for the year from
CONtiNWINg operations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 267
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 244 (36) {209 - 2 {t) — -
Profit for the year 539 - {let) 10 147 2 30 567
Non-controlling interest () - - - ~ - - (1)
Earnings 538 - e 10 |47 2 30 566
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Adjusted income statement continued

o L 2012
Criher met
Sututory Ol net finunce Tax Adusred
mcome Ducontinued  gaws and Arquisnien tmangible income/ anorusIten W ome
l_\_i_l ﬁ_g_ures w € mifbons statennt Cperzuons lasses Q5LE rlurges costs benefic  statement
Operatng profit 487 (23 123 20 179 - - 932
Net finance costs I ) - - 3! - (65)
Profit before tax 399 123 123 20 179 31 - 867
incometax {138) (38) - 5 {54) (N 36 {200)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 253 85 123 {5 125 30, 36 667
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 6 ___(85) 20 1 i - - = (/‘3
Profic for the year 314 - 143 16 128 30 36 667
Non-conirolling interest 3 - - - - - - {3)
Earmings 3w - oMy e 128 30 36 664
Ad)justed operating profit — unde:lymg and constant exchange rate movement
Cperatng profit movement excluding the impact of acquisigons, dlsposals and maovements m exchange rates
Abtgres mEmions T gy
(J?\derlyxng decrease B i a - (22—2’.3
Portfolio changes 30
Exchange differences . {4)
Total adusted operaung profit decrease {196)
Underlying decrease (23)%
Constant exchange rate decrease o (21)%
The underlying and constant exchange rate decreases above primanly reflect the impact of restructuring charges ™
booked during 2013 Excluding the impact of these restructuring charges. underlying and constant exchange rate (

operating profits have decreased 9% and 6% respecuvely




Secuon 5 Finanual statements

Free cash flow per share

209

Operaung cash flow for conunuing and disconunued operations before tax and finance charges, divided by the

weighted average number of shares in issue

All fgores w Emibons . e 013 012
Adjusted operating profit 736 932
Cash conversion 80% 85%
Operating cash flow 588 788
Operating tax pard {121 (65)
Net operating finance costs paid o {73 {66)
Total operating free cash flow 324 657
Non-operating tax pawd {55} -
Total free cash flow 269 657
Weghted average number of shares in issue {millions) 807 8 8043
Operating free cash flow per share 40 1p 81 7p
Touwl free cash flow per share . _______ 333p 81 7p
Return on nvested capital

T T e
Al fgures 10 £ milhons - — - S oot AU AL
Total adjusted operating profit 736 932
Operating tax pad ] N _ e (65)
Rewrn . 867_
Awverage goodwill and other mitangibles 8.903 8.550
Average net operaung assets | 227 §.028
Average invested capital _ . . 10.130 9.578
Return on invested capital 54% 9 1%

Return on invested capital 1s calculated as total adjusted operaung profit less operating cash tax paid expressed as
a percentage of average invested capital Invested caprtal includes the original unamorused goodwill and intangibles
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Shareholder information

Pearson ordinary shares are listed on the London
Stock Exchange and an the New York Stock Exchange
in the form of Amencan Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The nvestars’ section of our corporate website
www pearson com/investors provides a wealth of
information for shareholders It s also possible to
sIgn Up Lo receive ematl alerts for reports and press
releases relaung to Pearson at

wwWw pearson com/investors/announcements/
email-alerts

Shareholder informauan anline

Shareholder mformauon can be found on our website
www pearscn com/nvestors/ shareholder-informaunon

Our registrar, Equinity also provides a range of
shareholder informatian onhine You can check your
holding and find practical help on transferring shares
or updatng your details at www shareview co uk

For more information, please contact our registrar,
Equimu, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lanang, West
Sussex BN99 6DA. Telephione 0871 384 2233* or, for
those sharehalders with hearing difficulues, textphone
number 0871 384 2255*

Informatton zbout the Pearson share price

The company's share pince can be found on our
website at www pearson com It also appears in the
financial columns of the national press

2013 Dvidends

Payment date Amount per share
Intenm I3 Seprember 2013 |6 pence
Final 2 May 2014 32 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends pad through
BACS, dus can be done directly nto a bank or bulding
society account with the tax voucher sent 1o the
shareholder’s registered address Equimin can be
contacted for information on 0871 384 2043™

Dividend reinvestment plan {DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the right to buy the
company’s shares on the London stock market
with their cash dividend For further information,
please contact Equirut on 0871 384 2268*

Individual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

Equinit offers ISAs in Pearson shares For more
information, please go to www shareview co ul¢/dealing
or call customer services on 0845 300 0430~

Share dealing faciities

Equiniti offers telephone and internet services

for dealing in Pearson shares For further

informaten, please contact their telephone dealing
helpline on 08456 037 037 {weekdays only} or, for
online dealing, log on to www shareview co ul/dealing
You will need your shareholder reference number

as shown on your share certificate

A weekly postal dealing service 15 also avadable
through Equiniu Please telephone 0871 384 2248 for
details or log on to www shareview £o uk to download
aform

ShareGift

Shareholders with small holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconomic to self, may wish to
donate them to ShareGift the share donation charity
(registered charity number (052686} Further
informaton about ShareGift and the charses it has
supported may be obtained from their website,

www ShareGift org or by contacung them at ShareGift,
PO Box 72253, London, SWIP 2LQ

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearson’s ADRs are listed on the New Yori Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbol PSO Each ADR
represents one ordinary share For enquiries regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends,

please contact The Bank of New York Mellon,

PO Box 43006, Providence. RI 02940-3006,
relephone | (866) 259 2289 (tolt free within the US)
or 001 201 680 6825 (outside the US). Alternatively
you may email shrrelavons@bnymellon com, or log on
to www bnymellon com/shareowner Votng rights for
registered ADR holders can be exerased through

The Bank of New Yark Mellon, and for beneficial

ADR holders (and/or nominee accounts) through
your US brokerage institution  Pearson wilt file with
the Secunitres and Exchange Commmussion a Form 20-F

*Calls to these numbers are charged at Bp per minute plus
network e«tras Lines opan 8 30am to 5 30pra Monday
to Friday
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Share register fraud protecting your mvestment

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly to
provide recommendauon advice and neither does it
appamnt third parties to do so  As required by law, our
shareholder register 1s avatable for public inspecuon
but we cannot control the use of iformation obtained
by persons inspecting the register Please treat any
approaches purporting to originate from Pearson

with caution

For more imformation, please log on to our website at
www pearson com/ investors/shareholder-
informauon/managing-your-shares and

www pearson com/shareholderfags

Tips on protecting your shares

Keep any documentation that contans your
shareholder reference number in a safe place and
shred any unwanted documentation

-

» Inform our registrar, Equinitt promptly when you
change address

~

~

Secuon § Fmancial staternents 2

Be awara of dividend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do not receive your dividend cheque
or better stilf, make arrangements to have the dividend
paid directly into your bank account.

Consider holding your shares electronically m a2 CREST
account via a nominee

2014 Financial calendar

Ex-divtdend date 2 Apnil
Record date 4 April
Last date for duvidend

remvestment election 9 Apnl
Annual General Meeting 25 April
Payment date for dividend and share

purchase date for dwvidend reinvestment 2 May
Interim results 25 July

Payment date for intenm divdend 12 September
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Principal offices

Pearson plc

80 Strand,

London WC2R ORL, UK

T +44 (0)20 7010 2000

F+44 (0)20 7010 6060

firstname lastname@pearson com

Pearson Inc

330 Hudson Streert,

New York City,

NY 10013, USA

T+12123%0 7100

firstname lasthame{@pearson com

WwWw Dearson com

Pearson plc
Registered number 53723 (England)
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Reliance on this document

Our Strategic report on pages 02 to 53 has been
prepared in accordance with section 414 { Duty to
prepare a strategic report’} of the Companies Act
2006 (Surategic Report and Directors' Report)
Regulavons 2013 lvalso incorporates much of the
guidance set out 1 the Accounting Standards Board's
Reporung Statement on the Operating and

Frnancial Review

The ntention of this document 1s to provide
information to shareholders and 1s not designed
to be relied upon by any other party or for any
other purpose

Forward-looking statements

This document contains forward-looking statements
which are made by the direciors in good faith based
on information avaifable to them at the ume of
approval of this report In partcular, all statements
that express forecasts, expectatons and projections
with respect to future matters, including trends in
results of operauans, margms, growth rates, overall
mariet trends, the impact of interest or exchange
rates, the availabtiity of finanang, anticpated costs
savings and synergies and the executton of Pearson’s
strategy. are forward-looking statements

Logo removed {.ogo removed

Desgnand P oducaon Radle, Yeida tLondon) www rycom
Prine, Pureprine Group

By their nature {orward-loolung statements invalve
risks and uncertainies because they relate to events
and depend on arcumstances that will occur in the
future There are a number of factors which could
cause actual results and developments to differ
materially from those expressed or imphed by these
forward-looking statements, including a number of
factors outside Pearson’s cantrol Any forward-
looking statements speak only as of the date they are
made, and Pearson gives no undertaking to update
forward-looking statements to reflect any changes in
15 expectations with regard thereto or any changes w
events, conditions or ¢ircumstances on which any such
statement s based

Thsieperthes boen prnted oo Fdmuon Ch dlenger
Jfset wuchr FSC cormfied and rade fren 100%

Efemeniaf Chlorne Free (ECF) pulpy The mafand whe

Frarsun hac cupported the planting of 400 squar¢ metres

of new nanve wuodhand weeh the Wooalar Trutt Telping
toremove 16 tonaes of carbon dioade snussion. Zenersted
by the production of thus report

prwner ae both ceruled 1o 150 14001 ensronmental
inanagement system and regstered L EMAS e s oo
manageiment Audit Scheme The reparct wes princed
wsing vegerible hasedink: by 2 CarbonMNeutr it srinter
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